Technical and Bibliographic Notes / Notes techniques et bibliographiques

L'Institut a microfilmé le meilleur exemplaire qu'il lui a

32x

The Institute has attempted to obtain the best original

This item is filmed at the reduction ratio checked below / Ce document est filmé au taux de réduction indiqué ci-dessous.

16x

12x

copy available for filming. Features of this copy which may be bibliographically unique, which may alter any of the images in the reproduction, or which may significantly change the usual method of filming are checked below.			été possible de se procurer. Les détails de cet exem- plaire qui sont peut-être uniques du point de vue bibli- ographique, qui peuvent modifier une image reproduite, ou qui peuvent exiger une modification dans la métho- de normale de filmage sont indiqués ci-dessous.			
	Coloured covers / Couverture de couleur		Coloured pages / Pages de couleur			
	Covers damaged / Couverture endommagée		Pages damaged / Pages endommagées Pages restored and/or laminated / Pages restaurées et/ou pelliculées			
	Covers restored and/or laminated / Couverture restaurée et/ou pelliculée		Pages discoloured, stained or foxed / Pages décolorées, tachetées ou piquées			
	Cover title missing / Le titre de couverture manque		Pages detached / Pages détachées			
	Coloured maps / Cartes géographiques en couleur Coloured ink (i.e. other than blue or black) /		Showthrough / Transparence			
	Encre de couleur (i.e. autre que bleue ou noire)		Quality of print varies / Qualité inégale de l'impression			
	Coloured plates and/or illustrations / Planches et/ou illustrations en couleur		Includes supplementary material / Comprend du matériel supplémentaire			
	Bound with other material / Relié avec d'autres documents		Pages wholly or partially obscured by errata slips, tissues, etc., have been refilmed to ensure the best			
	Only edition available / Seule édition disponible		possible image / Les pages totalement ou partiellement obscurcies par un feuillet d'errata, une pelure, etc., ont été filmées à nouveau de façon à			
	Tight binding may cause shadows or distortion along interior margin / La reliure serrée peut causer de l'ombre ou de la distorsion le long de la marge intérieure.		obtenir la meilleure image possible. Opposing pages with varying colouration or discolourations are filmed twice to ensure the best			
	Blank leaves added during restorations may appear within the text. Whenever possible, these have been omitted from filming / II se peut que certaines pages blanches ajoutées lors d'une restauration apparaissent dans le texte, mais, lorsque cela était possible, ces pages n'ont pas été filmées.		possible image / Les pages s'opposant ayant des colorations variables ou des décolorations sont filmées deux fois afin d'obtenir la meilleure image possible.			
	Additional comments / Commentaires supplémentaires:					

10x 14x 18x 22x 26x 30x

24x

28x

20x

JOURNAL

OF THE

TEEJELBIJJAE EGUNEJE

OF

NEWFOUNDLAND.

JOURNAL

OF THE

Tegislative Council

OF THE

ISLAND OF NEWFOUNDLAND.



HIS EXCELLENCY

SIR ALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT,

GOVERNOR AND COMMANDER-IN-CHIEF IN AND OVER THE ISLAND OF NEWFOUNDLAND AND ITS DEPENDENCIES, &c., &c.

BEING THE FIRST SESSION

OF THE

SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY.

1860.

JOSEPH WOODS, PRINTER, ST. JOHN'S, NEWFOUNDLAND.



PROCLAMATION.

A. BANNERMAN.
(L. S.)

By His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island of Newfoundland and its Dependencies:

WHEREAS Her Majesty by certain Letters Patent under the Great Seal of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland, bearing date at Westminster the Fourteenth day of February, One Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty-seven, in the Twentieth Year of Her Majesty's Reign, hath given and granted unto me full Power and Authority to summon and call General Assemblies of the Freeholders and Householders within this Island: And whereas Writs in due form have been issued for a General Election of Members of the General Assembly of the Island, under which Members have been Elected and Returned to serve in the said General Assembly:

I do therefore by these Presents turther Summon and Call the Members of the said General Assembly so Elected, to assemble and meet in the town of St. John's, in the said Island, for the despatch of business, on Tuesday, the Thirty-first day of January, One Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty; and of which all Persons concerned therein are hereby required to take due notice and govern themselves accordingly.

Given under my Hand and Seal at the Government House, at St. John's aforesaid, the Twelth day of December, One Thousand Eight Hundred and Fitty-Nine, and in the Twenty-third Year of Her Majesty's Reign.

By His Excellency's Command,

E. D. SHEA,

Acting Colonial Secretary.



LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL,

NEWFOUNDLAND.

First Session Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

TUESDAY, 31st JANUARY, 1860.

This being the day appointed for the meeting of the Colonial Legislature,

At One of the Clock, P. M., the House met.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " JOHN ROCHFORT
- " JOHN FOX
- " NICHOLAS STABR
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " ROBERT KENT

11

At Two of the Clock, P. M., His Excellency the Governor having arrived at the Council Chamber, and being seated on the Throne, the Honorable the President of the Council commanded the Usher of the Black Rod attendant on the Council, to go to the Commons House of Assembly, and inform the Members thereof, that it is His Excellency's pleasure that they do forthwith attend at the Bar of this House; and they being come thereto, His Excellency was pleased to open the present Session by a gracious Speech to both Houses.

Governor arrives at the Council Chamber—

The Assembly summoned to attend him.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The House of Assembly having withdrawn, His Excellency was pleased to retire.

A copy of His Excellency's Speech having been left with the House, it was read by the Clerk, and is as follows:—

Mr. President, and Honorable Gentlemen of the Legislative Council:

Mr. Speaker, and Gentlemen of the House of Assembly:

His Excellency's Speech on opening the Session.

- 1.—Since the Legislature last met, a General Election has taken place in this Colony, and I am happy to meet the Council and the Members of the new House of Assembly convened to-day, for the despatch of public business.
- 2.—At the opening of the session of 1859, I alluded to the important question of the Fisheries, and, at its closing the community were made aware of the course which Her Majesty's Government had adopted, by agreeing in conjunction with the French Government, to appoint a mixed commission, equally composed of two from each nation, "to enquire into the state of facts as regards the local operation of the Treaties conferring on French subjects rights of Fishery on the coasts of this Island, and, more particularly to ascertain in what respects, and to what extent, the treaty stipulations may have been disregarded on either side." One of these commissioners was Commodore Dunlop, and the other one on the part of Newfoundland, was the Honorable Mr. Kent, he being nominated by the Colony, and that nomination confirmed by the Secretary of State.
- 3.—The duties of the Commissioners recently ceased, and, I believe Commodore Dunlop and Mr. Kent have made their Report to Her Majesty's Government.
- 4.—I am not aware of the conclusions which the gallant officer and his honorable calleague have arrived at, nor do I know whether the Marquis de Montaignac and Count Gobineare have made their report to the Government of France; but, in the meantime and pending negociations on this very important question, I have no doubt that the ships of both nations will be instructed to act as they did

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

last year, with a view to prevent any dispute between French and English subjects during the next fishing season.

- 5.—In regard to a permanent settlement of the Fishery Question, I may venture, I hope, to express an opinion that I think the fishermen of Newfoundland need not be under any apprehension, but that the rights which they possess by existing treaties, will be duly cared for, and I need not remind them and the people of the Coleny, that assurances were given to them, early in 1857, by high authority, that these rights would not be disturbed unless with the sanction of their own Legislature, and that, also, necessarily requiring an Act of the Imperial Parliament. I have now only to add that the expense of the commission will be defrayed by Her Majesty's Government.
- 6.—I am happy to hear that the education of the rising generation in this colony, is steadily progressing. It is an object which the Legislature of Newfoundland ought never to lose sight of; for, it is gratifying to see that, in some districts, large sums are given by the people themselves, in private subscriptions, for this laudable purpose; the Reports of the Inspectors of Schools will be laid before you.
- 7.—I read, the other day, the report of the Agricultural Society, and was happy to find that that most valuable adjunct to all other industrious pursuits, was, also, in a tair state of improvement. In this colony farming operations cannot be carried on, at present, to any considerable extent, although, I have seen several farms cultivated equal to any of a similar size in a more genial climate. Vegetables of all sorts seem to grow most beautifully, and I hope our fishermen will be encouraged to cultivate patches of ground, however small, and they will soon find that their labour will be rewarded by a bountiful supply of those fruits of the earth, which would add so much to the health and comfort of their families.

In reference to agriculture, great complaints continue to be made of the ravages committed by dogs, on sheep, &c. It is an evil to which my attention has been called by many industrious farmers, and I know that they expect the Legislature will provide a remedy for so great a nuisance.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

8.—The ground which was some years ago appropriated for Poor House Huts, with the consent of the Board of Ordnance, is in the immediate vicinity of Fort Townshend, and contrary to the rules of the service to be placed in such a locality. Intimation has been given that they must be removed by the 1st of June next, and provision will be required for some Poor House or Houses in another locality, instead of what has been hitherto called the "Camps."

The important measure which passed in the Session of 1859 establishing a Water Company with the view of supplying this large and populous town with an abundant supply of fresh water, called torth an expression of approbation from the Secretary of State.— Everything is progressing favorably connected with this great work, and a very satisfactory report from the Company will be laid before you.

10.—A considerable time has elapsed since the Board of Trade made enquiries as to the Law or practice which exists in this Colony in regard to shipwrecks. It is a subject well worthy the consideration of the Legislature, and, the Honorable Board recommend that a local law should be passed similar to that which is in force in England, provided for by the Mercantile Marine Act which authorizes the appointment of Receivers of Wreck, defines their duties, and secures due remuneration to those who often risk their lives to save life and property; and I shall be happy to afford such information as I am possessed of on that subject.

There was an Act passed in 1855, the 18 and 19 Vic. cap. 7, for the establishment of a Board of Works. It devolves on the Members of the Board so many important duties, that they can scarcely perform them with satisfaction to themselves, or to the public, and I think the Act requires amendment in as far as regards the *internal* management of the Hospital and Penitentiary, and, when the Council have considered the matter, your attention will be again directed to it.

Mr. Speaker, and Gentlemen of the House of Assembly:

11.—The Revenue for the year 1859 amounts, I believe, to but, the correct amount, along with the Estimates, will be

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

submitted for your consideration; and, I have only to repeat what I before urged on the last House of Assembly, that the sums which you may consider proper to vote, will be limited by the means placed at your disposal from different sources of Revenue raised by taxation on the people at large; and, I trust that the merits of all applications made to you for grants of pecuniary aid in any way, will be considered and determined on by yourselves, as is done in the House of Commons, and that you will not expect the Governor to sanction on his own responsibility the payment of large sums, unless the means are placed at the disposal of the Governor and Council, who, then, would be accountable for their appropriation.

Mr. President, and Honorable Gentlemen of the Legislative Council:

Mr. Speaker, and Gentlemen of the House of Assembly:

12.—I have now to trespass on your attention for a few minutes by alluding to a subject which has lately been considered and discussed in the neighbouring Provinces, I mean the defences of Her Majesty's Colonies, and I do so I assure you, not to create any alarm, for I entertain no such feeling, but I was reminded some time ago that "forethought and vigilance are amongst the best securities against hostile designs" in case of any war breaking out, an event which I fervently hope is far distant.

13.—Her Majesty's Government, supported by the nation, think that the best way to secure peace is to be prepared for war; more particularly as other powers had considered it necessary to increase their armaments, and I believe, Her Majesty's land and sea forces have lately been augmented, and not only that, but the Militia of the United Kingdom are organized, and the people have spontaneously come forward to enrol themselves as Volunteers to aid the regular army should emergencies arise to require their services. I have not failed to represent our exposed position to aggression by sea and land should we at any time be attacked; that has not been lost sight of, for about the close of last summer, Engineer, Artillery, and Naval Officers were ordered to survey part of the coast, more particularly in the vicinity of our Harbor.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Before that time I was instructed to place myself in communication with Lieut.-General Sir Fenwick Williams, Commander-in-Chief of the forces in British North America; I did so, when that gallant officer honored me with a visit. Addresses were presented to him, and these, along with his replies, having been published, it is unnecessary for me further to allude to them, than, that he conjured us to arouse, and gradually arm, and thus place ourselves "out of the pale of insult from without," while, in a despatch from the Secretary of State, dated 28th July, 1859, I was informed that "among other measures of defence, His Royal Highness the Commander-in-Chief suggested that an effective Militia force should be formed in Newfoundland."

14.—His Royal Highness, however, seems not to have been aware that there is no Militia Act in this Colony, and when such an Act was introduced during the administration of Sir John Harvey, it was withdrawn after being read a second time in the House of Assembly, and nothing has since been done relative to a Militia force.

15.—On this matter being discussed by the Executive Council, it was thought that in a Colony such as this, where the mass of the population are pursuing their avocations for eight months of the year on the sea, great difficulties stood in the way of organizing a Militia force, and in that view of the case I very much concur.

16.—At the same time the Council were of opinion that there would be no difficulty in raising Volunteer Companies in various localities, and with that view, I was requested to ascertain whether, in the first place, Her Majesty's Government would supply Arms and Accourrements, a request which the Secretary of State readily complied with, His Grace having been furnished with the opinion of the Council, and Her Majesty's Government before that time made aware by me that the Royal Newtoundland Companies formed the whole garrison of Regular Troops here, and with so large a population as now exists in Newfoundland, the Police force, in my opinion, was very ineffective.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDERBANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

- 17.—On the 20th December last, I received a despatch with enclosures from the Colonial Minister, the purport of which was a proposal to increase Her Majesty's Forces here, by the augmentation of the Royal Newfoundland Companies, and also a certain number of Artillerymen to be placed in small parties in the Provinces to assist in instructing Volunteer Artillery.
- 18.—His Grace, however, says that he will delay replying to the proposal of the Secretary of War until he ascertains "whether the Provinces will contribute to the expense of any well considered undertaking which may seem necessary for the security of that portion of the Empire."
- 19.—This despatch will immediately be laid before you, and I trust you will, as early as possible, enable me to reply to the Secretary of State on the important matter to which it refers, and on which the Council have expressed no opinion, leaving it entirely to the determination of the Legislature.
- If I, therefore, say that I think the proposal a desirable one, it must be taken as my individual opinion, and I form it on the grounds that as the inhabitants of all the neighboring Provinces are liable to be ballotted for and called out, in accordance with their respective Militia Acts, the people of this colony cannot by law be called on to perform any service whatever, by land or sea.
- 20.—You are aware that within this last fortnight, several meetings have been held on the subject of raising Rifle Corps, and it is with great satisfaction that I shall have to announce to Her Majesty's Government, by the next Mail, that several Companies have been formed in St. John's, and two of which have already selected their officers,—but,
- 21.—It will be necessary for me to ascertain the course which has been adopted by the Governors of the neighbouring Colonies where similar corps have been already formed, and if it be found that any Act of the Legislature will be necessary to define the duties and services which may be required of these corps in cases of emer-

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

gency, I am sure you will readily acquiesce in passing any such Act. taking care that due publicity be given to it before it becomes law.

I shall no longer trespass on your time, as I have no doubt you will be desirous to proceed to business, and it will afford me great pleasure at all times to co-operate with you in promoting the wealth and the prosperity of the people of this Colony.

Ordered—That a Select Committee be appointed to draft an Address to the Governor, in answer to His Excellency's Speech.

Ordered-That the Honorable Messrs. Kough, Hogsett, and Morris, be a Committee for that purpose.

Ordered—That the Speech be printed.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on Friday next, move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, for any Order of Council authorizing the charge of Three Pence for a letter posted and delivered in town.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on the next day of meeting, move the adoption of the Resolution for the abolition of the entire Reading of Bills.

The Honorable Mr. Fox gives notice, that he will on the next day of meeting, ask for the Report of the Select Committee on Contingencies, Printing, &c.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will on Friday next, move for the appointment of Officers to this House.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will on Friday next, move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, for the appointment of a second Officer to this House as Clerk or Master-in-Chancery; the two offices now being held conjointly, contrary to the usual practice of the Legislature.

Select committee to draft Address to the Governor in reply to his Speech.

Notice of Address for an Order of Council authorizing a charge on a letter posted and delivered in town.

Notice of a Resolution for the abolition of the entire reading of Bills.

Notice to ask for the Report of the Select Committee on Contingencies, &c.

Notice for the appointment of Officers of the House.

Notice of Address for the appointment of a second Officer.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Friday next, at 3 o'clock, p. m

3rd February, 1860.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

FRIDAY, 3rd FEBRUARY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" JAMES TOBIN

" JOHN ROCHFORT

" JOHN FOX

" NICHOLAS STABB

" EDWARD MORRIS

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" PATRICK KOUGH

" JOHN HOGSETT

" ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Tuesday last were read.

The Honorable the President laid before the House, by command of the Governor, the following Message from His Excellency, with accompanying Despatches relative to the formation of Volunteer Corps, which were severally read by the Clerk.

Message from Governor transmitting two Despatches relative to the formation of Volunteer Corps.

(Vide Appendix.)

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

The Governor sends herewith, to the Legislative Council, two Despatches on subjects alluded to by him at the opening of the Session; one dated "War Office, 1st October, 1859;" the other "Downing Street, 18th November, 1859." The latter is the Despatch which the Governor requested the Legislature to enable him to reply to, as early as possible. The former is a reply to a Despatch forwarded to the Colonial Minister on the 16th August last,—placing at the Governor's disposal 1,500 Enfield Rifles; a thousand of which only have yet arrived, and they are lodged in the Garrison Armoury.

In the Governor's Despatch of the 16th August, he was naturally desirous to acquire information relative to the practice which prevailed in England at that time, as regards raising Volunteer Corps, and he was turnished with a certain memorandum addressed to Lords-Lieutenants of Counties regarding the "Formation, Organ-

3rd February, 1860.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

ization, Establishment, Instruction, &c., of Volunteer Corps in Great Britain, to be raised under Act 44 Geo. III., Cap. 54." This act was an Imperial one, and under its provisions the Volunteers already organized, or who may be organized, have been enrolled in Great Britain; and it is the same Act under which the Volunteers were raised which did such essential service to the country about the commencement of the present century. This Act is a lengthy one, containing Sixty clauses.

On mature consideration, the Governor is of opinion that a Colonial Act will be indispensable to regulate and define the duties which are to be performed by those persons who voluntarily come forward to enrol themselves as Volunteers in aid of Her Majesty's Regular Troops, should their services be required, and to define also what is expected of such Corps, and their Officers, for drill, &c.

It appears to the Governor that the simplest mode would be for the Lgislature of Newfoundland to extend to this Colony so many of the provisions of the Act 44 Geo. III., Cap. 54, as would be applicable to Newfoundland.

The Governor has carefully looked over the Act, and noted the clauses which he thinks would answer that purpose. The Act will be found in the 2nd Volume of the Statutes of the United Kingdom, in the Colonial Library; and many questions being daily asked of the Governor on the subjects to which he has alluded, he hopes the Legislature will take this Message into their early consideration, as it is quite natural for those persons whose loyalty to their Queen and Country prompted them to come forward to enrol themselves as Volunteers, to be informed of the duties which they will have to perform—all Volunteers being exempted by the Imperial Act from serving in the Militia.

Government House, 2nd February, 1860.

3rd February, 1860.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. Kouch, from the Select Committee appointed to prepare an Address to His Excellency the Governor in reply to His Excellency's Speech at the opening of the Session, presented the draft of the Address, and the same was received and read a first time.

Select Committee report draft of Address to the Governor in reply to his Speech—

Read a first time.

Ordered—That the said Address be read a second time to-morrow—and,

Ordered-That it be printed.

The Honorable Mr. Kough gives notice, that he will on tomorrow move the suspension of the 35th Rule in reference to the said Address.

Notice of motion to suspend 35th Rule of the House.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Fox, the House went into Committee of Privilege—

House in Committee of Privilege.

The Honorable Mr. ROCHFORT in the Chair.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett moved the following Resolution:

Resolved—That the present Reporter, Doorkeepers, and Messengers of this House, be reinstated; and that the proceedings of this House be published in the Newfoundlander, Courier, Times, and Ledger.

Which on being put, passed in the affirmative.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Resolution.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

Upon motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, seconded by the Honorable Mr. Pinsent:—

Resolved—That the President of this Council be requested to communicate by Telegraph with the President of the Legislative Council of Canada, Nova Scotia, and New Brunswick, and ascertain

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

and inform the Council what Officers of the Legislative Council in those Provinces are appointed by the vote of the members of that body, and what Officers are appointed by the Executive.

Notice for the appointment of Printers to the House.

The Honorable Mr. Morris gives notice, that he will on tomorrow move for the appointment of Printer of the Journals and Printer of the other Papers of this House.

Notice to fill vacancy inPrintingContingency Committee.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow move that the vacancy occasioned in the Printing Contingency Committee, by the absence of the Honorable J. J. Rogerson, be filled up.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

MONDAY, 6th FEBRUARY, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

JAMES TOBIN

66 SAMUEL CARSON

٠. JOHN ROCHFORT

.. EDWARD MORRIS

66 NICHOLAS STABB

ROBERT J. PINSENT "

PATRICK KOUGH

" JOHN HOGSETT

ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

The President laid on the table copy of Tele-Nova Scotia.

The Honorable the President laid on the table, a Telegram grams received from from the Honorable Edward Kenny, of Halifax, Nova Scotia, on

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

subject of the appointment of Officers to the Legislative Council; also, a Telegram from W. J. Ward, Esq., of St. John's, from Halifax, Nova Scotia, dated February 4th, 1860,—

Which were severally read.

The Honorable Mr. Morris gives notice, that he will on tomorrow move that an arrangement, similar to that of last year, be entered into by the Legislative Council with Mr. Ward, for Telegraphic News, on condition that a copy be sent to each member of Council immediately on receipt of Telegram.

Notice of arrangement for receiving News by Telegraph.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Wednesday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

WEDNESDAY, 8th FEBRUARY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" JAMES TOBIN

" JOHN ROCHFORT

" EDWARD MORRIS

" NICHOLAS STABB

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" PATRICK KOUGH

" JOHN HOGSETT

" ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

The Honorable the President laid upon the table of the House, for the information of Members, a Telegram from W. J. Ward, Esq., dated Halifax, February 7th, 1860; also, a Telegram from Halifax, Nova Scotia, from the Hon. E. Kenny,

Telegrams from Halifax laid on the table of the House by the President.

Which were severally read.

First Session, Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

Address to the Governor read 2nd time.

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Kough, the Address in reply to His Excellency's Speech was read a second time.

35th Rule of the House suspended.

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Kough, the 35th Rule of this House was suspended with reference to the said Address.

Address committed.

Whereupon, on motion of the Honorable Mr. Kouch, the House went into Committee on the said Address—

The Honorable Mr. Tobin in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 3 o'clock, p. m.

THURSDAY, 9th FEBRUARY, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" EDWARD MORRIS

" JAMES TOBIN

" NICHOLAS STABB

" PATRICK KOUGH

" ROBERT KENT

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" JOHN HOGSETT

The Minutes of Wednesday last were read.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Kough, the House went into Committee on the Address in reply to His Excellency's Speech,—

Address to the Governor committed—

The Honorable Mr. Tobin in the Chair.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett moved the following Amendment on the third Paragraph of the said Address:—

"The Council beg to thank your Excellency for the promised Reports of the Inspectors of Schools. They are fully alive to the great importance of Education, and the advantages which must result from its efficient establishment in the Colony, and whilst they are gratified that so much has hitherto been done they are at the same time desirous to express their opinion, that during the present Session a more perfect system will be introduced."

Amendment.

Which on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again:

Ordered-That the Report be received.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will ask for leave to bring in a Bill to abolish all Crown or Quit Rents on Farming or Agricultural Property.

Notice of Bill to abolish Crown or Quit Rents.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, for copy of the Instructions given to Captain Coady and Mr. James Finlay, on the Fishery question, this summer; also, by whom Mr. Finlay was employed, and who paid Messrs. Finlay and Coady, whether the Imperial or Colonial Funds.

Notice of Address for copy of Instructions to Capt. Coady and Mr. James Finlay, &c.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, move the House into Committee of the whole upon the subject of the Colonial Minister's Despatch with regard to the increase of Troops in this Colony.

Notice to move the House into Committee on the increase of Troops in the Colouy.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 3 o'clock, P.M.

FRIDAY, 10th FEBRUARY, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" JAMES TOBIN

" EDWARD MORRIS

" NICHOLAS STABB

" PATRICK KOUGH

" JOHN HOGSETT

" ROBERT KENT
" SAMUEL CARSON

The Minutes of Thursday last were read.

Address in reply to His Excellency's Speech— Committed—

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Kough, the House went into Committee on the Address in reply to His Excellency's Speech—

The Honorable Mr. Tobin in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported with Amendments. The Chairman reported the Address with some Amendments.

Ordered-That the Report be received-and

Ordered—That the said Address be engrossed, and read a third time to-morrow.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

MONDAY, 13th FEBRUARY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

The Honorable the President laid before the House, a Telegram from William J. Ward, dated Halifax, February 10th, 1860, on subject of appointment of Ministry in Nova Scotia, and various European news.

Telegram received from Nova Scotia laid on the table.

Ordered—That the same be read.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Kough, the Address in reply to His Excellency's Speech was read a third time and passed, and is as follows:—

Address in reply to His Excellency's Speech— Read 3rd time and passed.

To His Excellency Sir ALEXANDER BANNERMAN, Knight, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island of Newfoundland and its Dependencies, &c., &c., &c.

The Address.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY:-

The Legislative Council of Newfoundland, in General Assembly convened, desire to thank Your Excellency for the gracious Speech with which Your Excellency has been pleased to open the present Session, and for your expression of feeling in meeting the Council and Members of the new House of Assembly.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The subject of our Fisheries—the mainspring of the advancement and prosperity of the Colony—has, from the period of the assumption of its Government by Your Excellency, received much of your earnest consideration. The Council fully appreciate the interest which you have always manifested on this important question; and are gratified to learn that the duties of the Commissioners appointed by the respective Governments of England and France have ceased. Whatever may be the nature of their report, we confidently anticipate that, consistently with the faith of existing treaties, our Fishery Rights, in which the best interests of this Colony are materially involved, will be fully recognised and maintained in any further negotiations between the respective Governments; and this anticipation is strengthened by the assurance of the Imperial Government, conveyed to us by the Secretary of State, in 1857.

The Council are happy to be informed that the expenses of the Commission will be defrayed by Her Majesty's Government.

The Council have heard with satisfaction that the Education of the rising generation in the Colony is steadily progressing, and that in some Districts large sums are given by the people themselves in private subscriptions for this laudable purpose; and we feel assured that the Legislature will at all times give to this interesting subject that consideration which it demands, and we thank you for the assurance that the Reports of the Inspectors of Schools will be laid before us.

We agree with Your Excellency that our Agriculture is a valuable adjunct to all our other industrial pursuits, and we are happy to perceive its rapidly growing improvement, which must necessarily add so much to the health and comfort of the inhabitants of this Island. We regret that the Farmers should have suffered any loss or inconvenience by ravages committed by dogs on sheep, and we entertain a belief that the Legislature will, during the present Session, endeavour to provide a remedy against so great an evil.

We thank Your Excellency for conveying to us the determination of the Board of Ordnance with reference to the removal of the

HISEECELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Poor-house Huts, which from necessity, were erected in the vicinity of Fort Townsend at a period of great distress and anxiety. An Asylum for the aged, the poor, and infirm, has been considered indispensable in almost all countries, and we have no doubt but that the Legislature of Newfoundland will make provision for the accomplishment of an object so urgent as that of providing a shelter for the distressed and indigent.

We are happy to find that the Act which passed the Legislature in 1859, for the formation of a General Water Company, has met with the approbation of the Secretary of State, and that this great Public work is progressing favorably; its advantages must be appreciated by every one; and we thank Your Excellency for the assurance that a satisfactory Report from the Company will be laid before us.

We observe the recommendation of the Honorable Board of Trade, that a Law should be passed in the Colony similar to that which is in torce in England, provided for by the Mercantile Marine Act, which authorizes the appointment of Receivers of wrecked property, and secures remuneration to those who incur risk to save life and property. A subject such as this cannot fail to recommend itself to the grave consideration of the Legislature; and we thank Your Excellency for your offer to afford to us such information in regard thereto as you are possessed of.

The Council regret to learn that the Act passed in 1855, for the establishment of a Board of Works, should be thought by your Excellency to be inefficient for its intended purposes, so far as it relates to the internal management of the Hospital and Penitentiary; and we have no doubt that any amendment that may be recommended for improving the system will receive due consideration.

We shall be happy to receive from Your Excellency a statement of the amount of Revenue for the past year, together with the usual Estimates. And we thank your Excellency for your suggestion that the monies which the Assembly may consider necessary to vote, may be limited by the means placed at its disposal by taxation on the

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

people generally; and that all grants of pecuniary aid in any way may be considered and determined by vote of the Legislature.

The Council beg to assure Your Excellency that they attach a just appreciation to the motives which have induced you to draw the attention of the Legislature to the consideration of measures which every enlightened country should be alive to,—the means of defence against aggression. And while we believe that there is no present cause of alarm, we concur with Your Excellency, that forethought and vigilance are amongst the best securities against unfriendly designs—at the same time, we indulge the fervent hope that the calamities of war may never be visited upon us.

As other Powers have conceived it necessary to increase their armaments, England, ever watchful of her security, has likewise deemed it prudent to augment and strengthen her land and sea forces; and we observe with satisfaction, how spontaneously and readily the people of England and of the Empire have formed themselves into Volunteer Corps, to aid the regular army should necessity require it.

We thank Your Excellency for representing to the Authorities the exposed condition of this Colony, in case of any attack, either by sea or land, and have no doubt but that, in due time, your recommendations to the Imperial Government will be responded to by increasing our present military force, and other additional means of security.

We agree with Your Excellency, that there would be many difficulties and impediments in the way of organizing a regular Militia force in this Island; but we rejoice to find that the people here have promptly followed the example of England and the neighboring Colonies in forming Volunteer Companies for our common defence; and the Council are persuaded that the spirit of loyalty and devotion to the Crown would, in the hour of peril, be as nobly and bravely exhibited by the Volunteer Soldier, in the absence of an Act of the Legislature, as if enrolled under the provisions of one.

The Council are informed, that within the last fortnight many meetings have been held in the town on the subject of raising Volun-

HIS EXCELLENCY SERALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

teer Rifle Corps—that several Companies have been already formed and their Officers selected; and we thank Your Excellency that this gratifying and desirable event shall be communicated by you to Her Majesty's Government by the next Mail.

The Council will be happy to have laid before them the several Despatches on this subject to which Your Excellency has referred.

The Council beg to thank Your Excellency for tendering your co-operation in all measures tending to the welfare and prosperity of the Colony.

(Signed,)

LAURENCE O'BRIEN.

President.

Ordered—That the said Address be presented to His Excellency the Governor by the whole House, and that the Honorable the President do ascertain from His Excellency, what time he will be pleased to receive the same.

The Honorable Mr. STABB, pursuant to notice, moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that Your Excellency may be pleased to appoint a second Officer to this House as Clerk or Master-in-Chancery, the two offices now being held conjointly, contrary to all former precedent.

Legislative Council.

Which on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, from the Committee on the Printing Contingencies, &c., laid before the House the following Report:—

First Session, Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

Report of the Committee on PrintingContingencies, &c,

The Select Committee appointed to inquire and report on the Printing and Stationery of the Honorable the Legislative Council, beg to state,-

That from the enquiries they have made upon the subject of the charges for Printing the Journals of the Council and the Miscellaneous Papers, Bills, &c., by the Printers of last Session of the General Assembly, they are of opinion the rates charged for the services, allowing reasonable compensation beyond the expenses of labor, &c., are not unreasonable.

They have found that the charge for Binding the Journals has been uniform by two rival binding establishments.

One member of the Committee has called upon the Stationer, Mr. Graham, and has given him directions to furnish nothing for the Legislative Council without a written order from the Clerk, and upon all occasions to send with the articles ordered a bill of particulars stating the charge for each item.

(Signed)

SAMUEL CARSON EDWARD MORRIS.

Committee Room,

February 8th, 1860.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. PINSENT moved the following Resolution: --

Resolved-That the Reading of Bills throughout, be dispensed with on the first reading.

Which on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsert gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move for leave to bring in a Bill to prevent the ravages com-

Notice for leave to bring in a Bill to prevent the ravages of Dogs on Sheep, &c. mitted upon Sheep by Dogs, &c.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Thursday next, at 3 o'clock, p. m.

House adjourns.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

THURSDAY, 16th FEBRUARY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

The Honorable the PRESIDENT, from his place informed the Council that the Governor would on to-morrow, at 12 o'clock, noon, receive the Address in reply to His Excellency's Speech at the opening of the Session.

The Governor will receive the Address of the House to-morrow.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, pursuant to the order of the day, moved that Mr. Joseph Woods be Printer and Binder of the Journal, and Mr. J. C. Withers Printer of Miscellaneous Papers of this House,—Whereupon—

Notice for appointment of Printers to the House—

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, seconded by the Honorable Mr. Stabb, moved in amendment,—That the printing of this House be submitted for Tender,—

Amendment-

Which on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

And the original motion being put, was resolved in the affirmative.

Original motion carried

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor was read and adopted:—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that Your Excellency will cause to be laid before this House, any Order of Council that may be in Your Excellency's possession, or under your control, authorizing the charge of three pence for any Letter posted in this town and delivered here.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 16th February, 1860.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, the following Address was read and adopted:—

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY:-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that Your Excellency will be pleased to cause to be laid before them a copy of the Instructions given to Captain Coady and Mr. James Finlay, on the Fishery question during the past summer; and also, inform them by whom Mr. Finlay was employed, and who paid Messrs. Coady and Finlay, and whether such payment was from the Imperial or Colonial Funds.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 16th February, 1860.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Tobin,—

Bill to abolish Crown Rents— Brought in and read 1st time. A Bill to remit the payment of, and to abolish Crown or Quit Rents on Agricultural and Farming Properties, was read a first time—and

Ordered—To be read a second time to-morrow, and to be printed.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will on tomorrow ask the Organ of the Government whose duty it is to regulate and attend to the Public Coves in this Town.

Notice to ask Organ of Government whose duty it is to attend to Public Coves.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will on tomorrow ask leave to bring in the following Bills:—

Notice of Sundry Bills.

A Bill to regulate the Culling of Fish.

A Bill to provide for the Inspection of Flour and Meal,—and

A Bill to regulate the Sale of Coals and Salt.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move an Address to the Governor for Copies of Minute of Council appointing the Colonial Secretary as Commissioner of Fisheries; also, a copy of His Excellency's Despatch or Despatches announcing the same to the Secretary of State for the Colonies; also, copies of any communications received from the Secretary of State relative to the Newfoundland Fisheries, since the last Session of this House.

Notice of Address for Minute of Council, Despatch, &c., on Newfoundland Fisheries.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move for a Select Committee of this House to Audit the Accounts of the Savings Bank, and that no number of that Committee shall be in the pay of the Government, directly or indirectly, or be connected by family ties with any of the members of the Administration.

Notice of SelectCommittee to audit Accounts of Savings' Bank.

The Honorable Mr. Tobis gives notice, that he will move for the reasons why the Chief Clerk of the Post Office has been dismissed, and to produce copies of any documents authorising the Post Office employes to open letters, detain letters, papers, &c., at their discretion; also, Minute of Council appointing Commissioners to superintend the affairs of the St. John's Post Office, and the names of said Commissioners with the detail of their duty. Also,

Notice to ask why the Chief Clerk of Post Office was dismissed,&c

An Address to His Excellency for copies of Minute of Council opening new Street from Monkstown Road to Barnes's Lane, beginning at Mr. Duggan's property; also, copy of Award of Government appraisers giving the Honorable Mr. Duggan £250 for property for the said new Road.

Notice of Address for Minute of Council for opening Street from Monkstown Read, &c.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Notice for Rules, &c., for management of Newfoundland Savings Bank. The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move for copies of all Rules and Regulations, Amendments or Alterations, for the management of the Savings' Bank.

Protest of the Honorable Nicholas Stabb:

Protest of Hon. N. Stabb against the decision of the House on the appointment of a second officer.

I protest against the vote of the llouse in the Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting him to appoint a second Officer either as Clerk of the Council or Master-in-Chancery, the said offices being now held conjointly by one person, contrary to all precedent:—

Because, such a vote tacitly assents to the act of the Executive, in enfringing the privileges of the Council by depriving it of a second Officer.

Because, uniting the offices of Clerk and Master-in-Chancery, the duties of which are distinct and formerly performed by two qualified persons, is detrimental to the public service and must prove a hindrance of the dispatch of business in this House.

And lastly, because, if the act of the Executive be sanctioned, in depriving the Council of the service of one Officer, there is nothing to prevent further encroachment being made in the privileges enjoyed by all former Councils.

(Signed) NICHOLAS STABB.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at a quarter to 12 o'clock, A. M.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

FRIDAY, 17th FEBRUARY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Thursday last were read.

At five minutes before twelve o'clock, the House proceeded to Government House, with its Address in reply to His Excellency's Speech.

Address to the Governor in reply to his Speech at the opening of the Session, presented.

At half-past twelve o'clock the House having returned the Honorable the President reported, that His Excellency had been pleased to receive the said Address, and to return an answer thereto in the following words:—

Mr. President, and Honorable Gentlemen of the Legislative Council:

His Excellency's Reply.

I have to thank you for the Address which you have just presented.

It is gratifying to me to find that the various subjects to which I considered it necessary to call your attention at the opening of the session, generally meet with your approval, and, I have no doubt, will get that consideration from you which their importance demands.

In alluding to the duties of the Commissioners appointed by the respective Governments of England and France, having ceased, I think it right now to say that all the knowledge that I possess on this subject is from a Despatch received from the Secretary of State, dated the 6th of December, desiring me to acquaint the Hon. Colonial Secretary, (one of the British Commissioners) that his duties are considered as terminated, and that there was nothing to prevent his

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

returning to his ordinary functions as Colonial Secretary of Newfoundland.

The duties of these Commissioners were defined in the Instructions which they received from Her Majesty's Government; indeed the Commissioner nominated by the Colony was directed to proceed to England to receive those Instructions, and, I shall only repeat what I have often said before, that I consider the maritime and territorial rights which the people of Newfoundland possess under existing Treaties, will be carefully preserved, and when information reaches me on this subject, it will be communicated to the Legislature.

I have no doubt that the Legislature of Newfoundland will make provision for an Asylum for the aged, the poor, and infirm, and, I consider it fortunate that the Board of Ordnance have required the ground which was, as you observe, temporarily granted in a time of great distress, to erect the huts which I hope will be soon removed, and suitable accommodation provided for the poor and infirm in another locality.

In February, 1858, a petition was presented to the Legislature. praying for aid to establish an Institution for refuge to destitute fishermen, shoremen, &c., and, a piece of land occupied by what are called "the Camps," was pointed out as a most eligible spot for the purpose; the petitioners no doubt being ignorant that the ground belonged to the Ordnance Department. I consider it right to notice this, as the rules of Her Majesty's Service require that the ground in the vicinity of the Fort should be reserved for Military purposes.

In regard to the defences of the Colony, I am sure the people of Newfoundland will, as you say, promptly follow the example of England and the neighboring Colonies, and evince the same spirit of loyalty and devotion to the Crown in the hour of need.

I have only again to thank you for your Address, and to renew the assurance of my co-operation in all measures tending to the welfare and prosperity of the people of the Colony.

20th and 21st February, 1860.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow move for a Select Committee on the Contingencies of this House for the present Session.

Notice to move for Contingency Committee.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

MONDAY, 20th FEBRUARY, 1860.

There were present:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.
"NICHOLAS STABB

Members present.

At 22 minutes past 3 o'clock, the Honorable the President took the Chair, and declared the House adjourned for want of a quorum, until Tuesday next, at 3 o'clock.

The House adjourned for want of a quorum.

TUESDAY, 21st FEBRUARY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

Members present.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " PHILIP DUGGAN
- " JOHN ROCHFORT
 " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN HOGSETT
 " ROBERT KENT

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Minutes of Friday and Monday last were read.

Extract from local paper read—

The Honorable Mr. Morris, by permission of the House, upon division, read from a local journal called the *Public Ledger*, a certain Article said to be extracted from the *London Morning Post* dated January 23rd, among other things reflecting on the independence and freedom of the Legislative Chambers of Newfoundland,—

Whereupon, the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, seconded by the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, moved the following Resolution:—

Resolution thereon-

Resolved—That the Legislative Council observes with indignation and regret, as a libel reflecting on the character and position of this House as one of the Legislative Chambers, the extract said to be taken from the London Morning Post of January 23rd ultimo, and appearing in the Public Ledger of this City of date the 17th February, in which the following observation appears:—

"In the first place it is necessary to state, that the Roman Bishop referred to has for several years entirely guided the policy of the Colonial Government, being in fact the head of a large body in the Legislative Chambers who vote on all questions according to his orders." And they also repudiate as a slanderous reflection the remarks embodied in that extract with regard to the head of the Executive Government, His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman.

Amendment.

Whereupon the Honorable Mr. STABB moved, in amendment, the Order of the Day, which on being put was resolved in the affirmative—

And the above Resolution resolved in the negative.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved, that the Bill for abolishing Crown and Quit Rents be now read a second time—and

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, that the said Bill be read this day three months, it was resolved in the affirmative.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. Hocsett, pursuant to notice, asked the Organ of the Government whose duty it was to regulate and settle the Public Coves of this Town.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, in reply, said that £1,000 had been voted out of the Rebuilding Act, which is at the disposal of the Board of Works, and that the Magistrates had a general power under the Nuisance Act to abate all nuisances.

Pursuant to notice and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor was read and adopted:—

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that Your Excellency will cause to be laid before them copies of Minutes of Council appointing the Colonial Secretary as Commissioner of Fisheries; also, a copy of Your Excellency's Despatch concerning the same to the Secretary of State for the Colonies; also, copies of any communication received from the Secretary of State relative to the Newtoundland Fisheries, since the last Session of this House.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 23rd February, 1860.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will ask for a Select Committee to prepare a Bill to limit the extent and regulate the Building of Wharves in the Harbor of St. John's.

Notice to ask for a Committee to regulate the building of wharves &c.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government for a return of the number of Foreign Vessels which were loaded during the past year in this Island and on the coast of Labrador; their Flags, Tonnage, Cargo, Ports of Destination; and also ask for a return of the number of persons at present receiving support in the place commonly termed the Camps,

Notice to ask the Organ of government for return of foreign vessels, &c.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

their age, previous occupation, and the sum expended in their relief in that place.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

MONDAY, 27th FEBRUARY, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" JAMES TOBIN

" SAMUEL CARSON

" JOHN ROCHFORT

" EDWARD MORRIS

" NICHOLAS STABB

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" PATRICK KOUGH
" ROBERT KENT

" JOHN HOGSETT

The Minutes of Tuesday last were read.

Message laid before the House by direction of the Governor.

The Honorable the President, by direction of His Excellency the Governor, laid before the House the following Messages, which were severally read:—

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

No. 1:—Reply of His Excellency the Governor to Address of Legislative Council of 16th inst., on subject of Post Office regulations.— In reply to the Address of the Legislative Council, of 16th inst., the Governor possesses no such Order in Council, as is alluded to; but, in reference to the Council's Address, he sends herewith a copy of Rules and Regulations published in the Royal Gazette in 1851, which he has received from the Colonial Secretary. The Governor thinks that he will perhaps save himself and the Council some trouble if he informs the Council of circumstances which the public are well

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

aware of, relative to the Post Office, namely, that great irregularities have taken place in that department; and, it is with deep regret the Governor has to add, also, very serious frauds; and that several individuals (some of them in prison, others admitted to bail) have been committed, and bound over to take their trial in the ensuing circuit of the Supreme Court. Some of these occurrences may be attributed to the unfortunate illness and absence of the Post Master General. The Local Act to regulate the Inland Post of this Colony, the 19th Victoria, Cap. 1, passed in 1856, appears to be defective, and the internal management of a Public Department which, above all others, ought to possess the confidence of the public, will receive the earnest attention of the government, and no pains will be spared to render that Department as perfect as possible in future. In the mean time Mr. Delaney has been appointed Acting Post Master General, for six months certain; and, if at the termination of that period a new arrangement should be necessary, from the continued illness of the present Post Master General, ample time will have been given to ascertain the fitness and qualifications of Mr. Delaney for so important a trust before the appointment is made a permanent one.

Government House, 27th February, 1860.

18th Rule of Rules and Regulations framed by the Administrator of the Government in Council, in conformity with the Act 14th Vic., Cap. 4, Sect. 3.

18—In conformity with the provisions of the said Act, the rates of postage on letters sent to or received from any part of the Island, shall be as follows:—

Every letter not exceeding half an ounce in weight three pence currency

For every additional half ounce currency

Vide Rules and Regulations (dated 13th October, 1851) published in Royal Gazette of December 23rd, 1851.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

The Governor has received the Legislative Council's Address of the 16th, No. 2.

No. 2.—Reply to Address of Legislative Council of 16th inst., on subject of employment of Messrs. Finlay and Coady on services connected with the Fishery Commission.

The Governor is not aware of any instructions having been given "relative to the Fishery question."

The Governor has, before, made public the great interest which the Chamber of Commerce took in acquiring information for the British Commissioners; and it was on their suggestion, with the Governor's entire approval and concurrence, that the "Dauntless" steamer was hired to carry Mr Finlay to White Bay, and other localities; and the whole of the information which he obtained was sent, by Mr. Finlay, in the same steamer, and delivered to the British Commissioners. In regard to who paid the expenses, the Governor will only assure the Legislative Council that he is happy to relieve the Council from any apprehensions of their being taken from the Colonial chest. In reference to Mr. Coady, and in regard to instructions to that gentleman—none were given.

The Governor remembers that in consequence of some communication made to the Acting Colonial Secretary, by the Secretary to the Commission, Mr. Coady was sent to St. George's Bay in the "Alice" schooner, to join the "Tartar"; Captain Coady being well acquainted with the localities was to act as a tender to her Majesty's ship. His little vessel was long in reaching St. George's Bay, and H. M. gunboat "Jasper" being in company with the "Tartar," captain Coady returned to St. John's; and the Governor thinks that Mr. Coady is entitled to be remunerated for the service of his schooner, to and from St. George's Bay; but having received no certificate from Captain Dunlop that Captain Coady's schooner was useful to H. M. ship, he is of opinion he should be remunerated in terms of any agreement which may have been entered into with him for the actual services which he performed, and from Colonial funds.

Government House, 27th February, 1860.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

The Governor has received the following Address from the Legislative Council:—

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,-

The Legislative Council in General Assembly convened, respectfully request that your Excellency will cause to be laid before this house copies of Minute of Council appointing the Colonial Secretary as Commissioner of Fisheries; also, copy of His Excellency's despatch, or despatches announcing the same to the Secretary of State for the Colonies; also, copies of any communications received from the Secretary of State, relative to the Newfoundland Fisheries, since the last session of this house.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 21st February, 1860.

In reply to this Address the Governor, while declining to accede to its request, would avail himself of the opportunity of stating to the Legislative Council what has been frequently acknowledged by the community, that, since his arrival in Newfoundland, he has taken no little interest in the Fishery question, believing that its permanent settlement would be of vast importance to the industrious population of this country; and, during the period to which he has alluded, it will be acknowledged, he believes, that he has shown no disposition to withhold information from the Legislature, when he thought its production might possibly tend to promote the object which he has so much at heart; indeed, he has sometimes exceeded the discretionary powers which he believed were vested in him, in giving publicity to despatches marked "confidential."

He, however, has the satisfaction to know that, by having done so he has not prejudiced the interests of Her Majesty's Service, although he may have produced an erroneous impression in some quarNo. 3.—Reply to Address of Legislative Council of 21st inst., relative to appointment of Colonial Secretary as Fishery Commissioner.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

ters, that he must communicate the contents of every despatch which may reach him, if called for by the Legislature.

He therefore begs to inform the Council, that he will continue to use a discretionary power, and be responsible for giving, or withholding, information contained in despatches from the Secretary of State, as he shall consider it expedient.

In conclusion, the Governor will take the liberty to say, that the Newfoundland Fishery question is not only a Colonial, but, a very important Imperial question, which will probably soon come under the consideration of the British Parliament, and he declines, at present, to give any further information on this subject, to the Legislative Council.

Government House, 27th February, 1860.

Golonial Minister's despatch on increase of troops in the Colony—

Committed-

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the House went into Committee on the subject of the Colonial Minister's Despatch with regard to the increase of Troops in this Colony,—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the following Resolution was read and adopted:—

Resolution-

Reported.

Resolved,—That a Select Committee of three be appointed by this House to take into consideration the subject matter of the Colonial Minister's Despatch with regard to the increase of Troops in this Colony, to meet a Select Committee of the House of Assembly, and that a Message be sent to the House of Assembly requesting their co-operation in the matter.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Resolution.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The following gentlemen were named as Committee:-

Honorable Messrs. R. J. Pinsent, Nicholas Stabb and Patrick Kough.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett,—

A Bill to prevent the ravages committed on Sheep by Dogs, -- and

Protection of Sheep against Dogs Bill

and

A Bill to provide for the Inspection of Flour and Meal, were severally read a first time—and

Inspection of Flour and Meal Bill—
Brought in and read 1st time.

Ordered—To be read a second time to-morrow, and to be printed.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved the House for a Select Committee to Audit the Accounts of the Savings' Bank, and that no member of that Committee shall be in the pay of the Government, directly or indirectly, or be connected by family ties with any members of the Administration.

Motion for Select Committee to audit accounts of Savings' Bank—

Which motion, on division, was resolved in the negative.

Negatived.

Contents.

Non Contents.

Hon. Mr. Tobin.

Hon. E. Morris

" R. J. Pinsent

· P. Kough

" Robert Kent

" N. Stabb

' J. Hogsett

" J. Rochfort.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move for an Address to His Excellency the Governor for the appointment of three Governors of the Savings' Bank from the Legislative Council, according to law.

Notice for appointment of Governors of Savings' Bank.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government, whether an extension of the Contract with the Galway Company has been entered into, and for what

Notice to ask the Organ of the Government for information respecting the Galway Company Contract:

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd Victoria.

period; also, whether the Government are in possession of the Contract between the Imperial Government and a Company to run Steamers fortnightly from Galway to the States, calling at this Port, and if they are, to lay a copy of the same before this House.

Notice to ask the Organ of Government for information respecting the future conduct of the Attorney General The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government, if His Excellency the Governor purposes taking such steps as will prevent the Attorney General of the Island, a member of His Excellency's Executive Council, from again publicly expressing himself towards Her Majesty's Representative, and the Queen's Prerogative, as printed in the Newfoundlander Government Organ, 23rd February, 1860, and calculated to excite improper discussions and engender disrespect towards Her Majesty's Rule in this Dependency of the Crown.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Thursday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

THURSDAY, 1st MARCH, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " JOHN ROCHFORT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " JAMES TOBIN
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " ROBERT KENT
- " JOHN HOGSETT

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor was read and adopted:—

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council in Session convened, respectfully request that Your Excellency will cause to be laid before this House copy of Minute of Council for opening new Street from Monkstown Road to Barnes's Lane, beginning at Mr. Duggan's property; also, copy of Award of Government Appraisers giving the Honorable Mr. Duggan £250 for the said new road.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council,

1st March, 1860.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up, for the concurrence of this House, the following Resolutions:—

Resolved—That a Select Committee be appointed to act in conjunction with a Select Committee of the Legislative Council, to report on His Excellency's Message to both branches of the Legislature in relation to the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, No. 42, 1859, on the defence of the Province.

Resolved—That a Message be sent to the Honorable the Legislative Council, communicating this Resolution and requesting their concurrence therein.

(Signed) A. SHEA,

Speaker.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Kough,-

Ordered—That a Message be sent to the House of Assembly, informing them that this House concurred in the foregoing Resolutions.

Whereupon, on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the following Message was read and adopted:—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA

Mr. SPEAKER,—

The Legislative Council had, previous to the receipt of the Message from the House of Assembly, in reference to the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, No. 42, with regard to the increase of Troops, passed the accompanying Resolution and Message, and had appointed their Committee; they, therefore, concur in the Resolution sent by the Assembly.

(Signed)

LAURENCE O'BRIEN.

President.

Legislative Council, 1st March, 1860.

Documents laid upon the table of the House. The Honorable Mr. Morris laid upon the table of the House the following documents:—

- No. 1—Report of Cashier of Savings' Bank, ending the 31st December, 1859.
- No. 2—General Statement of Affairs of the Union Bank of Newfoundland, for the Year ending 31st May, 1859.
 - No. 3-Statement of Commercial Bank, to the 30th July, 1859.
- No. 4—Report made to the Government by Directors of the General Water Company, with Enclosures, 27th January, 1860.
- No. 5—Statement of the Affairs of St. John's Marine Insurance Company, for the Year ending 10th January, 1860.
- No. 6—General Abstract of the Affairs of the Newfoundland Fire Insurance Company, 31st December, 1859.
- No. 7—General Abstract of the Affairs of the Newfoundland Marine Assurance Company, for the Year ending 31st December, 1859.
- No. 8—Letter and Enclosures from Mr. G. Makinson, on the subject of the establishment of a suitable Steam Communication between Conception Bay and St. John's.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

No. 9—Number of Paupers and amount of expenses for Government Sheds per month, from 1st January to 31st December, 1859.

No. 10—Names, ages and previous occupation of Paupers in Government Sheds, from 1st to 23rd February, 1860.

No. 11—A Return shewing the Number, Tonnage, and Crews of Foreign Ships cleared outwards for the Year ending 31st December, 1859.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsert,-

Ordered—That Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4 of the above documents, be printed.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT, pursuant to the order of the day, moved the adoption of an Address to His Excellency the Governor, for the appointment of three Governors of the Savings' Bank from the Legislative Council, according to law.

Motion for Address for appointment of Governors of SavingsBank—

The Honorable Mr. Morris replied, that the matter was under the consideration of the Executive, and that the appointments would be made immediately,—whereupon

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT withdrew the motion.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin asked the Organ of the Government for reasons why the Chief Clerk of the Post Office has been dismissed, and to produce copies of any documents authorizing the Post Office employes to open Letters, detain Letters, Papers, &c., at their discretion; also, Minute of Council appointing Commissioners to superintend the affairs of the St. John's Post Office, and the names of the said Commissioners, with the detail of their duty.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, in answer, referred to the Reply of His Excellency the Governor to the Address of this House of the 27th February, with reference to Post Office Regulations, as satisfactory.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honor-

Withdrawn.

Information asked of the Organ of Government respecting the PostOffice Department &c.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Rules and Regulations of the Savings' Bank laid upon table of the House.

able Mr. Tobin, the Honorable Mr. Morris laid upon the table of the House a printed copy of the Rules and Regulations of the Savings' Bank.

Motion for Contingency Committee—

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved for a Select Committee on the Contingencies of this House, for the present Session.

Negatived.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett,-

Ordered—That the second reading of the Bill for the protection of Sheep against Dogs, and the Bill to regulate the Inspection of Flour, &c., be postponed until Monday next.

Pursuant to notice, the Honorable Mr. Tobin asked the Organ of the Government, if His Excellency the Governor purposes taking such steps as will prevent the Attorney General of this Island, a member of His Excellency's Executive Council, from again publicly expressing himself towards Her Majesty's Representative, and the Queen's Prerogative, as printed in the Newfoundlander Government Organ, 23rd February, 1860, and calculated to excite improper discussions and engender disrespect towards Her Majesty's Rule in this Dependency of the Crown.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, in answer, declines to afford any information on the subject.

Notice of Committee of Privilege on pay to members.

The Honorable Mr. Carson gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move the House into Committee of Privilege to take into consideration the subject of Pay to Members, as decided upon by a majority of this House during the last Session."

Notice of Law of Insolvency Amendment Bill.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on Tuesday next, bring in a Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency.

Notice of Address respecting lateMessenger.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, move an Address to the Executive Government, expressive of

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

the Council's just appreciation of the services of their late Messenger, Mr. Valentine Borne, and that the Government will favourably consider his family's claim for long and faithful services, and place his Widow in charge of the Colonial Building when vacated by the present Keeper; any testimonials or promise from former Governors, in possession of the late Messenger's family, to accompany the said Address.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government for papers relative to French offer for Mail Service to St. Pierres, in conjunction with our local Mail establishment.

Notice to ask for papers relative to the French Mail service.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will ask for Returns of actual annual expenditure of each Light House Estabment in this Island.

Notice to ask for Return of LightHouses expenditure.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

MONDAY, 5th MARCH, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

EDWARD MORRIS

" NICHOLAS STABB

" PATRICK KOUGH

" JOHN HOGSETT

" ROBERT KENT

" SAMUEL CARSON

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" JAMES TOBIN

The Minutes of Thursday last were read

MANUAL MICCIAL

Members present.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Document laid upon the table,

The Honorable the President laid upon the table of the House the Reply of His Excellency the Governor to the Address from this House of the 1st March, inst., which was read and is as follows:—

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

Message from His Excellency in reply to Address of 1st March.

In reply to the Address from the Legislative Council of 1st March, the Governor has made the necessary enquiries and has received the tollowing communication:

"The ground in question was taken under the St. John's Rebuilding Act. The Surveyor General valued it at £250; the proprietor assented; the Executive approved; under these circumstances there was no necessity for arbitration."

Government House, 5th March, 1860.

Protection of Sheep against Dogs Bill—

Read 2d time.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the Bill for the protection of Sheep against Dogs was read a second time,—and

Ordered-To be committed to-morrow.

Inspection of Flour and Meal Bill-

Read 2d time.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the Bill for the Inspection of Flour and Meal was read a second time—and

Ordered-To be committed to-morrow.

Select Committee on Building of Wharves, &c. The Honorable Mr. Hossert, pursuant to the order of the day, moved for a Select Committee to prepare a Bill to limit the extent and regulate the Building of Wharves in the town of St. John's; and the following gentlemen were named as Committee:—

Honorable Messrs. Hogsett, Pinsent, and Kent.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

HISEXCELLENCYSIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council in Session convened, desire to express their just appreciation of the services of their late Messenger, Mr. Valentine Borne, and respectfully request that the Government will favourably consider his family's claim to reward for long and faithful services, and place his Widow in charge of the Colonial Building when vacated by the present keeper.

The Council beg leave, for the information of Your Excellency, to append the accompanying Testimonials received by the deceased in his life time from former Governors.

Legislative Council.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, asked the Organ of the Government for Papers relative to French offers for Mail Service to St. Pierres in conjunction with our local Mail establishment; and, also, for Return of actual annual expenditure of each Light House Establishment of this Island.

The Honorable Mr. Morris replied, that the required documents should be furnished without loss of time.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett,—

A Bill to provide for the proper Culling of Fish in this island, was read a first time,—and

Culling of Fish
Bill—
Brought in and read

1st time.

Ordered-To be read a second time to-morrow.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move at a suitable time, for the appointment of a Select Committee for the Contingencies of the Legislative Council.

Notice for a Select Committee on Contingencies.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move the appointment of a Committee on the enlarging of the present Committee of the Council for the superintendence of the Library.

Notice for an enlarged Committee for Library.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Notice for Return of Pilots Reserved Fund. The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move for Return of particulars of the Pilots Reserved Fund, in the hands of the Pilot Commissioners, in accordance with the Act 8 Vic., to regulate and amend Pilotage.

Notice for Address relative to Lunatics landed from Argo. The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting to know if the expenses incurred by this Colony in consequence of two Lunatics landed and left here by the Mail Steamer "Argo," have been regularly deducted from the Subsidy money voted to the Galway Company.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 3 o'clock, p. m.

TUESDAY, 6th MARCH, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" JAMES TOBIN

" SAMUEL CARSON

" EDWARD MORRIS

" NICHOLAS STABB
" ROBERT I PINSENT

" ROBERT J. PINSENT
" PATRICK KOUGH

" ROBERT KENT

" JOHN HOGSETT

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

Report of Joint Committee on the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch presented.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT, from the Joint Committee appointed by both Houses of the Legislature to take into consideration the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, No. 42, dated 18th November last, with regard to the increase of Troops in this Colony and the

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Message of His Excellency the Governor thereon, presented a Report, together with certain correspondence of His Excellency,—which were read,—and,

Ordered-To lie on the table.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid upon the table of the House the following documents:—

Documents laid upon the table.

Copies of original Correspondence brought to Newfoundland by Lord Bury, and draft of proposed Contract by Her Majesty's Government with the Galway Company upon Steam Communication,—

(Vide Appendix.)

Which were severally read,—and,

Ordered-To lie on the table.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the House went into Committee on the Bill for the protection of Sheep against Dogs,—

Bill for Protection Sheep against Dogs— Committed.

The Honorable Mr. Kent in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Carson, the House went into Committee of Privilege,—

House in committee of Privilege—

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported certain Resolutions.

Resolutions reported-

Ordered-That the Report be received.

The Resolutions are as follows:-

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Resolutions.

Resolved,—That the Legislative Council, adhering to the principle recognized and advanced during the last session of this House, that the Members of the Council should receive Sessional Pay, as is done in Canada, Nova Scotia, and elsewhere, deem it expedient at this period of the Session to acquaint the House of Assembly that the Council will respectfully urge that which they consider their undoubted right, to be paid from the contingencies of this House (as the Members of the Assembly are paid) for those public duties which devolve on them as a co-ordinate branch of the Legislature.

Resolved,—That a Message be sent to the House of Assembly, communicating the above Resolutions, and requesting their concurrence therein.

(Signed)

LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 6th March, 1860.

Ordered—That the foregoing Resolutions be adopted, and that a Message be sent to the House of Assembly requesting their concurrence therein.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. STABB,-

Ordered—That a Bill presented by the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency, be printed.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Thursday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

THURSDAY, 8th MARCH, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

Members present.

- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " JAMES TOBIN
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " ROBERT KENT
- " JOHN HOGSETT

The Minutes of Tuesday last were read.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid upon the table of the House the following documents:—

Documents laid upon the table.

Reports of the Inspectors of Schools.

Report of the Inspection of Light Houses for 1859.

(Vide Appendix.)

Report of James L. Prendergast, Esquire, on the protection of Fisheries in the Straits of Belle Isle.

Report of Mr. Knight, on the protection of Fisheries at Cape John.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid upon the table of the House, a Petition from the Pilots of St. John's.

Pilots' Petition laid upon the table.

Ordered to lie on the table.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the House went into Committee on the Bill for the protection of Sheep and Lambs against Dogs,—

Bill for Protection of Sheep, &c., against Dogs— Committed—

The Honorable Mr. Kent in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill with some amendments.

Reported.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Ordered-That the report be received-and

Ordered—That the said Bill be engrossed, and read a third time on Monday next.

Committee for superintendence of Legislative Library appointed—

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. PINSENT moved the appointment of a Committee enlarging the present Committee for the superintendence of the Legislative Library, and the following gentlemen were named to act with the Committee of the Assembly and to report the state of the Library:—

Committee, Honorable Messrs. Pinsent, Tobin and Stabb, -- and

Ordered—On motion of the Honorable Mr. Pinsent, that the following Message be sent to the Assembly:—

Message thereon sent to the Assembly.

Mr. SPEAKER,—

The Legislative Council has appointed a Committee of three—the Honorable Messrs. Pinsent, Tobin, and Stabb—to meet a Committee of the House of Assembly to investigate the affairs of the Legislative Library, to which they request the concurrence of the Assembly.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Council Chamber,

March 8th, 1860.

Motion for Address on subject of Lunatics landed from Argo. Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting to know if the expenses incurred by this Colony in consequence of two Lunatics landed and left here by the Mail Steamer "Argo," have been regularly deducted from the subsidy money voted to the Galway Company.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, as Organ of the Government, informed the House that the expenses of the Lunatics in question were not deducted from the subsidy money voted to the Galway Company. The unfortunate persons were placed in the Lunatic Asylum under the same circumstances that any other Lunatics would be in this Island.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved for Return of particulars of the Pilots Reserved Fund. in the hands of the Pilot Commissioners, in accordance with the Act 8 Vic., to regulate and amend Pilotage, &c.

Particulars of Pilots' Reserved Fund moved for

The Honorable Mr. STABB, one of the Pilot Commissioners, stated that he would afford the required information at an early day.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett.—

Ordered—That the second reading of Bill to regulate the Culling of Fish, be postponed until Monday next.

Second reading of Culling of Fish Bill deferred.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move for a Committee of the whole, to take into consideration the Report of the Select Committee with regard to the Duke of Newcastle's despatch on the increase of Troops.

Notice for committee on report of Select Committee on Duke of Newcastle's Despatch.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, move for a Return of the names of all persons receiving pay from the Public Chest in the shape of Salary or Stipend, with the amount received attached to each name, and the character of employment.

Notice for returns of persons receiving pay from public chest, &c.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

MONDAY, 12th MARCH, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

JAMES TOBIN

SAMUEL CARSON

EDWARD MORRIS

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" NICHOLAS STABB

" PATRICK KOUGH

66 ROBERT KENT

`66

. .

" JOHN HOGSETT

Members present.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Minutes of Thursday last were read.

Petition on behalf of C. C. and S. Society presented.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT presented a Petition from the Corresponding Committee on behalt of the Colonial Church and School Society,—

Ordered-To lie on the table.

Bill for Protection of Sheep against Dogs—

Read 3rd time and passed.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the Bill to provide against the destruction of Sheep and Cattle, and injuries to the person by Dogs, was read a third time and passed,—

And the Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, requesting their concurrence thereto.

Inspection of Flour and Meal Bill—Committed.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the House went into Committee on the Bill for the Inspection of Flour, &c.—

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

Insolvency Law consolidation and amendment Bill—

Brought in and read 1st time.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Pinsent, the Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency, was read a first time,—and

Ordered-To be read a second time to-morrow.

Culling of Fish Bill— Read 2d timePursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the Bill to regulate the Culling of Fish was read a second time,—and

Evidence to be taken thereon-

Ordered—That a Committee be appointed to take Evidence upon the subject of the said Bill, and lay the same before this House.

HISEXCELLENCYSIRALEXANDERBANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The following gentlemen were named as a Committee—Honorable Messrs. Hogsett, Kough, Stabb, Kent and Pinsent.

Committee.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT,-

Ordered—That notice of a Committee of the whole, to take into consideration the Report of the Select Committee with regard to the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch on the increase of Troops, be first on the order of the day to-morrow.

Notice that Committee on Report of Duke of Newcastle's Despatch be 1st on order of the day.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved for a Return of the names of all persons receiving pay from the Public Chest in the shape of Salary or Stipend, with the amount received attached to each name, and the character of employment.

Motion for names of persons receiving pay from public chest, &c.

The Honorable Mr. Morris replied, that he will be prepared on the next day to answer the enquiry.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move the reading of the Petition laid on the table of this House, from the Colonial Church and School Society.

Notice for reading of Petition from C. C. and S. Society.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move for a Return of Post Office Stamps; how many were originally imported at the expense of the Colony; the names of those appointed Commissioners of Stamps; and how many Stamps of each denomination were issued by and under the sanction of such Commissioners.

Notice to ask for Return of Post Office Stamps, &c.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move the Organ of the Government to lay on the table of this Council, a revised list of the Magistrates of this Island, with the dates of their respective Commissions, distinguishing stipendiary from honorary.

Notice to ask to have laid on the table revised list of Magistrates, &c.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government if the office of Financial Secretary and that of Post Master General, are considered as held by Political Tenure.

Notice to ask if certain offices are held by political tenure.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move for an Address to His Excellency the Governor, for

Notice to move an Address to His Excellency for appointment of Chaplain.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

the appointment of a Chaplain to this House, in accordance with the practice of the Legislative Councils in other Colonies.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Wednesday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

WEDNESDAY, 14th MARCH, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

JAMES TOBIN

" SAMUEL CARSON

" PHILIP DUGGAN

" NICHOLAS STABB

" EDWARD MORRIS

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" PATRICK KOUGH

" JOHN HOGSETT

" ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

Ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands Bill—

Brought up and read 1st time.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up a Bill for the concurrence of this House, entitled "An Act to amend an Act passed in the 7th year of Her Majesty, entitled 'An Act to make provision for the disposal and sale of ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands within the Island of Newfoundland and its Dependencies, and for other purposes,' and to make provision for granting Mining Licenses, Leases and Grants of Mineral Lands, and for other purposes," which was read a first time—and

Ordered-To be read a second time to-morrow.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honora-

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

ble Mr. PINSENT, the House went into Committee of the whole to take into consideration the Report of the Select Committee with regard to the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch with regard to the increase of Troops,—

Report on Duke of Newcastle'sDespatch— Committed—

The Honorable Mr. Carson in the Chair.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT moved, that the Report from the Joint Committee appointed by both Houses of the Legislature, to take into consideration the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, No 42, dated 18th November last, with regard to the increase of Troops in this Colony, and the letter of His Excellency the Governor thereon, be received—

Committee Room, Legislative Council, .

March 7th, 1680.

The joint Committee appointed by both houses of the Legislature to take into consideration the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, No. 42, dated 18th November last, with regard to the increase of troops in this colony and the message of His Excellency the Governor thereon, respectfully report:—

Report-

That having considered the said despatch and message, and having communicated with His Excellency the Governor thereupon, and having received the annexed reply, they are of opinion that the Legislature of Newtoundland would do well to lend their ready concurrence to any well considered undertaking for affording increased military defence to this Colony, which may be consistent with the public means at their disposal and the many imperative claims upon the revenues for the internal improvements of the colony.

Your Committee would further report, that in the year 1846, on the recommendation of the Secretary of State, a bill was introduced into the Legislature for the establishment of a Militia, which was withdrawn, the prevailing opinion then and still being, that such a measure as a reliable means of defence would be impracticable, from the peculiar avocations of the great bulk of the people necessarily engaging them in the fisheries during the greater part of the year.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Your Committee concur in this view, and regard it as an additional reason for the increase of the present garrison.

Your Committee further report, that up to a late period the resident force was much greater in number than it now is, a considerable portion of the Royal Newfoundland Companies and the whole of the Detachment of Artillery having been withdrawn by the Imperial Government to meet the exigencies of the time.

Under these circumstances they apprehend that but a small contribution will be required by the Imperial Government to place the force here on their old tooting.

Your Committee would also respectfully refer to the Journals of the Legislature for the year 1856, in which will be found an Address to the then Secretary of State for the Colonies, urging many torcible reasons for the augmentation of and improvement of our military defences.

R. J. PINSENT, Chairman.
NICHOLAS STABB
PATRICK KOUGH
F. B. T. CARTER
T. DWYER
JOHN KENT.

Government House, 3rd March, 1860.

SIR,—I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 2nd inst., requesting that His Excellency would be pleased to convey to you the information referred to in the following resolution:

Resolved—That a letter be addressed to His Excellency the Governor, requesting him that he will be pleased to inform this Committee what proportion of the contemplated augmentation of the Royal Newfoundland Companies and of the Coast Brigade of Artillery is to be allowed to this Colony; also, what will be the probable expense of such increase, and what contribution to such expense this colony will be expected to bear, and whether the Imperial government is to bear any portion thereof.

HISEKCELLENCYSIRALEXANDERBANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

I am directed by the Governor to acquaint you, for the information of the committee of which you are chairman, that he cannot say what proportion of the contemplated augmentation of the military force is to be allotted to this colony; nor does he believe has Her Majesty's Government as yet determined on the division to be made to the different colonies from any increase of the Newtoundland Companies and the Coast Brigade of Artillery, neither can the Governor inform the committee what will be the probable expense of such increase. As to the Imperial government bearing any portion thereof the Governor has no information on the subject, but he has never yet seen any case for the defences of Her Majesty's dominions to which the Imperial government did not very largely contribute.

The Governor begs leave to refer to the Duke of Newcastle's despatch of the 18th November, laid before the Legislature, in which His Grace states, "I do not doubt the readiness of the Government of each of Her Majesty's provinces in North America, to contribute to any well considered undertaking which may seem necessary for the security of that portion of the Empire."

It has appeared, therefore, to the Governor, that the Duke of Newcastle's despatch may be easily answered by the Legislature acquiescing in their readiness or the reverse to contribute to any well considered undertaking, &c., &c., but that before any determination could be arrived at by the Legislature it would be necessary to ascertain the increase of force which was considered necessary for Newfoundland, the probable expense thereof, and the amount expected to be contributed by this colony to accomplish the object which Her Majesty's government have in view.

The Governor understands, but not officially, that the financial affairs of the neighboring province of Nova Scotia will not afford an appropriation of funds to meet the views of Her Majesty's government, but it must not be forgotten that Halifax is a large garrison town with a citadel, where a considerable body of troops must always be stationed, and that there is a Militia Act which empowers the Governor on any emergency to call out that body of men in defence

First Session, Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

of the country. A similar Act exists in New Brunswick and Prince Edward's Island, and the Governor General in Canada has ample powers at his disposal for the defence of that important portion of Her Majesty's dominions in North America.

The Governor desires me further to inform you, that he will be happy to afford you, for the information of the joint Committee, any communications which he may receive from the adjoining provinces on the subject of their detences; he has spared no pains to point out the unprotected state of Newfoundland both by sea and land, to the Queen's government, and he has no doubt his suggestions will receive due consideration. I have been directed, in compliance with your letter addressed to me, to send you the information contained in this letter.

I have the honor to be, Sir,

Your most obedient servant,

W. J. COEN,

Private Secretary.

To the Honorable R. J. Pinsent,
Chairman Select Committee.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the affirmative.

Contents.

Non Contents.

Division thereon.

Hon. Mr. O'Brien, President.

" " Pinsent
" " Hon. Mr. Tobin
" " Hogsett
" " Duggan.
" " Morris
" " Kent

After some time the House resumed.

Carson.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up the following Message :-

Message from the House of Assembly.

Mr. PRESIDENT,—

The House of Assembly acquaint the Legislative Council, that they have appointed a Committee of three of their body, viz., Hon. Attorney General and Messrs. Carter and Dwyer, to meet the Committee of Council appointed to investigate the affairs of the Legislative Library.

> (Signed) A. SHEA.

> > Speaker.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move for the appointment of a Select Committee from this Council, to audit the accounts and investigate the working of the Savings' Bank; and that no member of the Select Committee shall be in the pay of the Government, directly or indirectly, or be of the Board of Governors or Directors of said Bank.

Notice for Select Committee to Audit Accounts, &c., of Savings' Bank.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, for the appointment of two Members of this Council to assist in the direction and superintendance of repairs of Government House, in accordance with clause 20, 7th Vic., Crown Lands' Act.

Notice of Address on direction of repairs of Government House,

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until House adjourns. Friday next, at 3 o'clock, r. M.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

FRIDAY, 16th MARCH, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" PHILIP DUGGAN

" NICHOLAS STABB

" SAMUEL CARSON

" ROBERT KENT
" JOHN HOGSETT

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" JAMES TOBIN

" PATRICK KOUGH

The Minutes of Wednesday last were read.

Report of Select Committee on Duke of Newcastle's Despatch— CommittedPursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the House went into Committee of the whole to take into consideration the Report of the Select Committee with regard to the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch on the increase of Troops,—

The Honorable Mr. Carson in the Chair.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT moved that the following Address be read and received:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island of Newfoundland and its Dependencies.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY:-

The Address.

We, the Legislative Council of Newfoundland, in session convened, having taken into consideration Your Excellency's Message of the Second of February ultimo, and the Despatches transmitted therewith, being severally from His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, dated the 18th of November, 1859, and from Sir Edward Lugard to Mr. Merivale, of date the 1st October, 1859, in reference to in-

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

creased military defence for this Colony,—beg most respectfully to inform Your Excellency that we view with much gratification the recommendations of Lieut.-General Sir Fenwick Williams in regard to the defences of this and the neighboring provinces, supported as they would appear to be by the Imperial Ministry, and we look upon the movement as an evidence of the increased regard which the Parent Government entertains towards her provincial dependencies.

As a constituent branch of the Legislature, we are prepared to give a ready acquiescence in any well considered undertaking for affording increased military defence to this Colony, which may be consistent with the public means at the disposal of the Legislature and the many imperative claims upon the revenue for the internal improvement of the Colony.

In this Island there is no militia force and no law authorizing its formation, and we concur in the prevailing opinion that any measure of that kind, as a reliable means of defence, would be impracticable from the peculiar avocations of the great bulk of the people necessarily engaging them in the fisheries during the greater part of the year, this we regard as a strong additional reason for the increase of the present garrison.

Up to a late period the resident force was much greater in number than it now is, a considerable portion of the Royal Newfoundland Companies and the whole of the detachment of Artillery having been withdrawn to meet the exigencies of the time; this circumstance, we apprehend, would weigh strongly with the British Government in not requiring from the Colony any considerable, if any contribution towards placing the force here on their former footing.

To the foregoing facts, we would respectfully urge upon the Imperial Government the importance of this portion of the Colonial dependencies of the Crown, arising from its geographical and maritime position and those fisheries of incalculable value which form its staple trade—and further, the natural capabilities of St. John's to be formed into a garrison almost impregnable by land or sea, and

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

that with a comparatively small addition to the present material defences of that city, if supported by a naval force. These, with other forcible reasons, have on former occasions been respectfully urged upon the attention of Colonial Ministers, and more particularly in an Address during the then session of 1856 from the Legislative Council to the then Secretary of State for the Colonies.

Legislative Council, 16th March, 1860.

Moved by the Honorable Mr. Tobin, that the said Address be read in sections.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

On motion that the said Address be received, it was resolved in the affirmative.

Contents.

Kent

66

Non Contents.

Hon.	Mr.	O'Brien, President.	Hon.	Mr.	Hogsett
66	"	Morris	66	"	Tobin
"	66	Pinsent			Duggan.
"	**	Kough			
		Stabb			

After some time the House resumed.

Reported.

The Chairman reported the Address.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Ordered—That the Address be adopted,—and

Ordered—That it be engrossed and presented to His Excellency the Governor by a deputation from this House.

Deputation—The Honorable Messrs. Pinsent and Morris.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Pinsent, the Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency, was read a second time,—and

Insolvency Law consolidation and amendment Bill— Read 2d time.

HIB EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Ordered—To be committed on Tuesday next, and to stand first on the order of the day.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, moved for a Return of the names of all persons receiving pay from the Public Chest, in the shape of Salary or Stipend, with the amount received attached to each name, and the character of employment.

Motion for Return of salaries or stipends paid from the public chest.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid upon the table of the House, a copy of the Blue Book for 1858.

Blue Book laid on the table.

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Pin-SENT, the Petition from the Colonial Church and School Society, was received and read.

Petition from C. C. and S. Society read.

Ordered-To lie on the table.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, asked the Organ of the Government if the offices of Financial Secretary and that of Post Master General, are considered as held by Political Tenure.

The Honorable Mr. Morris gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that he may be pleased to inform this House, whether he is cognizant of any Member of the Legislative Council having, within the last year, proposed for a permanent office on specified conditions; and if so, that His Excellency will be pleased to furnish this House with any evidence or information he may possess on the subject.

Notice of Address to the Governor to inform the House if a proposal had been made for an office on specified conditions.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will move for a Return of a statement of all monies paid by the Executive Government on Addresses from the House of Assembly, or otherwise, not provided for by vote of the Legislature of the last Session, stating for what services and purposes such money has been paid.

Notice for Return of monies paid on Addresses from the House of Assembly.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, for a return of all Correspondence between His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, then the Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies and this Government,

Notice of Address for certain Correspondence on the subject of the Galway Line.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

on the subject of the Galway Line of Steamers, and all Correspondence between the Company's Agent of Steamers and Local Government in reference thereto.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

MONDAY, 19th MARCH, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- JAMES TOBIN
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " PHILIP DUGGAN
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " EDWARD MORRIS
 " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " JOHN HOGSETT

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

Revised list of Magistrates asked to be laid on the table.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin asked the Organ of the Government to lay on the table of this House, a revised list of the Magistrates of the Island, with the dates of their respective Commissions, distinguishing Stipendiary from Honorary.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, referred the Honorable mover to the Blue Book for the required information.

Motion for return of Post Office Stamps,&c. The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, moved for a Return of Post Office Stamps; how many were originally imported at the expense of the Colony; the names of those appointed Commissioners of Stamps; and how many Stamps of each denomination were issued by and under the sanction of such Commissioners.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. Morris will lay the necessary papers on the table to-morrow.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin moved for the appointment of a Select Committee from this Council, to audit the accounts and investigate the working of the Savings' Bank, and that no member of the Select Committee shall be in the pay of the Government, directly or indirectly, or be of the Board of Governors or Directors of said Bank.

Motion for Select Committee to Audit Savings'BankAccounts &c.—

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

Negatived.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir ALEXANDER BANNERMAN, Knight, Governor, &c. &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council respectfully request, that Your Excellency will be pleased to appoint two Members of this Council to assist in the direction and superintendance of repairs of Government House and offices, in accordance with clause 20, 7, Vic., Crown Lands Act.

Ordered—That the said Address be withdrawn.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill to amend an Act passed in the 7th Year of Her Majesty, entitled an Act to make provision for the disposal and sale of ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands within the Island of Newfoundland, and its dependencies, and for other purposes, and to make provision for granting Mining Licenses, Leases, and Grants of Mineral Lands, and for other purposes, was read a second time,—and

Ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands Bill—

Read 2d time.

Ordered—To be committed to-morrow.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor, was read and adopted:—

First Session, Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c. &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,—

The Legislative Council respectfully request, that Your Excellency will be pleased to inform this House, whether you are cognizant of any Member of the Legislative Council having, within the last year, proposed for a permanent office on specified conditions, and if so that Your Excellency will be pleased to furnish this House with any evidence or information you may possess on this subject.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, April 19th, 1860.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Stabb, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor, was read and adopted:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c. &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council respectfully request, that Your Excellency will be pleased to have laid upon the table of this House, a return of all Correspondence between His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, Her Majesty's Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies and this Government, on the subject of the Galway Line of Steamers, and all Correspondence between the Company's Agent of Steamers and Local Government in reference thereto.

(Signed) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, April 19th, 1860.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, ask the Organ of the Government if the Executive have continued the Galway Steam Contract for the further period of 4 years from the expiration of the first year of Contract, and if so to furnish this Council with the copy of minute of said arrangement.

Notice to ask whether the Executive have extended the period of the Galway Steam Contract.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will on to-morrow move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, for a Return of any Correspondence with the Imperial Government and with the Government of the United States of America, on the subject of the Lunatics landed in this Colony from the steamer "Argo," wrecked on this coast.

Notice of Address for correspondence on subject of Lunatics landed from Argo.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government, whether it is the intention of the Government to bring in any Bill to amend the Board of Works Act, as recommended in His Excellency the Governor's Speech at the opening of the present Session.

Notice to ask if it is intended to bring in any Bill to amend the Board of Works Act.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until House adjourns. Wednesday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

WEDNESDAY, 21st MARCH, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

ROBERT J. PINSENT

- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " PHILIP DUGGAN
 " ROBERT KENT
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " PATRICK KOUGH

Members present.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

Documents laid upon the table.
(Vide Appendix.)

The Ilonorable the President, by direction of His Excellency the Governor, laid upon the table of the House the following documents:—

- No. 1—Copy of Letter from A. Shea, Esquire, Agent of the Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company, to the Acting Colonial Secretary.
- No. 2—Copy of reply to Mr. Shea's Letter, 20th October, proposing discontinuance running Galway Boats during Winter months.
- No. 3—Copy of Governor's Letter, 22nd December, 1860, relative to Galway Steam Company's Ships running between Galway and St. John's, throughout the winter.
- No. 4—Copy of Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, No. 52, 31st December, 1859, relative to the Galway Steamer Company's Contract.
- No. 5—Copy of Duke of Newcastle's Despatch 24th January, 1860, together with a letter from Messrs. Vallance and Vallance, 6th January, 1860, to S. Lang, Esq., M.P., on the subject of Contracts with the Royal Mail Steam Packet Company—

Which were severally read.

Law of Insolvency Amendment and Consolidation Bill— Committed. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled an Act to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency, and for other purposes,—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled an Act to amend an Act passed in the 7th Year of the Reign of Her Majesty, entitled an Act to make provision for the disposal and sale of ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands within the Island of Newfoundland, and its dependencies, and for other purposes, and to make provision for granting Mining Licenses, Leases, and Grants of Mineral Lands, and for other purposes,—

Ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands Act Amendment Bill— Committed.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid upon the table of the House, a Detailed Statement of all Monies paid by the Executive Government on Addresses from the House of Assembly for the year ending 31st December, 1859.—(Vide Appendix.)

Document laid upon the table.

Which was

Ordered-To be read.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, asked the Organ of the Government if the Executive Government have continued the Galway Steam Contract for the further period of four years from the expiration of the first year of Contract, and if so to furnish the Legislative Council with copy of Minute of said arrangement.

Information asked respecting the Galway Steam Contract.

The Honorable Mr. Morris replied, that the required papers will be furnished without delay.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Stabb, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor was read and adopted:—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council respectfully request that Your Excellency will be pleased to have laid upon the table of this House, a return of any Correspondence with the Imperial Government and with the Government of the United States of America, on the subject of the Lunatics landed in this Colony from the Steamer "Argo" wrecked on this Coast.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 21st March, 1860.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid on the table of the House the following documents:—

Documents laid upon the table. (Vide Appendix.) Letter from Acting Colonial Secretary in reply to Monsieur Pierre's Communication to the Administrator of the Government in reference to an arrangement for the conveyance of French Mails via Galway.

Return of Postage Stamps, issued from the office of the Colonial Secretary, with Letter from him with reference to the same.

Information asked of the Organ of the Government respecting the Board of Works Act. Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Stabb asked the Organ of the Government whether it is the intention of the Government to bring in any Bill to amend the Board of Works Act, as recommended in His Excellency the Governor's Speech at opening of the present Session.

The Honorable Mr. Morris replied, that the Government had not yet considered the matter.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move the House into Committee of the whole, to consider the Papers laid on the table in reference to the Galway Steam Company's Contract.

Notice to go into committee on GalwaySteam Company's Contract papers.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that the Executive will not sanction the payment of any Monies which have not been voted by the Legislature.

Notice of Address requesting that no money be paid without being voted by the Legislature.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, ask the Organ of the Government for a detailed account of the Coroner for this District, number and names of deaths, with cost of Inquests for the year 1859; also, the detailed expenditure under Emigration Encouragement vote.

Notice of Address for detailed account of Coroner of the District, &c., &c.

Protest of the Honorable Mr. Tobin:

I protest against the vote of this Council bearing date 19th March, 1860, whereby it was ordered,—"That the notice of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, on the order of the day Friday the 16th inst., with reference to the Editor of the Newfoundlander, be struck out, and expunged from the Journals of this House,"—for the following reasons:—

Hon. Mr. Tobin's Protests against the Council's decision of the 19th March.

No. 1—Because any Member of Her Majesty's Council, who proposes to make a motion at this Board, giving regular notice thereof, makes himself responsible to his Sovereign for the same, and it is unmeet to prevent the most noble the Secretary of State for the Colonies from being able to judge of the intentions of the proposer.

Secondly—Because, as the calumnious publication of the New-foundlander newspaper of the 9th December, 1858, adverted to, obliged the Protestor to reply thereto in the Times (11th December) newspaper following, and the Executive Council of which the Editor of the Newfoundlander was and is a member, took a singular exception to one sentence of the latter publication, applying thereto a peculiar, untair, and untrue construction, and because the Protestor refused to admit that construction, and not admitting it refused to retract such construction, the said Executive Council required that the said Protestor be deprived of his office of Financial Secretary, and he was deprived accordingly.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Thirdly—Because the expunging of a notice of motion is in this Council a new and unprecedented proceeding, and one that could only occur in a Council constituted as the present is, of a preponderance of Stipendiary Official Members and family connections of the members of the Government, and from which four independent gentlemen representing a very large proportion of the trade of the Colony, have recently withdrawn, and three of whose places have been filled up by a subordinate officer of a Board subordinate to the Executive and by the Brother of the Colonial Secretary and by the Brother of the Attorney General of the Colony, thus sustaining family and pecuniary influences at this Board, and thereby calculated to embarrass the independent action of this Honorable Body.

Fourthly—Because a notice, wherein the noticer expresses his intention to inquire of the Organ of the Government,—"If it is the intention of the Executive to confer on the Editor of the Newfoundlander newspaper the office of Financial Secretary of the Colony, after his having printed and published a malicious Libel, and knowing it to be so, against the late Financial Secretary whose straight torward manly resistance of such slanderous attacks the said Editor, being of the Executive Council, with his 'colleagues, unjustly and unconstitutionally deprived him of his office: And further, wish to be informed if the Government intend to pay off the late Financial Secretary, in accordance with the terms of their recorded minute of Council, 25th March, 1859,"—was not intended to interfere with the privileges of this Council, but was strictly constitutional.

(Signed) JAMES TOBIN.

Protest of the Honorable Mr. Tobin:

I protest against the vote of this Council bearing date 19th March, 1860, whereby it was ordered that the following notice of motion:—"Will move for the reasons (private reasons excepted) of the resignations given to the Executive Government by the Honorables John Munn, James Cormack, H. Ridley, and John Fox, for retiring from this Council,"—be struck out of the Minutes and expunged from the Journals of this House.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

For the following reasons, namely—Because if the public reasons, if any, were either on the constitutional construction of this Legislative Council, or the necessity for the payment of members of the Body, so as to insure a representation from all parts of the Island, it would be useful and beneficial to the just working of the Public Service to have such declared.

(Signed)

JAMES TOBIN.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

THURSDAY, 22nd MARCH, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

Members present.

- " PHILIP DUGGAN
 " NICHOLAS STARF
- " NICHOLAS STABB
 " EDWARD MORRIS
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " ROBERT KENT
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " PATRICK KOUGH

The Minutes of Wednesday last were read.

The Honorable the President, by direction of His Excellency the Governor, laid on the table of the House the following Message with documents:—

Message from the Governor, with documents laid on the table.

(Vide Appendix.)

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

In reply to the Legislative Council's Address relative to Correspondence with the Authorities in Great Britain and the United

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

States, on the subject of four female Lunatics who were wrecked in the Steamer "Argo" on the coast of Newfoundland last year, doenments are herewith sent, No. 1 to 4.

It appears there were four of these unfortunate creatures; one of them must have perished among the rocks, the other three are lodged in the Lunatic Asylum here, the Surgeon of which, Dr. Stabb, informed the Governor that the subsistence of such patients would amount to £32 each per annum, so that these three lunatic females cost the Colony yearly about £100.

The letter from Mr. Archibald, the British Consul at New York, and the despatch from the Secretary of State enclosing a letter from the Emigration Commissioners, arrived during the Governor's leave of absence to the United States, and he is not aware whether any further steps were taken by the Board of Works, in whom the management of the Lunatic Asylum is vested, relative to the removal or otherwise of the three females alluded to.

Government House, 22nd March, 1860.

Message from the Governor laid on the table. The Honorable the President, by direction of His Excellency the Governor, laid on the table of the House the following Message:

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

In reply to the Legislative Council's Address of the 19th inst., enquiring whether the Governor is cognizant of "any Member of the Legislative Council having applied for a permanent office on specific conditions, and if so, that the Governor will be pleased to furnish the House with any information he may possess on the subject."

The Governor has to acquaint the House that Mr. James Tobin, a Member of their Board did, about the termination of the last session of the Legislature, make a proposal for a "permanent office on specific conditions,"—which proposal was addressed to Mr. E. D. Shea, the then Acting Colonial Secretary, who was to suggest the matter to his colleagues, but any allusion to the Governor's name seemed to have been entirely omitted.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Several months afterwards the Governor had occasion to write officially to Mr. Tobin, and apprize him that he, the Governor, was aware of the application which Mr. Tobin had made, that it was not a proper one, and had it been assented to the Governor never could have sanctioned it.

The Honorable gentleman in reply sent (to the Governor's surprize) a copy of his proposal to Mr. E. D. Shea, considering that the Governor's opinion would be changed as to the propriety of the application, for that he, Mr. Tobin, "had not in any way departed from propriety or constitutional principles, and was only sorry the Governor always appears disposed to give the most unfavourable construction to his (Mr. Tobin's) acts and intentions;" Mr. Tobin further "respectfully begging to add, that he should at all times endeavour to act straightforward and independently." The Governor has to inform the Council that he continues to be of opinion that Mr. Tobin's application to the Acting Colonial Secretary and Council, was highly improper and unconstitutional.

It is not improbable that after some months reflection, Mr. Tobin may now regret having made the application, and the Governor will therefore abstain from sending to the Council copy of the note addressed to Mr. Shea dated 19th April last, unless Mr. Tobin wishes to give it publicity by having it recorded in the minutes of the Legislative Council, of which he is a member.

Government House, 22nd March, 1860.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Pinsent, the House went into Committee on the Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency, and for other purposes,

Law of Insolvency consolidation and amendment Bill— Committed.

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resume 1.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett, from the Select Committee appointed to take evidence on the Bill to amend the Law and provide for the proper Culling of Fish in this Island, laid upon the table of the House the Report of the said Committee, with evidence annexed thereto.

The Report is as follows:—

Committee Room,

22nd March, 1860.

The Committee appointed to take Evidence on a Bill to regulate the Culling of Fish, beg to hand herewith the accompanying evidence of several parties largely interested in the Trade of the country, and of others whose practical experience will entitle their opinion to respect.

The Committee confined themselves to leading questions affecting only the general bearing of culling and curing of Fish, and from the evidence adduced there appears to be an almost entire unanimity of opinion as to the necessity of having the Cullers examined and sworn, whilst the prevailing opinion is against any alteration of the present system of dividing Fish into four qualities.

The Committee are aware that the competition to secure early Fish, the past few years, has been detrimental to its character in Foreign Markets, and that great laxity in the Culling has arisen in consequence; but as circumstances may arise tending to restrain somewhat the desire to force Fish off before being properly cured, they are of opinion that the evidence goes fully to establish the necessity for greater strictness in the cull.

The Committee refer to evidence for a good deal of information as to the present state both of curing and culling of Fish, and which appears to be susceptible of great improvement.

JOHN HOGSETT, Chairman. NICHOLAS STABB R. J. PINSENT PATRICK KOUGH ROBERT KENT.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Ordered-That the Report and Evidence be printed.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

FRIDAY, 23rd MARCH, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- NICHOLAS STABB
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " ROBERT KENT
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " JAMES TOBIN

The Minutes of Thursday last were read.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the House went into Committee on the Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency,—

Law of Insolvency consolidation and amendment Bill— Committed.

The Honorable Mr. STARR in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again:

Ordered-That the Report be received.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, move that the Reply from His Excellency the Governor, of date 22nd March, to the Address of the 19th inst., from this Chamber, be not inserted in the Journals of this House.

Notice that Reply to Address of 19th instant, be not inserted in the Journals.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

WEDNESDAY, 26th MARCH, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " ROBERT KENT
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " SAMUEL CARSON

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

Petition from Wesleyans of Burin. The Honorable Mr. STABB presented a Petition from the Wesleyans, and other inhabitants of Burin.

Ordered—To lie on the table.

Law of Insolvency consolidation and amendment Bill— Committed. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the House went into Committee on the Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency,—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

Afte: some time the House resumed.

"Ine Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Documents laid upon the table.

(Vide Appendix.)

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid on the table of the House a detailed Statement of Expenditure under Executive responsibility, for the year 1859; Statement of Coroner's Inquests, District of St. John's, year 1859; and detailed Statement of Expenditure under Emigration Encouragement vote, year 1859.

Notice of Address for Minute of Council authorizing certain expenditure.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that he will be

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

pleased to lay before this House the Minute of Council authorizing the expenditure of £581 13s 4d on Addresses from the House of Assembly, and also of £767 6s 1d paid on Executive authority.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will ask the Notice to ask for state-Organ of the Government for a detailed Statement of £500 6s 4d on account of Shipfor Shipwrecked Crews for the year ending 1859.

ment of £500 6s. 4d., wrecked Crews.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until House adjourns. Wednesday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

WEDNESDAY, 28th MARCH, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

Members present.

- EDWARD MORRIS
- . . NICHOLAS STABB
- ROBERT KENT
- JOHN HOGSETT "
- PATRICK KOUGH
- ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " JAMES TOBIN
- SAMUEL CARSON

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid upon the table of the House a return of names of persons on whom Inquests have been held in the district of St. John's, for the year 1859.

Return of Inquests in St. John's laid on the

(Vide Appendix.)

On motion of the Honorable Mr. STABB,-

Ordered—That the Petition from the Wesleyans, and other inhabitants of Burin, be read.

Petition from the Wesleyans of Burin read.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Law of Insolvency consolidation and amendment Bill— Committed. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the House went into Committee on the Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency,—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

Ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands Act amendment Bill— Committed. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill to amend an Act passed in the 7th Year of the Reign of Her Majesty, entitled "An Act to make provision for the disposal and sale of ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands within the Island of Newfoundland and its Dependencies, and for other purposes," and to make provision for Mining Licenses, Leases, and grants of Mineral Lands, and for other purposes,—

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

Motion for appointment of Contingency CommitteeThe Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to notice, moved the appointment of a Select Committee on the Contingencies of this House,—

The Committee.

Whereupon, the Honorable Messrs. Tobin, Morris, and Carson were appointed a Committee.

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. STABB, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor was read and adopted:—

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

To His Excellency Sir ALEXANDER BANNERMAN, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY:-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that Your Excellency will be pleased to lay before this House the Minute of Council authorizing the expenditure of £581 13s. 4d. on Address from the House of Assembly last session; and also, of £767 6s. Od. paid on Executive authority.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 28th March, 1860.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, move an Address to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, the Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, praying that Her Majesty's Government will consider, in any arrangement which may be entered into with the Emperor of the French relative to the Newfoundland Fisheries which will in any degree abridge the rights hitherto enjoyed by British subjects located between Cape Ray and Cape John, as just subject for compensation from the Imperial Treasury.

Notice of Address to Secretary of State for the Colonies on the subject of the fisheries.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, bring in a Bill to Incorporate the Terra Nova Mining Company.

Notice of Bill to incorporate Terra Nova Mining Company.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Thursday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

THURSDAY, 29th MARCH, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT KENT
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " SAMUEL CARSON
 - " PHILIP DUGGAN
 - " JOHN HOGSETT

The Minutes of Wednesday last were read.

Document laid upon the table.

(Vide Appendix.)

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid on the table of the House, Statement of Expenditure on account of Shipwrecked Crews for the year ended 31st December, 1859.

Insolvency Law consolidation and amendment Bill—

Committed-

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Pinsent, the House went into Committee on the Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency,—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported with amendments.

The Chairman reported the Bill with some amendments.

Ordered-That the Report be received, -and,

Ordered—That the said Bill be engrossed and read a third time on Monday next.

Revenue Bill— Brought up and read 1st time. A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up a Bill for the concurrence of this House, entitled "An Act for granting to Her Majesty certain Duties on Goods, Wares, and Merchandize imported into this Colony and its dependencies,"

HISEKCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Which was read a first time, -and

Ordered to be read a second time to-morrow.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill to amend an Act passed in the seventh year of the Reign of Her Majesty, entitled "An Act to make provision for the disposal and sale of ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands within the Island of Newfoundland and its dependencies, and for other purposes,"—

Crown Lands Act amendment Bill-

Committed-

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill with some Amendments.

Reported with amend-

Ordered—That the Report be received, and that the Amendments be engrossed and the Bill read a third time to-morrow.

The Amendments are as follows:-

At the end of the 3rd Section, after the word "Petitioner," add "unless in case it may appear to the Executive that the applicant resides in such a remote locality that the services of a Deputy Land Surveyor could not have been obtained."

The Amendments.

In the 5th Section, on the 6th line, after the word "thereupon," insert "except Gold and Silver."

After the 12th Section add the following Section: -

"Any person, and the legal representative of any person who, prior to the passing of this Act may have taken or occupied any ungranted Crown Lands and cultivated in the proportion of two to fifty Acres thereof, shall be at any time hereafter entitled to receive a grant in fee thereof under the Great Seal of this Island."

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the Bill to incorporate the Terra Nova Mining Company, was read a first time,—and,

Terra Nova Mining CompanyIncorporation

Brought in and read 1st time.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Ordered—To be read a second time to-morrow.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett,-

Ordered—That the Bill to provide for the proper Culling of Fish be first on the order of the day for to-morrow.

Notice of Address for despatch on subject of the Galway Steam contract. The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that he will be pleased to lay before this House, copy of His Excellency's despatch of the 16th inst., to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, on the subject of the Galway Steam Contract, and any further despatch received from His Grace the Duke of Newcastle subsequent to the one of the 24th January; also, any Minute of Council on the same subject.

Notice to ask if the grounds in front of the Colonial Building are to be improved.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government whether the Government purpose appropriating any money towards the improvement of the Grounds in front of the Colonial Building.

Notice of Address respecting the rumoured visit of the Prince of Wales.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that he will be pleased to communicate to this House any official information he may have received respecting the rumoured visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales.

Notice to suspend 35th Rule of the house.

The Honorable Mr. Morris gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move the suspension of the 35th Rule with regard to the Revenue Bill.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Friday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

FRIDAY, 30th MARCH, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

Members present.

- EDWARD MORRIS
- NICHOLAS STABB . .
- JOHN HOGSETT
- ROBERT KENT
- ROBERT J. PINSENT
- SAMUEL CARSON
- JAMES TOBIN
- PATRICK KOUGH

The Minutes of Thursday last were read.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honor- Culling of Fish Billable Mr. Hogsett, the House went into Committee on the Bill to regulate the Culling of Fish,-

Committed.

The Honorable Mr. Morris in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill entitled "An Act to amend an Act passed in the 7th Year of the Reign of Her Majesty, entitled 'An Act to make provision for the disposal and sale of ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands within the Island of Newfoundland and its dependencies, and for other purposes,' and to make provision for granting Mining Licenses, Leases, and grants of Mineral Lands. and for other purposes,"-

Ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands Act amendment Bill-

Was read a third time and passed,—and

Read 3rd time and

The Honorable the President signed the same.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the said Bill with some amendments, and requesting their concurrence thereto.

Terra Nova Mining CompanyIncorporation Bill— Read 2nd time. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the Bill to Incorporate the Terra Nova Mining Company, was read a second time,—and,

Ordered—To be committed to-morrow.

Revenue Bill-

Read 2nd time-

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill brought up entitled "An Act for granting to Her Majesty certain Duties on Goods, Wares, and Merchandize imported into this Colony and its dependencies;" was read a second time, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, pursuant to notice, the 35th Rule was suspended with reference to the said Bill.

35th Rule of the House suspended—

Committed -

Whereupon, the House went into Committee on the same presently,—

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported-

The Chairman reported the Bill without amendment.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

Read 3rd time and passed.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill was then read a third time and passed,—and,

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same without amendment.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Stabb, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor was read and adopted:—

HISEKCELLENCYSIRALEXANDERBANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that your Excellency will be pleased to lay before this House copy of your despatch of the 16th November, 1859, to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, on the subject of the Galway Steam Contract, and any further despatch received from His Grace subsequent to the one of the 24th January last; also, any Minute of Council on the same subject.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 30th March, 1860.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett, pursuant to notice, asked the Organ of the Government, whether the Government purpose appropriating any money towards the improvement of the Grounds in front of the Colonial Building.

The Honorable Mr. Morris replied, that the Government had not yet decided on expending any money for such purpose.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that on receipt of any communication His Excellency may be pleased to afford this House confirming the rumoured visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, he will move that a Committee of this House be appointed in conjunction with a Committee from the other Branch of the Legislature, to take such steps as will evince our loyalty and just appreciation of the intended visit.

Notice for appointment of Committee to act with Committee from House of Assembly for making arrangements to receive H. R. H.thePrince of Wales.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, ask the Organ of the Government if the Assistant Collector, in addition to his salary of £300, receives the sum of £50 for acting as Secretary, or any other services to the Board of Revenue, and by what vote or from what source such payment is derived.

Notice to ask if Assistant Collector receives £50 in addition to his salary, &c.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 4 o'clock, P.M.

House adjourn:.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

MONDAY, 2nd APRIL, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " JAMES TOBIN
- " ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

Documents laid upon the table.

The Honorable the PRESIDENT, by direction of His Excellency the Governor, laid upon the table of the House the following documents:—

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

The Governor considers it necessary to send, for the perusal of the Legislative Council, a communication which he received from the Colonial Minister by the last mail.

It alludes to a probable event which the Governor has no doubt will be hailed with the greatest satisfaction, by all classes of Her Majesty's loyal subjects in this Colony; and the Governor has informed His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, that His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales will be welcomed to the shores of Newfoundland with enthusiasm, by all classes and creeds of the inhabitants.

The Legislature having been now in session for two months, and, it being doubtful when their labours will terminate, the Governor is desirous that the Legislative Council and House of Assembly, during their sittings, shall be informed of the auspicious event which is likely to happen on some day about the latter end of July.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

In so far as the personal convenience of the illustrious visitor is concerned, the Governor believes His Royal Highness will be as comfortable at Government House as he will be welcome, although it is to be feared the royal visit will be of short duration.

It becomes necessary, however, that this important event shall be taken into consideration, with a view that proper measures may be adopted for those outward demonstrations, which will enable the people to evince their loyalty and attachment to the Prince of Wales, who is about to visit Her Majesty's dominions in the Western Hemisphere.

When the Governor shall receive further information from the Duke of Newcastle, it will be duly communicated, and he believes that it will be desirable that a public meeting of the inhabitants should be called, in order that they may have the opportunity of proposing and adopting such proceedings as cannot fail to gratify themselves, if they can possibly add to the welcome which the illustrious Prince will meet with in this Colony.

Government House, 2nd April, 1860.

Downing Street, 10th March, 1860.

My Dear Sir Alexander,-

It has probably become known in Newfoundland, that the Prince of Wales will pay a visit to Canada this year.

I think he will most likely pay a visit to St. John's on his way out, and, if so, it will be on some day towards the end of July.

I shall of course communicate with you upon the subject as soon as it is decided, but, in the mean time I shall be obliged if you will inform me how the visit of so short duration (I should think only a day,) could be turned to best account for the gratification of the Colony, and what steps you think likely to be taken in the Island, to welcome the Prince.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

It is desirable to know these things before hand with a view to arrangements to be made here.

I am, yours very truly,

(Signed)

NEWCASTLE.

Sir Alexander Bannerman, &c., &e., &c.

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

The Governor has received this afternoon, and, after he had sent in a message to the two branches of the Legislature all the information he possessed in regard to the visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, a printed notice of the orders of the day in the Legislative Council for Monday the 2nd April, in which he observes two notices given by an honorable member of the Legislative Council on the subject of the rumoured visit of His Royal Highness.

While the Governor cannot help expressing his satisfaction at the great loyalty of any member of the Legislative Council being desirous, in conjunction with the other House, to take such steps as will evince their just appreciation of the intended visit, the Governor cannot resist stating to the Legislative Council that it would have afforded him the greatest satisfaction to have informed His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, that the same unanimity prevailed in the Councils of the Queen's Colonial Parliament in regard to the defences of Her ancient colony of Newfoundland, as seems likely to prevail in every branch of the Legislature should the Heir Apparent to her Throne honor this part of her dominions with a visit.

Government House, 2nd April, 1860.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris,-

Ordered,—That a Select Committee be appointed to prepare an Address in answer to the Messages of His Excellency the Governor with reference to the foregoing documents.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Whereupon the following gentlemen were named as a Committee:—

The Honorable Messrs. Morris, Stabb and Pinsent.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, from the said Committee, reported the following Address, which was read and adopted:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY:--

The Legislative Council learn with feelings of profound gratification, the intention of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales to honor this ancient dependency of the Crown with a visit, in the course of the coming summer. The Council, with the utmost confidence, assure Your Excellency that no circumstance could afford greater pleasure to the people of Newfoundland than the contemplated visit of His Royal Highness, and that nothing will be wanting on the part of the Legislature and people of the Colony, to testify to the illustrious visitor their devoted loyalty to His Royal Highness, as the eldest son of their beloved Queen and the heir apparent to the Throne. The Council desire also to convey to Your Excellency their thanks for the prompt manner in which you anticipated this expression of their sentiments in your communication to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, April 2nd, 1860.

Ordered—That the said Address be presented to His Excellency the Governor by a deputation from this House.

Deputation—Honorable Messrs. Morris, Stabb and Pinsent.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Pinsent, the Bill to consolidate and amend the Law of Insolvency, was read a third time and passed,—and,

Law of Insolvence and Inso

Law of Insolvency consolidation and amendment Bill—

Read 3rd time and passed.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same, and requesting their concurrence thereto.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved the following Address:—

To His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, Her Majesty's Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR GRACE :-

The Legislative Council of Newfoundland, in Session convened, respectfully beg leave to request that Her Majesty's Government will, in any arrangement which may be deemed necessary to enter into between the respective Governments of England and France with relation to the Fisheries of this Island, favourably consider those rights hitherto so long enjoyed by British subjects located and settled between Cape Ray and Cape John, and that any interruption of such rights which may be determined on may be compensated for from the Imperial Treasury.

Legislative Council.

Ordered-That the said Address be withdrawn.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the following gentlemen were named as a Committee, in conjunction with a Committee from the House of Assembly, to take such steps as will evince our loyalty and just appreciation of the intended visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales:—

Honorable Messrs. Hogsett, Kough, and Morris.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett,-

Ordered—That the following Message be sent to the House of Assembly:—

Committee to co-operate with Committee of House of Assembly to make preparations for the intended visit of H. R. H. the Prince of Wales.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

MR. SPEAKER,—

The Legislative Council acquaint the House of Assembly that they have appointed a Committee of three, Honorable Messrs. Hogsett, Kough, and Morris, to meet a Committee of the House of Assembly, for the purpose of considering the adoption of such measures as may be deemed desirable to mark our just appreciation of the compliment conferred on this dependency of the Empire, in the contemplated visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales and Heir apparent to the Throne, to which they request the concurrence of the Assembly.

> (Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

> > President.

Legislative Council, April 2nd, 1860.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, asked the Organ of the Government if the Assistant Collector, in addition to his salary of £300, receives the sum of £50 for acting as Secretary, or any other services to the Board of Revenue, and by what vote or from what source such payment is derived.

The Honorable Mr. Morris replied, that upon the formation of the Board of Revenue the Sub-Collector was appointed Secretary to the Board for communicating with the Outports and keeping the Records, and his salary as such had been paid out of funds which resulted to the Board from seizures, &c. &c.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on to- Notice for suspension morrow, move for the suspension of the 35th Rule of this House with reference to the Terra Nova Mining Company Incorporation Bill.

of 35th Rule of the

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will move for a Committee of the whole on the Message of His Excellency the Governor to this House respecting the rumoured visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, in which His Excellency draws at-

Notice of Committee of the House on Governor's Message respecting the rumoured visit of H.R.H. the Prince of Wales.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

tention to the want of unanimity among gentlemen on the subject of the defences of the Colony.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Tuesday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

The second secon

TUESDAY, 3rd APRIL, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- NICHOLAS STABB
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " ROBERT KENT
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " JAMES TOBIN
- " PHILIP DUGGAN

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

Terra Nova Mining CompanyIncorporation Bill—

Committed-

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Pinsent, the House went into Committee on the Bill to Incorporate the Terra Nova Mining Company,—

The Honorable Mr. Carson in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill without amendment.

Ordered-That the Report be received-and, on motion-

Ordered—That the 35th Rule be suspended with reference to the said Bill.

Reported-

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Whereupon, the same was read a third time and passed—and,

Read 3rd time and passed.

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly, with Message, that this House had passed the same and requesting their concurrence thereto.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up a Bill for the concurrence of this House, entitled "An Act to provide for the protection of Property wrecked on the Coast of Newfoundland,"

Wrecked Property Protection Bill,— Brought up, and—

Which was read a first time,—and

Read a 1st time.

Ordered to be read a second time to-morrow, and to be printed.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act to amend the Law and provide for the proper Culling of Fish in this Island,"—

Culling of Fish Bill—Committed—

The Honorable Mr. Morris in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill with some Amendments.

Reported with amendments.

Ordered—That the Report be received,—and,

Ordered—That the said Bill be engrossed and read a third time to-morrow.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move for Returns of the following items of expenditure:—

Notice for returns of sundry items of expenditure.

£50 paid August the 8th; £25 paid August 22nd; and £51 13s 4d paid October 27th, to William Coady—under the head of Protection of Fisheries.

Under Election expenses for Fogo, £55—particulars of such expenditure.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

C. W. Field, £3 11s 6d, advertising in New York.

John Tunbridge, War Department, 8 stand of Arms, £813s 4d.

Paymaster of H. M. S. "Tartar," £14 6s 11d.

Burial Ground at Placentia, £75—unforseen contingencies.

Particulars of Address of House of Assembly, 1858.

Particulars of Special Warrants, £300, to Witless Bay—under Poor account.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Tuesday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

TUESDAY, 10th APRIL, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN HOGSETT

The Minutes of Tuesday last were read.

The Honorable the President, by direction of His Excellency the Governor, laid upon the table of the House the following Message, with documents:—

Message from the Governor, with documents laid on the table.
(Vide Appendix.)

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

In answer to the Address of the 30th March the Governor informs the Legislative Council, that the despatch to the Secretary of State dated the 16th November, contained merely a summary of certain documents relative to direct Steam Communication. Copies of all these documents, marked from No. 1 to 6, are herewith sent tor the information of the Council, and the Governor has no other despatch from Her Majesty's Government on the subject than that already in possession of the Legislature.

Government House, 10th April, 1860.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin moved that the said documents be printed.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

Contents.

Non Contents.

Hon. Mr. Tobin

Hon. Mr. Morris
" Pinsent

" " Kough

" Carson

" "Kent

" " Hogsett

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the Bill to amend the Law and provide for the proper Culling of Fish, was read a third time and passed,—and

Culling of Fish Bill— Read 3rd time and passed.

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same, and requesting their concurrence thereto.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Wrecked Property Protection Bill— Read 2nd time. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill brought up for the Protection of Property wrecked on the Coast of Newfoundland, was read a second time,—and,

Ordered—To be committed to-morrow.

Notice of Address to be informed why His Excellency recommended the Board of Works Act to be amended.

The Honorable Mr. Stabb gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that he will be pleased to communicate to this House the particular circumstance brought under His Excellency's notice which induced a recommendation in His Excellency's Speech, at the opening of the Legislature, that the Act to establish the Board of Works should be amended.

Notice of Address respecting the codification of the laws of the colony.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move the adoption of an Address to take into consideration the propriety of making provision for the Codification of the Laws of this Colony.

Notice of Address for Return of amount paid to officers of Savings' Bank. The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move for a Return of the amount paid in Salaries to the Officers of the Savings' Bank, in detail, namely, to the Cashier, Bank Directors, &c., &c.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Friday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

FRIDAY, 13th APRIL, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JOHN ROCHFORT
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " ROBERT KENT
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JAMES TOBIN

The Minutes of Tuesday last were read.

The Honorable the PRESIDENT informed the House, that His Excellency the Governor had announced his intention to proceed to this House on to-day, at 4 o'clock, P. M., for the purpose of assenting to the Bill entitled "An Act for granting to Her Majesty certain Duties on Goods, Wares, and Merchandize imported into this Colony and its dependencies."

At 4 of the Clock, P. M., His Excellency the Governor having arrived at the Council Chamber, and being seated on the Throne, the Honorable the President of the Council commanded the Gentleman Usher of the Black Rod attendant on the Council, to go to the Commons House of Assembly and inform the members thereof, that it is His Excellency's will and pleasure that they do torthwith attend at the Bar of this House; and they being come thereto, His Excellency was pleased to give his assent to the said Bill. The House of Assembly having withdrawn, His Excellency was pleased to retire.

Governor arrives at the Council Chamber and assents to the Bovenue Bill,

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett, by permission, read a Letter addressed to him by His Excellency the Governor, dated 13th April, 1860, and also presented a Petition from Walter Dalton,—

Ordered—To lie on the table.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

(Vide Appendix.)

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid on the table of the House, a Return shewing Executive Minutes for expenditure of £581 13 4, passed on Addresses from the House of Assembly of 1859, and of expenditure same year on Executive authority of £767 6 1, called for by Address of this House.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Stabb, the House went into committee to take into consideration the Documents laid on the table on the subject of Contracts with the Galway Steam Navigation Company,

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time in debate, the Honorable Mr. STABE submitted the following Resolution:—

Resolved,—That considering the Papers laid before this House, by command of His Excellency the Governor, relative to the Galway Steam Contract, and having particular reference to the Despatch of His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, Her Majesty's Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, of the 24th January, wherein it is stated, that he had not considered it advisable to extend the Contract entered into on the 22nd October, 1858, beyond the 31st December, as a new and more extended Contract had been entered into by Her Majesty's Government, to come into operation on the first of June next, at a reduced expense to this Colony, it is the opinion of this House that the said Contract, if carried into operation, will meet all the requirements of this Colony for Transatlantic Steam Communication without the necessity of taxing the Revenue of the Colony for any other or separate Contract

Whereupon, the Honorable Mr. PINSENT moved the following amendment thereto:-

That the House can see at the present time no good reason for departing from the Resolutions on the subject of the Transatlantic Mail Steam Contract, carried by both Houses of the Legislature on the last Session, and which passed the Council on the 16th March, 1859.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, GOVERNOR.

After which, Honorable Mr. Tout we read the following Resolu-

Resolved,—That the Legislative Council have heard with the utmost satisfaction, of the new Mail Steam Contract entered into with the Galway Company, in which the interests of Newfoundland have been so considerately regarded by the Imperial Government to insure a reduced subsidy on our part from an already overtaxed population.

The Honorable the President moved that the Committee do rise.

And on question being put, there appeared

Contents.

Non Contents.

Hon. Mr. O'Brien

Hon. Mr. Stabb

Tobin

" " Pinsent

" " Morris

" "Kent

" " Kough

" " Hogsett

So it passed in the affirmative.

The House then resumed.

The Chairman reported that the Committee had risen.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin presented a petition from Thomas Dwyer, on subject of appointment of doorkeeper to this House.

Ordered—To lie on the table.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow move an Address to His Excellency the Governor on subject of Steam.

Notice for Address on subject of Steam.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

MONDAY, 16th APRIL, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " NICHOLAS STABB
 - JOHN ROCHFORT
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " JAMES TOBIN
- " ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid on the table of the House the following Document:—

(Vide Appendix.)

Return of expenditure on Executive authority, between 31st December, 1859, and 14th April, 1860.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Rochfort, the Petition of Thomas Dwyer, praying for the appointment of Doorkeeper, and Messenger to this House was read,—

Ordered-To lie on the table.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the Petition of Walter Dalton, praying for the appointment of Assistant Doorkeeper to this House was read,—

Ordered—To lie on the table.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. STABB moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that Your Excellency will be pleased to communicate to this

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

House, the particular circumstance brought under Your Excellency's notice, which induced a recommendation in your Speech, at the opening of the Legislature, that the Act to establish the Board of Works, should be amended.

Legislative Council.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

	Contents.			Non Cont			
Hon.	Mr.	Stabb		Hon.	Mr.	Carson	
44	"	Tobin		66	66	Rochfort	
				66	66	Morris	
			•	, '66	"	Kough -	
				£ 6	66	Hogsett	
				66	66	Kent	

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to notice, asked for Return of the amount paid in Salaries to the Officers of the Savings' Bank in detail, namely, to the Cashier, Bank Directors, &c.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, in reply, laid on the table of the House the required Return.

(Vide Appendix.)

Notice of Address for the appointment of

Sanitary Commission,

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor for the appointment of a Sanitary Commission, for the purpose of considering the site and plan for the erection of the proposed new Poor Houses, and to approve of the same before any contract be entered into for their erection, and also to make enquiries and report on the condition of the St. John's Hospital, in reference to its want of proper drainage, and other sanitary requirements, and to the condition of the ground beneath the lower flooring of the Building, and to inquire and report on any sanitary requirements in the Penitentiary, Lunatic Asylum, and other Public Buildings in St. John's.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that he will be pleased to furnish the Council with the particulars of the expenses

Notice of Address for the Expenses of the Secretary's Office.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

of the Secretary's Office, for the year 1859, and copy of the Minute of Council sanctioning any expenditure beyond the sum voted by the Legislature.

The Honorable Mr. STABB gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government, whether the statement in the Galway Vindicator, of 31st March, stating that the Government of Newfoundland had contracted with the Atlantic Steam Navigation Company for the passage of fifty men for each trip of the Steamers, be correct.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move the House into Committee of Privilege, to take into consideration the state of the Office Chambers of the Council.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Wednesday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

WEDNESDAY, 18th APRIL, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" NICHOLAS STABB

" JOHN ROCHFORT

" JAMES TOBIN

" EDWARD MORRIS

" PATRICK KOUGH

" JOHN HOGSETT
" ROBERT KENT

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALENANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. Morris presented a petition from Ambrose Ronayne, also, one from Patrick Larkin, and one from Thomas Coady, praying for the appointment of Assistant Doorkeeper to this House.

Petitions presented for appointment of Assistant Doorkeeper.

Ordered-To lie on the table.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, pursuant to the order of the day, moved the House into Committee on the Bill brought up entitled "An Act to provide for the protection of Property Wrecked on the Coast of Newfoundland,"—

Shipwrecked Property Protection Bill— Committed.

The Honorable Mr. Kent in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully thank your Excellency for the ardent and anxious desire evinced by your Excellency, in Memoranda 10th and 12th November, 1859, now before this House, to save the Colony the unnecessary contribution to the Galway Steam Subsidy for the next four years, as the Imperial Government had proposed to grant to that enterprise, on national considerations, the sum of £78,000 stg.

Legislative Council.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Contents.	Non Contents.		
Hon. Mr. Tobin	Hon. Mr. Morris		
" " Stabb	" " Kough		
	" " Kent		
	" " Hogsett		
	" " Rochfort		

The Honorable Mr. STABB, pursuant to the order of the day, moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c. &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that your Excellency will be pleased to appoint a Sanitary Commission for the purpose of considering the Site and Plan for the erection of the proposed new Poor Houses, and to approve of the same before any Contract be entered into for their erection; and also, to make enquiries and report on the condition of the St. John's Hospital, in reference to its want of proper drainage and other sanitary requirements, and to the condition of the ground beneath the lower flooring of the Building, and to enquire and report on any Sanitary requirements in the Penitentiary, Lunatic Asylum, and other Public Buildings in St. John's.

After some time in debate, and on motion,-

Ordered-That the said Address be withdrawn.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Stabb, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor was read and adopted:—

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that your Excellency will be pleased to furnish the Council with the particulars of the Expenses of the Colonial Secretary's Office for the year 1859, and copy of the Minute of Council sanctioning any expenditure beyond the sum voted by the Legislature.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Council Chamber, April 18th, 1860.

The Honorable Mr. STABB asked the Organ of the Government, whether the statement in the Galway *Vindicator* of 31st March, stating that the Government of Newfoundland had contracted with the Atlantic Steam Navigation Company for the passage of fifty men for each trip of the Steamers, be correct.

The Honorable Mr. Morris replied, that there was no truth in the statement, and that no such contract had been entered into.

The Honorable Mr. Stabb gives notice, that he will on to-morrow move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that His Excellency will be pleased to direct that a Return be made to this House of the date of the imprisonment of Mrs. Donovan in the Penitentiary, number of days confined, for what crime, by whose authority or warrant imprisoned, when and by whose authority discharged; also, copy of authority or warrant for placing the said Mrs. Donovan, after her discharge from the Penitentiary, in the Lunatic Asylum, date of such warrant, copies of all papers relative to the examination by any medical men as to her sanity or otherwise, and a Report from the Physician of the Lunatic Asylum as to the state of her mind at the time of her being placed in the Asylum, and at the present time.

Notice of Address for information respecting the imprisonment of Mrs. Donovan, &c.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Notice to move for Return of expenditure of various sums of money. The Honorable Mr. Tobrn gives notice, that he will move for the production of the Return of £200 12 7, on Address of the House of Assembly, 1858, and £300 paid by special Warrant, Witlas Bay account.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Friday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

FRIDAY, 20th APRIL, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" EDWARD MORRIS

" NICHOLAS STABB
" JOHN HOGSETT

" JAMES TOBIN

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" PATRICK KOUGH

" SAMUEL CARSON

The Minutes of Wednesday last were read.

The Honorable Mr. Stabb presented a Petition from the Rev. Thomas Harris and others, inhabitants of Twillingate.

Ordered—To lie on the table.

Shipwrecked Property Protection Bill— Committed. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill brought up entitled "An Act to provide for the protection of Property Wrecked on the Coast of Newfoundland,"—

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to notice, asked the Organ of the Government for Return of £200 12 7, on Address from the House of Assembly, 1858, and £300 paid by special Warrant, Witlas Bay account.

Returns asked of various items of expenditure.

The Honorable Mr. Morris said, that he had applied for the required information, and supposed that he should be in a position to lay it before the House on the next day of meeting.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until House adjourns. Monday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

MONDAY, 23rd APRIL, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

PATRICK KOUGH

" NICHOLAS STABB

" EDWARD MORRIS

" JOHN HOGSETT

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" JAMES TOBIN

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. STABB, the Petition of the Rev. Thomas Harris, and Members of the Wesleyan Church and Congregation of Twillingate, was read.

Petition of Rev. T. Harris and others, read

Ordered—To lie on the table.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Petitions for office of Doorkeeper, read.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Merris, the Petition of Ambrose Ronayne, praying for the appointment of Doorkeeper to this House; and also, one of Thomas Coady, and one of Patrick Larkin, on the same subject, were severally read.

Ordered—To lie on the table.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up the following Message:—

Message from the House of Assembly.

MR. PRESIDENT,—

The House of Assembly having under their consideration the Bill to provide for the Culling of Fish, respectfully request that the Council will be pleased to furnish them with a copy of the Evidence taken in reference thereto.

(Signed) A. SHEA,

Speaker.

House of Assembly, April 19th, 1860.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett,-

Ordered—That a copy of the Evidence taken on the said Bill, be sent to the House of Assembly with the following Message:—

MR. SPEAKER,—

Message to the House of Assembly.

The Legislative Council acquaint the House of Assembly, in reply to their Message requesting to be furnished with a copy of the Evidence taken by the Select Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act to amend the Law and provide for the proper Culling of Fish in this Island," that the accompanying printed paper is a correct copy of the Evidence and Report of Committee.

(Signed) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Council Chamber, April 23rd, 1860.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill brought up, entitled "An Act to provide for the protection of Property Wrecked on the Coast of Newfoundland,"—

Shipwrecked Property Protection Bill— Committed.

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, moved for the production of Return of £200 12 7, on Address from the House of Assembly, 1858, and £300 paid by Special Warrants, Witless Bay account.

Return of £200 12 7, and of £300, asked for.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, in reply, laid on the table of the House detailed Statement of expenditure under Address of the House of Assembly, 1858, for the year ending 31st December, 1859, but was not then in a position to furnish a detailed Statement of the £300 paid by Special Warrants, Witless Bay account.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid on the table of the House, Statement of expenses for Salaries of the Colonial Secretary's Office for the year ended 31st December, 1859, together with copy of Minute of Council, as follows:—

Statement of Salaries of Colonial Secretary's Office, with Minute of Council— Laid upon the table.

12th August, 1859.

A Minute of Council was passed (12th August, 1859) recommending that the precedents of Messrs. Crowdy, Spearman, Kent and Little, who received their full Salaries when acting as Delegates, be followed as respects the Colonial Fishery Commissioner, the Honorable John Kent.

(Signed) J. KENT.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Report of Joint Committee on contemplated visit of H. R. Highness the Prince of Wales, presented—

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett, from the Joint Committee of this House and the House of Assembly, appointed to consider the adoption of measures that may be deemed necessary to mark our appreciation of the compliment conferred on this dependency of the Crown, in the contemplated visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales and Heir Apparent to the Throne, presented the following Report, which was received and read:—

The Report.

That it is the opinion of this Committee, that preparations be made to welcome His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales on his arrival in this Colony, by public demonstrations adapted to such an auspicious event, and that for such purpose Addresses from both branches of the Legislature be presented to His Excellency the Governor, authorizing His Excellency in Council to expend such sum of money as may be considered necessary.

JOHN HOGSETT, Chairman. EDWARD MORRIS PATRICK KOUGH GEO. J. HOGSETT P. NOWLAN W. V. WHITEWAY.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move an Address to His Excellency the Governor in conformity with the foregoing report.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett presented a Petition from Patrick Grey.

Ordered—To lie on the table.

Notice for Address on Salaries of Colonial Secretary and Acting Colonial Secretary. The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor for copy of the Minute of Council, with the names of the Members present who granted, on the 12th August last, full Salary to the Colonial Secretary for the year 1859, whilst he was specially employed by and at the express cost of the British Government; and likewise declared in same Minute of Council that the Colony should pay an Acting

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Colonial Secretary, one of the said Executive Council, during the same period.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until House adjourns. Thursday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

THURSDAY, 26th APRIL, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

· Members present.

- ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " JOHN HOGSETT
- " JAMES TOBIN
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " ROBERT KENT
- " SAMUEL CARSON

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

The Honorable the President, by direction of His Excellency the Governor, laid on the table of the House the following Message with document:—

Message and document laid upon the table.

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

The Governor considers it necessary to call the attention of the Legislature to a Minute of Council of date the 6th May last year, 1859, soon after the close of the last Session of the Sixth General Assembly; a copy of that Minute is herewith sent for the Legislative Council.

The Minute referred to is explanatory of the circumstances which gave rise to the loss of the Civil Contingencies' Bill, and also

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

of the course which the Governor considered it to be his duty to adopt on that occasion.

The rejection of the Civil Contingencies Bill the Governor could neither forsee nor prevent, and the cause of that rejection was not brought under his notice until immediately before the Prorogation.

The Governor is aware that some responsibility attaches to him in sanctioning the payment of the items of the Civil List Bill, copy of which is also herewith sent, but he believes all these items had been seen by both Houses a day or two before the Prorogation.

Under the circumstances of the case, therefore, the Governor does not think that he could have acted otherwise, at the same time he is desirous that his sanctioning the payments alluded to shall not be considered as a precedent on any future occasion, fully recognizing as he does the constitutional principle that the annual Appropriation Bills ought to receive the assent of both Houses of the Legislature.

It is almost needless to remark, that the Contingencies' Bill fell to the ground in consequence of the omission of a provision for the payment of the Members of the Legislative Council, and he stated the same views at the close of the Session.

In passing through Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, he ascertained that the Members of the Legislative Council were paid in both these Provinces, and he brought along with him the existing laws on the subject, which he has left with the Honorable Colonial Secretary for the information of Members; and in conclusion, he can only hope that this question will be amicably settled by the House of Assembly and Legislative Council before the termination of the present Session.

Government House, 24th April, 1860.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

(COPY)

Council Chamber, 6th May, 1859.

PRESENT:

His Excellency the GOVERNOR.
The President
Receiver General
Surveyor General
J. J. Rogerson
Acting Colonial Secretary
Attorney General

The Governor requested to be furnished with a list of the appropriations contained in the Legislative Contingency Bill of the last session, certified by the Executive Council, and numbered I. onwards; and to be informed whether the said Bill was passed by the House of Assembly, and sent as is usual to the Legislative Council for their assent, and what was the action of the last named Body thereupon.

"The Executive Council now beg leave respectfully to lay before His Excellency the Governor the list of appropriations referred to, and to inform him that the Legislative Contingency Bill was passed by the House of Assembly and sent to the Legislative Council for concurrence. This Body had previously furnished the Assembly with a statement of their Contingent expenses, including for the first time an appropriation of Sessional Pay of £200 to their President, and £42 each to the other members. Their Contingencies were assented to, and embodied by the Assembly in the Bill sent back to the Legislative Council, with the exception of the new charge of Sessional pay, which the Lower House unanimously disallowed. The Bill was read in the Legislative Council upon its presentation to that Body; they, on observing the omission in it of the Sessional Pay which they had placed in their statement furnished to the Assembly, passed thereupon the following Resolution and Message:-

First Session, Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

Resolved,—That the Council having observed, in the Contingencies Bill sent up from the Assembly to this House, the omission of the Sessional allowance for the President and members of the Council, deem it expedient to suspend all action on the Bill until such omission be rectified by the Assembly.

(Signed,)

LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 20th April, 1859.

MR. SPEAKER,—

The Legislative Council acquaint the House of Assembly, that they have passed the accompanying Resolution with reference to those rights of the Council which they claim to exercise as a coordinate Branch of the Legislature.

(Signed)

LAURENCE O'BRIEN.

President.

Legislative Council, 20th April, 1859.

No action was taken upon this Resolution in the House of Assembly, and in consequence the Legislative Contingencies Bill fell to the ground. His Excellency will therefore see the great inconvenience which must arise to many persons, by the non-payment of sums which have been recognised as justly due to them, and the Executive Council earnestly request that His Excellency's serious consideration may be directed to this important subject."

The Governor stated to the Council that he had received the information he required from them, along with a list of the appropriations contained in the Civil Contingencies Act, which Act fell to the ground not having been assented to by either House.

The circumstances which led to the loss of this Bill, he believes are correctly stated by the Council. He has carefully considered

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

them, and also the earnest request of the Council, that his attention might be directed to the important subject to which they allude.

There can be no doubt that whatever recommendation the Council might make to, or advise the Governor to follow, he would not be justified in doing what might be illegal; but, at the same time, he thinks it is his duty to weigh well the circumstances which caused the loss of the Contingency Appropriations Bill with a view, if possible, to adopt some course which may prevent the great inconvenience which, the Council assure him, must inevitably arise from the non-payment for a long period to individuals of sums which are justly due to them.

The case is a novel one; it must and will hereafter be discussed, as it is mixed up with other matters which cannot be lost sight of, and the whole will require careful consideration.

In the first place, the House of Assembly, which voted all the appropriations in the Contingency Bill and disallowed one item which was inserted by the other House, has been dissolved and ceases to exist, and owing to the peculiar localities of this Colony it will be many months, probably, before a new House of Assembly can be elected.

In the second place, the present Governor may die, or leave the Colony, and any course which he adopts might be questioned by his successor as well as by the next House of Assembly; and in the third place, he received an Address on the 21st April, which had been passed by the Legislative Council on the day previous, he believes only a few hours before the prorogation, and to which therefore he could not reply, but which he must now notice, for by doing so he may hereafter save some trouble; for if his opinions, whether erroneous or not, are known to both Houses, some trouble may be saved when the Legislature shall meet again, it he shall remain in Newfoundland.

The Address, as will be seen, complains of illegal appropriations, and it is as follows:—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,-

The Legislative Council of Newfoundland, in Session convened, observing in the Supply Bill that a very large sum of money has, during the past year, been expended out of the public Treasury without the authority or sanction of Law, desire, as a constituent Branch of the Legislature, respectfully to communicate to your Excellency their unqualified disapproval of the adoption of a course so manifestly unconstitutional and illegal, and which, if exercised without such urgent necessity as has not yet arisen to the knowledge of the Council, will naturally result in creating a fatal opposition to the passage of Bills for providing for the public service, and for the appropriation generally of the public money.

(Signed) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council.

April 20th, 1859.

It will be seen that the Legislative Council observe in the "Supply Bill, that a large sum of money was, during the past year, expended out of the Treasury without the authority or sanction of Law," and they communicate to the Governor "their unqualified disapproval of the adoption of a course so unconstitutional and illegal, the natural result of which will be to create a fatal opposition to the passage of Bills for providing for the public service, and for the appropriation generally of the public money."

The Governor apprehends that by the "Supply Bill" the Legislative Council mean the Acts which appropriate the Supply raised by the Revenue Act which passed the Legislature, and "which freely and voluntarily gives and grants to Her Majesty, towards defraying Her Majesty's public expenses in this Colony," the amount raised by taxation on the whole community on dutiable articles imported into the Colony, which are daily used and consumed by the people.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Governor trusts that no circumstances will ever arise in Newfoundland to justify opposition to raising a Revenue for the Public Service, because whatever sum that Revenue may amount to, the Legislature have a legitimate and proper control over its expenditure and appropriation, and if left unappropriated it remains in the Public Treasury under the Governor's responsibility.

The Governor infers from the last passage in the Legislative Council's Address, that while they complain of the past which has met with their unqualified disapproval, they have communicated their sentiments to the Governor with a view to prevent anything of a similar nature from occurring in future.

The Governor, in his Speech at the end of the Session, quite unaware that such an Address had been passed by the Legislative Council, considered it his duty to make some observations on the past management and appropriation of the Revenue of the Colony, in order that a better system might be adopted and more in accordance with Parliamentary and Constitutional Government, which on this side of the Atlantic is called "Responsible Government," terms which have never yet been defined, but are sufficiently understood to answer all practical purposes, provided it is fairly administered according to the understood wishes of, and for the interests of the people.

In regard to the Legislative Contingency Appropriation Bill, which has fallen to the ground, the Governor, taking into consideration the great inconvenience which must arise to individuals by the non-payment of sums which are justly due to them, is inclined to sanction the expenditure of an amount equal to the amount contained in the certified list which has been sent to him by the Executive Council, not from any source that will increase the burthen of the people, or, add one shilling to the debt, but from the Revenue which has been "freely and voluntarily given and granted to defray Her Majesty's public expenditure in this Colony."

First Session, Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

By coming to this decision the Governor believes that he does incur some responsibility; but, if so, he will look forward to the Legislature, when it shall again meet, to sanction the course he adopted, for he believes that the Contingency Bill would have passed but for the omission of one appropriation, which was a new one, namely, the payment of the members of Council; and, it being a money appropriation, the House of Assembly, in the Governor's opinion, had a constitutional right to disallow it.

In regard to the payment of the members of the Legislative Body, the Governor, as he stated at the close of the session, thinks it a question well worthy of consideration. It is a practice which, he believes, prevails in the neighbouring Colonies, and he only regrets the question was not earlier introduced, in order that it might have been fairly discussed, and the amounts voted and paid to the Legislative Councillors in other Colonies submitted for consideration; and if such a course be followed when the Legislature shall again meet, the Governor doubts not it will end in a satisfactory result.

We, the undersigned Members of the Executive Council, desire to record our unqualified approval of the course which His Excellency has determined to adopt, as above indicated, with regard to the Legislative Contingencies Bill of last session; and we feel the most confident assurance, that His Excellency will be readily indemnified by the Assembly, at its first meeting, for any responsibility he may have incurred on this occasion.

(Signed)

Barrell Commission of the Comm

JOHN KENT
E. D. SHEA
EDMUND HANRAHAN
THOMAS GLEN
GEORGE HOGSETT.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Amount of Appropriations in Contingency Bill for the Session of Assembly ended the 20th April, 1859.

LEGISLATINE COUNCIL.

Clerk			£165	0	0		
Master in Chanc	ery		140	0	0		
Usher of the Bla	•		120	0	0		:
Door Keeper	• • •		5 0	0	0		
Assistant Door I		essenger	30	0	0		
Messenger	•		25	0	0		•
Reporter			125	0	0		
Newfoundlander	, Publishing	Debates	45	0	0		
Courier,	ditto		45	0	0		•
Ledger,	ditto		30	0	0		•
Clerk for Contin	gencies		120	19	10		•
Usher of Black	_		86	12	10		•
John C. Withers	s, Printing		231	4	0		•
Joseph Woods	ditto		195	0	0		
Ditto	ditto		200	0	0		
					£1608	16	8

HOUSE OF ASSEMBLY.

Speaker		200	0	0
Clerk	• • • •	2 75	0	0
Clerk Assistant	• • • •	125	0	0
Solicitor ····		175	0	0
Sergeant at Arms		125	0	0
William J. Ward, arrears Pub	lishing	50	0	0
Archibald Emerson, Reporting		25	0	0
James Bayly		10	0	0
Door Keeper · · · ·		5 0	0	0
Messenger	••••	45	0	0
Under Door Keeper		40	0	0
Outer Door Keeper		20	0	0
Assistant Door Keeper and Me	essenger	20	0	0
Messenger and Fireman		35	0	0

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

						-
Reporters	• • • •	225	0	0		
Proprietor Newfoundlander	r, Publishing	70	0	0		
Proprietor Courier,	ditto	70	0	0		
28 Members of Assembly	• • • •	1344	0	0		
Proprietors Patriot Press	• • • •	600	0	0		
Newfoundlander, Printing	Journals	738	15	0		
Ditto ditto	Bills	50	7	6		
The Clerk of Assembly for	r Library	108	14	5		
The Sergeant at Arms, Co	ntingencies	30	6	7		
Chairman of Supply		75	0	0		
Richard Holden, jr.		100	0	0		
Thomas McConnan	• • • •	69	2	10		
J. J. Graham · · · ·	• • • •	50	3	9		
Joseph Woods, Binding	• • • •	49	7	4		
Dicks & Brace, ditto	••••	27	1	8		
W. J. Ward, Telegraph M	lessages	80	0	0		
Post Office, Postages	••••	21	5	6		
Richard Perchard		50	0	0		
Auditors of Accounts	• • • •	200	0	0		
Clerk of Assembly for Con	tingencies	231	8	5		
-	•				5406 18	

£7015 15 5

We, the undersigned members of the Executive Council, do certify that this list is a true copy of the amounts appropriated in the Legislative Contingency Bill which was passed by the House of Assembly last Session.

(Signed)

THOS. GLEN
EDMD. HANRAHAN
GEO. J. HOGSETT
E. D. SHEA.

May 1st, 1859.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the Petition of Patrick Grey, praying for the appointment of Doorkeeper to this House, was read.

Ordered—To lie on the table.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett, at the same time, presented a recommendation or paper writing, in favor of Michael Thomey.

Ordered—To lie on the table.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill brought up, entitled "An Act to provide for the protection of Property Wrecked on the Coast of Newfoundland,"-

Wrecked Property Protection Bill-Committed-

The Honorable Mr. Kent in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill with some amendments.

Reported.

Ordered—That the Report be received,—and

Ordered—That the said Amendments be engrossed—and

The Bill read a third time on to-morrow.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up a Bill Controverted Elections for the concurrence of this House, entitled, "An Act to regulate Brought up—and the trial of Controverted Elections on return of Members to serve in the House of Assembly,"—

Which was read a first time,—and

Read a 1st time.

Ordered—To be read a second time to-morrow.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honor-The Mr. Stabb, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor, was read and adopted:—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that your Excellency will be pleased to direct that a Return be made to this House of the date of the imprisonment of Mrs. Donovan in the Penitentiary, number of days confined, for what crime, by whose authority or warrant imprisoned, when and by whose authority discharged; also, copy of authority or warrant for placing the said Mrs. Donovan, after her discharge from the Penitentiary, in the Lunatic Asylum, date of such warrant, copies of all papers relative to the examination by any medical men as to her sanity or otherwise, and a report from the Physician of the Lunatic Asylum as to the state of her mind at the time of her being placed in the Lunatic Asylum and at the present time.

(Signed) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, April 26th, 1860.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Hogsett, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor, was read and adopted:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c. &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, sensible of the distinguished compliment conferred on this ancient Dependency of the Empire, in the contemplated visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales and Heir Apparent to the Throne, respectfully request that your Excellency in Council may be pleased to appropriate from the Treasury such Sum of Money as may be deemed necessary

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

to perfect these public demonstrations which should mark our proper appreciation of the visit of His Royal Highness and evince our loyalty to our illustrious Sovereign and most gracious Queen.

(Signed) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, April 26th, 1860.

On motion-

Ordered—That the notice of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, on the order of the day, be withdrawn.

The Honorable Mr. Hogsett asked leave to absent himself from attendance on this House for some time.

Which was accordingly granted.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, to know if any information has been received from Her Majesty's Government relative to the affirming of the suspension of Mr. R. Reader, Stipendiary Magistrate of Perlican.

Notice of Address relative to the suspension of Mr. Reader.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until to- House adjourns. morrow, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

FRIDAY, 27th APRIL, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " ROBERT KENT
- " SAMUEL CARSON
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " JAMES TOBIN

The Minutes of Thursday last were read.

Wrecked Property Protection Bill—

Read 3rd time and passed.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill brought up entitled, "An Act to provide for the Protection of Property wrecked on the coast of Newfoundland" was read a third time and passed,—and,

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same with some amendments, and requesting their concurrence thereto.

Controverted Elections Bill—

Read 2nd time.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill to regulate the trial of Controverted Elections, was read a second time,—and,

Ordered-To be committed to-morrow.

Notice for Select Committee to prepare Address on arrival of H. R. H. the Prince of Wales.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will move the appointment of a Select Committee to prepare an Address from the Legislative Council to be presented to His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, in case of his visiting this Colony.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 4 o'clock, p. M.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

MONDAY, 30th APRIL, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " ROBERT KENT
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " JAMES TOBIN
- " PATRICK KOUGH

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill brought up entitled "An Act to regulate the trial of Controverted Elections,"—

Controverted Elections Bill—

Committed-

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill without Amendment.

Reported.

Ordered-That the Report be received,-and

Ordered-That the said Bill be read a third time to-morrow.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up a Bill for the concurrence of the House, entitled "An Act to prevent the Firing of the Woods and Forests of the Colony, and for other purposes," which was read a first time,—and,

Firing of Woods and Forests Bill— Brought up, and read 1st time.

Ordered—To be read a second time to-morrow.

The Honorable Mr. Morris laid on the table of the House, Memoranda of His Excellency the Governor, together with authorities and precedents of the Colonies on subject of payment of Members.

Memoranda on subject of payment of Members &c., laid on the table. (Vide Appendix.)

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, pursuant to the order of the day, moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c. &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,—

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that your Excellency will be pleased to have laid before this House, any information which your Excellency may have received from her Majesty's Government, affirming the suspension of Mr. R. Reader, Stipendiary Magistrate of Old Perlican.

Legislative Council.

Ordered—That the said Address be withdrawn.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Pinsent, the following gentlemen were appointed a Select Committee to prepare an Address from the Legislative Council to be presented to His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, in case of his visiting this Colony.

Committee—The Honorables Messrs. Pinsent, Stabb, and Kough.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin presented a Petition from Maurice Kearney.

Ordered—To lie on the table.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, to inquire what has been the result of any investigation which may have taken place on the subject of a Registered Money Letter addressed to Miss Lucy Tyrrell, St. John's, Newfoundland, posted at Arichat, Cape Breton, per Halifax Mail, within the last six weeks, which Letter was tendered to her at the Post Office with the envelope opened, and in presence of the Post Office Authorities the Letter was drawn therefrom, and no money was contained therein.

Select Committee appointed to prepare Address to the Prince of Wales should he visit this colony.

Notice of Address on subject of registered letter addressed to Miss Lucy Tyrrell.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, drawing attention to the direct violation of the 4th Section of the Savings' Bank Amendment Act, 18 and 19 Vic., whereby the whole amount of Salaries and incidental expenses of the Savings' Bank Institution shall not exceed £500 annually, and respectfully request to be favored with the reasons why and when the annual Salary of the Cashier has been increased to the large and unreasonable amount of £490 8s, and the Directory to £150, independent of other incidental expenses and the Salaries of the Harbor Grace Branch.

Notice of Address on the subject of the Savings' Bank Salaries,&c.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that in consequence of his having been requested by interested persons, subjects of the neighboring Colonies, to furnish them with information, he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, to be informed if British subjects are allowed to Fish, as heretofore, in St. George's Bay; and also, a Return of the extent of Coastal Fishing exclusively held by French subjects under despatch 66; also, a Return of the exact amount of Territory granted to American Telegraph Companies, and how far they are held in beneficial obligations to the Colony, and if the said Companies have performed their engagements; also, how much of the Island of Newfoundland may be considered as reserved to the use of Queen Victoria and her subjects.

Notice of Address on subject of Fishery in St. George's Bay, &c.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, to be informed if any correspondence has been received from the Imperial Government on the Fisheries' question since the opening of the present session.

Notice of Address to ask for information on the fisheries' question.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Wednesday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

House adjourns.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

WEDNESDAY, 2nd MAY, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " PHILIP DUGGAN
- " JAMES TOBIN
- " ROBERT KENT
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " SAMUEL CARSON

The Minutes of Monday last were read.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, the Petition of Maurice Kearney, praying for the appointment of Doorkeeper to this House, was read.

Ordered-To lie on the table.

Controverted Elections Bill—

Read 3rd time and passed.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill to regulate the trial of Controverted Elections, was read a third time and passed,—and,

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same without amendment.

Firing of Woods and Forests Bill—

Read 2nd time.

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Mor-RIS, the Bill brought up entitled "An Act to prevent the Firing of the Woods and Forests of the Colony, and for other purposes," was read a second time,—and,

Ordered—To be committed to-morrow.

Bills brought up-

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up, for the concurrence of this House, the following Bills, entitled,—

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for defraying the expenses of the Civil Government of this Colony, for the year ending the 31st day of December, 1860, and for other purposes. Supply Bill-

An Act to amend an Act passed in the 22nd year of the reign of Her present Majesty, Queen Victoria, entitled "An Act to Incorporate the General Water Company."

General Water Company Incorporation Act Amendment Bill—

An Act to authorize the Erection of a Poor Asylum in the town St. John's, and the raising by Loan of a sum of money for that purpose, and for the completion of the Penitentiary.

Poor Asylum Erection Bill, &c.-

An Act for the Prevention of Nuisances in the towns of St. John's, Harbor Grace, Carbonear, and Brigus,—and,

Prevention of Nuisances Bill-

An Act for the Protection of the Salmon Fishery of this Colony, and for other purposes.

Protection of Salmon Fishery Bill—

Which Bills were severally read a first time,—and,

Severally read 1st time.

Ordered—To be read a second time to-morrow.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up the following Message:—

House of Assembly.

MR. PRESIDENT.

The House of Assembly acquaint the Honorable Legislative Council, that they have passed without amendment the Amendments of the Council in and upon the Bill sent up from the Assembly, entitled "An Act to amend an Act passed in the 7th year of Her Majesty's reign, entitled 'An Act to make provision for the disposal and sale of ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands, within the Island of Newfoundland, and its dependencies, and for other purposes," and to make provision for granting Mining Licenses, and Grants of Mineral Lands, and for other purposes."

(Signed) A. SHEA,

Speaker.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT, from the Select Committee appointed to prepare an Address from the Legislative Council, to be presented to His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, in case of his visiting this Colony, reported an Address,—

Which was received and read.

Ordered-That this House go into Committee on the same to-morrow.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c. &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that your Excellency will be pleased to inform this House what has been the result of any investigation which may have taken place on the subject of a Registered Money Letter addressed to Miss Lucy Tyrrell, St. John's, Newfoundland, posted at Arichat, Cape Breton, per Halifax Mail, within the last six weeks, which letter was tendered to her at this Post Office with the envelope opened; and in presence of the Post Office Authorities the letter was drawn therefrom and no money was contained therein—the said letter had been previously marked with the St. John's Post Office Stamp; the Post Office Authorities retained the letter and have it still.

Legislative Council.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

Conte	ents.	•	Non	Contents.		
Hon. Mr.	Tobin		Hon.	Mr.	Morris	
£	Pinsent		66	"	Duggan	
"	Stabb	•	"	66	Kough	
	O'Brien		66	"	Kent	

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Pursuant to notice, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, in drawing the attention of your Excellency to the direct violation of the 4th Section of the Savings' Bank Amendment Act, 18th and 19th Victoria, whereby the "whole amount of Salaries and incidental expenses of the Savings' Bank Institution shall not exceed £500 annually; respectfully request to be favored with the reasons why, and when the annual Salary of the Cashier has been increased to the large and unreasonable amount of £490 S, and the Directory to £150, independent of other incidental expenses and the Salaries of the Harbor Grace Branch.

Legislative Council.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

${\it Contents}.$			Non Contents.			
Hon.	Mr.	Tobin	Hon.	Mr.	Morris	
66	"	Stabb	66	"	Kough	
66	66	Duggan	"	66	Kent	
			٠, د	6,6	O'Brien	

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT gives notice, that he will on tomorrow move an Address to His Excellency the Governor, with reference to the adoption of measures for ascertaining and carrying into effect the best mode of regulating the Penitentiary of St. John's.

Notice of Address with reference to the St. John's Penitentiary.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until House adjourns. Friday next, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

FRIDAY, 4th MAY, 1860.

House meets:

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- JOHN ROCHFORT
- 66 NICHOLAS STABB
- 66 PATRICK KOUGH
- . . EDWARD MORRIS
- " ROBERT KENT
- " JAMES TOBIN
- PHILIP DUGGAN "
- 46 ROBERT J. PINSENT

The Minutes of Wednesday last were read.

The Honorable the President laid on the table of the House, a Telegram from Mr. Ward.

Firing of Woods and Forests Bill-Committed-

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act to prevent the Firing of the Woods and Forests of this Colony, and for other purposes,"-

The Honorable Mr. Rochfort in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported.

The Chairman reported the Bill without Amendment.

Ordered—That the Report be received,—and

Ordered—That the said Bill be read a third time to-morrow.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up the following Message :-

House of Assembly, 4th May, 1860.

Mr. PRESIDENT,

The House of Assembly acquaint the Legislative Council, that Message from the they have passed without amendment the Amendments of the Coun-

House of Assembly.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

cil in and upon the Bill sent up from the Assembly, entitled "An Act to provide for the Protection of Property Wrecked on the Coast of Newfoundland."

(Signed)

A. SHEA,

Speaker.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c. &c. &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully request that your Excellency will be pleased to inform this House if British Subjects are allowed to Fish, as heretofore, in St. George's Bay; and also, to lay before this Council a Return of the extent of Coastal Fishery said to be exclusively held by French Subjects in Despatch 66; also, a Return of the exact extent of Territory granted to American Telegraph Companies, and how far they are held in beneficial obligations to the Colony, and if the said Companies have performed their engagements.

Legislative Council.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

Contents			Non Contents.			
Hon.	Mr.	Tobin	Hon.	Mr.	Morris	
"	66	Duggan	**	"	Kough	
"	66	Stabb	66	"	Kent	
"	66	O'Brien	66	"	Rochfort	

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, respectfully beg to be informed if any correspondence has been received from the Imperial Government on the Fishery question, since the opening of the present Session.

Legislative Council.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

Contents.

Hon. Mr. Tobin

Non Contents.

Hon. Mr. Morris

" " Duggan

" " Kough

" " Stabb

" " Rochíort

Read 2nd time-

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Mor-RIS, the following Bills were severally read a second time:

Supply Bill-

An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for defraying the expenses of the Civil Government of this Colony, for the year ending 31st December, 1860, and for other purposes.

Prevention of Nuisances BillAn Act for the Prevention of Nuisances in the towns of St. John's, Harbor Grace, Carbonear, and Brigus.

General Water Company Incorporation Act Amendment BillAn Act to amend an Act passed in the 22nd year of the reign of Her present Majesty, entitled "An Act to Incorporate the General Water Company."

Protection of Salmon Fishery Bill—

and

An Act for the Protection of the Salmon Fishery of this Colony,—and,

Poor Asylum Erection Bill, &c.

An Act to authorize the Erection of a Poor Asylum in the town

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

St. John's, and the raising by Loan of a sum of money for that purpose, and for the completion of the Penitentiary.

Ordered—That the said Bills be committed to-morrow.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the following Address to His Excellency the Governor, was read and adopted:-

> To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY:-

The Legislative Council, in Session convened, beg respectfully to draw the attention of your Excellency and the Executive, to the want of proper regulations and system in the Institution called the Penitentiary at St. John's, for the employment and reclaiming such as may from time to time be confined as Prisoners within its walls, and to suggest that steps be taken for ascertaining through some well qualified person, what the most improved system in the United States and elsewhere may be, and that the same be adopted as nearly as applicable, in the Institution above referred to.

(Signed,)

LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 4th May, 1860.

Contents.

Non Contents.

Hon. Mr. Tobin

Hon. Mr. Morris

Stabb

Kough

Duggan

Pinsent

Kent

The Honorable Mr. Morris gives notice, that he will on tomorrow move the suspension of the 35th Rule of this House with reference to the passing of Bills during the remainder of the session.

Notice to move for suspension of 35th Rule.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Notice to move the House into Committee on Privilege.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move this House into Committee of Privilege, on to-morrow, to consider special subjects.

Notice to ask why the Legislative Contingencies of 1859, &c., do not appear in the Bill of Indemnity. The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on to-morrow, ask the Organ of the Government why the sum of £7015 15 5 Legislative Contingencies of 1859, which did not receive the assent of this Council, but is improperly charged as paid in the public accounts under the authority of a Legislative vote, as well as the extraordinary payments made to the Colonial and Acting Colonial Secretaries during 1859, do not appear in the Bill of Indemnity improperly attached to the Supply Bill now before this House.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 4 o'clock, P. M.

SATURDAY, 5th MAY, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

" NICHOLAS STABB

" ROBERT J. PINSENT

" EDWARD MORRIS

" PATRICK KOUGH

" ROBERT KENT

" PHILIP DUGGAN

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

The following letter from the Honorable Samuel Carson, addressed to the Honorable the President, was read:—

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

May 5th, 1860.

Dear Sir,—I find my health will not again permit my attending the Council, I will feel obliged by your asking leave of absence.

Letter from Hon. S. Carson asking leave of absence.

The Audit Committee not having finished their labours, you may think it desirable to have another in my place.

Truly yours,

SAMUEL CARSON.

Honorable the President.

Whereupon, leave of absence was granted accordingly.

And on motion-

Ordered—That the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, be appointed one of the Committee on the Contingencies of this House, in the place of the Honorable Mr. Carson, for the present Session.

Hon. Mr. Pinsent appointed a member of the Contingency Committee.

Pursuant to notice, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, the House went into Committee of Privilege,—

House went into Committee on Privilege—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported that they had considered the subject of Contingencies with reference to their Sessional Pay as Members, and could see no reason for departing from their former Resolutions recorded in the Journals of this House for 1859, and repeated by Message to the Assembly in 1860. And, also, that the Office now occupied by the Clerk and Master in Chancery, should be held exclusively for the use of that Officer and Members of Council, and that means be taken to have it suitably furnished.

Reported.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill to prevent the Firing of the Woods and Forests of this Colony, and for other purposes, was read a third time and passed,—and,

Firing of Woods and Forests Bill-

Read 3rd time and passed.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same without amendment

Prevention of Nuisances Bill—
Committed.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill sent up entitled "An Act for the Prevention of Nuisances in the towns of St. John's, Harbor Grace, Carbonear, and Brigus,"—

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 4 o'clock, P.M.

MONDAY, 7th MAY, 1860.

There were present

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " PATRICK KOUGH

House adjourned for want of a quorum.

At a quarter to 5 o'clock, the Honorable the President took the Chair and declared the House adjourned, for want of a quorum, until to-morrow at 4 o'clock, P. M.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

TUESDAY, 8th MAY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " ROBERT KENT
- " JOHN ROCHFORT
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT

The Minutes of Saturday and Monday were read.

The Honorable the President, by direction of His Excellency the Governor, laid on the table of the House the following documents, which were severally read:—

Documents laid upon the table.

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

The Governor has received the Legislative Council's Address of the 4th of May, drawing his attention and that of the Executive, to the want of proper regulations and system in the institution called the Penitentiary, of St. John's.

The Governor begs to assure the Legislative Council, that his attention has been directed to the subject in question, which will not be lost sight of by him, nor the Council; but it was only on the 27th of August last that he received an intimation from the Sheriff that he "had removed the prisoners from the temporary prison at Signal Hill to the new gaol."

The Governor thinks the gaol is a more appropriate term for the new institution than penitentiary, and he begs to say that however imperfect the existing rules and regulations may be, they were confirmed and sanctioned by the Legislature of Newfoundland.

He observes, the Council suggests that steps be taken for "ascertaining through some well qualified person, what the most approved system in the United States or elsewhere may be, and that

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

the same be adopted, as nearly as applicable, in the institution above referred to."

Many of the institutions in the United States are admirable, and well worthy of imitation, but there are others that are not so, and the Governor considers it unnecessary to employ any well qualified person to ascertain from the States what he believes can be got at here; for, he received lately from the Secretary of State for the Home Department, a great deal of information relative to the government of the prisons in England and Wales.

Government House, 7th May, 1860.

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

In reply to the Address of the Legislative Council, dated April 26th, requesting that certain returns be laid before the Council relative to Mrs. Donovan, and the date of her imprisonment in the penitentiary, and the authority by which she was subsequently admitted into the lunatic asylum; the Governor has to inform the Council that the Act of the 18th and 19th Victoria, Cap. 7, vested in the Board of Works the superintendance and management of all public buildings belonging to the Colony, but, as the attention of the Governor had been before directed to Mrs. Donovan's case, he has no hesitation in affording the Council the tollowing information:—

On or about the 26th December, the Chief Justice reported that when he was visiting the gaol, an elderly female complained to his Honor that she was lodged in that establishment without having committed any crime. The Chief Justice desired to see her committal, and, finding there was none, and that she was therefore illegally confined, he ordered her to be released, and, holding as he does in this colony, the same powers that are vested in the Lord Chief Justice of the Queen's Bench in England, and the other Judges there, he had an undoubted right to release Mrs. Donovan, and he reported the same to the Governor next day; and this and the other circumstances confirmed the Governor in his opinion that

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

several of the public institutions in this colony should be placed on a different footing to what they are now.

On enquiry the Governor finds that the same female was afterwards sent to the lunatic asylum, where she now is, and was admitted there in accordance with one of the new regulations relative to the asylum, adopted by the Board of Works in the season of last year, and, which were, it seems, sanctioned by the Administrator in October last. It is the Governor's opinion that if Mrs. Donovan committed no crime, she ought not to have been sent to gaol; and, if she is not insane, far less ought she to be an inmate of an institution which is intended for the care and comfort of those who may be affected with insanity.

There is something, however, peculiar in Mrs. Donovan's case. It appears that she is addicted to habitual intoxication, and, the Governor would direct the attention of the Council to the two documents herewith sent, from the Sheriff and Gaoler; by which it would appear that the unfortunate woman had no home to go to, and that she was confined, not by way of punishment, but for protection, which shows the necessity that there is for a Poor House for the reception of such cases as that of Mrs. Donovan.

Government House, 7th May, 1860.

H. M. Gaol, St. John's, 28th April, 1860.

SIR,—In answer to the enquiry instituted by His Excellency the Governor, of this day's date, the receipt of which I have the honor to acknowledge, relative to Mrs. Donovan, I would very respectfully state that the said Mrs. Donovan was brought to this gaol on a cart, as a vagrant, by Richard Grant, one of the police, on the 28th of September last, and remained from that date until the 27th of December, just three calendar months. That she is the same woman that his Honor the Chief Justice authorised me to discharge on the 24th December, which discharge she then declined to accept, but she subsequently changed her mind. That there was no written

First Session, Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

warrant at any time, either tor her imprisonment, or for her detention; this was applied for, or otherwise an authority for her discharge, neither of which was obtained from the Magistrates. The principal reasons assigned for her detention being, that she was not capable of taking care of herself, and that at her advanced age (70 years) it would be an act of cruelty to put her out on the street, as she had neither a home nor protection of any kind which at that season of the year would be more especially necessary, and in addition thereto that she was notorious for her drinking and boisterous propensities.

I have the honor to be, sir,

Your most obedient servant,

(Signed)

RICHARD BRACE.

Gaoler.

J. V. Nugent, Esq., Sheriff, &c., &c., &c.

Sheriff's Office, 30th April, 1860.

SIR,—I have had the honor to receive your note of the 28th inst., requesting me to inform you, for the information of His Excellency the Governor, of the circumstances of the imprisonment of Catherine Donovan, and upon its receipt I transmitted it to the keeper of H. M. Prison for St. John's, whose answer I beg leave to enclose. I have, however, to say that upon more than one occasion during the time passed by her in prison, I assured her she was no prisoner and was at liberty to withdraw whenever she pleased, and as further evidence that she was not regarded as a prisoner, I may as well mention that she was not subjected to the prison dietary.

I have the honor to remain,

Very faithfully, your's,

JOHN V. NUGENT,

Sheriff.

W. J. Coen, Esq., Private Secretary, &c., &c., &c.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

The Honorable the PRESIDENT, laid on the table of the House, a Telegram from W. J. Ward, relative to the visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales.

Telegram relative to the visit of H. R. H. the Prince of Wales, laid on the table.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up the following Bills, together with the following Messages:—

Bills and Messages brought up.

An Act to provide for the Establishment of Steam Packet Communication between St. John's and the Outports of Newfoundland,—and

An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for constructing and repairing Roads, Streets and Bridges within this Colony.

House of Assembly, 7th May, 1860.

MR. PRESIDENT,—

The House of Assembly respectfully request, that the Legislative Council will be pleased to furnish this House with the account of their Contingent Expenses for the present Session.

A. SHEA,

Speaker.

House of Assembly, May 7th, 1860.

MR. PRESIDENT,

The House of Assembly have passed the Bill sent down from the Council, entitled "An Act to provide against the destruction of Sheep and Cattle, and injuries to the person by Dogs," with some amendments, to which they request the consent of the Council.

A. SHEA,

Speaker.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for

Supply Bill— Committed—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

defraying the expenses of the Civil Government of this Colony, for the year ending 31st December, 1860, and for other purposes,"—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported.

The Chairman reported the Bill without Amendment.

Ordered-That the Report be received,-and

Ordered—That the said Bill be read a third time to-morrow.

35th Rule of the House suspended with reference to Bills. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the 35th Rule of this House was suspended with reference to the passing of Bills during the remainder of the session.

House adjourns.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until somorrow, at 4 o'clock, P.M.

WEDNESDAY, 9th MAY, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " JOHN ROCHFORT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " PHILIP DUGGAN

 " JAMES TOBIN
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT

The Minutes of Tuesday last were read.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor:

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill brought up, entitled "An Act for granting to Her Majesty a sum of money for defraying the expenses of the Civil Government of this Colony for the year ending 31st December, 1860, and for other purposes," was read a third time and passed,—and,

Supply Bill—
Read 3rd time and passed.

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same without amendment.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. STABB,-

Ordered—That the following Message be sent to the House of Assembly:—

Council Chamber, 9th May, 1860.

MR. SPEAKER,—

The Legislative Council acquaint the House of Assembly, that considering the lateness of the Session they were unwilling to delay the business of the country by returning the Supply Bill to the Assembly for alteration, but objecting to a Bill of Indemnity being embraced in a Bill af Supply the Council inform the Assembly that in future Bills of Supply must be sent up without any Bill of Indemnity, or other matter attached to them, or the Connoil will feel it to be their duty to refuse their assent to the same.

LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up the following Address for the concurrence of this House:—

To His Excellency Sir ALEXANDER BANNERMAN, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY:

The House of Assembly respectfully beg leave to request, that

First Session, Seventh General Assembly, 23rd Victoria.

your Excellency will be pleased to sanction the continuance of the grant of Fifty Pounds, as voted by the Legislature in the Supply Act of last Session, for a Catholic Commercial School at Bay-de-Verds, and the grant of Sixty Pounds for certain Protestant Commercial Schools, as contained in that Act, and this House will provide therefor.

A. SHEA,

Speaker.

House of Assembly, 8th May, 1860.

Ordered—That the following Message be sent to the House of Assembly, acquainting them that this House had concurred in the toregoing Address.

Council Chamber, May 9th, 1860.

Mr. SPEAKER,-

The Legislative Council acquaint the House of Assembly, that they concur in the Address of the Assembly, of the 8th instant, to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that he may be pleased to sanction the continuance of the grant of Fifty Pounds, as voted by the Legislature in the Supply Act of last Session, for a Catholic Commercial School at Bay-de-Verds, and the grant of Sixty Pounds for certain Protestant Commercial Schools, as contained in that Act.

LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Prevention of Nuisances Bill— Committed. Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act for the prevention of Nuisances in the towns of St. John's, Harbor Grace, Carbonear, and Brigus,"—

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported progress, and asked leave to sit again.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act to amend an Act passed in the Twenty-second year of the Reign of Her present Majesty, Queen Victoria, entitled 'An Act to Incorporate the General Water Company,'"—

General Water Company Incorporation Act Amendment Bill— Committed—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill with some amendments.

Reported with Amend-

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Whereupon, the said Bill was read a third time presently, and passed,—and,

Read 3rd time and

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same with some amendments, and requesting their concurrence thereto.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Stabb, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act for the Protection of the Salmon Fishery of this Colony,"—

Salmon Fishery Protection Bill—
Committed—

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill without amendment

Reported-

The said Bill was then read a third time and passed—and,

Read 3rd time and passed.

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same without amendment.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Kough, the House went into Committee on the Bill en-

Poor Asylum Erection Bill—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Committed-

titled "An Act to authorize the erection of a Poor Asylum, and the raising by Loan of a Sum of Money for that purpose, and for the completion of the Penitentiary,"—

The Honorable Mr. Kent in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported-

The Chairman reported the Bill without Amendment.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Read 3rd time and passed.

The said Bill was then read a third time and passed,—and,

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same without amendment.

Road Bill-

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill entitled "An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for constructing and repairing Roads, Streets and Bridges within this Colony,"—

Read 1st and 2nd time.

Was read a first and second time presently,—and,

Ordered—To be committed to-morrow.

Outport Steam Communication BillPursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill entitled "An Act to provide for the Establishment of Steam Packet Communication between St. John's and the Outports of Newfoundland,"—

Read 1st and 2nd time.

Was read a first and second time, -and,

Ordered—To be committed to-morrow.

Bill for Protection Sheep against DogsOn motion of the Honorable Mr. STABB, the Amendments made by the House of Assembly in and upon the Bill sent down entitled "An Act to provide against the destruction of Sheep and Cattle, and injuries to the person by Dogs,"—

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Were read a first and second time presently,—and,

Read 1st and 2nd time.

Ordered—To be committed to-morrow.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will on tomorrow, ask the Organ of the Government if any negociation is going on with the Agent of the Galway Steam Company, or any other parties, so as to supply Steam Communication to the South and West of this Island, availing of the Subsidy offered by the French Government for the transport of their Mails hence to St. Pierre, with the necessary return Mails.

Notice to ask the Organ of the Government for information respecting Steam Communication to the Outports and St. Pierre.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 3 o'clock, P.M.

House adjourns.

THURSDAY, 10th MAY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

Members present.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President. 66

NICHOLAS STABB

- PATRICK KOUGH
- ROBERT KENT "
- EDWARD MORRIS "
- JAMES TOBIN "
- .. ROBERT J. PINSENT
- 66 PHILIP DUGGAN JOHN ROCHFORT

The Minutes of Wednesday last were read.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act for the prevention of Nuisances in the towns of St. John's, Harbor Grace, Carbonear, and Brigus,"-

Prevention of Nuisances Bill-

Committed-

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Honorable Mr. Kough in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported with amendmentsThe Chairman reported the Bill with some amendments.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

Read 3rd time and passed.

The said Bill was then read a third time and passed-and,

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same with some amendments, and requesting their concurrence thereto.

Road Bill-

Committed-

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for constructing and repairing Roads, Streets and Bridges within this Colony,"—

The Honorable Mr. STABB in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported.

The Chairman reported the Bill without amendment

Ordered—That the Report be received,—and,

Ordered—That the said Bill be read a third time to-morrow.

The Honorable the President read, for the information of the Council, the following letter from the Colonial Secretary:—

Secretary's Office, 10th May, 1860.

SIR,—

I have the honor to acquaint you, by direction of the Governor, that it is His Excellency's intention to close the First Session of the Seventh General Assembly, on Monday next, at 2 o'clock, r.m.

I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your most obedient servant.

Hon, the President.

J. KENT.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the House went into Committee on the Bill entitled "An Act to provide for the establishment of Steam Packet Communication between St. John's and the Outports of Newfoundland,"—

Local Steam Communication Bill— Committed—

The Honorable Mr. Duggan in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported the Bill without amendment.

Ordered-That the Report be received.

The said Bill was then read a third time and passed,—and

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Reported-

Read 3rd time and passed.

Ordered that the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with message that this House had passed the same without amendment.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up the following Message:—

House of Assembly, 10th May, 1860.

MR. PRESIDENT,

The House of Assembly acquaint the Legislative Council, that they concur in the Amendments of the Council in and upon the Bill sent up from the Assembly entitled "An Act to amend an Act passed in the Twenty-second year of the Reign of Her present Majesty entitled, 'An Act to Incorporate the General Water Company.'"

A. SHEA, Speaker.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. STABB, the House went into Committee on the Amendments made by the Assembly in and upon the Bill entitled "An Act to provide for the Protection of Sheep and Cattle, and injuries to the Person by Dogs,"—

Amendments on Protection of Sheep and Cattle Bill—

Committed-

The Honorable Mr. Tobin in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Reported with an Amendment.

The Chairman reported the Amendments with an Amendment.

Ordered—That the Report be received,—and,

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the Amendments with an Amendment, and requesting their concurrence therein.

Address to H.R.H. the Prince of Wales— CommittedPursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. PINSENT, the House went into Committee on the Address to His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales,—

The Honorable Mr. Morris in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

Reported-

The Chairman reported that they had adopted the following Address:—

To His Royal Highness Albert Edward, Prince of Wales, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR ROYAL HIGHNESS :-

The Address.

The Legislative Council of Newfoundland desire to offer to your Royal Highness their sincere and heartfelt congratulations on the safe arrival of your Royal Highness in this ancient and loyal Dependency of the British Crown.

In no portion of the Dominions of our beloved Sovereign can such an auspicious event be hailed with purer or more unfeigned gratification than it is by the inhabitants of Newfoundland, a circumstance calculated to strengthen, if possible, the attachment of Her Majesty's faithful subjects to Her Throne and Royal Person as well as their attachment to your Royal Highness as the eldest son of our beloved Queen and Heir Apparent to the Throne.

The Legislative Council entertain a belief that the visit of your Royal Highness to the British possessions on this side of the Atlantic will prove an event not unaccompanied with pleasure and interest to your Royal Highness, whilst the Council at the same time assure your Royal Highness that the distinguished honor thus conferred on

HISEXCELLENCYSIRALEXANDERBANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

this Island by your presence, however brief the sojourn, will for ever live in the recollection of a grateful and loyal people. And the Council on this occasion beg to manifest their sense of gratitude to Her Majesty for thus graciously favouring the desire of your Royal Highness to visit Her Majesty's North American Possessions.

(Signed) L. O'BRIEN, President.

Ordered—That the Report be received.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Stabb,-

Ordered—That the President of the Council do ascertain from His Excellency the Governor, the usual made of presenting Addresses of such a nature as the foregoing, and inform this House of the same,

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will ask the Organ of the Government why the difference of £818 11s 2d stg., occurs in the Returns made to the Legislature between the Acting Financial Secretary's accounts and those of the Receiver General, under the head of Unexpended Balances, 1858.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin gives notice, that he will move an Address to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, on the subject of compensation to British subjects, &c.

Protest of the Honorable James Tobin :-

May 10th, 1860.

I protest against the vote of this Council, bearing date 9th May, 1860, by which a Bill of Indemnity for expenditures made in 1859, was unconstitutionally tacked to the Bill of Supply for Her Majesty's use for services intended to be performed during the current year of 1860. The Royal Instructions, Section 18, bearing date 14th February, 1857, are explicit in this particular.

JAMES TOBIN.

Entered 10th May, 1860.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 3 o'clock, P. M.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

FRIDAY, 11th MAY, 1860.

House meets.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

PRESENT:

Members Present.

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

- " JAMES TOBIN
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN ROCHFORT
- " ROBERT KENT

The Minutes of Thursday last were read.

Pursuant to the order of the day, and on motion of the Honorable Mr. Morris, the Bill entitled "An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for constructing and repairing Roads, Streets, and Bridges within this Colony," was read a third time and passed,—and

The Honorable the President signed the same.

Ordered—That the said Bill be sent to the House of Assembly with Message, that this House had passed the same without amendment.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin asked the Organ of the Government why the sum of £7015 15s 5d, Legislative Contingencies of 1859, which did not receive the assent of this Council, but is improperly charged as paid in the Public Accounts under the authority of a Legislative vote, as well as the extraordinary payments made to the Colonial Secretary during 1859, do not appear in the Bill of Indemnity improperly attached to the Supply Bill, now before this House.

The Honorable Mr. Morris in reply said, that the Executive considered there was no necessity to indemnify the Governor for Legislative Contingencies which he paid upon his own responsibility; and for the surplus amount paid to the Acting Colonial Secretary, the Government was justified by all former precedent.

Road Bill-

Read 3rd time and passed.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin asked the Organ of the Government if any negociation is going on with the Agent of the Galway Steam Company, or any other parties, so as to supply Steam Communication to the South and West of this Island, availing of the Subsidy offered by the French Government for the transport of their Mails hence to St. Pierre, with the necessary return Mails.

The Honorable Mr. Morris in reply said, the Government would, when authorized by the Legislature, use their best exertions to establish Local Steam Communication, but should wait until the Act just passed had received the assent of the Governor.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin asked the Organ of the Government, why the difference of £818 11s 2d stg. occurs in the Returns made to the Legislature, between the Acting Financial Secretary's Accounts and those of the Receiver General, under the head of Unexpended Balances, 1858.

The Honorable Mr. Morris, in reply said, that the vote for Emigration Encouragement was dropped by the Receiver General in 1858, and subsequently resumed in the Financial Secretary's Statement in 1859, amounting to £792 Os Od; amount of Road Grant under Board of Works for Red Island and Trepassey, unexpended, and which by mistake did not so appear in Statement of 1858, but since paid, £26 11s 2d.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up, for the concurrence of this House, the following Address:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The House of Assembly being desirous to mark their appreciation of the gallant and benevolent conduct of the late Captain Jones, of the Steamer "Hungarian," in saving the lives of the Crew of the Schooner "John Martin," in the month of November last,

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

under circumstances of great danger to himself and crew, most respectfully request that Your Excellency will be pleased to sanction the payment of One Hundred Guineas to his representatives.

A. SHEA,

Speaker.

House of Assembly, 11th May, 1860.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. STABB,-

Ordered—That the following Message be sent to the House of Assembly, acquainting them that this House had concurred in the foregoing Address:—

Council Chamber, 11th May, 1860.

MR. SPEAKER,-

The Legislative Council acquaint the House of Assembly, that they concur in their Address of the 11th inst. to His Excellency the Governor, requesting that His Excellency will be pleased to sanction the payment of One Hundred Guineas to the representatives of the late Captain Jones, of the Steamer "Hungarian," to mark the Assembly's appreciation of his gallant and benevolent conduct in saving the lives of the Crew of the Schooner "John Martin," in the month of November last, under circumstances of great danger to himself and crew.

LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

A deputation from the House of Assembly brought up the following Message:—

House of Assembly, 11th May, 1860.

MR. PRESIDENT,—

The House of Assembly acquaint the Legislative Council, that they have passed, without amendment, the Amendment of the Legislative Council in and upon the amendments of the Assembly upon

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

the Bill sent down from the Council, entitled "An Act to provide against the destruction of Sheep and Cattle, and injuries to the person by Dogs."

The Assembly have also passed, without amendment, the Amendments of the Legislative Council in and upon the Bill sent up from the Assembly, entitled "An Act for the prevention of Nuisances in the towns of St. John's, Harbor Grace, Carbonear, and Brigus."

A. SHEA,

Speaker.

Pursuant to the order of the day, the Honorable Mr. Tobin moved the following Address to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle:

To His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, Her Majesty's Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE Your GRACE,-

The Legislative Council of Newfoundland, in Session convened, respectfully beg leave to request that Her Majesty's Government, will in any arrangement which may be deemed necessary to enter into between the respective Governments of England and France with relation to the fisheries of this Island, favourably consider those rights hitherto so long enjoyed by British subjects located and settled between Cape Ray and Cape John, and that any interruption of such rights which may be determined on may be compensated for from the Imperial Treasury.

Legislative Council.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

Contents.
Hon. Mr. Tobin

Non Contents.
Hon. Mr. Stabb

" " Morris

" Kough
" Pinsent

" Kent

" uggan

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin, from the Select Committee appointed to report on the Contingencies of the Council, for the present Session, makes the following Report:—

Report of Select Committee on Contingencies.

The Select Committee appointed to take into consideration the Contingent Expenses of this House, for the present Session, beg leave to report that they have examined the accounts of the Clerk, amounting to £47 10s stg., and the Usher of the Black Rod's account, amounting to £55 0s 4d, which they recommend to be paid; and the Committee further recommend that the Members and Officers of this House be paid for their services during the present Session, as follows:

The President of the Legislative Council		£200	0	0			
The Clerk		165	0	0			
The Master-in-Chancery		140	0	0			
The Usher of the Black Rod		120	0	0			
The Reporter		125	0	0			
The Doorkeeper		50	0	0			
Ditto for extra services in consequence							
of the death of Doorkeeper		7	10	0			
The Messenger		25	0	0			
Ditto for extra services as above		7	10	0			
J. C. Withers, Printer		231	11	10			
The Proprietor of the Newfoundlander							
for publishing Debates		45	0	0			
Ditto Courier Ditto	• • • •	45	0	0			
Ditto Ledger, copying Ditto	• • • •	30	0	0			
Ditto Times Ditto Ditto	• • • •	30	0	0			
Joseph Woods, balance of last Session							
for printing and binding Journals		106	1	7			
Probable cost of printing and binding							
Journal of present Session	• • • •	200	0	0			
The Clerk, to pay for Stationery, News-							
papers, Telegraphs, &c.	• • • •	45	14	10			
Ten Members (the President not included)							

each £42, provided that in all future sessions

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

2110 001101 01 1110 Diagna 2004 B dilloung	, <u>-</u> • •	£9995	18	- T
The Usher of the Black Rod's amount		55	Ω	1.
The Clerk's amount	• • • •	47	10	0
Majesty's commission as Legislative Council	lor····	100	0	0
to London to maintain the inviolability of				
Honorable James Tobin's expenses ge	oing			
from his sessional pay	• • •	420	0	0
the President, or any Member, absenting him without reasonable cause, shall, for each d absence, forfeit Twenty Shillings, to be deduced	ay's			

Committee Room,

(Signed)

JAMES TOBIN, Chairman.

EDWARD MORRIS, Dissenting from appropriation to Mr. Tobin.

R. J. PINSENT, reserving the question as to the appropriation to Mr. Tobin being properly embraced in Contingencies of the Council.

On motion of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, the House went into Committee of Privilege,—

House went into Committee of Privilege—

The Honorable Mr. Kent in the Chair.

After some time the House resumed.

The Chairman reported that the Committee had passed the Report, with the exception of the appropriation of £100 to Mr. Tobin, which had been expunged.

Reported.

Ordered-That the Report, as amended, be received,-

The Honorable Mr. Kough dissenting, on the ground that Members of the Council ought not to be paid,—and,

Ordered—That the same be engrossed, and sent with Message to the House of Assembly for their concurrence:—

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Council Chamber, 11th May, 1860.

MR. SPEAKER,—

The Legislative Council acquaint the House of Assembly, that they have adopted and passed the accompanying Report on the Contingencies of the Council for the present Session, to which they request the concurrence of the Assembly.

LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

The Honorable Mr. PINSENT moved the following Address to His Excellency the Governor:—

To His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman, Knight, Governor, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY :-

The Legislative Council respectfully inform your Excellency, that they have been applied to by Petition from the Honorable James Tobin, a member of their body, to pass a vote in the Contingent expenses of the Legislative Council, to indemnify him for his expenses incurred in prosecuting his appeal to the Imperial Government upon the question of his suspension as a member of the Legislative Council, and in defending the inviolability of Her Majesty's Commission. The Legislative Council having considered the application of the Honorable gentleman, do not deem the matter one upon which they can take action in the manner referred to, but they would nevertheless respectfully suggest that the case of the Honorable James Tobin, in his capacity as a member of the Legislative Council, comes within the general principle in like cases, that a party is entitled to be borne harmless from expense incurred in successfully defending his rights.

(Signed,) LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Legislative Council, 11th May, 1860.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

Which, upon the question being put, was resolved in the affirmative.

Contents.

Non Contents.

Hon. Mr. Tobin

Hon. Mr. Morris

" " Duggan

" " Kough

" " Pinsent

" Kent

" Stabb

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until tomorrow, at 4 o'clock, P.M.

House adjourns.

SATURDAY, 12th MAY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets:

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

Members present.

- " NICHOLAS STABB
- " PHILIP DUGGAN
- " EDWARD MORRIS
- " ROBERT J. PINSENT
- " ROBERT KENT
- " PATRICK KOUGH
- " JOHN ROCHFORT

The Minutes of Friday last were read.

The Honorable Mr. Morris moved that the Address of this House to His Excellency the Governor, of the 11th inst., in reference to the claim of the Honorable Mr. Tobin, be sent to the House of Assembly for their concurrence.

And, on question being put, was resolved in the negative.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

${\it Contents}.$		Non Contents.			
Hon.	Mr.	Morris	Hon.	Mr.	Tobin
66	"	Kough	• •	66	Duggan
66	"	Kent	66	66	Pinsent
			"	66	Stabb

A députation from the House of Assembly brought up a Bill for the concurrence of this House entitled "An Act to provide for the Contingent expenses of the Legislature," together with the following Message and Resolution:—

House of Assembly, 12th May, 1860.

MR. PRESIDENT,—

The House of Assembly acquaint the Honorable Legislative Council, that they have passed the accompanying Resolution.

Resolved—That the sums contained in the Report of the Legislative Council on Contingencies, for pay to the President and Members of that Honorable Body, cannot be entertained by this House, because such votes were not initiated by the Executive Government and do not form any portion of the recognised contingencies of the Legislative Council.

A. SHEA,

Speaker.

Whereupon, it was moved by the Honorable Mr. Stabb, that the following Message be sent to the House of Assembly:—

Council Chamber, 12th May, 1860.

MR. SPEAKER,—

The Legislative Council acquaint the House of Assembly, that they cannot give their assent to any Contingency Bill sent up by the Assembly, containing a provision for Sessional Pay to the Speaker and Members thereof, unless the Sessional allowance to the Presi-

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

dent and Members of the Council, as contained in their Contingency account sent by the Council to the Assembly, be also introduced.

(Signed,)

LAURENCE O'BRIEN,

President.

Which, on question being put, was resolved in the affirmative, the Honorable Mr. Kough dissenting.

The Honorable Mr. Tobin asked leave to absent himself from this House during the next Session of the Legislature.

Which was granted accordingly.

On motion made and seconded, the House adjourned until Monday next, at 1 o'clock, P.M.

House adjourns.

MONDAY, 14th MAY, 1860.

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

House meets.

PRESENT:

The Honorable LAURENCE O'BRIEN, President.

Members present.

- NICHOLAS STABB
- PATRICK KOUGH
- ROBERT J. PINSENT
- PHILIP DUGGAN
- ROBERT KENT
- JAMES TOBIN EDWARD MORRIS
- " JOHN ROCHFORT

The Minutes of Saturday last were read.

The Honorable the President laid on the table of the House Message from the Govthe following Message:—

ernor laid on the table.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

A. BANNERMAN, Governor.

The Governor received about an hour ago, an Address from the Legislative Council, relating to an application made to them to indemnify one of their number, the Hon. James Tobin, for "expenses incurred by him in prosecuting his appeal to the Imperial Government, upon the question of his suspension as a member of the Legislative Council, and in defending the inviolability of Her Majesty's Commission;" and, the Council respectfully suggest to the Governor, that the case of the Honorable James Tobin, in his capacity as a member of the Legislative Council, comes within the general principle in like cases; and this is signed by the Honorable Laurence O'Brien, President of the Legislative Council.

Under ordinary circumstances, the Governor would have been contented simply to decline acceding to the suggestion of the Legislative Council, but, as this Address has emanated from a Body who, very properly have objected to any of the funds of this Colony being appropriated for any purpose without the sanction of both Houses of the Legislature, he cannot allow the Address to be placed on the records of the Legislative Council without taking some notice of it.

In the first place, the Governor cannot subscribe to the doctrine of the Legislative Council, that Mr. Tobin is entitled "to be borne harmless from expenses incurred in successfully defending his rights;" and the Council have assumed this principle without seeing the grounds on which the Governor suspended Mr. Tobin on the recommendation of the Executive Council, the President of the Legislative Council, Mr. O'Brien, having heartily concurred in that suspension; and, the Honorable Mr. Tobin is well aware, having been informed, that the Governor had the Secretary of State's permission to publish the documents connected with that suspension, including the Secretary of State's opinion, and the honorable gentleman also knows that they would have been published if he had wished it.

The Governor will further state, that Mr. Tobin went to Engand entirely in accordance with his own wishes, having asked leave

HISEXCELLENCYSIRALEXANDERBANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

to go (which was readily granted by the Governor,) and got a written notice of the Colonial Rule applicable to such cases. In place of half salary, he was paid his full salary on his return, and the President of the Legislative Council is well aware that the Honorable gentleman has more than once made the same application for his expenses to the Executive Council, who (including their President) unanmously resolved that his claim should not be acceded to. The Governor has to request that his reply to the Address of the Legislative Council, should appear on their Records.

Government House,

Monday forenoon, 14th May, 1860.

At two o'clock, P. M., His Excellency the Governor having arrived at the Council Chamber and being seated on the Throne, the Gentleman Usher of the Black Rod was ordered to direct the immediate attendance of the House of Assembly at the Bar of this House, and they being come thereto, His Excellency was pleased to give his assent to the following Bills, viz.:—

His Excellency arrives at the Council Chamber and assents to sundry Bills.

An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for Constructing and Repairing Roads, Streets, and Bridges within this Colony.

An Act to amend an Act passed in the Twenty-second Year of the Reign of Her present Majesty Queen Victoria, entitled "An Act to Incorporate the General Water Company."

An Act to Regulate the Trial of Controverted Elections, or Returns of Members to serve in the House of Assembly.

An Act to provide for the Establishment of Steam Packet Communication between St. John's and the Outports of Newfoundland.

An Act for the Prevention of Nuisances in the Towns of St. John's, Harbor Grace, Carbonear and Brigus.

An Act to provide against the Destruction of Sheep and Cattle, and Injuries to the Person by Dogs.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

An Act to prevent the Firing of Woods and Forests of this Colony.

An Act for the Protection of the Salmon Fishery of this Colony, and for other purposes.

An Act to amend an Act passed in the Seventh Year of Her Majesty's Reign, entitled "An Act to make provision for the disposal and sale of ungranted and unoccupied Crown Lands within the Island of Newfoundland and its Dependencies, and for other purposes," and to make provision for granting Mining Licenses, Leases, and Grants of Mineral Lands, and for other purposes.

An Act to provide for the Protection of Property Wrecked on the Coast of Newfoundland.

An Act to authorize the Erection of a Poor Asylum in the Town of St. John's, and the raising by Loan of a Sum of Money for that purpose, and for the completion of the Penitentiary.

An Act for granting to Her Majesty a Sum of Money for defraying the expenses of the Civil Government of the Colony for the Year ending 31st December, 1860, and for other purposes.

After which His Excellency was pleased to deliver the following

SPEECH:

Mr. President, and Honorable Gentlemen of the Legislative Council:

Mr. Speaker, and Gentlemen of the House of Assembly:

After a Session of unusual length, I am happy to relieve you from your Legislative duties, and, I believe, many of you will not be sorry at this season of the year to have an opportunity to devote your time in preparing for the ensuing fishery, which I sincerely hope will be a successful one.

I am, as yet, unaware of the result of the Joint Fishery Commission, not having any communication from Her Majesty's Government since I said, at the opening of the Session, "I was not under

HisExcellency'sSpeech on proroguing theGeneral Assembly.

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

any apprehension but that the rights which our fishermen possess by existing treaties, will be duly cared for," and I am still of the same opinion, although the correspondents of some of the London newspapers have seen fit to take the Newfoundland fishery question under their special protection, and made statements which, it is well known are invented here, sent across the Atlantic to Paris, thence to London, where they appear in the columns of influential journals, which foreign correspondents appear to have access to. It is surprising that these correspondents conceal what they well know, that, by the Treaty of 1713, England was put into possession of Placentia, and all the parts occupied by the French were ceded to Great Britain. This cession was renewed by the 5th Article of the Treaty of Paris in 1763,—and, in 1783 by the Treaty of Versailles, the French king renounced the right of fishing on part of the Eastern Coast of Newfoundland, in lieu of a part of the Western Coast, the exchange and boundaries being distinctly defined in the same Treaty; but, in all the Treaties, namely, 1713, 1763, and 1783, the subjects of France were allowed to catch fish, and to dry them on land, under certain conditions and stipulations; and, the whole question now to be settled is, whether France has a concurrent, or an exclusive right to catch fish on what is called the "French Shore," and this question I think would not be a difficult one if the honest and bona fide proposition made by the Governments of England and France to settle it was fairly dealt with, and the Joint Commission not (for political and worse purposes) held up as it has been, to be a mere juggle.

You are aware that the gallant and respected Admiral, Sir Houston Stewart, recently struck his flag at Bermuda, and has been succeeded by Sir Alexander Milne, K.C.B., who is now Commander-in-Chief of the North American and West India Station. Sir Alexander is no stranger to Newfoundland, having some years ago commanded H. M. S. "Crocodile," for the protection of the fisheries on this Coast, and you will find among the Records of your Journals an excellent Report from that very able officer. I had a despatch from Sir Alexander dated "Bermuda, 15th March," assuring me of his cordial co-operation in all matters connected with the protection and prosperity of Newfoundland.

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

Mr. Speaker, and Gentlemen of the House of Assembly:

In the name of Her Majesty I have to thank you for the supplier which you have voted for the Public Service of the Colony; but, while expressing these acknowledgments for the Supply I cannot help noticing, in looking at the statements of the probable amount of Revenue and Expenditure laid before you, that I imagine you will find at the end of the year you have voted a larger amount than the Revenue will produce. I also observe that you have passed a Bill for £5,000 for erecting a new Asylum for the Poor, which, of course, is an addition to the £175,000, the amount of debt due by the Colony. I am not apprehensive about the present state of your Financial Affairs, but it is my duty to warn you to avoid getting this Colony into pecuniary difficulties. Our Revenue is derived from the taxes raised from those who prosecute the fisheries, and experience proves that fisheries are precarious, and bad seasons might place the great bulk of the population of this Colony in a position which would prevent them from consuming many taxable articles which they are enabled to purchase in prosperous, or even average years of success.

There are two or three local Acts passed within the last few years, which I think require amendment; these are under the consideration of the Executive Council—and also, a revision of the system of Finance. These subjects will be brought under the consideration of the Legislature early next session.

Mr. President, and Honorable Gentlemen of the Legislative Council:

Mr. Speaker, and Gentlemen of the House of Assembly:

Last year I was instructed to call your attention to the defences of the Colony, and I have forwarded to Her Majesty's Government the joint Address which was adopted by you relative to that subject.

At the opening of the Session I was enabled to inform you that several meetings had been held on the subject of raising Rifle Corps, and I am happy to say, that five Companies have been organized in St. John's. Some of them, through the kindness of Major Grant,

HIS EXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

the Commandant of the Garrison here, are pretty far advanced in their drill, their instructors being men belonging to the Royal Newfoundland Companies.

I find that such auxiliaries in aid of Her Majesty's Regular Forces are not new in Newfoundland,—for in the month of February 1808, a meeting of the inhabitants was held in the Court House of St. John's, and such was the spirit that prevailed here at that time, that a respectable Volunteer Militia was immediately raised; and a gentleman has been further kind enough to show me the Muster-Roll of Captain Lilly's Company of Volunteers; it is dated the 19th October, 1812,—and the Company consisted of fifty men (exclusive of officers and non-commissioned officers,) all of whom had taken the oath of allegiance.

At that period the population of St. John's did not exceed 13,000, many of them summer residents;—there is now I believe a permanent population in St. John's amounting to nearly 30,000, and I trust that the spirit of loyalty which prevailed in olden times, continues to exist in this Colony.

I observed in a Canada Gazette, the other day, a general order of His Excellency the Governor General, thanking the Commandant of a volunteer force and all his officers and men, for their alacrity, forbearance and steadiness in maintaining the peace of the city of Montreal while acting in aid of the civil power, during the municipal Election, which lasted five successive days.

The Earl of Mulgrave informs me that 2,300 Volunteers have been organized in Nova Scotia, and his Lordship expects that next year the force will amount to 3,000. A temporary Act has been passed in the Legislature vesting in his Lordship directionary powers, and the Colony will contribute towards necessary and indispensable expenses, but nothing for uniforms, which are paid for by the volunteers themselves. I have not asked for legislation this session, but

FIRST SESSION, SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, 23rd VICTORIA.

some will be required hereafter, and volunteers ought to be made aware of the duties which they will have to perform.

I have now to congratulate you on the prospect of a visit to this Colony by His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales. It was most gratifying to me that, when I had the satisfaction to announce the probability of our seeing the illustrious Prince, you did not lose a moment in expressing the heartfelt pleasure which you all experienced, and which is participated in by every one of Her Majesty's subjects; and you enabled me by return of post to communicate to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle the warm reception which the Prince of Wales will meet with on his landing in St. John's; and, I am confident, the Duke of Newcastle would not fail to communicate to our Gracious Sovereign and her illustrious Consort your thankfulness for the anticipated honor.

On this occasion I beg leave also to thank both branches of the Legislature for their ready acquiescence in placing at the disposal of the Governor and Council such a sum as may be found necessary to defray the expense of those outward demonstrations of respect which, I am sure, every one will be desirous to show to the Prince on his landing here. It was never intended that His Royal Highness should leave England until after the 10th of July. In all probability I shall be further informed on arrival of next mail, when a public meeting of the inhabitants will be called, and, as there is but one feeling on the subject, I am sure all parties will unite in determining on such measures as ought to be adopted on this auspicious occasion.

I was only informed a short time before I entered the Council room that the Civil Contingencies' Bill has not received the assent of both branches of the Legislature, for the same reasons, as I understand, which occurred (and at the very same time,) at the termination of last Session;—it will consequently fall to the ground; and I have only to say, if inconvenience shall now arise from the loss of the Bill, the responsibility of that inconvenience does not rest with me.

HISEXCELLENCY SIRALEXANDER BANNERMAN, KNIGHT, Governor.

I shall not trespass longer on your time, and will wish you, collectively and individually, every prosperity.

The Honorable the President then said:—It is His Excellency the Governor's will and pleasure, that this General Assembly be prorogued to Friday, the 10th day of August next, to be then and here holden, and this General Assembly stands prorogued accordingly.

The General Assembly prorogued.

APPENDIX

TO THE

JOURNAL

OF THE

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.

APPENDIX.

.

APPENDIX, No. 1.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Of the Affairs of the Colony of Newfoundland, for the year 1860.

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURE FOR 1860.

GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS.

The Governor		£2080	0	0	•		
Private Secretary		200	0	0			
Gate Keeper, Government Lodge	• • • •	60	0	0			
					2340	0	0
COLONIAL SEC	RETARY	's off	IC	E.			
The Colonial Secretary		500	0	0			
First Clerk		200	0	0			
Second Clerk		100	0	0			
Office Keeper	• • • •	60	0	0			
Messenger	••••	60	0	0	920	0	0
RECEIVER GE	NERAL'S	s offi	CE	• •			
TREASURY	DEPARTM	ENT.					
The Receiver General	• • • •	500	0	0			
Clerk		200	0	0	700	0	0
CUSTOMS'	DEPART	MENT.					
The Assistant Collector	• • • •	300	0	0			
Landing and Tide Surveyor		250	0	0			
Two Landing Waiters		400	0	0			

200 0 0

First Clerk and Warehouse Keeper

Second Clerk		£150	0	0			
Third Clerk		150	0	0			٠
Fourth Clerk		150	0	0			
Locker		80	0	0			
Tide Waiters and Boat Men		1500	0	0			
Crew of Night Boat	• • • •	300	0	0			
Board of Revenue, to Unofficial Mem	bers	5 0	0	0			
House Keeper		40	0	0			
Incidental Expenses	• • • •	150	0	0	3720	0	0
SUB-COL	LECTORS.						
Harbor Grace, £160, Trinity, 150		310	0	0			
LaPoile, 135, Carbonear, 125	• • • •	260	0	0			
Greenspond, 125, Lamaline, 100		225	0	0			
Gaultois, 100, Brigus, 100	• • • •	200	0	0		•	
Placentia, 100, Burin, 100	• • • •	200	0	0			
Harbor Briton, 100	• • • •	100	0	0	1420	0	0
PREVENTIV	E OFFICE	RS.					
Bay Bulls, £50, Ferryland, 50		100	0	0			
Burgeo, 50, Bay-de-North, 50	• • • •	100	0	0			
Twillingate, 50, Channell, 50	• • • •	100	0	0			
Oderin, 50, Little Placentia, 50	• • • •	100	0	0			
St. Mary's, 50, St. Laurence, 50	• • • •	100	0	0			
Bellorum, 50, Bay Roberts, 50	• • • •	100	0	0			
La Manche, 50	• • • •	50	0	0			
Per Centage on Duties to Outport Of	ficers	500	0	0	1150	0	0
FINANCIAL SECR	RETARY	's off	'IC	E.			
The Financial Secretary	• • • •	300	0	0			
Clerk	• • • •	100	0	0	400	0	0
BOARD O	F WOR	KS.					
The Surveyor General	• • • •	400	0	0			
Secretary		200	0	0			
Civil Engineer	• • • •	150	0	0			
Superintendent Public Buildings		150	0	0	900	0	0

CROWN L	ANDS A	CT.					
Superintendent Government House		£50	0	0			
Chainman		40	0	0			
Repairs Government House		400	0	0			
Fencing Grounds		190	0	0			
Gardiner's Cottage		210	0	0			
Guard Room	• • • •	120	0	0			
Deputy Surveyors and Incidentals		200	0	0			
Pension to Mrs. Westcott		30	0	0	1240	0	0
COLONIAL	BUILDI	NG.					
The Keeper		60	0	0			
Ordinary Repairs		100	0	0			
Fuel and Light	• • • •	200	0	0	360	0	0
LUNATIO	ASYLU	M.					
Repairs, &c.	• • • •				540	0	0
ST. JOHN'S	HOSPI'	TAL.					
Repairs, &c.					400	0	0
CUSTOM	I HOUSI	Z. `		,			
Fuel and Light, &c.	• • • •				100	0	0
COURT HOUSE	S AND	GAOLS	₹.				
New Gaol, for Arrears of Contract	••••	430	0	0			
St. John's Court House		5 00	0	0			
Outport Court Houses and Gaols		400	0	0			
Supplies of Court Houses and Gaols	• • • •	1000	0	0	2330	0	0
MISCELLANEOUS IN AI	D OF ES	TABLI	SH	IME	NTS.		
Expenditure under Street Act		1000	0	0			
Printing and Stationery	• • • •	1000	0	0		•	
Postage and Incidentals		100		. 0	•		
Insurance on Public Buildings		300	0	0			
Fuel and Light, Government House		200	0	0			
Unforescen Contingencies		500	0	0	3100	0	0
-							

JUDICIAL DI	- EPART	MENT.					
The Chief Justice	.,	£1248	Q	Ö			
Two Puisne Judges		1300	0	0			
The Attorney General	• • • •	<i>5</i> 00	0	0			
The Solicitor General		200	0	0			
Sheriff Central District, 300, Bailiff, 5	0	350	0	0			•
Sheriff Northern District	• • • •	300	0	0			
Sheriff Southern District	• • • •	200	0	Q			
ChiefClerk&RegistrarS.C.350, Clerk8), Stat'ei	y20 450	0	0			
Chief Clerk & Registrar Northern Circ	cuit Cou	rt 200	0	0			
Chief Clerk & Registrar Southern Circ	cuit Cou	rt 200	0	0			
Crier and Tipstaff, St. John's	,	60	0	0			
Crier and Tipstaff, Harbor Grace	• • • •	20	0	0			
MISCELL	ANEOUS.						
Crown Prosecutions	••••	300	0	0			
Coroners	• • • •	200	0	0			
Circuits of Judges	• • • •	600	0	0	6128	0	0
POLICE DE	PARTM	ENT.					
Chief Magistrate		350	0	0			
2nd Magistrate	• • • •	300	0	0			
Clerk of the Peace		220	0	0			
Inspector	• • • •	100	0	0			
Sergeants	• • • •	140	0	0			
Constables 15, at £55, £825, Clothing,	£250	1075	0	0			
Gaoler 150, Turnkey 44, Assistants	85	279	0	0			
Keeper of Court House, St. John's		55	0	0			
Keeper of Court House, Harbor Grac	e	10	0	0			
OUTP	orts.						
Stipendiary Magistrates, Clerks of the stables, Gaolers, as per Detailed			0	0	6813	Q	0
EDUCA	ATION.						
Expenditure under Education Act		11875	0	0			
Expenditure under Academy Act	••••	1750	0	0	13625	Q	0

FERI	RIES.						
Amount for that Service	••••				£307	0	0
RELIEF OF	THE PO	OR.					
The Commissioner	• • •	250	0	0			
District Surgeons, St. John's	• • • •	200	0	0			
Gaol Surgeon, St. John's	• • •	40	0	0			
District Surgeon, Conception Bay	• • • •	100	0	0			
Gaol Surgeon, Conception Bay		30	0	O			
Physician, Lunatic Asylum	• • • •	300	0	0			
Medical Attendance, St. John's Hospit	al ····	250	0	0			
MISCELL	ANEOUS.		٠				
Permanent and CasualPoor, St.John's a	nd Outpo	rts7000	0	0			
Servants and Paupers, Lunatic Asylum	3000	0	0				
Servants and Paupers, St. John's Hospital 1700				0	12870	0	0
POST OFFICE	DEPAR	TMEN	Т.				
The Post Master General		275	0	0	-		
Chief Clerk		130	0	0			
Assistant		50	0	0			
Messenger and Assistant		60	0	0			
Assorters		60	0	0			
Post Masters and Way Masters		350	0	0			
Conveying Mails		1575	0	0			
Incidentals	• • • •	100	0	0	2600	0	0
PENS	IONS.						
James Crowdy, late Colonial Secretary	7	400	0	0			*: <u>*</u> .
Edward M. Archibald, late Attorney G		350	0	0			
Joseph Noad, Surveyor General		285	0	0			
Hugh A. Emerson, Solicitor General		90	0	0			
Benjamin G. Garrett, late Sheriff		275	0	0			
Augustus W. DesBarres, late Assistan	t Judge	286	0	0			
James Simms, late Assistant Judge	• • • •	286	0	0			
Christopher Ayre, late Clerk C. S. Offi	ce	175	0	0	2147	0	0

MISCELLANEO	US GEN	ERAL	۱.				
Men Stationed at Fort Amherst	• • • •	£36	10	0			
Duties on Wines, Military Mess		50	0	0			
St. John's Gas Company		226	0	0			
Harbor Grace Gas Company		75	0	0			
St. John's Water Company		100	0	0			
Shipwrecked Crews	• • • •	200	0	0	•		
Dorcas Society, St. John's, 50, Harbor							
Grace, 25, Carbonear, 25		100	0	0			
Mechanics' Institute		50	0	0			
Factory	• • •	100	0	0			
Orphan Asylum, Industrial Department	• • • •	50	0	0			
Agricultural Society		<i>25</i> 0	0	0			
Allowance to Robert Smith, 10, Patrick	Burk 10	20	0	0			
Keeper Half-way House, Salmonier		35	0	0			
Phænix Fire Company	• • • •	100	0	0			
Cathedral Fire Company, (arrears 130)	• • •	230	0	0			
Pumps and Tanks	• • • •	350	0	0			
General Repairs Roads and Bridges	• • •	<i>35</i> 0	0	0	•		
St. John's Almanac, 25, Reading Room	n, 25	50	0	0	2,372	10	Ø
Conception Bay Steam Packet Company	y · · · ·	750	0	0			
Protection of Fisheries		1000	0	0			
Local Steam Service		2500	0	0			
Direct Steam		9000	0	0	13250	0	0
INTEREST ON	PUBLIC	DEB	T.				
Amount of Public Debt, £175,816 7	4						
Interest payable half-yearly					9,600	0	0
CHAITE					•		
	G FUND) .					
2 per cent. on £93,288 10 7, Consolida	ited Stock				1,865	15	5
ROAD	GRANT.						
Estimated Amount for that Service	• • • •				8,000	0	0
LEGISLATIVE C	ONTING	ENCI	ES				
Estimated Amount of Expenditure					7,000	0	0
Balance in favour of the Colony					269		8
•				-			

£106,467 6 1

			ASSETS.						
Balance from 1859			• • • • • •				£8467	6	1
Customs Revenue, est	imated	at	• • • •	95000	0	0			
Crown Lands	6 6	66		900	0	0			
Licenses, Fines, Fees, &	٠٠٠	66	• • • •	1500	0	0			
Postal Revenue	66	66		600	0	0	98000	0	0
							£106,467	6	1

THOMAS GLEN,

Receiver General.

LIGHT HOUSES.

Estimated Expenditure for 1860.

Balance from 1859	• • • •				£3231	19	9
Inspector	• • • •	200	0	0			
Fort Amherst Keeper, £80,	Assistant, 30	110	0	0			
Harbor Grace Island Keeper	• • • •	105	0	0			
Ditto Assistant	••••	70	0	0			
Cape Spear Keeper	••••	100	0	0			
Ditto Assistant	• • • •	70	0	\mathbf{o}			
Cape Bonavista Keeper	• • • •	100	0	0			
Ditto Assistant	• • • •	70	0	0			
Green Island Keeper	••••	100	0	0			
Ditto Assistant	• • • •	70	0	0			
Offer Wadham Keeper		100	0	0			
Ditto Assistant		70	0	0			
Cape Pine Keeper		100	0	0			
Ditto Assistant		70	0	0			
Dodding Head Keeper		100	0	0			
Ditto Assistant		70	0	0			
Bacalieu Keeper		100	0	0			
Ditto Assistant	• • • •	70	0	0			
Cape St. Mary's Keeper		100	0	0			
Ditto Assistant	• • • •	70	0	0			
Harbor Grace Beacon	• • • •	40	0	0	1885	0	0
Oil, Fuel, Stores, Repairs, &					2468	3	4
		•		•	£7,585	3	I
		•				_	

ASSETS.

Estimated Amount of Light Dues for	1860 · •	6000	0	0			
Balance against Light Houses	• • • •	1585	3	1	£7,585	3	1

THOMAS GLEN,
Receiver General.

APPENDIX, No. 2.

ESTIMATE

For paying part of the Public Expenditure of Newfoundland for the year 1860.

MISCELLANEOUS SALARIES.

The Private Secretary to the Governor		£200	0	0			
First Clerk, Colonial Secretary's Office		200	0	0			
Second Clerk, ditto		100	0	0			
Clerk, Receiver General's Office		200	0	0			
Clerk, Financial Secretary's Office		100	0	0			
Civil Engineer, Surveyor General's Offic	ce· · ·	150	0	0			
Superintendant Public Buildings		150	0	0			
Keeper Colonial Building		60	0	0			
Office Keeper, Colonial Secretary's Office	ce····	60	0	0			
Messenger, ditto		60	0	0			
Keeper Half Way House, Salmonier		35	0	0			
Gate Keeper, Government Lodge	• • • •	60	0	0	1375	0	.0
THE JUDICIAL	DEPAI	RTMEN	T.				
Chief Clerk and Registrar S. & C. C	ourts,	•					
including Stationery	• • • •	370	0	0			,
Clerk		80	0	0			
Chief Clerk and Registrar, Northern C	Circuit				·		
Court		200	0	0			
Chief Clerk and Registrar, Southern C	Circuit						
Court	• • • •	200	0	0			
Sheriff's Bailiff	• • • •	50	0	0			
Crier and Tipstaff, St. John's		60	0	0			
Crier and Tipstaff, Harbor Grace		20	0	0			
MISCELLA	ANEOUS.	•					
Crown Prosecutions		300	0	0			
Coroners	• • • •	200	0	0			
Circuits of Judges		600	0	0	2080	0	3

THE POLICE DEPARTMENT.			
The Chief Magistrate 350, 2nd Magistrate 300 £650 0 0			
Clerk of the Peace 220 0 0			
Inspector 100, Two Sergeants 140 240 0 0			
Constables 15, at £55, £825, Clothing, St.			
John's and Harbor Grace, 250 ···· 1075 0 0			
Gaoler 150, Turnkey 44, Assistant 35 · · · · 279 0 0			
Keeper Court House, St. John's 55, Harbor			
Grace 10 65 0 0			
OUTPORTS.			
Stipendiary Magistrates, Clerks of the Peace,			
Constables, Gaolers, &c., as per de-			
tailed statement \cdots 4284 0 0 68	13	0	0
RELIEF OF THE POOR.			
District Surgeons, St. John's 200 0 0			
Gaol Surgeon ditto ···· 40 0 0			
District Surgeon, Conception Bay 100 0 0			•
Gaol Surgeon, ditto 30 0 0			*
Physician Lunatic Asylum 300 0 0			
Medical Attendance, St. John's Hospital 250 0 0			
MISCELLANEOUS.			
Permanent and Casual Poor, St. John's and			
Outports 7250 0 0			
Servants and Paupers, Lunatic Asylum 3000 0 0			
Servants and Paupers, St. John's Hospital · 1700 0 0 128	70	0	0
PUBLIC BUILDINGS.			
The Colonial Building, ordinary repairs 100 0 0			
2 1101 1101 1101	00	0	0
2110 C 0010 m 210 m 2, m 2 m 2	00	0	0
Zilo Zidildio Zzojidili, zvojidila, os o	40	0	0
The St. John's Hospital, Repairs, &c	00	0	0

COURT HOUSE		GAOL	s.				
Penitentiary Outstanding Contracts	· · · · ·	£430	0	.0			
St. John's Court House		500	0	0			
Outport Court Houses and Gaols		400		0			
Supplies, Court House and Gaols	• • • •	1000	0	0	2330	0	0
FERI	RIES.				***		•
Great Placentia 30, Salmonier 25		55	0	0			
Malbay 12, Colinet 25		37		Ŏ			
Portugal Cove 25, Trinity 30		55 55					
Topsail 25, Harbor Grace 30	• • • •	5 5		ŏ			
Holyrood 30, Little Placentia 10		40		0			
Burin to Mud Cove 25, Aquafort 15		40		0			
Mortier Bay		25	0	ŏ	307	0	0
MISCELLANEOUS IN AID	OF E	ESTABI	ISI	HM	ENTS.		
Carrying out, Crown Lands' Act		200	0	0			
Printing and Stationery		1000		0			
Postages and Incidentals		100	0	0			
Insurance on Public Buildings		300	0	0			
Fuel and Light, Government House		200	0	0			
Unforeseen Contingencies		500	0	0	2300	0	0
MISCELLANEO	US GE	ENERAI	4 •				
Men Stationed at Fort Amherst	• • • •	36	10	0			
Duties on Wine, Military Mess		5 0	0	0			
St. John's Gas Company	• • • •	226	0	0			
Harbor Grace Gas Company	• • • •	75	0	0			
St. John's Water Company		100	0	0			
Shipwrecked Sealing Crews	• • • •	200	0	0			
Dorcas Society, St. John's	• • • •	50	0	0			
Ditto Harbor Grace	• • • •	25	0	0			
Ditto Carbonear		25	0	0			
Mechanics' Institute	• • • •	50	0	0			
Factory	• • • •	100	0	0			
Orphan Asylum, Industrial Department		50	0	0	-		
Agricultural Society	• • • •	250	0	0			
Allowance to Robert Smith, 10, Patrick	k Burke	, 10 20	0	0			

194

$\mathcal{A}PPENDIX$, No. 2.

Phenix Fire Company		100	0	0			
Cathedral Fire Brigade, (arrears £130)		230	0	0			
Pumps and Tanks		350	0	0			
General Repairs Roads and Bridges		350	0	0	•		
Reading Room		25	0	0			
St. John's Almanac		25	0	0			
Repairing Town Clock		15	0	0			
Repairing School House, Carbonear	• • • •	100	0	0	2452	10	0
Protection of Fisheries		1000	0	0			
Conception Bay Steam Packet Company	• • • •	750	0	0			
Direct Steam		9000	0	0			
Local Steam Service		2500	0	0	13250	0	0
					£45,117	10	0

THOMAS GLEN,
Receiver General.

DETAILED STATEMENT

Of Salaries to Stipendiary Magistrates, Clerks of the Peace, Constables and Gaolers in the undermentioned Outports, for the year 1860.

Outports.	Magis- trates.	Clerks of the	i	stables.	Gaolers	Total.
		Peace.	No.	Salary.		
Petty Harbor			1	20		20
Torbay			i	. 20		20
Portugal Cove			î	20	1	20
South Shore			î	12		12
Harbor Maine			î	20		20
Cat's Cove			ī	20		$\tilde{2}0$
Brigus and Port-de-Grave .	. 150	60	3	70	10	290
Bay Roberts			1	25		25
Harbor Grace	. 200	150	7	355	90	795
Carbonear	. 150	90	4	140		380
Bay-de-Verds			1	12		12
Island Cove—(Upper)			ĺ	12		12
Western Bay			ī	12		12
Hant's Harbor			1	12		12
Perlican	150		ī	20	•	170
Heart's Content			ī	12		12
Trinity	. 150	60	2	37	25	272
New Harbor	•		ĩ	12		12
Catalina			1	25		25
Bonavista	. 150	60	1	25	20	255
Tickle Cove · · ·			ī	12		12
King's Cove			1	20		20
Salvage · · ·			1	12		12
Greenspond	•		. 1	25		25
Twillingate and Fogo	. 150	60	3	49	20	279
Exploit's Bay			1	12	~	12
Bay Bulls · · ·	. 100		1	25		125
Witless Bay	•		1	12		12
Toad's Cove · · ·	.`		i	12		12
Brigus—South			1	12	,	12
Cape Broyle · · ·			1	12		12
Caplin Bay · · ·			1	12		12
Ferryland	. 150		ĩ	25	25	200
Aquaforte · · ·	•		ī	12		12
Fermews	.		ĩ	12		12
Reneuse · · ·	.	ĺ	1	12		12
St. Mary's	. 50	ļ	î i	25	-	$\tilde{75}$

DETAILED STATEMENT

Of Salaries to Stipendiary Magistrates, Clerks of the Peace, Constables and Gaolers in the undermentioned Outports, for the year 1860.—
(Continued.)

Outports.		Magis-	Clerks of the	Cons	stables.	Gaolers	Total
		1440400	Peace.		Salary		
Placentia	•	130		1	25	25	180
Little Placentia	• • • •			1	20		20
Oderin	• • • •		į	1	12		12
Merasheen				1	12		12
Burin		150	60	1	25	25	260
St. Lawrence				1	12		12
Lamaline	• • •	150		1	12	l I	162
Grand Bank		130		1	12		142
Jersey Harbor	• • •	1	1	1	12	l	12
Harbor Briton		100	35	1	25		160
Burgeo Islands			!	1	12	1	12
Hermitage Bay	• • • •			1	12	1	12
Spaniard's Bay	• • • •			1	12	1	12
Channell				1	12	Į.	12
Bird Island Cove	• • • •			1	12		12
		£2060	£575	66	£1409	£240	£4284

RECAPITULATION.

14	Magistrates	 • • •	£2060	0	0
\mathbf{s}	Clerks of Peace	 • • •	575	. 0	0
66	Constables	 ••••	1409	0	0
8	Gaolers	 • • •	240	0	0
			£4,284	0	0

APPENDIX, No. 3.

STATEMENT

Of the Assets and Liabilities of the Colony of Newfoundland to the 31st December, 1859.

ASSETS.

			£	3.	ď.
Cash in Union Bank	• • • •		8711	1	10
Customs Bonds Outstanding	• • • •		27290	2	3
Balance due by General Light F	louse Account		3231	19	9
Ditto Cape Race	••••		60	2	1
			£39,293	5	11
LI	ABILITIES.				
Outstanding Warrants	• • • •		16417	12	0
Outstanding Interest	• • • •		5 063	10	8
Treasury Notes in Circulation	••••		77	2	8
			21558	5	4.
Unpaid Debentures		• • • •	1202	10	0
Unexpended Grants	• • • •	• • • •	8065	4	6
			30,825	19	10
Balance in favor of the Colony	• • • •		8467	6	1
			£39,293	5	11

THOMAS GLEN, Receiver General.

Control Apolit Age Control Apolit Apol	APPENDIX, No. 4.				ts o			Secretary of N			or	the year	185	59. ———
Section Calculation Calc	ernor's Warrant, for the year of	by the Governding	Unexper	ded	•	Votes,	i ve {		Balanc	es,	_			
Company Comp	Civil and Criminal Prosecutions									. .		118	3	7
Second	Crown Lands Act—(carrying out)		ļ.						171	5				
## State Sta						600	0 0	670 7 8			- [7	8
County C								164 I O			1		_	_
Section Production Academy 1850 180	Court Flouses and Gaols—(Ordinary E				}							115	12	Ł
Addresser Rouse of Assembly, 1866 Printing of Topic, Coloring Publisher Find and Topic, Coloring Pub			300	O	o	TETAS I	3 0	300 O O			ļ			
Section Colonial Patitions Section Sec	Addresses House of Assembly, 1859													
Fine Light and Repairs, Consent House Sign 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3					_	200	$\overline{\mathbf{o}}$	183 J 7			5			
Comparison of Flatcher Comparison Comparison of Flatcher Comparison of Flatcher Comparison Comparison of Flatcher Comparison Comparison of Flatcher Comparison Comparison of Flatcher Comparis	Fuel, Light, and Repairs, Custom Ho													
Temperatury on Philis Buildings Special 12						600	o o	767 3 4					3	
Section Proceedings Section	Insurance on Public Buildings							8844 15 3			1	(34,3	***	ж.
Manual Statistical Control Ford Amboest		· ·			-	458	8 3	458 8 3			1	517	7.7	10
Control Magnetistics Good Assistants G			9	2	6			36 10 0	. 9	2	6	31.		
Section and Assessments	Outport Magistrates				ĺ									
Section Sect			-		1	581 1	O O	<i>5</i> 81 10 0						
### ### ### ### ### ### ### ### ### ##	Outport Constables		•		j						1			
Posting County Post						800	\mathbf{o}	1137 2 9	51			337	2	. ₹
Position Department	Postages and Incidentals		į		ļ				31		<u> </u>		2	
Employed Ships of Children and Registration of Voters See 16 S			}		ŀ	2600	o o	2963 16 10		ø -	_	363	16	10
Selection Expressed, South Engineering Selection	Pumps and Tanks		! \$		ļ			•	ı	ا تتق	-			_
Sign Cream Sign					1	655	0 0	758 1 4	,				T	
Himpituit Prince Collected 103 104 19 20 100 0	Shipwrecked Crews		588	16	4					9	\mathbf{o}	200	•	-
Second and Bridges Fogo, 16th Vic. 104 19 1000 0 0 104 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10					_	208	8 2	1	75	ø				
Road and Miniges. Forc. 18th Vic. 104 19 S 114 7 0 0 114 19 3 114 19 5 114 1					ļ									
Relation of Principal Officers Superior Superior Superior Principal Officers Superior Principal Officers Superior	Roads and Bridges. Fogo. 16th Vic.													
Salarios of Principal Officers 1960 19	Roads and Bridges, Fortune Bay, 16		15	A. E.	-5 }	2147	o o	2147 0 0	1					
Separal Writer, Oliver's Clave Separal Sep	Salaries of Principal Officers		1											
General Repulse of Reads and Reidges 750 0 0 0 720	Fuel and Light, Government House Break Water, Oliver's Cove		i		1			25 0 0						
Conception 187 Steam Company 108 18 2	General Repairs of Roads and Bridge		750							O				
## Spile Vic. ## 22nd Vic. ## 2	Conception Bay Steam Company Road Act. 19th Vic.		106	18	2		• •	SI S O	25					•
1.	20th Vic.					-				146 3	LO			
Repaire Colonial Building	2.50 7.0.		1 1.50	34,20	~	14766	σ σ	12529 0 7	1 2230					
Tury Act Logislative Library 25 10 25 10 25 10 25 10 25 10 25 10 25 10 25 10 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 2	Repairs Colonial Building					300	o o		1	· ·	2			
Logislative Library Misscellaneous 2681 12 10 268			2203	119	4	15	8 4	15 8 4	.)			G.	67	
Decease Society, St. John's	Legislative Library		}		Ę.	96 81 1	19 10						3	I I
Carbonoar Street Aat, (Cash) Decas Society, Cathonoar	Bupply Act, 1859, (Miscellaneous) Dorcas Society, St. John's		}		ļ	- 5 O	\mathbf{o} \mathbf{o}	50 0 0	•i					
Direct Society, Carbonear 25 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Carbonear Street Act, (Cash)		95	O						O	o			
Direct Steam 1672 15 3 7000 0 0 20 11 11 11 12 13 14 14 15 15 15 15 15 15					1	25	o o	50 0 0	•		- 1	347	18	10
Emigration Encouragement 792 0 0 20 0 0 20 12 4 731 6 8			1672	15	3				·			O.D.	10	
Improvement of Quidi Vidi Gut	Emigration Encouragement				•	90		•	1	6	8			
Local Steam County Count	Address H. Assembly, 1855 Improvement of Quidi Vidi Gut		1200	O	O	20	0 0			15				
Separation 1836 Separation Separatio	Local Steam			_		2500	o o			_				
Breakwater, Grand Bank 190 0 0 60 0 0 60 0 0 120 19 5	Breakwater, Point Verd Supply Act. 1858		3	U	J.	3 6 1	10 0		}	-	- 1			
Breakwater, Toad's Love 100 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 100 0 0 0	Breakwater, Grand Bank							69 0 3						
Breakwater, Garnish 100 0 0 100 0 0 150 0 0 150 0 0 0 150 0 0 0 150	Breakwater, Road's Cove Breakwater, Great Placentia		i		_	60	\mathbf{o}		• -		į.			
Breakwater, Bennvista	Breakwater, Garnish													
Improvement, Placentia Gut 150 0 0			300	O	O			950 0 0	300	•	O			
Grist Mill. Harbor Grace Public Wharf, Brinity Public Wharf, Bonavista Addresses House of Assembly, 1858 Harbor Grace Street Act Police Clothing Repairs of Court Houses and Gaols Executive Responsibility for sundry payments General Survey of the Island Wolves' Killing Act Salaries of Police Court, St. John's Salaries of Police Court, St. John's Support of Wesleyan Outpert Schools Fire Engine, Harbor Grace Landing Place at Ochre Pit Cove Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention Mill. Harbor Grace Support of Wesleyan Schools Salaries of O Salaries of Church of Guide Posts, Heart's Content Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention Mill. Harbor Grace Support of Wesleyan Schools Salaries of O Salaries of Church of Guide Posts, Heart's Content Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention Mill. Harbor Grace Support of Wesleyan Schools Salaries of O Salaries of Church of Guide Posts, Heart's Content Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention Mill. Harbor Grace Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention Mill. Harbor Grace Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention Of Protestant Board Schools Extention Mill. Harbor Grace Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention Of Protestant Board Schools Extention of Guide Posts, Heart's Content Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention of Church Board Schools Extention of Guide Posts, Heart's Content Support of Wesleyan Schools Extention Of Salaries	Improvement, Placentia Gut					50	0 0		150	0	\mathbf{o}			
Public Wharf, Trinity Public Wharf, Bonavista Addresses House of Assembly, 1858 Addresses House of Assembly, 1858 For the Property of the Island Wolves' Killing Act Sularies of Police Court, St. John's Fublic Wharf, Carbonear Public Wharf, Carbonear Public Wharf, Carbonear Furbic Wharf, Commercial Schools For the Engine, Harbor Grace Landing place at Bradley's Cove Landing Place at Ochre Pit Cove Landing Plac			}		- 1				. A.T.	10	ا.ه	O	.H. `4	4.
Addresses House of Assembly, 1858 Harbor Grace Street Act Police Clothing Repairs of Court Houses and Gaols Executive Responsibility for sundry payments General Survey of the Island Wolves' Killing Act Salaries of Police Court, St. John's Contingencies of Logislature, 1859 Public Wharf, Carbonear Public Wharf, Fortune Bridge at Greenspond Frotestant Commercial Schools Fire Engine, Harbor Grace Landing place at Bradley's Cove Landing place at Ochre Fit Cove Landing Place at Ochre Fit Cove Support of Wesleyan Schools Further Act 200 12 7 1259 16 6 1259 1			•		_			1						
Tolice Clothing	Addresses House of Assembly, 1858			_										
Repairs of Court Houses and Gaols					- 1) 224 9 S			_}	24	9	8
General Survey of the Island General Survey of the Island Wolves' Killing Act Salaries of Police Court, St. John's Salaries of Court St. John's Salaries of Police Court, St. John's Salaries of Police Court St. John's S	Repairs of Court Houses and Gaols		Ì		Į	900	o o		102	10	6	767	6	1
Wolves' Killing Act Salaries of Police Court, St. John's Salaries of Police Court, St. John's Contingencies of Legislature, 1859 Contingencies of Legislature, 1859 Public Wharf, Carbonear Public Wharf, Fortune 100 0 0 100 0 0 Bridge at Greenspond Repairs of Church of England Schools Cof Westeyan Outpert Schools Fire Engine, Harbor Grace Landing Place at Ochre Pit Cove Support of Westeyan Schools Of Protestant Board Schools Support of Westeyan Schools Extra General Repairs Content Support of Westeyan Schools Support Of Wes	Executive Ecsponsibility for sundry p General Survey of the Island							185 2 1	1					
Salaries of Fonce Coult, St. 3500 Salaries of Legislature, 1859 7015 15 5 7015 15 15 7015 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 1	Wolves' Killing Act							1			ı			
Public Wharf, Carbonear Public Wharf, Fortune Public Wharf, Fortune 100 0 0 0 100 0 0 Bridge at Greenspond Repairs of Church of England Schools 60 0 0 0 13 2 4 617 8 61 0 0 0 0 13 2 4 617 8 61 0 0 0 0 13 2 4 61 17 8 61 0 0 0 0 13 2 4 61 17 8 61 10 0 0 0 61 10 0 0 0 61 10 0 0 0 62 11 10 0 63 11 10 0 64 17 8 65 10 0 0 0 66 10 0 0 0 67 10 0 0 67 10 0 0 67 10 0 0 67 10 0 0 67 10 0 0 67 10 0 0 67 10 0 0 67 10 0 0 67 10 0 67	Contingencies of Legislature, 1859		1		- 1	7015	1 <i>5</i> 5	7015 15 5			٦			
## Bridge at Greenspond ## Bridge at Greenspond ## Fortune ## Fo	Public Wharf, Carbonear				-						_ {			
Repairs of Church of England Schools '' of Protestant Commercial Schools '' of Wesleyan Outpert Schools Eire Engine, Harbor Grace Landing place at Bradley's Cove Landing Place at Ochre Pit Cove Erection of Guide Posts, Heart's Content '' of Protestant Board Schools E11,666 10 1 £108,056 10 4£114,599 1 3 £10,917 1 5 £5,793	Bridge at Greenspond				1	75	0 0							
Fire Engine, Harbor Grace Landing place at Bradley's Cove Landing Place at Ochre Pit Cove Erection of Guide Posts, Heart's Content of Protestant Board Schools £11,666 10 1 £108,056 10 4£114,599 1 3 £10,917 1 5 £5,793	Repairs of Church of England School	ols	1		- 1				46	17	8			
Fire Engine, Harbor Grace 30 0 0 30 0 30 0 0 30 0	of Wesleyan Outport Schools	s			Į	231 7	19 Ō							
Landing Place at Ochrc Pit Cove Erection of Guide Posts, Heart's Content Support of Wesleyan Schools of Protestant Board Schools £11,666 10 1£108,056 10 4£114,599 1 3£10,917 1 5 £5,793	Fire Engine, Harbor Grace Landing place at Bradlev's Cove		1		1		0 0	1 1	30	Õ	o.			
Support of Wesleyan Schools of Protestant Board Schools £11,666 10 1£108,056 10 4£114,599 1 3£10,917 1 5 £5,793	Landing Place at Ochre Pit Cove										- 1			
of Protestant Board Schools 207 5 0 - 25,793 2			į		1	92 3	1 5 0	92 15 0			_			
$(201,000 \text{ to } 12,000,00 \text{ to } 4001,2000 \text{ to } 4001,2000 \text{ to } 4000,2000 \text$		s				207								
Less proceeds of Sale of Provisions returned from St. George's Bay			£11,666	10	_ 1	£ 108,056	10 4			1	$\boldsymbol{5}^{!}$	£5,793 218	12	- S

£5,574 9

The following Credit Balances to be dropped as unnecessary for new account, 1860, viz. :—Carrying out Crown Lands Act 171 5 2, Feel and Light, Colonial Building 16 185 £ Ferrymen £7, Postages and Incidentals 81 10 8 Unforescen Contingencies 75 2 8, Local Steam 2,500 £188 3 88 10 £,575 2 7 8 8

APPENDIX, No. 5.

DESPATCHES

On the subject of the Defences of the Colonies, and the raising of Volunteer Rifle Companies.

SIR E. LUGARD TO MR. MERIVALE.

(COPY)

War Office, 1st October, 1859.

SIR,—

Your Letter of the 20th of September, enclosing a copy of a Despatch from the Governor of Newfoundland, on Lieut.-General Sir Fenwick Williams's suggestions for the defence of the Province, has been laid before the Secretary of State for War.

In reply, I am to acquaint you, for the information of the Duke of Newcastle, that this despatch will be referred to the Defence Committee for consideration and report in connection with Sir F. Williams's recommendations; but, in the meanwhile, as the Governor considers that the presentation of a supply of arms would be of great service in stimulating the zeal and patriotism of those persons on whom he relies for joining the Volunteer Corps which he hopes to raise for the defence of the Colony, Mr. Herbert has given directions for 1500 Enfield Rifles (being the number recommended by Sir F. Williams) being sent from Canada and placed at the disposal of the Governor.

With reference to the 9th paragraph of the Governor's despatch, I am to enclose printed copies of a Circular Letter addressed by Mr. Herbert to the Lords-Lieutenants of Counties, and its accompanying Memorandum on the organization of Volunteer Corps in this Country.

I have, &c, &c.

(Signed) EDWARD LUGARD.

From the Secretary of State for the Colonies, to His Excellency the Governor.

(COPY)

No. 42.

Downing Street, 18th November, 1859.

SIR,—

I have received from the Secretary of War two letters, of which I enclose copies herewith, explaining the measures which would be requisite in order to give effect to the recommendations of Lieut-General Sir Fenwick Williams for the defence of the Provinces of Newfoundland, Nova Scotia, and Prince Edward Island. These measures, as you will perceive, would consist first of an addition of 16 officers and non-commissioned officers, and about 80 gunners to the Coast Brigade of Artillery, with a view to placing small parties of Artillerymen in these Provinces, and instruct any Volunteer Artillery Corps that may be formed for their defence; and, secondly, an addition of two companies to the Newfoundland Companies, so as to admit of stationing detachments in Nova Scotia and Prince Edward Island.

I shall delay replying to the enquiry addressed to me by Mr. Secretary Herbert, whether the Provinces would be prepared to pay their respective shares of the expense of these measures, until I receive an answer from you to the present despatch,—but I do not doubt the readiness of the Government of each of Her Majesty's Provinces in North America, to contribute to any well considered undertaking which may seem necessary for the security of that portion of the Empire.

I have, &c., &c.

(Signed)

NEWCASTIE.

To the Officer Administering the Government, Newfoundland.

REPORT

Of the Cashier of the Newfoundland Savings' Bank, for the year ending 31st December, 1859.

The Deposits on the 1st of January were £143,478 14s. 2d. During the year, the sum of £54,835 9s. 9d. was deposited, and £26,387 10s. 11d. withdrawn from the Bank, shewing an increase of Deposits for the year of £28,447 18s. 10d., which makes the gross amount of Deposits on the 31st December, 1859, to reach to sum of £171,926 13s.

The amount of Interest received on Debentures, together with Interest and Discounts, amounted to £6,411 15s. 9d., of which £4,409 1s. 7d. was passed to Depositors' Accounts for Interest; £1,387 9s. 3d. to Profit Account, and the balance disbursed for the expenses of the Bank and its Branch at Harbor Grace.

The Balance of the Accumulated Profit Account at the close of 1858 was £19,611 15s. 11d., against which had to be charged the amount of Interest due to Depositors in the Harbor Grace Branch for 1858, viz. £79 13s. 6d., reducing the Credit to £19,532 2s. 5d., to which has been added the Net Profit of this year, £1,387 9s. 3d., leaving the balance now £20,919 11s. 8d.

The Deposits during the year having largely increased, and having in December upwards of Sixty-two Thousand Pounds in the Union Bank, Fifty-six Thousand of which not bearing Interest, and there being no means of investing in Colonial Securities, the Directors determined upon having Thirty Thousand Pounds Sterling transmitted to the Bank of England for investment in the English funds. Accordingly, on the 13th December, the amount was remitted in Union Bank Bills, the receipt whereof has been acknowledged, under date of the 3rd of January, by M. Marshall, Esq., the Chief Cashier of the Bank of England, who would, as instructed, invest the same in the Three per cent. Consols in the name of the Newfoundland Savings' Bank, securities of the most eligible description for the Bank, as they are capable of immediate conversion into money, at any time, if circumstances should so require.

TH	E DEPC	SITS ARE I	N THE FOLLOW	VING ORDER :-
269 A	Accounts	under		£20
211	"	from		20 to £40
68	66	66		40 " 50
363	"	"		50 · 100
304	• •	66		100 " 200
123	"	c c		200 " 300
43	"	c		300 " 400
26	• •	66		400 " 500
41	"	upwards		500
1	66	Harbor Grace	Branch · · · ·	4,122 13 4
1	• •	Commissioner	s for Reduc-	
			Public Debt, no Interest is allo	8,290 12 5 wed.
1450				

THE ASSETS OF THE BANK, 31st DECEMBER.

Cash on hand	• • • •	• • • •	£29,072	11	0		
Government (Local) Securities	• • • •	• • • •	74,748	1 6	6		
Amount of late P. Morris's Account 4,148							
Water Company's Stock, guar	anteed by Gover	nment	6,000	0	0		
Bank of England for Investme	nt		36,000	0	0		
Bills and Notes Discounted	• • • •		39,264	2	11		
Mortgages (old)	• • • •		3,612	15	11		
Overdue Note on personal security 41							
			£192,888	16	1		
	CONTRA.						
Deposits with Interest to the 3	31st December		£171,926	13	0		
Accumulated Profit	• • • •		20,919	11	8		
Disbursements Reserve Fund	• • • •	• • • •	42	11	5		

£192,888 16 1

The Statement from R. J. Pinsent, Esq., Cashier of the Branch at Harbor Grace, shews that on the

31st December, 1859, there were 99 Depositors, amount

£4,260 14 4

Which sum is thus accounted for :-

To the Credit of the Branch at the Head Office, St.

John's

£4,122 13 4

Respectfully submitted by

EDWARD MORRIS.

Cashier of the Newfoundland Savings' Bank.

Certified by

A. SHEA, JAMES J. ROGERSON, Directors. J. KENT.

APPENDIX, No. 7.

RULES

Of the Newfoundland Savings' Bank, as they relate to Depositors.

I.

Hours of Business-The Bank will be open every Monday throughout the year, from twelve to two o'clock in the afternoon.

TT.

CURRENCY—The Accounts of the Bank shall be kept in Currency.

III.

DEPOSITS—All Deposits of not less than One Shilling made by any person, shall, as soon as they amount to Twenty Shillings, be considered as a Deposit to the amount of the aggregate sum deposited, from the period when the last sum constituting such aggregate was deposited. The interest due on deposits on the first day of January, in each year, to be carried to the credit of

the Depositor, and the balance carried to a new account, and to be regarded as a Deposit made on that day. The Bank is at liberty to return or reject the deposits of any person or persons, and to decline receiving any deposit exceeding One Hundred and Fifty Pounds, subject to the payment of Interest thereon, when it shall be deemed expedient so to do. And no sum exceeding One Hundred Pounds shall be received from any Depositor but on condition that the same shall not be withdrawn except upon a notice ending at two months from the date thereof, or upon forfeiture of two months' interest thereon, if at the request of such Depositor the Directors consent to pay the same without requiring such notice.

IV.

Description and Declaration—All persons becoming Depositors must disclose their names, professions, business, occupation or callings, and residences, and sign (by themselves or the person through whom they shall make any deposit) on making the first deposit, and at such other times as may be required, a declaration that "they or the person or persons on whose behalf such declaration is made, is or are not entitled to any deposit or benefit from any other funds in this Bank:"—which declaration may, nevertheless, be made by or on behalf of any person acting as Trustee, or belonging to, or being interested in the funds of any Charitable Society, or other Institution, deposited in this Bank.

V.

DEPOSIT BOOKS—Each Depositor, on opening an account, shall receive a Book containing a Duplicate of his account, which shall be presented to the Cashier upon every deposit or repayment. The sums received or paid shall be entered by the Cashier in the Depositor's Duplicate, he or one of the Directors putting his initials opposite to all receipts and payments—the balance being struck at the time of such payments. Every Deposit Book must be produced at the Cashier's Office once, at least, in each year, for the purpose of being examined, and also whenever any deposit or repayment is made.

VI.

Loss of Deposit Book—In case any Depositor should lose his Account book, immediate notice is required to be given thereof at the Bank, and upon a satisfactory explanation of the case, a Duplicate Book will be granted upon the payment of one shilling, but the Bank is not liable for any fraudulent use that may be made of the lost book.

VII.

LIABILITY FOR DEPOSITS—This Institution is not answerable for any Deposit made at any other time or place than at the Bank, during the regular hours of business, and authenticated by the initials of the Cashier or one of the Governors.

APPENDIX, No. 8.

GENERAL STATEMENT

Of the Affairs of the Union Bank of Newfoundland, for the year ending 31st May, 1859.

LIABILITIES.

Capital Stock paid up	• • •	• • • •	£50,000	0	0
Bank Notes in circulation	· • • • •		93,138	0	0
Due by the Bank including	amount on Interest, &c.		206,698	6	10
Dividend No. 9, payable 13t	h June, 1859		2,00 0	0	0
Bonus No. 3, "	66	• • • •	1,000	0	0
Former Dividends unpaid	• • • •		30	0	0
Reserve Fund	••••		10,220	0	0
Profit and loss, new Accoun	• • • •	1,200	0	0	
			£364,286	6	10
	ASSETS.	•			
Gold and Silver Coins in the	a Vault of the Rank		£86,271	9	5
	o vulit of the Dank			•	
Notes of other Banks	· · · ·		2,887	0	0

£364,286

6 10

Average amount of Notes in Circulation and Specie on hand for the year ending 31st May, 1859.

1858.		Specie.		Circulation.
June		£ $64,553$		£80,806
July		59,973		77,675
August		61,573		78,568
September	• • • •	74,531		87,669
October		57,1 90	• • • •	108,933
November		80,278		124, 553
December	• • • •	81,896	• • • •	106,884
1859.				
January	•••	82,489		99,223
February		90,151		92,938
March		93,207		88,119
April	• • • •	94,816		93,119
May		86,477	• • • •	99,446

We, the undersigned Directors of the Union Bank of Newfoundland, hereby certify to the best of our knowledge and belief, that the within is a true and correct statement of the affairs of the Bank.

St. John's, 31st May, 1859.

(Signed) E. HARVEY
LAURENCE O'BRIEN
HENRY K. DICKENSON.

St. John's, to wit.

JOHN W. SMITH, of St. John's, Manager of the Union Bank of Newfoundland, maketh Oath and saith, that the within statement is just and true in every particular, to the best of his knowledge and belief.

(Signed) JOHN W. SMITH,
Manager.

Sworn to before me this 1st June, 1859.

(Signed) P. W. CARTER, J. P.

APPENDIX, No. 9.

GENERAL STATEMENT

Of the Affairs of the Commercial Bank of Newfoundland, to 30th June, 1859.

DR.						
To Proprietors for paid-up Capital				£50,000	O	0
Bank Notes in circulation				38,072	10	0
Amount due to Sundries on current ac-						
counts, Deposit, Receipts, &c.	£41,833	1	9			
Reserved Fund	1,174	7	11			
Unclaimed Dividends	124	10	0	43,131	19	8
				131,204	9	8
Balance carried down	• • • •			1,707	15	10
				£132,912	5	6
To Dividend No. 3	£1,500	0	0			
Balance to credit of Profit and Loss	207	15	10	1,707	15	10
CR.						
By Specie in the Vault: Gold	£55,844	10	6			
Silver	4,533			60,427	19	5
Notes and Cheques of other Banks	4,000	J	1.5	165		8
Local Bills discounted				66,152		
Amount due from other Banks, &c.				1,961		
Bank Premises, Fixtures, and Furniture)	•		3,957		2
Preliminary Expenses	537	2	10	•		
Less charged this year's account	270	0	0	267	2	10
				£132,912	5	6
By Balance brought down	* • • • .			1,707	15	10
				1,707	15	10
				P		

Average amount of Notes in Circulation and Specie on hand, during the year ending 30th June, 1859.

Month.		Notes.		Specie.
1858—July		£25,565	• • • •	£50,317
August		26,673		47,625
September	• • • •	31,282	• • • •	36,404
October		42,015		27,230
November		49,913		26,660
December		45,320	• • • •	29,940
1859—January		40,000		32,013
February		36,039		29,041
March	• • • •	34,109	• • • •	26,000
$oldsymbol{\Lambda}$ pril		42,04 0		35,026
May		46,019		54,031
J une		40,942	• • • •	60,320

We certify, to the best of our knowledge and belief, that the above account is a true and correct statement of the affairs of the Commercial Bank of Newfoundland, as made up from the Books of the Establishment to the 30th June, 1859.

F. C. K. HEPBURN, G. EHLERS, JOHN BOWRING, K. McLEA, S. RENDELL.

ROBERT BROWN, Manager of the Commercial Bank of Newfoundland, maketh oath and saith, that the above statement is just and true, to the best of his knowledge and belief.

R. BROWN.

Sworn before me this 8th July, A.D. 1859.

H. T. WOOD,

Commissioner of Affidavits Supreme Court.

APPENDIX, No. 10.

STATEMENT

Of the Affairs of the Saint John's Marine Insurance Company for the year ending 10th January, 1860.

1858-9.

To Stock £9,000 0 0

Amount reserved to meet Casualties 3,772 4 11

£12,772 4 11

1858-9.

By Monies and Securities

£12,772 4 11

£12,772 4 11

Errors Excepted, St. John's, Newfoundland, .10th January, 1860,

JOHN B. BULLEY,

Agent.

Audited and found correct,
THOS. R. SMITH
LEWIS TESSIER.

APPENDIX, No. 11.

GENERAL ABSTRACT

Of the Affairs of the Newfoundland Fire Insurance Company, 31st December, 1859.

To Capital Stock paid up	• • • •	£6,340	0	0
Deposits paid on 12 Shares	6	0	0	
Premiums for risks in Brick and Stone	• • • •	<i>5</i> 66	16	0
" " Wood		224	6	0
		£7,137	2	0
)	
By Investment at Union Bank		£6,000	0	0
Deposits do. do.	•••	261	0	8
do. Commercial do.		667	14	6
Unpaid Premium		1	15	0
Preliminary Expenses paid in '59	• • • •	114	15	2
Working Expenses '59	• • • •	91	16	8
		£7,137	2	0

E. L. JARVIS,

Secretary.

HENRY K. DICKINSON, P. G. TESSIER,

Directors.

St. John's, 31st December, 1859.

APPENDIX, No. 12.

GENERAL ABSTRACT

Of the Affairs of the Newfoundland Marine Assurance Company, 31st December, 1859.

"	Capital Stock paid up Premiums on unexpired Risks Estimated amount of Current Claims Reserved Profits	••••	£5,000 786 290 509	0	0 0 0 10
	·		£6,585	10	10
	•				
Bv	Investment at Union Bank	••••	£5,000	0	0
	Interest on said Investment		100	0	0
"	Deposits in Union Bank	• • •	138	5	3
"	Bill Receivable	• • •	33	0	6
"	Balance of Accounts	• • • •	1,314	5	1
			£6,585	10	10

PATRICK TASKER,

President.

E. L. JARVIS,

Secretary.

St. John's, 31st December, 1859.

APPENDIX, No. 13.

REPORT

Made to the Government by Directors of the General Water Company, (with Enclosures,) 27th January, 1860.

That almost immediately after the passing of the Act of Incorporation (the necessary amount of Capital having been subscribed) the Company was organized by the following Directors being elected on the 18th of May last, namely,—F. C. K. Hepburn, Stephen Rendell, Ambrose Shea, Robert Kent, John MacGregor, W. H. Mare, and Walter Grieve; who met on the following day, when Ambrose Shea was elected, unanimously, President of the Company, and W. J. Ward, Secretary.

The Directors lost no time in obtaining from Scotland a competent Engineer, who arrived here early in July, and immediately entered on the duty of examining the neighboring localities, with the view to determine the most eligible source from which an abundant supply of water might be obtained for this town.

Careful and elaborate surveys were made of the Petty Harbor Ponds,—of the Waterford Bridge River—and of Windsor Lake, better known as Twenty Mile Pond; and after the most mature consideration the Board unanimously concluded that, by adopting the latter, the object of obtaining a never failing supply would be best secured,—a decision in which they had the concurrence of the Government,—copies of Mr. Forman's Reports on this subject having been transmitted to the Executive at the time; and the Board are gratified to believe that a doubt does not exist as to the correctness of the conclusion come to on this important point. The preparation of the Plans and Specifications of so large a work necessarily occupied a considerable time, and it was not until late in November that they were furnished to the Directors. They were, in due course, approved of by the Government, and no time was then lost in devising the best means for obtaining the Pipes.

Instructions were given to Mr. Grieve, Greenock, Mr. Job, Liverpool, and Mr. Brooking, London, to advertise for Tenders for the supply of the Pipes, of which about two thousand four hundred tons will be required, and these tenders were transmitted here for the approval of the Board.

Taking all the circumstances of freight, &c., into account, the Directors decided that those obtained by Mr. Grieve were the most acceptable, and they instructed that gentleman to close with the best of the Tenders that he had received. This has been done, and the purchase is a most favorable one, the rate being five guineas a ton, with eight pounds ten shillings for irregular castings.

The shipments will be made in April and May at a low rate of freight, and the Board feel that this very important part of the expense of the undertaking has been provided for on unusually advantageous terms.

A competent Superintendent has been engaged, who will arrive here early in April, and active preparations will begin as soon as the season is sufficiently advanced to admit of the work being proceeded with.

The Board are fully alive to the great importance of dispatch in the prosecution of this essential work, but they think it will be apparent from this Report that no greater progress could be made than has been attained consistently with a due regard to the efficiency of the preliminary measures in which they have been engaged.

From a statement of the accounts of the Company, which have been duly audited, transmitted herewith, it will be seen that one half of the subscribed Capital of Thirty Thousand Pounds has been paid. Mr. Forman's estimate of the probable cost of the works is also annexed.

The Act of Incorporation prescribes that a Report of the affairs of the Company shall be made five days after the Annual Meeting; but at the present moment, when the Legislature is about to assemble, the Board think it advisable to place this statement before the Government, as they are desirous to give early information on a subject which naturally creates much public interest.

A. SHEA,

President.

January 26th, 1860.

St. John's, Newfoundland, 28th July, 1859.

SIR,—

As instructed in your letter of 23rd July, I have made such further investigations as appeared necessary to determine the points referred to in the resolution of the Board then placed in my hands.

To enable me to furnish an estimate of the drainage into the three places to which my attention was directed, it was necessary to make a general survey of each. The drainage area of the Petty Harbor Ponds was estimated before at a total of 672,000,000 gallons. I have since ascertained that, by crossing the ridge separating Petty Harbor Long Pond from the South-side hill, and impounding the drainage leading into Beaver Pond and the valleys south of it, in their respective basins, these Reservoirs could be connected. tional drainage area was estimated at 531,360,000 gallons, and the total for both these places 1,203,360,000. My estimate for the Back River above Walker's, gives 2,000,000,000 of gallons, and by impounding the water at points about one mile on each side, and which could be done at a trifling cost, and led into the proposed Reservoir, this quantity would be increased by 2,000,000,000, making in all 4,000,000,000 gallons intercepted. I have also ascertained that the drainage of Petty Harbor Long Pond can be drained into this Reservoir, though at some expense, and which is estimated as above at 672,000,000 gallons.

The drainage of Twenty Mile Pond I estimated at 3,168,240,000 gallons. I feel satisfied that the quantity estimated for the Petty Harbor and Beaver Ponds, and the gulleys and valleys in this direction, is the full extent of the supply from these sources in all times coming. Twenty Mile Pond would not admit of much increase, if any, but a further quantity could be drained into the Back River distributing Reservoir, if ever found necessary.

Petty Harbor Long Pond is between 520 and 530 feet above sea level, and its distance from Water Street at its intersection with Job's Lane, is three and a quarter miles; Carnell's valley is 390 and Beaver Pond 466 feet, above sea level. The Back River, at the place it was proposed to impound the stream, is four and a quarter miles, measuring from the same point in Water Street opposite Job's Lane. The surface level of the water in the distributing Reservoir would be about 340 feet above the sea. The elevation of Twenty

Mile Pond is 482 feet, and its distance from Fort William, and which I take as a suitable point in this case to compare with Job's Lane, in the two preceding ones, is four and a half miles. Fort Townsend, one of the highest sites in the town, is 225 feet, and the top of the crosses of the Cathedral 327 feet, above high water.

As some doubts must always be connected with estimates of drainage, especially when not based upon a large number of experiments made at different seasons, and extending over a lengthened period; I would suggest that only forty per cent. be assumed as available for the Ponds, and twenty-five per cent. for the Back River, of the total drainage, and which is certainly within the mark. The average depth of water in Petty Harbor Long Pond is 18 feet; in Island Pond, which empties itself into it, it is 11 feet, and in Twenty Mile Pond, 29 feet.

As it is stated in my Report of the 12th inst., that the valleys leading into Beaver Pond and Petty Harbor Long Pond could not be connected, it is proper that I explain that the nature of the ground separating these places will not admit of this being done by opening up an ordinary channel between them. The valleys leading into Beaver Pond are at a much higher level than Long Pond, and I did not think it necessary at that time to consider the possibility of collecting the drainage belonging naturally to each, in two separate Reservoirs to be afterwards connected by piping or otherwise. One of the plans now submitted for consideration has this object in view.

As Halifax, in Nova Scotia, in some respects resembles St. John's, it may be well to state, that I was consulted upon some improvements proposed on the Water Work in that place after it was in operation. The Company had laid a 12 inch main between their Reservoirs and the branch pipes on the Common, estimated by their Engineer as being capable of running 600,000 gallons per day, but this supply was found not to be sufficient, and they decided upon laying an additional pipe 15 inches in diameter. These two pipes are now in the ground, and they will probably give the Company the command of 1,600,000 gallons per day, on the Common. I do not know if the branch pipes will admit of full advantage being taken of this supply, but the water is by no means in general use, and speaking from recollection their Reservoirs are capable of supplying a very much larger quantity.

I have shown in the annexed tabulated form, for comparison, the information required by the Board. The respective merits of each locality will thus be seen at once.

I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your most obedient servant.

J. R. FORMAN.

W. J. Ward, Esq.,

Secretary New Water Company, &c., &c., &c.

TABULAR STATEMENT REFERRED TO IN REPORT OF THIS DATE.

		70			, 'T]
Designation.	Distance	St. John's	Elevation above sea level	Average depth of Ponds	Estimated drainage available	Remarks.
	miles	c.	1eet	feet	gallons.	,
Petty Harbor Ponds Do. with Beaver do. & co		40	524 390	18	268,800,000 481,344,000	
Island Pond				11		
Twenty Mile Pond	4	30	482	29	1,267,296,000	Exclusive of Petty
Back River	4 ;	20	340		1,000,000,000	could be drained into it besides other areas. Distance to Petty
Fort Townsend			225			Harbor Long Pond and Back River, measured to Job's lane.
Cross on Cathedral			327			

J. R. FORMAN.

28th July, 1859.

Mr. Forman's Estimate of the Probable Cost of these Works is as follows:—

Ist—Main line of Pipes including laying, Dams at Lake-drainage, Road alterations, Pipe House, Pipe Channel, &c., &c.	£26,188
2nd—Excavating trench in town and along South-side, Pipes for	
town, &c.	9,232
3rd-Sluice Cocks, Fire Plugs, Air Vessels, Cleansing Cocks,	
brick work for ditto-irregular castings, &c	3,000
Engineering management and contingencies, &c., ten per cent.	3,842
	£42, 2 62

Say Forty-two Thousand Two Hundred and Sixty-two pounds currency. In the above Estimate Mr. Forman has made provision for :

2	Stop Cocks	2	teet diameter
5	ditto	16	inches diameter
12	ditto	9	ditto
18	ditto	6	ditto
6	ditto	4	ditto
ann	Fire Plugs	· 	

100 Fire Plugs 25 Air Vessels

STATEMENT

Of the Affairs of the General Water Company.

1859.

December 24—To amount received from Shareholders to date, being Instalments of 50 per cent. on the Capital Stock of 6,000 Shares of £5 each

£15,000 0 0

3600	£15,000	0	0
1860 January 25—To balance per Contra.	£1,552	5	1

1860

January 7—By amount paid for Exchange remitted to James

J. Grieve, Greenock, on account of Pipes now
in course of being prepared for Shipment, Stg. £10,000

Premium 21 per cent. 2,100

2,100 0 0

£12,100

25-Expenditure for Preliminary Expenses, including services of Engineer, Surveyors, Labourers, and all incidental charges to this date

1,347 14 11

Balance in the Union Bank, 1,552 5

£15,000 0 0

Errors and Omissions Excepted, St. John's, Newfoundland, January 25th, 1860.

W. J. WARD,

Secretary.

We have carefully examined the Accounts and compared them with the vouchers, and find them to be all correct; and that the above statement is a correct summary of such accounts.

W. H. MARE ROBERT KENT,

Auditors.

APPENDIX, No. 14.

REPORT

Of Inspector of Light Houses, for the year ending 31st December, 1859.

St. John's, 31st December, 1859.

SIR.-

I have the honor of waiting on you with my Annual Report relative to the condition and management of the several Light Houses in the Colony, together with an approximate estimate of the cost consequent on their efficient maintenance the ensuing year, and such remarks as have naturally suggested themselves in reference thereto.

FORT AMHERST.

The repairs occasionally needed to the Barrack Building, Bridges, and Fence along the margin of the cliff, Keeper's Apartments, Painting, &c., have been duly attended to. This establishment, in every respect, is in a satisfactory condition.

CAPE SPEAR.

The necessary repairs to the Tower and Road have been effected; which, together with the Dwelling, may be regarded as being in a creditable condition. At this station it is intended to establish a Fog-signal, and for some time past the attention of Messrs. D. & T. Stevenson, Civil Engineers, have been engaged in obtaining the necessary information, as to the most approved method, cost, &c.

The Beach Beacon, as well as Harbor Grace Island Light, have received their due share of care and attention; both Lights are still held in general estimation for usefulness and effect. At the latter place, during the fall gales, the landing place and boat were swept away by the sea, but will be replaced in the spring.

A substantial buoy and mooring have been placed on the extreme point of the Bar, at the entrance of Harbor Grace, in accordance with the directions of the Board.

BACCALIEU ISLAND.

The difficulty of landing, and the inconvenience consequent on the want of

a Store on the Cliff, as a receptacle for oil, &c., as well as for their safety until removed to the Tower, became so apparent as to justify my recommending the matter to the favorable consideration of the Board. The work, in accordance with their sanction, has been effected in a substantial manner. The interior and exterior of the Tower, as recommended, has received a coat of cement and been painted.

An outlay of about £40 will be necessary on the road the ensuing year, when this establishment may be considered as efficient and complete.

From Baccalieu I proceeded in the vessel which had landed oil, coals, lumber, &c., &c., to

GREEN ISLAND AND CAPE BONAVISTA.

Furnished each Light House with oil, stores, &c. At the former station the quality of the water is complained of, and I believe justly so. I would recommend the providing of a frost-proof water tank, to hold about 300 gallons, the water supplied from the main.

Both establishments were found in their usual creditable order.

The period having now arrived when my services were required at Cape St Mary's; my previous intention of proceeding northward as far as the Offer Wadham Light House, was, for the present, reluctantly abandoned.

CAPE ST. MAR.Y'S.

The state of the Building at my visit in July was such as induced me to believe that by this time (the 20th August,) the Tower would be in a state to receive the Lantern; on the 22nd, coals, oil, the lantern, with a variety of necessary materials for the Cape and Dodding Head Light House, were placed on board the schooner Alice. At the time of her leaving St. John's, I was ill and unable to proceed in the Alice.

Strong head winds prevented her reaching Cape St. Mary's until the 10th September, and after repeated ineffectual attempts to land her cargo at the Cape, boisterous weather obliged her to harbour at Great Placentia.

On the 8th September, the apparatus which particularly apply to the Light was landed here from Scotland, placed on board the steamer Blue Jacket, in which vessel I left St. John's for Cape St. Mary's, on the evening of the 9th.

On reaching Cape St. Mary's the following morning, it blew strong from the N. W., with a heavy sea on the shore. With difficulty I landed on the extreme west point of Cape Cove. After inspecting the work, which was not in so forward a state as expected, and no prospect of landing the Steamer's freight, we proceeded to Great Placentia, where we arrived in the evening; and after an hour's delay in stowing the materials she was dispatched back for St. John's, where she arrived on the forenoon of 10th September.

From the 11th to the 18th we experienced a series of heavy gales; on the 19th, in the Alice, we made another ineffectual attempt to land her cargo, and from bad weather were obliged to harbor at Oderin. Left for Dodding Head on the 22nd; arrived at Burin the same evening; landed the materials for Dodding Head, and visited that station the next day; left for Cape St. Mary's the 25th. On approaching that shore it was found to be impracticable to land, and bore up for Placentia. From this time up to the 10th October the weather was bad and boisterous. With a view of embracing the first favorable change, and the anxious desire of the Board to put the establishment in requisition early in the coming year, the Blue Jacket, at my suggestion, was again placed at my service. She arrived at Placentia on the 10th October, and fortunately, on the day following, succeeded in landing the Lantern, with such other materials as would be required in its erection.

On the 12th October the Apparatus which had been stored were placed on board the Steamer, and she proceeded for the Cape, but did not succeed in effecting a landing.

The lateness of the season, and from the 12th to the 19th October, the boisterousness had precluded the possibility of landing, and no prospect of a change, the Steamer's freight was again landed and safely stored for the winter;—all further efforts, therefore, until the spring, became a matter of prudence and necessity.

On the 3rd November, the erection of the Lantern was accomplished.—The Tower is consequently permanently protected from the weather.

The difficulties attending the landing of materials either at Cape Pine or Cape Race, are not to be compared with those which present themselves at Cape St. Mary's; and when it is recollected that the landing of the materials at Cape Race cost the Imperial Government nearly £800, and that a War Steamer was engaged in that service two seasons at Cape Pine, the expense

incurred at Cape St. Mary's, increased as it has been by vexatious delays consequent on an unusual prevalence of strong gales and bad weather, cannot be regarded otherwise than unavoidable.

DODDING HEAD.

A Store House has been built, the road repaired, and the establishment is in every respect complete.

CAPE PINE.

The necessary painting, &c., have been attended to. The character of the Light, as second to none in the Colony, fully sustained.

CAPE RACE.

Repairs to the Circular Wall which surrounds the Tower, as directed, have been effected, and the necessary painting attended to. The want of a crane and small store at the landing place, is a source of much inconvenience.

OFFER WADHAM.

During my absence (engaged at Cape St. Mary's) the Board of Works were informed of the unusually feeble light exhibited on the Wadham Island. The Keeper at Fort Amherst was accordingly despatched to ascertain the cause; who, on his return, in November, attributed it to neglect on the part of the keeper.

An opportunity offering for Seldom-come-by, and with a view to ensure the efficient working of the Light, Charles Prowse, who had assisted me in erecting that light, and was conversant with the duty, was sent on with instructions to take charge until the opening of the navigation in the Spring, when it is intended by the Inspector to visit that establishment.

REMARKS.

With reference to Baccalieu Island Light, as well as the Light at Cape Bonavista, I would respectfully suggest an alteration in the time between each flash at both stations.

Baccalieu Light, at present produces a bright flash every twenty seconds; if extended to thirty seconds, would be an improvement.

Cape Bonavista exhibits a red and a white light alternately every two

minutes, which it would be desirable to reduce to one minute. These alterations can be easily effected, without any expense, and the necessary distinction between them and Cape Spear preserved, which produces a bright white light every minute.

I would here observe that much care has been taken in selecting the several Lights in the Colony. They are all on the most approved principle, and for brilliancy, with care, they stand unrivalled on this side the Atlantic. If, therefore, any of the Lights (in favourable weather) should fail to realize the expectations of the mariner, the cause may be safely attributed to a want of attention on the part of the keepers in charge.

During the past year I have had an opportunity of observing at sea every Light on the Coast (except the one extreme north), and I feel it a pleasing duty in stating, that the charge of a laxity of duty does not apply but in the case before noticed.

In conclusion it remains for me merely to add, that in the discharge of the duty intrusted to me, my best ability will be exercised, and the utmost economy observed compatible with the efficient maintenance of the Light House service.

Respectfully submitted, &c.

ROBERT OKE,

Inspector Light Houses.

To Hon. E. Hanrahan,

Chairman Board Works, &c., &c., &c.

An approximate Estimate of the Cost of maintaining the several Light Houses, 1860, including balance against that Service, 1859.

1859.								
Balance						£3,231	19	9
Inspector		• • • •		• • • •	£200			
Fort Amherst Ke	eeper	£80	Assistant	£30	110			
Harbor Grace Isl	and do.	105	ditto	70	175			
Cape Spear di	tto	100	ditto	70	170			
Cape Bonavista	ditto	100	ditto	70	170			
Green Island	ditto	100	ditto	70	170		,	
Offer Wadham	ditto	100	ditto	7 0	170			
Cape Pine	ditto	190	ditto	70	170			
Dodding Head	ditto	100	ditto	70	170			
Baccalieu Island	ditto	100	ditto	70	170			
Cape St. Mary's	ditto	100	ditto	70	170			
Harbor Grace Be	acon do	•			40	1,885	0	0
Oil, Fuel, Stores	, Repair	rs, Frei	ight, Insurai	nce, &c	•	2,468	3	4
						£7,585	3	1

APPENDIX, No. 15.

REPORT

Of the Superintendent of Fisheries in the Straits of Belle Isle and along the Coast of Labrador, in the Summer of 1859.

St. John's, 26th September, 1859.

SIR,-

I have the honor to report to you, for the information of His Excellency the Governor, that on receipt of instructions I directed the Captain (William Hacket) to be in readiness to leave the first favorable wind.

Monday, 13th June-Sailed from St. John's to Harbor Grace.

Friday, 17th June—Left Harbor Grace with a favorable breeze and reached Baccalieu in the evening. The wind veering to the North East, and blowing strong, stood in and made the Horse Chops in Trinity Bay, and got into Trinity Harbor about midnight. A large American Whaler was moored there, having a schooner of one hundred and fifty tons in attendance; a crew consisting of forty-five men. The schooner was in Conception Bay in search of fish. The plan adopted by them for killing the whale was lately invented.—It consists of a spear attached to wood, and charged with combustible matter, with a fusee, and fired from a gun of about four feet; after which it explodes, in fourteen seconds, within the whale.

Monday, 20th June—Left Trinity with a fresh breeze from the south, and reached the Gooseberry Islands, when the wind veered to the North East, with a thick and unfavorable appearance, and we ran into Greenspond.

Thursday, 23rd June—Left Greenspond at noon, with a light breeze from the Southward, and clear weather; run close to the Stinking Island, which particularly attracted my attention in consequence of the question of erecting a Light House thereon being agitated; it appeared to me to be about thirty feet or thereabouts above the level of the sea, covered with grass, and shewed no appearance whatever of the sea washing over it. It is nearly midway between Cape Bonavista and the Offer Wadham. I was informed at Greenspond, by an intelligent gentleman, that the Island is well supplied with fresh water, and that for several seasons two families resided there for sealing pur-

poses. At midnight we discerned the Light on the Offer Wadham. I think it was a great mistake to place so inefficient and so powerless a light on that Island, the most dangerous part of the coast of Newfoundland, surrounded as it is by breakers, and beset with islands, rocks, and shoals. Passed Fogo Head next evening; the following day Cape John bearing West by North, the wind veered to North East, and blew strong in the evening, and we put into Shoe Cove at 7 o'clock. The following morning, the wind continuing from the North East, blowing strong, and a heavy swell heaving in, we hove up and run into Snook's Arm. Left Snook's Arm the following morning, with a light air of wind. Shortly after it became calm; and a strong current setting to the South West, we towed into Round Harbor.

Tuesday, 28th June—Left Round Harbor, wind unsteady, veering from West to West South West, and blowing fresh. Whilst running down the shore we observed a small boat at anchor under a point, having St. George's Cross flying at the main. I conclude it was the boat for the protection of the fisheries about Cape John, as I learned that a boat was placed there some time previous by Mr. Knight. At two o'clock the wind veered to the North West and blew a gale; we ran into Cape Rouge Harbor that evening.

Wednesday, 29th June—Left Cape Rouge Harbor with a light breeze from West, veering during the day from West to South, with a very heavy swell; at midnight a good breeze from the South South West, and rounded Cape Bauld in the morning and stood up the Straits and made Greenish Bay. It became calm; a dense fog, and a strong current setting to the Westward, we towed into Red Bay, and anchored at ten o'clock that night.

Tuesday, 5th July—Wind South West; got under weigh and left Red Bay, and continued beating till four o'clock, tide setting Eastwardly; put into Carroll's Cove that evening, left the following morning; wind West South West, blowing strong, beating all day, fell to leeward, and got into Red Bay again that evening.

Friday, 8th July—Left Red Bay; wind West South West; fine clear weather; beat up to West St. Modeste, and anchored at six o'clock that evening. Whilst there I visited L'Anse au Diable and Pinware. Every day schooners passing down, bound north; fish having failed to the Westward, Captain M. Daly, master and owner of the John W. Dodge, came on board and said that one of his crew absconded on the night of the 10th instant, whilst at

L'Ance au Loup Bay, and carried away a whale boat branded in several places with the vessel's name, and requesting my interference to recover her.

The frame and net Seal Fishery was unsuccessful last fall; some few, however, were taken in the spring. A schooner was fitted out last spring by Mr. Pack, of Quebec, and commanded by William Yetmon, of Red Bay.—Unfortunately she was frozen up at her moorings until the middle of April; notwithstanding, she had a fair trip, which well repaid the enterprising owner.

At the early part of the season a considerable number of Whales appeared in the Straits, nearing the Coves as they beat through; none of which were taken, the residents not being prepared with means to take them.

Thursday, 14th July-Left West St. Modeste; wind South East, veering during the day to South West. Upwards of seventy schooners and a large barque passed down, also a schooner having a large Whale alongside, cutting Three Steamers crossing the Straits, looking up South South West, as if bound to St. Barbes. We got into L'Anse-au-Loup that evening; ten French schooners were at anchor there, having put in that day and the evening before. Some had their boats on the fishing ground, and others preparing to send them out. I went on board them and found that eight schooners belonged to St. Pierre, and the other two belonged to Port-au-Choix, the schooners or shallons Jean Faume and L'Amie were from Port-au-Choix, and belonged to M. Phelipot and M. Lemoine, Armateurs of St. Malo. The Vergine, La Maria, Henriette, Josephine, Promet, Artutus, Economie, and Nautilus, belonged to St. Pierre's, and, as they stated, were supplied by M. Pierre and the General Maritime Company, Supplying Merchants there. Captain Leudret, owner and master of the schooner Nautilus, much excited, complained that he left St. Pierre for St. George's Bay, on a Herring Fishery; that on his arrival he cast out, at Seal Cove, a Herring Seine, and enclosed some hundred barrels; soon after, three boats, owned and manned by English settlers, came and entered the Seine, casting grapnells into the bunt, shot Nets across the Seine, and obliged him to let out the whole of his catch. I said I would report his complaint. It was calm that evening and during the night, and a strong tide setting Eastwardly, it was impossible for the schooners to leave. I saw in the morning that some boats were sent out on the fishing ground, and I went on the ground to them and desired them to haul up and go on board their respective vessels. On my return I remonstrated with the Captains, who, in excuse, said that the boats went out merely to catch a few fish to eat. All hoisted in their boats and got

in readiness to start, when it commenced to blow so strong it was difficult, if not dangerous, to get under weigh. All left early the following morning.

Saturday, 16th July—Being aware that ten batteaux were fishing off Fox Cove the day before, but it blew strong I could not get out. This morning, being fine and calm, we rowed out, and on rounding Schooner Cove Point we met a batteau rowing to the Cove. I went on board and asked the master several questions. He said he was in search of a bait boat the last four days. I did not believe him. He had neither nets or seines, or any other article that I could see to enable him to get bait, and I concluded that he would be furnished with a seine by one of the schooners who had just left. He belonged to M. Lemoine, Armateur of St. Malo.

On reaching Fox Cove, I found six batteaux at anchor, fishing. I rowed alongside each; three of them belonged to M. Fonlan, the others to M. Ponche, M. Vodel, and M. Lemoine, Armateurs of St. Malo; they were part of a Degrat then at Anse-aux-fleurs. Whilst waiting to see them off, I landed and went up to the Light-house, where I was met by the Keeper, Mr. John Blompie, who kindly, at my request, shewed me the whole of the building. I was much pleased with the cleanliness, the regularity and the order observed in every department. The style the light apparatus was in, was admirable.—What confidence that must inspire; what a secure guarantee it must be to the sea-faring!

On my return to the vessel I perceived a batteau coming across. We got under weigh immediately, and beat up to Fox Cove. Just as we reached, she anchored, and commenced fishing. It commenced to blow, and the current setting to the Westward, causing a heavy lop, we could not safely drop a boat. We stood in as near as possible and hailed her, and desired the master to leave, which he did immediately on recognising us. We put into Forteau that evening.

Tuesday, 19th July—Left Forteau, and on rounding Point L'Amour we perceived that a French batteau had just anchored, and commenced fishing under the Light House west of Fox Cove. We bore down and hailed her; she set sail and stood across; we stood over on the same tack, and reached to L'Anse-aux-fleurs where we saw one barque, two brigs and several schooners at anchor, and one brig coming out the harbor. We reached across and made L'Anse au Loup, and anchored there for the night.

Wednesday, 20th July—Left L'Anse au Loup at nine o'clock with a light breeze from South by West; touched at West St. Modeste, at Pinware, at East St. Modeste, and at Carrol's Cove. Upwards of fifty schooners, American and Nova Scotian, were busily engaged seining and fishing in these harbors. We got into Red Bay that evening.

Monday, 25th July—About ten o'clock the wind veered to North by West, we weighed anchor and left Red Bay about eleven o'clock that night. We saw Belle Isle light, bearing East by South, distance about twenty three miles, shewing a large and brilliant light, wind about South East, veering occasionally. We got into Henly Harbor about noon, and visited Chateau that evening. The Steamer Lady LeMarchant was there at anchor under the direction of Captain Orlebar, R. N., Surveyor, who, I understand, was ascertaining the position of the rocks and shoals about the coast of Belle Isle and the Straits, that are not noticed or placed on the charts. I understand he visited Belle Isle several times.

Thursday, 4th August—The wind and weather at length being favourable, we got under weigh and left Henly Harbor, and at noon reached Black Joe Cove; blowing strong; we put out a boat and went into the Cove and went on board a schooner at anchor there, belonging to Mr. Sexton of the French Shore; he said that he took twenty quintals fish the day before, and that last evening a French batteau came there for the purpose of ascertaining whether there was any vessel protecting the fisheries then about the coast. On being informed by him there was, he left immediately. I went on shore; there was not a vestige of the breakwater to be found, the whole being swept away, that one could not suppose that the like was ever erected there. The wind increased, blowing heavily, the schooner stood off, and reefed; we got on board and reached over and made Chimney Tickle and anchored there.

Sunday, 7th Aug.—Left Chimney Tickle with a light breeze West South West; beating all day; the wind increasing, blowing heavy, and a strong current setting to the Eastward, we bore up and put again into Chimney Tickle that evening.

Monday, 8th Aug.—Left Chimney Tickle, wind East, with a strong current setting Eastwardly; the wind died away; towing the greater part of the day, and at night-fall we got into Henly Harbor.

Tuesday, 9th Aug.—Left Henly Harbor, wind North North West, at one p.m. It became calm and changed to South West; beat up, and at six p.m.

got into L'Anse au Loup. Shortly after two French shallops put in and anchored. I boarded them, and both of them belonged to M. Frontan, Armateur of St. Malo. They said that they came to purchase bait that they required; two thousand five hundred herring per day to bait their bultows; they said they were provided with money to purchase them; they had no seines or nets, which left no doubt on my mind of the truth of their statement.

Thursday, 11th Aug.—Went in the boat to L'Anse au Diable. Shortly after our return, a French shallop put in the Bay and anchored at Schooner Cove; she belonged to M. Lemonie, Armateur of St. Malo.

Friday, 12th Aug.—Left L'Anse au Loup, wind West South West, blowing strong; saw a French shallop reaching in for L'Anse au Diable Bay; we kept on the same tack. The wind increased, and a strong current setting Eastwardly, she put in and anchored in Schooner Cove; it was the same shallop we boarded on the 9th inst.; she left early the following morning.

Saturday, 13th Aug.—Left L'Anse au Loup, and put into West St. Modeste. Two French shallops put in there that day. I went on board them: they belonged to M. Fontan, Armateur, St. Malo. The captain said that they were seeking to purchase herring, fresh out of the nets, for bait; that there was plenty of fish to be caught on the Newfoundland side, but no bait to be had. I entertained no doubt of what they stated; they were not provided with either seines or nets. The same evening saw three batteaux standing in for Black Bay, and anchored at Ship Head. We went in the boat a distance of about two miles, and boarded them; they said, also, they came over for the sole purpose of purchasing herring for bait. They belonged to M. Guibert, Armateur of St. Malo. They fished, during the summer, at Petit Port, and was now drying their catch at Old Ferole. Visited Pinware; it commenced to blow strong from the South East, and we got back to West St. Modeste about night-fall. The day before we left St. Modeste an American schooner, anchored at Shepherd, reported that two fishing vessels were stranded on Flower's Ledge; an American schooner, Captain Morey, loaded with fish, and a schooner belonging to LaPoile.

Wednesday, 17th Aug.—Left West St. Modeste with a light air of wind, West South West. About noon it became calm, and we got into Red Bay.

Monday, 22nd Aug.—Left Red Bay with a light breeze of South West wind and thick fog; made York Point in the evening, and put into Henly Harbor.

Tuesday, 30th Aug.—Left Henly Harbor, wind West South West, blowing strong; stretched over to Belle Isle; saw no appearance of any craft; continued beating all day, and at night put into St. Leonard's.

Wednesday, 31st Aug.—Wind South West, light breeze, left St. Leonard's at night; became foggy, and put into St. Antoine.

Thursday, 1st Sept.—Left St. Antoine, light air of wind South West; about noon it veered to the South East; in the evening it rained heavily, with a dense fog, and about midnight got into Croque. The French war steamer Tanare was at anchor there.

Monday, 5th Sept.—Left Croque, wind West South West, blowing strong, with a heavy sea; the following day wind North West by West. Passed Cape John, wind veered to South South East; and made Cape Fogo at nightfall; saw the light at the Offer Wadham only when we were between it and the White Island. The next day the wind veered to North North East; passed Cape Freels at 7 a.m.; at noon spoke the Dart, Captain Cross, of Greenspond; saw Green Island and Baccalieu lights; it became calm and we lay all night between Baccalieu and the Main. It appeared to us that the Machinery of the Baccalieu light was out of order, from the frequent irregularity of its motions. It should not be permitted to remain in that state, or to deviate in the flashing from the notice given in the Newfoundland Almanack. In the morning a breeze sprung up from the West South West, blowing strong during the day. At six p.m. it moderated, and we got into Harbor Grace at eleven o'clock that night.

Whilst at Henly Harbor several complaints were made to me by the residents of that Coast that they were obstructed in the setting their nets, as they had uniformly been accustomed; and that the rules and regulations which were observed in that particular, from the establishment of the fisheries at Newfoundland, were disregarded by the transient settlers. I generally understood that such rules were observed and enforced by the Law authorities whilst resorting that Coast. The Statute of 5 Geo. 4, Cap. 51, Sec. 2, commonly called the Fishery Act, notices the existence of such rules. Other regulations touching the size of the mesh of Seines and other matters, are fully set forth in the Imperial Commission of Vice-Admiral of Newfoundland. It is regrettable that rules and regulations which were found by long observance and practice to be so beneficial for the general interests, should be permitted to fall into disuse, now that settlements are rising up in every cove, creek and place on the Coast; and it appears to me that the time has arrived when it is necessary and desirable

$\mathcal{A}PPENDIX$, No. 15.

that the weak should be protected against the strong. A collection of those regulations to be observed by fishermen, so well understood, may be made by the Magistrates in the several ports of the island, and may be embodied by the Legislature or by a Commission appointed for that purpose.

I have made it a subject of particular enquiry, during my visits to the several harbors, whether any of the Settlers or others resorting to the Coast, encouraged in any way the French to fish on the Shores for or in consideration of the French giving the Cod Liver in return for such privilege of fishing, or for the use of their Stages to dress the fish. I was informed such was the practice heretofore, particularly at L'Anse au Loup, and at West St. Modeste, and at East St. Modeste, and at Pinware; but that nothing of that kind has taken place of late years since the Government appointed vessels to protect the fisheries.

The great decrease of the catch of Cod Fish, the past years, on the Coast of Labrador, particularly within the Straits of Belle Isle, has attracted the attention of the residents, as well as all others resorting to that Coast to fish; and the failure of the fish is generally attributed to the continued use of Bultows by the French fishermen on the opposite Coast of Newfoundland.

I consider I cannot do better than give a translation of the discussion on the subject of maintaining or suppressing the use of Bultows on the Coast of Newfoundland, which fully shows the opinions of the French, interested in the Cod Fishery of Newfoundland, of its destructive and injurious effects, and decided them to suppress their use on the East Coast of Newfoundland, that is to say, from Cape John to Cape Norman, by a majority of twenty-five against eleven.

The Armateurs of France, who send vessels to the Cod Fishery of Newfoundland, having been assembled at St. Servan, the 5th January, 1857, under the authority of the French Government, spoke as follows:—

HAROUELLES, OR BULTOWS.

The President—"In 1852 the question concerning Bultows was seriously debated in the General Assembly of the Ship-owners. The use of these lines was adopted by twenty-nine votes against twenty-five for the Eastern Coast, and unanimously for the Western Coast. I therefore beg the Assembly to be kind enough to discuss the question separately for each Coast."

20 00 00

- M. G. LePomelle:—"Five years ago I applied for the suppression of Bultows on the Eastern Coast where I considered them hurtful. I quoted, in support of my opinion, that the Harbours Des Pins and Pacquet were ruined by the Bultows; they answered me that at Quirpon, where they made equal use of the Bultows, the abundance of Cod Fish had not diminished. Now it is to be remarked that the Concessionaries of this last harbour have finished by finding out the justice of my opinion; for it is understood that they did not make use of Bultows last year. I therefore demand their suppression."
- M. LeMengnonnet:—"The example stated by M. LePomelle turns agains this own opinion. He proves in effect, that there, where it appears advantageous to do away with the Bultows, the parties interested do so quite naturally. If the suppression of this instrument is good for one harbour, in another it would be very prejudicial to the fishery.
- "The Port of Granville has very few skilful line fishermen, whilst it possesses excellent boitteurs. Now it will not do to sacrifice one port for another. Our sailors not so well disciplined as those of St. Briene, sleep often on the fishing grounds with the Bultows. This tendency is without inconvenience, for the Captain overlooks the laying out of these lines, which are baited under his inspection."
- M. J. M. Ruillan demands the suppression of the bultows, with which they only catch the mother fish.
- The President:—"The fishery legislation does not forbid the catching of full sized fish; it only requires, on the contrary, to allow the small fish to grow."
- M. LeMengnonnet:—"The bultows are not employed until the seine fishery is over; they are in noways hurtful."
 - M. Menard "wishes for the suppression of the bultows."
 - M. Frontan speaks in their favour.
- M. Le Pomelle:—"In the harbour of Pins they made use of the bultows with success, but the Cod fish have totally disappeared, and have not frequented this harbour for fifteen years."
- M. le Commandant Mazeres:—"The use of bultows on the eastern coast has a diminishing tendency. It appears to me that there is no cause to prohibit

them. At the period when they make use of these instruments, the Captains who do not employ them send their men out to fish with hand lines; these men remain inactive, and return to port saying that there are no more fish. They then attribute their ill success (which only arises from the bad will of the crews) to the bultows."

M. Jourdan:—" If the bultows were prohibited, we would not be able to fit out any more at Granville, for it is this mode of fishing which gives the best results."

The President:—" The regulation tends exclusively to the conservation of the species. Now the bultows, with which they only catch the large fish, attain precisely the end which the protectionary measures of the fishery look to. It is necessary, then, if the law is to prohibit them to point out that they are irreconcilable when employed with other indispensable instruments."

M. Le Commandant Mazeres:—" When the fishery is unfruitful we must not conclude that it is the bultows that have driven away the fish. It is a certain fact, the exactitude of which I can well verify, from the time the seine fishery is given up the crews think themselves liberated from their engagements and make only a pretence of fishing.

We have seen that in certain harbours the concessionaires are understood not to have made use of the bultows, without wishing in a general question to leave to the fishermen the care of regulating their industry. I would not know how to demand the suppression of an instrument which is not destructive in the sense of the law, and the employment of which does not appear to me to exact in any way the sacrifice of the general interest to particular interest."

- M. Le Pomelle:—" Neither the English nor the Americans make use of the bultows; when they find themselves in the neighbourhood of a bultow boat they weigh anchor and go away. I think that the bultows drive the Codfish away from the shore, and that if they prohibited the use of them the fish would be more abundant."
- M. LeCommandant Mazeres:—"According to some Captains, the Codfish when attached to the hooks of the bultows, struggle some time before they die, and trighten the fish around them; but other Captains on the contrary, affirm that these convulsive movements of the fish draw towards them those that see them, instead of frightening them away. It is thus, according to the partisans

of the bultows, that when they fish with hand lines, as soon as a Codfish is caught by one of the hooks, another is attached to another hook."

- M. Le Capitaine Halot being asked his opinion, spoke as follows:
- "For three years, said he, they made use of the bultows at Quirpon; the fishery was bad. We agreed together not to use them; and since that time we have taken a great quantity of Codfish." "A Captain of the Malecorn house has continued to make use of bultows; he has not succeeded."
- "The bultows form, at the entrance of the harbours, a sort of barricade that prevents the fish from entering."
- M. P. Frontan:—"M. Le Capitaine Halot has just told us that having employed the bultows for three years, he remarked that the cod fish frequented the harbour but little, and he concluded that the scarcity of fish resulted from the use of bultows. In order that this argument could have any force, it would be necessary to prove that the neighboring harbours, where they do not use the bultows, had been more favoured during the same period. Now every one knows that no such thing was the case, and that the fish were equally scarce in these harbours. Then it is not logical to accuse the bultows."
- M. LeMengnonnet:—"I will add that M. Halot has not been rightly informed regarding the Captain of the Malecorne house. The fact is that this Captain only fished with bultows for eight days, and he killed two hundred quintals of fish. The truth of the matter is that they always catch fish when there is any."
 - M. LeMarechal:-" The bultows have been prejudicial to our fisheries."
- M. LeMonnier:—"With my bultow lines I have caught five hundred and fifty quintals fish. If some Captains do not succeed it is owing to the bad composition of their crews."

The bultows are used in the night, and the line fishery is practised in the day time; therefore, these two kinds of fishery are perfectly reconcilable.

M. LePomelle:—"Those who use bultows certainly profit by them.—For my part I would not speak against them unless every one did so; but the bultow lines make the men loose their taste for the line fishery.

- M. LeCommandant Mazeres:—"It is rather the seines than the bultow lines that should be blamed for that."
- M. LePomelle:—"They say the bultows are only used during the night. The proof to the contrary is that the 31st Article of the Decree of the 2nd March, 1852, expresses itself as follows:
- "Fishing boats using bultows will not be allowed to disturb boats following the line fishery, and vice versa; both, then, fish simultaneously. When there are only a few bultow boats in the harbor they succeed, and accordingly as the number increases the fishery gets bad."

The President desires M. LeCommandant Mazeres to make known what manner the bultow and line fisheries really operate by their relation to one another.

- M. Le Commandant Mazeres:—"The bultow lines are laid out in the night and taken in about five o'clock in the morning. It might then happen that the bultow boats would inconvenience the boats employed in the line fishery if they fished upon the same grounds, but it is not so, for the one fish further off than the other."
- M. Jourdan:—"At St. Peters they have made use of the bultow lines for two years, and they have obtained successful results without any detriment to the line fishery."
- M. Guibert:—"On the contrary the line fishery does suffer from it, for they only catch the mother fish with the bultow."
- M. Le Pomelle:—"At the time when they use the bultow lines bait is scarce; many of the fish carry away the bait from the bultow hooks without being caught; it would be better to employ this bait for the hand lines."
- M. Le President:—"Assertions have been made which contradict one another without being tounded on solid reasons. In all that has been said against the use of the bultow, I have not remarked one single argument of a nature to give a reason for the modification of the Article of the Decree of 2nd March, 1852, which permits their use.

It treats of an instrument which in itself is essentially conformable with the spirit of the general legislation of the fishery, as much at Newfoundland as elsewhere, since this instrument only catches large fish, and by that even pre-

serves the future resource. It is no doubt for this motive that the bultows known in France under the name of *Palangres*, and deep sea line, have not been the object of any legal prohibition. Why should it be otherwise on the Eastern Coast of Newfoundland, when specially the use of bultows is general on the Great Bank, and Banquereaux of St. Peters and Miquelon, as well as on the shore of these Islands.

In acknowledging the necessity of seines which destroy great quantities of small fish, you have not adopted any of the propositions which have been made to you to mitigate the inconvenience of them. Very well; who knows but what the bultow mode of fishery, when practised skilfully on the eastern coast, will substitute itself little by little, instead of the use of seines, to the great advantage of the preservation of the fish.

The bultows are not moreover binding for any one, and those who do not wish to make use of them are perfectly free, as far as that goes; but why should they prohibit the use of them in an absolute manner, when no solid reason can give cause for such a measure.

I beg of you, gentlemen, to reflect seriously before demanding in this respect the modification of the decree of the 2nd March, 1852, of which the 31st Article appears to me to be very wisely set down."

The question being put to the vote, the Assembly pronounced for the suppression of the bultows on the Eastern Coast by a majority of twenty-five against eleven.

Having then consulted as to the continuance or suppression of the bultows on the Western Coast, the Assembly unanimously voted their continuance.

I have, &c.,

(Signed) JAMES L. PRENDERGAST,

Superintendent of Fisheries in the Straits of Belle Isle, and along the Coast of Labrador.

Honorable E. D. Shea,
Acting Colonial Secretary.

APPENDIX, No. 16.

REPORT

Of Mr. Henry Knight on the protection of the Fisheries, 1859.

June 13th—Arrived at Cape John; found too much sea to land my provisions and crew. At 3 p.m. left Cape and went in the Bay.

14th—Took on board some sticks and board to build tilt.

15th—Wind S.W., left the Bay for Cape John; got to Mansfield Cove at 7 p.m.; lay off the Cape all night. Wind W.

16th—Wind blowing W.S.W., blowing gale; vessel driven twenty miles East of the Cape. At sundown wind moderate; stood for the Cape again.—Arrived at midnight.

17th—Wind N.E. at daylight. Loaded the boat, to land. At 7 a.m. spoke the Dauntless from Lascie. Saw four French boats. Landed with much trouble—sea high.

18th-All hands employed building house. Saw six French boats.

19th—At daybreak rowed to Cape from Mansfield Cove; saw several boats, but not near.

20th—At 3 a.m. went to Cape; spoke Seine Master, told me there was no fish on the ground yet.

21st-Strong wind South; saw no Frenchmen all day.

22nd—Wind N.N.E., sea high; saw but four boats all day. A trifle of Caplin in.

23rd—At daybreak rowed to Cape; at 5 a.m. eleven seine boats came to limits; asked me if I had seen any Caplin; told them yes. Hauled some fish.

24th—At 3 a.m. rowed to limit; saw several boats; some hauled fish, others none; sea high. At sunset went to Camp.

25th-Saw seven French boats; spoke none. Fish scarce all day.

26th—At daylight went to Cape; several boats at the limit; one boat hauled 2,000 fish; at dark rowed to Camp.

- 27th—Rowed to Cape. At daybreak several boats came to limit; took 4,000 or 5,000 fish for the day; three boats came in Mansfield Cove all night.
- 28th—At 3 a.m. rowed to limit; saw Schooner pass with pendant flying; French took 6,000 fish to-day.
- 29th—At daylight went to limit; Frenchmen uncovered and commenced to haul; took 10,000 fish from the Cape this day. At sunset went to Camp.
- 30th—Blowing strong from the Westward; French hauled little fish; Caplin scarce; some inclined to come on English ground. At dark rowed to Camp,
- July 1—At daylight went to Cape; found the French uncovered; 11 seines at the boundary; spoke one Officer, told me there was no fish on the ground; took 4000 to-day for 150 men. At sunset went to Mansfield Cove.
- 2nd—Rowed to limit; saw several boats coming round Middle Bill, took from the Cape this day, for eight seines, 11,000 fish. At 6 p.m. strong wind S. E.; Boats left the Cape and went north.
- 3rd—At daylight went to Cape; saw but one boat for the day; took 2000 fish; told me the rest of the boats were to the Westward of Lascie. At sundown went to the Camps.
- 4th—Spoke three boats; told me the fish was scarce on French ground; asked me how the English was doing; took from the limit 5000 fish.
 - 5th-Wind North; sea high; saw but three boats all day.
- 6th—Rowed to limit; saw no boats until 6 a.m.; 11 seines came to limit; took about 14,000 fish; some trouble to keep them back; remained at the limit all night.
- 7th—At day light uncovered; Frenchmen commenced to haul; took this day 8000 fish, 11 seines. At sunset went to Camp.
- Sth—At 3 a m rowed to limit; Frenchmen very eager to get on English ground. Took to-day about 7000 fish.
- 9th—Rowed to Cape; at 3 am Frenchmen commenced work; strong wind N W; sea too high to do much. At 9 am Captain Lamie came from Lascie to my camp; told me there was no fish or bait in Lascie; took from limit this day 6000 fish.

- 10th—At daylight went to limit; saw no French; spoke Dauntless bound to Lascie; sea high all day; at dark went to Mansfield Cove.
- 11th—At daylight went to Cape, found 11 seines, at the South Bill, fish plenty; took this day according to their account 23,000 fish. At dark moored for the night.
- 12th—At 3 a.m. went to Cape; Frenchmen uncovered; commenced work, wind N.E., done little for the day, sea getting up; took about 10,000 fish for eight seines. At dark stowed away for the night. This day one seine boat came up to the limit and insisted on hauling to the Westward of the Guard Boat; he did so with trouble, and hauled no fish—which was reported to his Captain, and I believe got a reprimand.
- 13th—At daylight rowed to limit, several boats on the ground; took this day from the limit 11,000 fish. At dark went to Camp.
- 14th—At 3 a.m. went to limit, wind North, sea high; took to-day for 11 seines 7,000 fish. At sunset rowed to Mansfield Cove.
- 15th—Went to Cape; at 3 am saw several French boats, fish scarce, took little for the day; at dark went to Camp.
 - 16th-At daylight went to Cape; French boats all North of the Cape.
 - 17th—Saw no Frenchmen all day, fish scarce; spoke Dauntless.
- 18th—Wind E N E; 32 French boats came in Mansfield Cove for shelter, sea very high.
 - 19th—French boats remained in Mansfield Cove all day.
- 20th—At daylight French boats left for the Cape; sea too high to do much.
- 21st—All the French boats came to Brine's Cove for shelter; took no fish all day.
- 22nd—Sea very high; several boats went to Shoe Cove and remained all day; some stopped in Mansfield Cove. Hauled no fish.
- 23rd—More moderate; could see no caplin, some of the French boats went home to Lascie, some remained but took no fish.
 - 24th—Saw only 8 boats all day, took little fish.

25th—At daylight rowed to Cape; saw but four seines all day, spoke one Master, told me the rest of the seines were landed, no caplin hauled. At the Cape to-day 2000 fish.

26th-Strong wind from the SE; the French left the Cape.

27th—Saw no Frenchmen all day.

28th-Saw several French boats at the North Bill, setting bultow.

29th—14 French batteaux came to South Bill with bultow; took this day from Cape 3,000 fish.

30th—At daylight went to Cape; at 6 a m 18 boats came to limit; took this evening from bultow 5000 fish. At dark went to Camp.

31st-Wind South, blowing hard; six boats at the Cape, got little fish all day.

August 1st-No Frenchmen at the Cape all day.

2nd—At 6 a m went to Cape; saw no Frenchmen until 9 a m, seven batteaux came to limit and set bultow; took this evening 600 fish.

3rd—At 4 a m rowed to Cape, remained all day, saw but seven French boats at the North Bill of Cape.

4th—Rowed to Cape at 6 a. m., several boats fishing at Middle Bill Cove. No Frenchmen at limit to-day.

5th—Went to Cape; spoke 1 batteau; told me fish was scarce with hookand-line. At dark went to camp

6th—At 6 a m rowed to limit, saw a great many boats at North Bill, fishing. At sundown went to camp.

7th—At 6 a m went to Cape, wind S E, blowing hard, saw no Frenchmen all day.

8th-Saw no Frenchmen all day; sea high.

9th-At 6 a m went to Cape, no French in sight all day. Went to camp.

10th-Wind N E, saw six boats at Middle Point fishing, hook-and-line.

11th—Wind North, sea high; saw no boats all day; at dark went to Mansfield's Bill for the night.

12th—At 6 a m rowed to Cape, saw several boats fishing at North Bill; fish scarce.

13th-Went to limit; saw no Frenchmen all day.

14th-Saw no Frenchmen at the Cape all day.

15th—Saw but two boats all day.

16th—Went to Cape, spoke one French boat, told me he caught but 6000 fish with hook-and-line for three hands; told me the best seine was 104,000 fish, and some as low as 52,000 fish. At dark went to Camp.

17th—At 6 a m rowed to Cape, saw but 4 batteaux all day; fish very scarce. At sunset went to camp.

18th-Went to Cape; no French all day.

19th-No Frenchmen at the Cape.

20th—Saw 4 French boats, spoke 1, told me there was no fish at the Cape. At dark went to camp.

21st—Several boats at the Middle Bill.

22nd—At 6 a m went to Cape, wind S E, saw no French.

23rd—At 6 am rowed to limit; 4 boats came to South Bill and set bultow.

24th—Frenchmen took from Cape 1,000 fish with hook-and-line.

25th-Saw no Frenchmen at the Cape all day, wind north east.

26-No Frenchmen at the Cape, sea high.

27th—No boats at the Cape.

28th—Saw French in sight all day.

29th-Rowed to Cape; saw one batteau all day.

30th-No Frenchmen at the Cape, wind S W.

31st-Saw no boats all this day.

September 1-Rowed to Cape, saw no Frenchmen all day, rowed to camp.

2nd-Rowed to Cape; no boats at the Cape.

3rd—Rowed to Cape, saw no Frenchmen; at 10 a m went on shore and took down camp and rowed to Shoe Cove—gave up the voyage.

(Signed,)

HENRY KNIGHT.

APPENDIX, No. 17.

NEWFOUNDLAND.

A RETURN

Showing the Number, Tonnage and Crews of Foreign Ships Cleared Outwards for each Country, in the year ended 31st December, 1859.

		With Ca			In Ball			Total.	
Countries to which departed.	Ships.	Tons.	Crews	Ships.	Tons.	Crews	Ships.	Tons.	Crews
United Kingdom	9	999	58				9	999	58
British Possessions	10	1940	67	9	2228	72	19	4168	139
France	1	146	10			}	1	146	10
Spain	64	8508	620	1	164	10	65	8672	630
Portugal	1	75	7				1	75	7
Italy	2	365	26				2	365	26
United States	23	3229	145				23	3229	145
Spanish W. Indies	6	924	48			·	6	924	48
Danish West Indies				1	163	8	1	163	8
Venezuela	2	237	13				2	237	13
Hayti				1	150	6	1	150	6
Brazil	4	645	38		٠,		4	645	38
•	122	17,068	1,032	12	2705	96	134	19773	1128

THOMAS GLEN,

Receiver General.

Custom House, February 27th, 1860.

NEWFOUNDLAND.

A RETURN

Shewing the Number, Tonnage and Crews of Foreign Ships Cleared Outwards for the year ended 31st December, 1859.

	W	ith Car	go.		In Balla			Total	
Nationality of Ships.	Ships.	Tons.	Crews	Ships.	Tons.	Crews	Ships.	Tons.	Crews
Hamburgh	2	208	11	1	442	15	3	650	26
Denmark	8	895	54	2	437	16	10	1332	70
Hanover	1	105	5				1	105	5
Spain	71	9554	693	1	1 64	10	72	9718	703
Portugal	4	582	35				4,	582	35
Holland	1	126	6	1	163	s	2	289	14
Prussia	1	148	8				1	148	8
Russia				1	404	11	1	404	11
United States	34	5450	220	6	1095	36	40	6545	256
	122	17,068	1032	12	2705	96	134	19773	1128

THOMAS GLEN,

Receiver General.

Custom House, February 27th, 1860.

APPENDIX, No. 18.

GOVERNMENT PAUPERS.

Names of Paupers admitted to Government Sheds from 1st January to 31st December, 1859.

No.	Names.	Age.	Last place of Residence.
1	William Allan	54	Fogo
-	John Kenney	74	St. John's
	George Garrett	66	do.
	Thomas Noles	75	Joe Bat's Arm
5	John Bolger	82	St. John's
	Patrick Walsh	72	do.
-	John Gallige	80	Twillingate
l	Charles Daily	71	St. John's
	Thomas Dillon	46	do.
10	Henry Frantom	76	Placentia
	John Breen	42	Harbor Grace
	Richard Barron	99	St. John's
	Richard Brien	63	do.
l	Richard Barry	74	Mobile
15	James Kean	72	St. John's
	John Litchfield	80	Flat Rock
l	John Coleman	64	St. John's
- 1	Luke Maher	75	do.
1	James McDonald	63	do.
20	James Shea	73	do.
	Michael Fitzgerald	7	do.
ļ	Thomas Shirly	72	do.
-	John Walsh	65	Placentia
[Charles Tracy	60	do.
25	Lawrence Roach	75	Fermuse
	William Duggan	70	Old Perlican
	Maurice Brien	83	Outer Cove
1	Denis Finn	68	LeMaunch
	Denis Fechan	67	St. John's
30	William Combs	78	Placentia
1	Michael Ducy	57	St. John's
1	John Andrews	71	Toad's Cove
	James Mocklar	56	St. John's
	Michael Power	64	do.

$\mathcal{A}PPENDIX$, No. 18.

Names of Paupers admitted to Government Sheds, from 1st January to 31st December, 1859.—Continued.

No.	Names.	Age.	Last place of Residence
35	Ned Walsh	40	St. John's
	Michael Hanrahan	56	do.
1	John Daily	40	do.
}	James Russell	16	Demerara
	Margaret Carrol	39	Placentia Bay
40	Maria Sullivan	4	do.
	Richard Clare	11	do.
1	Honora Clare	1½ 1½ 56	do.
1	Richard Harwood	$\hat{5}\hat{6}$	St. John's
-	James Doyle	58	do.
45	Michael Hoban	76	do.
	James Kennedy	88	do.
- 1	Ann Baker	87	Holyrood
-	John Hawkins	53	St. John's
1	Lawrence Karr	65	do.
50	Richard Laherty	81	Ferryland
	Jeremiah Grady	50	Labrador
	James Wall	61	Placentia
1	John Hearne	9	Belle Isle
	Denis Maccasey	69	Topsail
55	John Sullivan	66	Torbay
1	Charles Morrissy	25	Boston
	Mary McDonald	50	St. John's
	Bridget Hearne	30	do.
1	William Murse	20	Jamaica
60	Richard Courtney	60	St. John's
1	Jeffery Power	46	do.
	Betsy Baker	40	do.
	Mary Ann Baker	13	do.
	Thomas Baker	9	do.
65	Margaret Clance	45	do.
1	Patrick Tobin	56	do.
I	William Wood	44	Holyrood
	John Lopdell	74	Burin
	Ellen Lopdell	68	do.
70	James Farraut	52	St. John's
	Michael Power	63	do.
	Thomas Hoban	75	do.
	Michael Hanrahan	78	do.
	Richard Laherty	77	Fermuse

Names of Paupers admitted to Government Sheds from 1st January to 31st December, 1859.—Continued.

No.	Names.	Age.	Last place of Residence.
75	John Scanlan	70	Witless Bay
	William Sullivan	66	Torbay
	Denis Finn	67	LeMaunch
	John Dunford	50	Burin
1	James Daneen	70	St. John's
80	Thomas Kelly	60	do.
	Michael Doyle	70	Carbonear
1	John Slattery	70	St. John's
1	Daniel Brien	50	do.
-	Michael Ducy, jr.	22	do.
85	Thomas Ford	68	do.
	Andrew Barnes	60	Harbor Grace
	Patrick Neale	72	America
	Peter Barry	76	Lunatic Asylum
	Patrick Colford	70	do. Toad's Cove
90	Denis Carew	77	America
	James McDonald	66	St. John's
	Luke Tool	76	do.
1	Edward Morphy	76	Ferryland
1	James Thomson	60	St. John's
95	George McDonald	16	Calcutta
	Joe Power	72	St. John's
l	William Fitzgerald	60	Lower Canada
	James McDonald	65	St. John's
i j	John Hawkins	52	do.
00	Thomas Moore	57	do.
	James Ryan	52	Colliers
ĺ	William Tracy	50	St. John's
	John Asong	28	China
l	Michael McGrath	70	St. John's
.05	Hugh Carlon	42	America
	Michael Power	$\tilde{60}$	St. John's
	James Walsh	42	do. Hospital
	John Purcell	42	do.
-	Andrew Bolger	60	do.
10	Daniel Hallahan	62	do.
_	Patrick Walsh	66	Placentia
	James McGrath	53	Carbonear
	Patrick Moore	59	St. John's
14	Patrick Cummins	65	do.

Number of Paupers and amount of Expenses for Government Sheds per Month from 1st January to 31st December, 1859.

Number o	f Paupers	per Month.	Amount of Expenses per Month
January	61	Paupers	£81 1 8
February	61	do	79 11 4
March	61	do	68 4 0 228 17
f April	58	do	77 17 8
May	53	do	55 13 10
June	48	do	59 2 3 192 13
July	50	do	60 18 0
August	5 0	do	68 0 2
September	52	do	63 19 5 192 17
October	57	do	66 16 2
November	62	do	85 2 10
December	61	do	89 19 5 241 18
			£856 6
Patrick Sulliv	van, repai	rs ····	13 7
			£869 14

Names, Ages and previous Occupation of Paupers in Government Sheds from 1st to 23rd February, 1860.

No.	Namés.	Age.	Occupation.
1	William Allan	54	Fisherman
	John Kenny	74	do.
	George Garrett	66	
	Thomas Noles	75	Fisherman
5	John Bolger	82	do.
	Patrick Walsh	72	Master Vessel
1	John Gallige	80	F isherman
1	Charles Daily	71	do.
	Thomas Dillon	46	Idiot
10	John Breen	42	Sailor
ļ	Richard Barron	99	${f F}$ isherman
	James Thomson	60	do.
1	Luke Maher	75	Labourer
	Denis Maccasey	69	do.
15	John L₀pdell	74	Trader
	Andrew Barnes	60	Cooper, deceased 5th inst.
1	Michael Doyle	70	Fisherman
ļ	William Fitzgerald	60	do.
1	Luke Tool	76	Servant
20	Richard Harwood	56	Fisherman
	James McDonald	63	do.
	Laurence Roach	75	do.
1	Richard Brien	63	do.
j	Richard Barry	74	do.
25	James Kean	72	do.
)	John Litchfield	80	do.
1	John Coleman	64	do.
j	James Shea	73	do.
1	Thomas Shirly	72	$\mathbf{do.}$
30	John Walsh	65	do.
	Maurice Brien	83	$\mathbf{do.}$
	John Andrews	71	do.
1	John Daily	40	Crippled T ailor
	Margaret Carrol	39	Fishery Servant
35	Maria Sullivan	4	Illegitimate
	Richard Clare	1½ 88	do.
- 1	James Kennedy	88	Fisherman
	Richard Laherty	81	do.
1	William Scanlan	70	$\mathbf{do}_{m{\cdot}}$

Names, Ages and previous Occupation of Paupers in Government Sheds from 1st to 23rd February, 1860.—Continued.

No.	Names.	Age.	Occupation.
40	James Sullivan	66	Fisherman
	James Daneen	70	do.
	Thomas Kelly	60	Labourer
	Patrick Colford	70	Fisherman alias a Lunatic
	Edward Walsh	40	do. Blind
45	Edward Murphy	76	do.
	John Hawkins	52	do.
	Thomas Moore	57	Victular
	Michael McGrath	. 70	Fisherman
	Hugh Carlon	42	Labourer
50	Michael Power	60	Fisherman
	Patrick Walsh 2d	66	do.
1	John Purcell	42	do.
1	Andrew Bolger	60	Labourer
)	Daniel Hallahan	62	Fisherman
55	James McGrath	53	do.
	Michael Hanrahan	56	do.
1	Patrick Moore	59	do.
	Patrick Cummins	65	do.
	Michael Ivory	47	do.
60	Richard Courtney	62	Victular
	Charles Culleton	69	Fisherman
	James Russell	17	do.
	John Power	59	do.
	John Tyke	33	Labourer
65	Patrick Doyle	43	Cooper
66	Michael Hoban	76	Fisherman

APPENDIX, No. 19.

LETTER

And Enclosures from Mr. G. Mackinson, on the subject of the establishment of a suitable Steam Communication between Conception Bay and St. John's.

(COPY)

Honorable Colonial Secretary:

SIR,—

I take the liberty to address you in reference to Steam Communication in Conception Bay. After two years' experience I find that there is not sufficient passenger traffic, together with the Government grant, to pay a suitable Steamer to ply in the Bay; nor do I think the present route the one best calculated to serve the wants of the public. The accompanying proposed route, I am convinced, would be a great improvement; with the belief that all would be benefitted I make the following proposal, namely:—

To provide a first-class Steam Boat of not less than one hundred and fifty tons, to be propelled at the speed of ten Nautical miles per hour, and in every respect a first-class vessel, for the sum of Twelve Hundred and Fifty Pounds sterling, per annum, for a term of seven years, and to perform the route herein mentioned and to deliver the Mails at the respective Post Offices, weather permitting; but in case of accident to be allowed reasonable time for repairs, and in order to insure dispatch to be allowed to construct a suitable landing place and store for goods at the Point of Beach in Harbor Grace. Should the Government be pleased to entertain this proposal, an early reply will greatly oblige, as I intend leaving for England on the 10th January, and could then make such arrangements as would be required for carrying into effect the above proposal.

I have, &c.,

(Signed) G. MAKINSON.

Harbor Grace, December 27, 1859.

Proposed route of Steamer from April 10th to November 1st.

- Monday—Leave Brigus at 8 A.M. for St. John's, calling at Harbor Grace and Carbonear.
- Tuesday—Leave St. John's at 8 A.M. for Brigus, calling at Carbonear and Harbor Grace.
- Wednesday—Leave Brigus at S A. M. for Portugal Cove, calling at Harbor Grace and Carbonear; return to Brigus, Carbonear, and Harbor Grace.
- Friday—Leave Harbor Grace at S A. M. for St. John's, calling at Brigus.
- Saturday—Leave St. John's at 8 A. M. for Brigus, calling at Carbonear and Harbor Grace.
- From November 1st to January 1st—Twice each week to Portugal Cove, and once to St. John's.

From January 1st to April 10th—Once each week to Portugal Cove.

(Signed) G. MAKINSON.

Harbor Grace, 5th January, 1860.

My DEAR SIR,-

Mr. Makinson showed me, some days ago, his proposition to the Government for placing an efficient Steamer on this Bay, for going round the Cape twice and to Portugal Cove once a week, and has expressed a desire that I should give you my opinion on the matter, which I have much pleasure in doing, knowing the kindness with which you have always received my opinion on all our local affairs.

I can assure you that nothing has given us so much trouble the past seven years as Steam in this Bay. We have had good Boats—spared no expense, and the Government has always been most considerate and liberal to us, but all our efforts disappointed the public as well as ourselves, and left all employed in the enterprise very heavy losers in the end, both with the "Lady LeMarchant" and "Ellen Gisborne." So annoying and unsatisfactory was the whole concern, besides the heavy loss to Ridley, Donnelly and myself, that we had to abandon it in disgust.

Mr. Makinson being a practical Engineer and could give a large share of his own time and attention to the working of the Boat and her general management, thought that with attention and a due regard to economy, with the liberal grant continued by the Government, that he would make it pay handsomely; but after two years' trial he informs me, that with all his advantages -besides getting the Boat on very easy terms-he cannot make her pay; thus verifying to the letter the oft repeated observation of our late valued friend, Peter Brown, "that no Steamer would ever pay expenses in Conception Bay, except by going round the Cape to St. John's." Mr. Makinson has good friends at home who will assist him in placing a really good Boat upon that line; and seeing that our former efforts have so signally failed, I hope you and the other members of the Government may see your way clear in encouraging him to do so, as steam communication between the Capital and this Bay, at the same time affording considerable facilities to the Northern and Western ports of the Island, has now become a necessity that cannot be overlooked nor dispensed with.

I have talked over the matter with Mr. Ridley and Mr. Donnelly, who are both equally favourable to this course having a fair trial, although we cannot hide from ourselves the fact that Steam round the Cape twice a week, will greatly favour the St. John's trade, to the prejudice of our interests, still we are willing to waive even that consideration for the welfare and convenience of the public.

You will excuse the length of this note and my troubling you on this matter, as in this I have no possible interest but the good of the whole people interested.

I am, &c.,

(Signed) JOHN MUNN.

'The Honorable John Kent, &c., &c., &c., St. John's.

Harbor Grace, 6th January, 1860.

DEAR SIR,-

Having heard that you contemplate placing a Steamer of sufficient speed and capacity upon this Bay for the purpose of carrying the Mails and Passengers, provided that you receive a liberal support from the Government, we are

aware that such a vessel is required to meet the growing wants of this important district; we do hope that they may meet your wishes and enable you to carry out such a desirable object.

We would, however, recommend you to procure such a Boat as might be able at least once a week to run round the Cape to St. John's, thereby affording an excellent opportunity for the quick transit of goods from thence. You have our best wishes.

We are, dear Sir, your's sincerely.

(Signed) RUTHERFORD, BROTHERS.

Mr. Makinson.

Carbonear, January 6th, 1860.

SIR,-

In compliance with your request, that I would give my opinion in reference to the advisability of having direct communication by steam with St. John's,-

I beg to say, that my views of the matter are decidedly in favor of having direct communication, and not as at present (via Cove) but need not remind you that the Boat now on the Bay "Ellen Gisborne," would be altogether unfit for this purpose, and think the increasing trade of this Bay would warrant you putting on such a Steamer as would command confidence and do the work efficiently. And I have no doubt but a grant of public money, sufficient in amount, will be guaranteed you by Government for this purpose.

I am, Sir, your obedient servant,

(Signed)

ISRAEL L. M'NIEL.

G. Makinson, Esq., Harbor Grace.

Carbonear, January 7th, 1860.

DEAR SIR,-

In accordance with your request to me yesterday, to give you my opinion regarding the desirableness of having a steamer of sufficient power to ply round the Cape to St. John's and back twice a week and to the Cove once. I

have to say that I think it would be a very great benefit to this Bay, and a convenience to the public generally, provided that the places of call were so arranged, that each, in regular turn would have their proper appointed days of call, from which no deviation should be permitted except through stress of weather. When I look at the increasing importance of the trade of this Bay and of the Island generally, and compare it with places of far less commercial reputation, having Steam Communication of first rate accommodation in almost every direction, I cannot help thinking it a great reflection on the public spirit and enterprise of the people of this Colony. I think also, that under any arrangement of route, that a new and more powerful Boat is quite indispensable, and I believe it to be the general opinion that the "Ellen Gisborne" does not come up to the standard of efficiency that the public have a right to expect. If the Cape route (which I am in favour of) be adopted, and a new Boat with increased power be laid on, the advantage would be very considerable, in the increased security it would give to shippers of goods, and thereby saving of Insurance. In any view of the contemplated change, I think it highly desirable, if we are to keep up with the spirit of the age.

I am Dear Sir, your's truly,

(Signed)

JOHN RORKE.

G. Makinson, Esq., Harbor Grace.

Carbonear, January 7th, 1860.

DEAR SIR,-

The attainment of direct steam communication between this Bay and St. John's, I consider would be of great utility and benefit to this locality.

The advantage derived from the quick transmission of goods, &c., is of the utmost importance.

Sir, your's, etc.,

(Signed)

JNO. F. APSEY.

Mr. Makinson.

Brigus, January 7th, 1860.

DEAR SIR,-

Your proposal to lay on a Steamer to run from the ports of this Bay to Portugal Cove and St. John's, which you have submitted to me, I consider a very good one, and would be very beneficial to the trade of this Bay as well as of St. John's and the country in general, and trust that you will be enabled to carry it out.

Dear Sir, your's etc.,

(Signed)

JOHN LEAMON.

Mr. George Makinson.

Carbonear, January 7th, 1860.

DEAR SIR,-

From the rapid increasing trade between Conception Bay and the Capital of this Island, I believe for the general interest of the inhabitants that a larger and swifter Steam boat than the "Ellen Gisborne" has become essential: I would therefore suggest the necessity of having a Boat of 150 tons burthen to steam 10 knots per hour against a moderate breeze of wind, and to have suitable accommodation for Freight and Passengers. To ply round the Cape St. Francis to St. John's twice, and to Portugal Cove once in each week during the spring, summer, and autumn months, and once in each week when practicable during the winter months, calling at Carbonear on her way to and from said places.

A Steamboat of the above description would, in my opinion, meet the expectations of the inhabitants of this District and claim public support.

I am Sir, your obedient servant,

(Signed)

JOHN McCARTHY.

Mr. George Makinson.

APPENDIX, No. 20.

ORIGINAL CORRESPONDENCE

Brought to Newfoundland by Lord Bury and draft of proposed Contract by H.M.Government with the Galway Company upon Steam Communication.

Colonial Office, October 9th, 1858.

SIR,-

I transmit to you copy of a letter, with its enclosure, received from the Lords Commissioners of the Treasury on the subject of the projected postal communication between this country and Newfoundland.

This despatch will be delivered to you by Lord Bury who is about to visit the Colony, in connexion (as I understand) with the proposed service from Galway. But you will observe that their Lordships leave to the Colony the question between this proposal and the other specified in their letter; and Sir Edward B. Lytton concurs with their Lordships in doing so.

I have, &c.,

(Signed) HERMAN MERIVALE,

(In the absence of Sir E. B. Lytton.)

Governor Sir A. Bannerman.

(COPY)

10,253, Newfoundland.

Immediate.

Treasury Chambers, 7th October, 1858.

My Lord,-

I am desired by the Lords Commissioners of Her Majesty's Treasury to state, for the information of Secretary Sir E. B. Lytton, that, in consequence of the letter from the Colonial Office of the 7th ulto. enclosing Minutes of the Council of Newfoundland of the 30th July last, my Lords have made enquiries as to the possibility of obtaining a service, as proposed by the North Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company on the 15th April last, for a subsidy of £10,000, and that my Lords have some reason to suppose that Mr. Cunard would undertake the service on those terms.

I am to state, that a deputation has waited upon the Secretary of this Board, offering an improved service from Galway to Newfoundland, and has presented a tender of which a copy is herewith enclosed—that Lord Bury is about to proceed to St. John's on Tuesday next to negotiate for such improved service with the Colony—and that the deputation has requested to be informed whether, in the event of the Colony being willing to offer a larger contribution for such improved service, the Imperial Government would extend their contribution beyond the £3000 offered by the late Board of Treasury in their Minute of the 17th July, 1857.

The late Board of Treasury declined making any advance beyond the £3000, nevertheless, my Lords being desirous of meeting what may be the views and wishes of the Colony, and being duly sensible of the great advantages of expediting the communication with Newfoundland and the North American Colonies generally, are disposed to authorize an advance in the Imperial contribution from £3000 to £4000, or a maximum of £4500, if Sir E. B. Lytton shall be of opinion that such advance will be expedient, and provided an advance at least equal to that of the Imperial Government beyond the £7000 now offered by the Colony shall be made from the Colonial resources, and that the service shall be in other respects, excepting as regards the port of embarkation, as complete as that proposed upon the former occasion.

My Lords, however, are desirous to have it understood, that it will be for the Colony to determine whether it will be for their interests to enter into the proposed arrangement with the Company represented by Lord Bury, or to throw the service open to public competition, or to deal with the present Contractor, Mr. Cunard, subject of course in either case to the eventual approval of Her Majesty's Government; and my Lords suggest whether it may not be desirable, in authorizing the advance to the extent of £1000 or £1500 a year beyond the original £3000, to leave it to the Governor of Newfoundland to prescribe such conditions in connexion with such advance, on the part of the Imperial Government, as Sir E. B. Lytton, or the Governor of Newfoundland may deem desirable.

I have, &c.,

(Signed) GEO. A. HAMILTON.

Lord Carnarvon, &c., &c. &c.

$\mathcal{A}PPENDIX$, No. 20.

Atlantic Steam Navigation Co., 40, Cannon Street, E. C., October 7th, 1858.

SIR,—

A letter having been received from the Colonial Secretary of Newfoundland dated 3rd August last, stating that the Government of that Colony had accepted the offer made them by the Imperial Government to provide a direct postal service between the United Kingdom and Newfoundland.

By desire of the Directors of the Atlantic Steam Navigation Company I have the honor to acquaint you, for the information of the Lords Commissioners of Her Majesty's Treasury, that a powerful line of Steamships having been established by this Company between Galway and America, the Directors propose to contract with Her Majesty's Government, and the Colonial Government of Newfoundland, for the conveyance of Mails between the United Kingdom and St. John's, for a subsidy of not less than £1000 per voyage, which service the Steamships of this Company are capable of performing in five days, or on an average of six days throughout the year.

The Right Honorable Lord Viscount Bury, M.P., being about to proceed in the Steamship Pacific on the 12th instant, for the purpose of entering into Contracts for Postal Subsidies with the British North American Colonies, the Directors will esteem it a particular favor if the decision of the Lords Commissioners of Her Majesty's Treasury respecting the subsidy for Newfoundland can be communicated to them before Lord Bury's departure.

I have, &c.,

(Signed)

A. M. WIER,

General Manager.

G. A. Hamilton, Esq., Secretary of Her Majesty's Treasury, Whitehall.

True copy. (Signed) R. R. L.

(No. 29)

Downing Street, 2d June, 1859.

SIR,—

With reference to the correspondence which has passed on the subject, I

transmit to you for your information the copy of a further contract which has been entered into between Her Majesty's Government and the Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company, for the conveyance of Her Majesty's Mails between Galway, Boston and New York.

I have the honor to be, Sir,

Your most obedient, humble servant,

CARNARVON,
For Sir E. B. LYTTON.

Gov. Sir A. Bannerman, &c., &c., &c. Newfoundland.

GALWAY, BOSTON AND NEW YORK MAILS.

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT

Made this Twenty-first day of April in the year of our Lord One Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty-nine, between the Commissioners for executing the office of Lord High Admiral of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland for and on behalf of Her Majesty of the one part, and the Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company (Limited) of the other part.

Witness that the said Company doth hereby covenant promise and agree with the said Commissioners for and on behalf of Her Majesty that the said Company in consideration of the payments hereinafter stipulated to be made shall and will at the sole cost and charge of the said Company at all times during the continuance of this Contract diligently taithfully and to the satisfaction of the said Commissioners for the time being provide maintain keep seaworthy and in complete repair and readiness for the purpose of conveying as hereinafter provided all Her Majesty's mails in which all despatches and bags of letters are agreed to be comprehended which shall at any time or times or from time to time by the said Commissioners or Her Majesty's Postmaster General or any of the officers or agents of the said Commissioners or Postmaster General be required to be

Company to convey Mails.

conveyed between Galway in that part of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland called Ireland and Boston in the United States of America and between Galway aforesaid and New York in the said United States that is to say fortnightly from Galway to Boston and from Boston to Galway and fortnightly from Galway to New York and from New York to Galway alternately and such mails shall be so conveyed by means of a sufficient number of good substantial and efficient steam-vessels each and every of such vessels to be of not less than 2000 tons builders measurement and always supplied with first rate appropriate steam engines of not less than 450 horsepower that all the vessels employed under this contract shall be always supplied and furnished at the cost of the said Company with all necessary and proper machinery engines apparel furniture stores tackle boats fuel oil tallow provisions anchors cables fire-pumps and all other proper and requisite means for extinguishing fire lightning conductors on Sir Snow Harris's or other approved principle charts chronometers proper nautical instruments medicines medicaments and whatsoever else may be requisite and necessary for equipping the said vessels and rendering them constantly efficient for the service hereby contracted to be performed and also manned and provided with competent officers with appropriate certificates granted pursuant to the Act 17 and 18 Victoria chapter 104 or to the Act or Acts in force for the time being relative to the granting certificates to officers in the merchant-service and also a medical officer to be approved of by the said Commissioners and who shall give medical attendance medicines and medicaments gratis to all persons conveyed under or by virtue of this agreement or whose passage money may be paid tor in whole or in part by the public and with a sufficient number of efficient engineers and a sufficient crew of able seamen and other men to be in all respects as to vessels engines equipments engineers officers and crew subject in the first instance and from time to time and at all times afterwards to the approval of the said Commissioners and of such other persons as shall at any time or times or from time to time have authority under the said Commissioners to inspect and examine the same and the said Company shall previously to any vessel being built for or which is intended to be employed in the performance of this Contract submit the entire designs plans and sections of each and every of such vessels with pro-

Fortnightly from Galway to Boston, and from Boston to Galway, and fortnightly from Galway to New York, and from New York to Galway, alternately, by a sufficient number of steam vessels.

Tonnage of steam vessels, &c.

Vessels to be furnished with proper machinery, tackle, &c.

And manned with certificated officers, &c., and a medical officer.

Vessels and crew subject to Admiralty approval.

Designs, &c., of vessels to be submitted to Admiralty.

per specifications as to engines and other fittings to the said Commissioners and be bound to adopt such designs plans sections and specifications and such fittings scantling and such dispositions of hatchways as the said Commissioners shall declare in writing to be necessary and the said Commissioners shall be at liberty and have power to have all such vessels and engines tried in whatever manner they may at any time or times think fit and to take whatever steps they may deem expedient to satisfy themselves of the fitness of each vessel in every respect for the said service before the vessel commences the same.

Duration of winter and summer services.

And it is hereby agreed that the service hereby contracted to be performed shall be divided into a winter and a summer service and that the winter service shall include the months of November December January February and March and the remaining seven months shall constitute the summer service.

Mails to be conveyed according to Table annexed.

And the said Company hereby agree with the said Commissioners that the said Company shall and will during the continuance of this Contract in every case diligently faithfully and to the satisfaction of the said Commissioners and with all possible speed convey Her Majesty's mails on board the said vessels respectively as hereinafter mentioned That such vessels so approved of and equipped and manned as aforesaid and with Her Majesty's mails on board shall on such days and at such hours as the said Commissioners may at any time or times appoint immediately after Her Majesty's mails are embarked from time to time to put to sea from the several ports and at the times mentioned in the time table marked A hereunto annexed and shall perform the several voyages out and home as mentioned in the said table and shall land the mails at or by the times therein set forth

Telegraphic messages to be delivered at St. John's, Newfoundland. That the said Company will at all times during the continuance of this Contract deliver such telegraphic messages as the said Commissioners may at any time or times direct at St. John's Newfoundland within six days from the time of the vessel carrying them leaving Galway aforesaid Provided always that whenever any of the said vessels shall not enter the port of St. John's it may be lawful for the said Company to land all telegraphic messages by a branch

steamer or other vessel or means to be provided by and at the expense of the said Company Such steamer or other vessel or means being previously approved of by the said Commissioners But even when such branch vessel or means is made use of the telegraphic messages shall nevertheless be delivered at that port within such six days as atoresaid

And the said Company deth hereby further agree that all the said vessels employed in the conveyance of Her Majesty's mails shall both on the outward and homeward voyages call at St. John's Newfoundland or in the event of any of the vessels being prevented making St. John's to the satisfaction of the Admiralty agent or other officer in charge of Her Majesty's mails by stress of weather or other unavoidable cause then and in such case the vessel shall call at Halitax Nova Scotia and the said Company shall convey in the said vessels to and from and cause to be delivered and received at each of the ports or places at which the said vessels are to proceed call or touch in performance of this Contract all such of Her Majesty's mails passengers and telegraphic messages as shall have to be delivered or received at such places respectively and as regards the places mentioned in the time table A hereunto annexed within the times therein respectively specified but should the said Company fail from whatever cause arising to deliver the same at the said places within the respective periods hereinbefore mentioned or referred to then and in every such case the said Company shall forfeit and pay to Her Majesty her heirs and successors the sum of £5 for every hour's delay beyond the stipulated periods for the first 24 hours and a further sum of £10 for every successive hour consumed on the respective voyages beyond the time mentioned in the time table A after the expiration of the said first 24 hours but the full amount of such penalties on any one voyage shall in no single case exceed the amount to be paid for such voyage

Vessels to call at St. John's, Newfoundland, or if prevented by stress of weather, &c., at Halifax. Nova Scotia.

When mails, &c., are to be delivered and received, and as to penalties for non-delivery of mails, &c.

That the said Commissioners or any of their officers or agents vessels shall delay their shall be at liberty and have full power at any time during the continuance of this Contract to direct that any one or more of such the Admiralty or their agents. vessels so conveying Her Majesty's mails from any of the said ports or places shall delay her or their departure for any period not ex-

departure for 24 hours, if deemed expedient by

ceeding 24 hours beyond the period which may have been fixed for the departure of such vessel or vessels and a letter addressed to the Commander or officer in charge of the vessel so to be delayed shall be a sufficient authority for such detention.

Penalties for not putting to sea at day and hour appointed, or departure delayed, &c.

That if any vessel having Her Majesty's mails on board shall stop linger or deviate from the direct course on her voyage or shall delay starting at exact time or shall put back into port after starting without the sanction in each and every case of the officer or other person authorised to have the charge of the said mails or when so sanctioned to put back into port shall not start again and proceed direct in performance of the service hereby contracted for when and so soon as required by the said officer or other person authorized to have the charge of the said mails then and in each and every of such cases and as often as the same shall happen the said Company shall and will pay unto Her Majesty her heirs and successors the sum of £100 and that if a vessel which ought to leave Galway Boston or New York in the performance of this Contract shall not proceed on her voyage for 12 hours after the proper and appointed time the said Company shall and will so often as any such omission shall happen pay unto Her Majesty her heirs and successors the sum of £500 and also the further sum of £500 for every successive period of 12 hours which shall elapse until such vessel shall proceed on her voyage in performance of this Contract.

Company to make improvements in the construction, &c., of vessels.

That the said Company shall and will from time to time and at all times during the continuance of this Contract make such alterations or improvements in the construction equipments or machinery of each and every of the said vessels which shall be used by them in the performance of this Contract as the advanced state of science may suggest and the said Commissioners may direct.

When Company not liable to certain penalties.

Provided always that the said Company shall not be liable to any penalties for delay in proceeding to sea on the day and at the hour fixed or for excess of time in performing any voyage if such delay be proved to the satisfaction of the said Commissioners to have arisen from circumstances over which the said Company and their servants had not and could not have had any control.

And the said Company do hereby further agree that the said Company shall at all times during the continuance of this Contract have in constant readiness for the due execution of the service hereby contracted to be performed the number of vessels equal in tonnage and efficiency to those hereinbefore stipulated to be provided and shall in every case of any of the said vessels becoming disabled immediately at their own cost and charge replace the same by good and efficient vessels of similar tonnage obtained by hire or otherwise.

Company always to have vessels ready, &c., in case of being disabled to replace same.

That the said Company shall receive and allow to remain on board each of the said vessels so to be and while employed in the performance of this Contract and also while remaining at each or either of the ports or places for return mails and with or without mails in charge an officer in Her Majesty's Navy or any other person to be appointed by the said Commissioners to take charge of the said mails and also a servant of the said officer or other person as aforesaid if required and that every such officer or other person shall be recognized and considered by the said Company and their officers agents and seamen as the agent of the said Commissioners in charge of Her Majesty's mails and as having full authority in all cases to require a due and strict execution of this Contract on the part of the said Company their officers servants and agents and to determine every question whenever arising relative to proceeding to sea or putting into harbor or to the necessity of stopping to assist any vessel in distress or to save human life and that the decision of such officer or other person as aforesaid shall in each and every such case be final and binding on the said Company unless the said Commissioners on appeal by the said Company shall think proper to decide otherwise but it is understood the above expression "to determine every question" shall not confer upon such officer or other person as aforesaid the power of compulsion in such cases

Officer appointed by Admiralty, and servant, to be received on board, and former to be considered as Agent of Admiralty, with authority to require due execution of contract, and determine as to proceeding to sea, or putting into harbour, or assisting vessel in distress, &c.

Decision of officer to be final, unless Admiralty on appeal decide otherwise.

That if the said Commissioners at any time or times think fit they shall be at liberty in any case or cases to appoint in addition to the said naval officer an officer in the service of Her Majesty's Postmaster General to have charge of the said mails and in such case or cases any such last mentioned officer and also a servant of

Admiralty may appoint in addition to naval officer, an officer of Her Majesty's Post-master-General and servant.

the said officer if required shall be received and be allowed to remain on board each of the said vessels as is herein provided with respect to any such naval officer and his servant but when any officer in the service of Her Majesty's Post Office has the charge of the said mails his duties shall be confined to Post Office business

Accommodation for sorting and making up mails to be provided.

That the said Company shall provide all necessary and suitable accommodation to the satisfaction of the Postmaster General for the time being for the use of the Government officers and for the purpose of sorting and making up such mails on board of such vessels with all necessary and suitable fittings-up for the performance of such duties

First class cabin to be provided for officer, with place for deposit of mails, and he is to be victualled as a chief cabin passenger.

That a suitable first-class cabin with appropriate bedding and furniture shall at the cost of the said Company be provided and appropriated by them for and to the exclusive use and for the sole accommodation of every such officer or other persons and also a proper and convenient place of deposit on board with secure lock and key for Her Majesty's mails and that each and every of the said officers or other persons shall be victualled by the said Company as a chief-cabin passenger without any charge being made either for his passage or victualling and that should all or any of such officers or other persons require a servant such servant shall be also provided with a proper and suitable berth and be duly victualled by and at the cost of the said Company without any charge being made for the same.

Mails to be delivered and received at all places to which vessels proceed and officer to be conveyed to and from the shore, and directions of officer obeyed as to mode, &c., of receiving and delivering mails. That Her Majesty's mails hereby agreed to be conveyed shall be delivered and received at each of the places to which the said vessels are to proceed in the performance of this Contract and that at each port or place where the said mails are to be delivered and received the said officer or other persons having charge of Her Majesty's mails shall whenever and as often as by him deemed practicable or necessary be conveyed on shore and also from the shore to the vessel employed for the time being in the performance of this Contract together with or (if such officer consider requisite for the purposes of this Contract) without Her Majesty's mails in a suitable and seaworthy boat of not less than four ears to be furnished with effectual covering for the mail bags and properly provided manned and equipped by the said Company and that the directions

of the said officer or other persons shall in all cases be obeyed as to the mode time and place of receiving and delivering Her Majesty's mails.

That if the said Commissioners shall during the continuance of this Contract or of any part thereof think fit to intrust the charge and custody of the mails to the masters of all or any of the vessels to be employed in the performance of this Contract and in all cases when the officer or other person appointed to have charge of Her Majesty's mails shall be absent the masters of all or any of such vessels shall without any charge to the public take due care of and shall be responsible for the receipt safe custody and delivery of the said mails and each of such masters shall make the usual oath or declaration or declarations required or which may hereafter be required by Her Majesty's Postmaster-General in such and similar cases and furnish such journals returns and information to and perform such services as the said Commissioners or any of their agents may require and every such master having the charge of such mails shall himself immediately on the arrival at any of the said ports or places of any vessel so conveying the same himself deliver all Her Majesty's mails for such port or place into the hands of the postmaster of the port or place where such mails are to be delivered or into the hands of such other person as the said Commissioners shall direct and authorise to receive the same receiving in like manner all the return and other mails to be forwarded in due course.

When master of vessel to have charge of and receive and deliver mails, &c.

That the said Company shall not nor shall any of the masters of any of the vessels employed or to be employed under this Contract receive or permit to be received on board any of the vessels employed under this contract any letters for conveyance other than those duly in charge of the said naval officer or other person authorised to have charge of the said mails under or by virtue of this Contract or which are or may be privileged by law and the said naval officer or other person shall report to the said Commissioners any default in this respect and in case of any such default the said Company shall be liable to be proceeded against for a breach of this Contract.

Company not to receive on board any other letters than those in charge under this Contract.

That every naval officer authorized to have the charge of the

Naval officer in charge of mails may survey vessels, &c., and deficiency to be remedied under penalty of £100. said mails shall either alone or with such other persons as he may consider necessary have full power and authority whenever and as often as he may deem it requisite to examine and survey in such manner and with the assistance of such persons as he may think proper all and every or any of the vessels employed or to be employed in the performance of this Contract and the hulls engines machinery equipments and crews thereof on his giving reasonable notice in writing to the master or commander for the time being of the vessel about to be examined or to the person acting as such of such his intention and if any defect or deficiency be ascertained and notice thereof in writing be given to such master or person and if the said master or other person shall not immediately or as soon as possible thereupon remedy replace or effectively repair or make good every such defect or deficiency the said Company shall in every such case forfeit and pay to Her Majesty her heirs and successors the sum of £100 but the payment of such penalty shall not in anywise release or discharge the said Company from remedying replacing or effectively repairing or making good such deficiency or defect or from being considered to have committed a breach of this Contract,

Admiralty by agents may survey vessels, &c., and if vessel unseaworthy, or alteration required, not to be employed until alteration, &c., made to satisfaction of Admiralty, under penalty of £500.

That the said Commissioners shall also have full power whenever and as often as they may deem it requisite to survey by any of their officers or agents all and every or any of the vessels employed and to be employed in the performance of this Contract and the hulls thereof and the engines machinery furniture tackle apparel stores equipments and the officers engineers and crew of every such vessel the said vessels to be opened in their hulls whenever the said officers may require and it any such vessel or any part thereof or any engines machinery furniture tackle apparel boats stores or equipments shall on any such survey be declared by any of such officers or agents unseaworthy or not adapted to the service hereby contracted to be performed or if the said Commissioners shall deem it necessary or expedient that any alteration or improvement shall be made therein or any part thereof in order to keep pace with the more advanced state of science every vessel which shall be disapproved of or in which such deficiency defect or want of improvement shall appear shall be deemed inefficient for any service hereby contracted to be performed and shall not be employed again in the con-

veyance of Her Majesty's mails until such defect or deficiency shall have been repaired or supplied or the alterations or improvements as the case may be shall have been made to the satisfaction of the said Commissioners and if employed before such defect or deficiency shall have been supplied or such alterations or improvements as the case may be shall have been made to the satisfaction of the said Commissioners the said Company shall forfeit and pay to Her Majesty her heirs and successors the sum of £500.

That the said Company and all commanding and other officers of the vessels to be employed in the performance of this Contract and all agents seamen and servants of the said Company shall at all times during the continuance of this Contract punctually attend to the orders and directions of the said Commissioners or of any of their officers or agents as to the landing delivering and receiving Her Majesty's mails.

Company and their Agents, &c., to attend to orders of Admiralty or officers, as to landing, &c., mails.

That the said Company shall and will when and as often as in writing they or the masters of their respective vessels shall be required so to do by the said Commissioners or by any naval or other officers or agents acting under their authority (such writing to specify the rank or description of the person or persons to be conveyed and the accommodation to be provided for him or them) receive provide for victual and convey to and from and between the places to which any of the vessels are to proceed in the performance of this Contract on board each and every or any of the vessels to be employed in the performance of this Contract (in addition to the naval or other officers authorised to have charge of the said mails) any number of naval military and civil officers in the service of Her Majesty not exceeding four in any one ship with or without their wives and children as chief cabin passengers and any number of noncommissioned and warrant officers or civilians in Her Majesty's service not exceeding four in any one ship with and without their wives and children as fore-cabin passengers together with the servants of both chief and fore-cabin passengers and any number of seamen marines soldiers or artificers in Her Majesty's service not exceeding ten in any one ship with or without their wives and children as deck passengers to be always provided with effectual protection from rain rines, soldiers, or artisun and bad weather and not exposed on deck without such compe-

On requirement by Admiralty, &c., a limited number of officers in the navy, army, or civil service, with wives,&c., to be received on board as chief-cabin passen-

And of non-commissioned and warrant officers and civilians in Her Majesty's service with wives,&c., as forecabin passengers, together with servants.

And of seamen, maficers, &c., as deck-passengers, with effectual protection from rain,&e

tent shelter as long notice as practicable being given to the said Company or to their agent at the port of embarkation and all such passengers shall be permitted to ship the quantity of baggage hereinafter specified or at the option of such passengers the quantity of baggage allowed by the said Company to ordinary passengers of similar rank free of all charge for the conveyance of the same.

What class of passengers they are to be considered.

That commissioned officers their wives and children shall be considered as chief cabin passengers non-commissioned and warrant officers their wives and children as fore cabin passengers and seamen mariners private soldiers artificers and their wives and children as deck passengers and the said servants (in respect of accommodation) as the servants of chief cabin passengers

Space and weight of baggage.

That each field officer and every naval officer of equal or superior rank shall be allowed ninety cubic feet of space in measurement for baggage provided (except in the case of the Royal Engineers) such allowance shall not exceed eighteen hundredweight in weight and all other officers in Her Majesty's Naval and Military Service and officers in the Civil Service sixty cubic feet each and that (except in the case of the Royal Engineers) such allowance shall not exceed twelve hundredweight in weight

Baggage of Royal Engineers.

That the Royal Engineers shall be allowed the same measurement but to extend in weight to twenty-seven hundredweight for field officers and eighteen hundred weight for every other officer of the Royal Engineers.

Baggage of soldiers of Royal Artillery, and Sappers and Miners, &c., and further allowance for married officers That soldiers of the Royal Artillery and Sappers and Miners and their wives shall be allowed six cubic feet each for baggage and all married officers when accompanied by their wives or families a further allowance not exceeding one-half of that before mentioned according to their rank and corps

Conveyance of field pieces, &c., and of ham-mocks.

That for every company of the Royal Artillery embarked there shall be conveyed free of all charge the proper proportion of light field-pieces if required and that any hammocks and bedding which may be sent out for the use of the troops or other persons embarked shall be placed in charge of the officer authorized to have

charge of Her Majesty's Mails and be brought back to Galway if required free of any charge for freight.

That the victualling of officers their wives and children conveyed as chief-cabin passengers shall be the same as is usually allowed by the said Company to chief-cabin passengers their wives and children the victualling of non-commissioned officers their wives and children conveyed as fore-cabin passengers shall be the same as is allowed to the boatswain and carpenter of the said Company's steam-ships and the victualling of seamen marines soldiers and artificers their wives and children conveyed as deck passengers shall be the same as is allowed to the seamen of the said Company's steam-ships and the victualling of the servants of officers whether chief or fore-cabin passengers shall be the same as the servants of other chief or fore-cabin passengers.

As to victualling of Admiralty passengers.

That the passage-money shall be paid in full of all charges for mess including a pint of port or good foreign white wine and one bottle of malt liquor per day for each officer conveyed as a chief cabin passenger and one gill of spirits per day or an equivalent if not issued for each warrant officer non-commissioned officer seaman marine soldier artificer and servant conveyed as a fore-cabin or a deck passenger at and after the rates mentioned in the table of rates of passage marked B hereunto annexed

Rate of passage money which is to be in full for mess, wines, &c., and what the mess is to include.

That the payment for the passage ordered at the expense of the public for any person shall only be made on the production of the order for the passage and of a certificate from the person in the following form namely

Certificate for passage money.

"I hereby certify that on the at as a passenger on board the mail steam packet for passage to and landed at on the "

To this certificate the following addition is to be made in every case of a male cabin passenger namely

"I further certify that the first dinner meal taken on board was on the and the last dinner meal on the

"Dated this

day of

,

And the correctness of the dates must be corroborated by the master of the packet adding underneath the passenger's signature

"The dates inserted in this certificated are correct

" (Signature)

"Master of the Packet"

Passage money for families and wives of officers to be paid by officers, and what the rate is to be. That the passage money for the families and wives of officers shall be paid to the said Company by the officers themselves at rates never exceeding those contained in the before-mentioned table of rates

Passengers, exclusive of men, under 17 & 18 Vic., c. 104.

That the passengers hereinbefore-mentioned or referred to are to be exclusive of any men to be sent home under the provisions of the Act 17 and 18 Victoria c 104 the rate of passage for whom is to be and to be paid for in accordance with the provisions of that Act

Soldiers, or deek passengers, to have adequate protection from rain, &c.

That whenever the said Company shall convey any soldiers or deck passengers other than those specially provided for by this Contract the said Company shall provide them with adequate protection from rain sun and bad weather and they shall not be exposed on deck without such competent shelter.

Small packages to be received on board as Admiralty, &c., may direct.

That the said Company shall and will receive on board each and every of the said vessels employed in the performance of this Contract any number of small packages containing astronomical instruments charts wearing apparel medicines or other articles and convey and deliver the same to from and between the said ports or places to or from which the said mails are to be conveyed in the performance of this Contract when and as often as directed by the said Commissioners or their Agent or by the British naval officer in command of the station or at any port where the vessel may touch to the extent of twenty cubic feet in any one ship free from all costs and charges and also shall and will receive on board each and every of the said vessels and convey and deliver to from and between all or any of the said ports or places any naval or other stores not exceeding TEN tons in weight or measurement at any one time in any one vessel at the rate of freight charged by the said Company for

Limited quantity of stores to be conveyed and delivered at rates as for private goods (but at never more than £5 per ton) on two days notice and Company to be responsible for the same.

private goods but which rate shall never be more than after the rate of $\pounds 5$ per ton on receiving from the said Commissioners or any of their officers or agents two days' previous notice of its being their intention to have such stores so conveyed and that the said Company shall in all cases be strictly responsible for the due custody and safe delivery of the said packages articles and stores

And it is hereby agreed that if at any time or times during the continuance of this Contract the said Commissioners shall deem it requisite to alter the particular days times and hours of departure from and arrival at any of the ports or places to or from which Her Majesty's mails are to be conveyed under or by virtue of this Contract they shall be at liberty at any time or times or from time to time to alter the days and hours of departure and arrival on giving one calendar month's notice in writing of such their intention to the said Company and the days times and hours of departure from and arrival at any of such ports or places which may be appointed by any such alteration in force for the time being shall be deemed to be the days times and hours of departure and arrival of Her Majesty's mails under this Contract and shall be observed and kept by the said Company accordingly and the several penalties mentioned in this Contract shall be applicable thereto.

And in consideration of the due and faithful performance by the said Company of all the services hereby contracted to be by them performed the said Commissioners do hereby agree that there shall be paid to the said Company out of monies to be provided by Parliament so long as they perform the whole of the said service by bills payable by Her Majesty's Paymaster-General in seven days from and after the respective dates thereof a sum after the rate of £1500 for each entire voyage such voyage being the passage out or the passage home upon the production to the Accountant-General of Her Majesty's Navy of certificates in such form as may be directed by the said Commissioners that the Contract has been strictly and punctually performed in respect to every voyage out or home for which payment is claimed subject however to the deduction of any sum or sums of money due by the said Company to Her Majesty and of the amount of any fines or penalties to which the said Company may have become liable.

Admiralty at liberty to alter times of departure and arrival of vessels.

Payments to Company for services.

In what event Admiralty may stop payment payable to Company.

And it is hereby agreed that in the event of this Contract being terminated or of any other discontinuance of the service hereby agreed to be performed the said Commissioners shall have power to stop or suspend all payments which may be payable to the said Company until evidence be adduced by the said certificates and otherwise as to whether there be or be not any balance due to the said Company at the termination of this Contract and if there be not any balance due to the said Company to withhold such payments altogether

Admiralty may purchase or charter vessels at a rate to be settled by arbitration in case of difference.

And it is hereby agreed that the said Commissioners for executing the office of Lord High Admiral shall at any time during the continuance of this Contract if they shall consider it necessary for the public interest have power and be at liberty to purchase all or any of the said vessels at a valuation or to charter the same exclusively for Her Majesty's service at a rate of hire to be mutually fixed and agreed on by them and the said Company but if any difference should at any time or times arise as to the amount of valuation or hire so to be paid such difference shall be referred to two arbitrators one to be chosen from time to time by the said Commissioners and the other by the said Company and if such arbitrators should at any time or times not agree in the matter or question referred to them then such question in difference shall be referred by them to an umpire to be chosen by such arbitrators before they proceed with the reference to them and the joint and concurrent award of the said arbitrators or the separate award of the said umpire when the said arbitrators cannot agree shall be binding and conclusive upon all parties and that the said Commissioners in the case of hiring any such vessel shall return the same to the said Company in the same state and condition as she was in at the time of any such hiring reasonable wear and tear excepted and if any difference should arise on that point the same shall be settled in the same manner as the amount for the hiring is to be settled in case of difference

In case of purchase or hire, Company to perform the service by other vessels subject to Admiralty approval. And it is turther agreed that in case of such purchase or hire the service hereby contracted to be performed shall be performed by other vessels of the said Company of a similar description to the vessel or vessels purchased or hired if they can in due and proper time furnish them such other vessels as to construction machinery

equipment and crew to be subject to the same approval as other vessels employed under this Contract

And it his hereby agreed that any submission which may be made to arbitration in pursuance of this Contract shall be made a rule of Her Majesty's Court of Exchequer pursuant to the statute in that case made and provided and that any witnesses examined upon any reference may be examined upon oath

Submission to arbitration may be made a rule of the Court of Exchequer.

And it is hereby agreed that the whole postage of all mails despatches and letters of every description conveyed in the vessels employed under this Contract whether carried from or out of Her Majesty's dominions or otherwise shall belong to Her Majesty and shall be at the disposal of Her Majesty's Postmaster General.

And it is hereby agreed and declared that this Contract shall

All postage at the disposal of Post Master General.

commence not later than the month of June which shall be in the year of our Lord 1860 or earlier if the Company to the satisfaction of the said Commissioners be prepared before that date and shall continue in force for seven years from the day that the first vessel shall start in accordance with the provisions of this contract and then determine if the said Commissioners shall by writing under the hand of the Secretary of the Admiralty for the time being have given to the said Company or the said Company shall have given to the said Commissioners twelve calendar months' notice in writing that this contract shall so determine but if neither the said Commissioners nor the said Company shall give any such notice this Contract shall continue in force even after the said term of seven years until the expiration of a twelve calendar months' notice in writing as aforesaid shall be given at any period of the year by either of the parties hereto to the other of them and which notice may expire at any period of the year but not so as to prevent either of the said parties hereto availing themselves of this Contract for

Duration of this Contract.

And it is hereby distinctly agreed that the said Company shall undertake for themselves all arrangements relative to quarantine as connected with the due and regular performance of the conditions of this Contract.

recovering any sum of money or damages should there have been any breach of this Contract previously to the determination of the same

Quarantine arrangements to be undertaken by Company.

Contract not to be assigned, &c., without consent.

In case of assignment, &c., or breach, Admiralty may determine Contract without previous notice or compensation.

And it is hereby further agreed and provided that without the consent of the said Commissioners signified in writing under the hand of one of their Secretaries neither this Contract nor any part thereof shall be assigned underlet or disposed of and that in case of the same or any part thereof being assigned underlet or otherwise disposed of without such consent signified as aforesaid or in case of any breach of this Contract on the part of the said Company their officers agents or servants in any respect and whether there be or be not any penalty or sum of money hereby made payable by the said Company for any such breach it shall be lawful for the said Commissioners for executing the said office of Lord High Admiral (if they think fit and notwithstanding there may or may not have been any former breach of this Contract) by writing under the hand of one of their Secretaries for the time being to determine this Contract without any previous notice to the said Company or their agents nor shall the said Company be entitled to any compensation in consequence of such determination but even if this Contract be so determined the payment of the sum of money hereinafter agreed to be made shall be enforced should the same be not duly paid by the said Company and the said Company shall continue liable for any liability which they may have incurred previous to any such determination.

As to services of notices.

And it is also agreed that the notices or directions which the said Commissioners or their secretary officers or other persons are hereby authorized and empowered to give to the said Company their officers servants or agents may at the option of such Commissioners or their secretary officers or other persons be either delivered to the master of any of the said vessels or other officer or agent of the said Company in the charge or management of any vessel employed in the performance of this Contract or may be left for the said Company at their office or place of business in England or Ireland and any notices or directions so given or left shall be binding on the said Company.

If when this Contract terminates, any vessel shall have started, or should start, voyage to be continued, free of charge, as if Contract remained in force. And it is hereby agreed that if when this Contract or any part thereof terminate any vessel or vessels should have started or should start with the mails in conformity with this Contract such voyage or voyages shall be continued and performed and the mails be delivered

and received during the same as if this Contract remained in force with regard to any such vessels and services but the said Company shall not be entitled to any payment or compensation for the same.

That all and every the sums of money hereby stipulated to be forfeited and paid or which may be otherwise payable by the said Company unto Her Majesty her heirs and successors shall be considered as stipulated or ascertained damages and shall and may be deducted and retained by the said Commissioners out of any monies payable or which may thereafter be payable to the said Company or the payment may be enforced as a debt due to Her Majesty with full costs of suit at the discretion of the said Commissioners.

Sums to be forfeited or paid by Company, to be considered stipulated damages.

And lastly for the due and faithful performance of all and singular the covenants conditions provisos clauses articles and agreements hereinbefore contained which on the part and behalf of the said Company are or ought to be observed performed fulfilled and kept the said Company do hereby bind themselves and their successors unto our Sovereign Lady the Queen in the sum of £20,000 of lawful money of the United Kingdom to be paid to our said Lady the Queen her heirs and successors by way of stipulated or ascertained damages hereby agreed upon between the said Commissioners and the said Company in case of the failure on the part of the said Company in the due execution of this Contract or any part thereof in witness whereof the said Commissioners have hereunto set their hands and seals and the seal of the said Company hath also been affixed the day and year first-above written

Company bound in £20,000 for due performance of Contract.

The Seal of the Atlantic Royal Mail Steam
Navigation Company (Limited) was affixed
hereto in the presence of

L. S.

J. A. ROEBUCK, Two of the Directors of the T. O. STOCK, said Company.

A. BOATE, Secretary.

ANTONIO BRADY, Admiralty.

R. S. DUNDAS,

(L.S.)

ALEXR. MILNE,

(L.S.)

Signed, sealed, and delivered, by the said Commissioners, in the presence of

ANTONIO BRADY, Admiralty.

TIME TABLE.—A.

GALWAY TO AMERICA.

Summer Service-Outward Voyages.

From Galway to New York, during the months of April, May, June, July, August, September and October 11 days 2 hours

From Galway to Boston during the like months 11 days 16 hours

Summer Service-Homeward Voyages.

From NewYork to Galway during the like months 10 days

From Boston to Galway during the like months 10 days 4 hours

Winter Service-Outward Voyages.

From Galway to New York during the months of November, December, January, February and March 13 days

From Galway to Boston during the like months 13 days 12 hours

Winter Service—Homeward Voyages.

From New York to Galway during the like months 10 days 10 hours

From Boston to Galway during the like months 11 days 2 hours

TABLE OF RATES OF PASSAGE.—B.

	0	/hief	Chief Cabin		Passengers	enge	rs			,	or	င် င	abin	Fore Cabin Passengers	asse	nge	rs	1			De	ck	Pas	Deck Passengers.	ger	. 20		
	Officer Lady		Lady	0 - 00 -	Children between 3 and 12 vears of	ren een 12	Chi bet 3 a	Children Children between S and 12 3 and 8 wears of		Man		Woman	<u> </u>	Children between 8 and 12 vears of	lren een d 12 s of		Children Children between 8 and 12 3 and 8 vears of vears of	of San	Man	Ħ		Woman	Ch be 8 a	Children between 8 and 12 vears of	u g g yo	Ch bet 3 a	Children between 3 and 8 vears of	
				,	age,		, m	age.	!			.		age.	e l		age.		1	ĺ			,	age.		. "	age.	- 1
	£ s d£	£	જ	d £	80	q	ф	8	d.	တ	d £	%	ष्ट्र	લક જ	8	<i>£</i> .	%	<u>द</u>	ક જ	T	$q_{\mathcal{E}}$	s d	ધર	တ	q	બરૂ	တ	p
Rate from Galway to Halifax	15 0 0 12 10	012	10	0	6 5	0	ಬ	<i>6</i> 3	-6	10	07	10	0	3 15		0	17	<u>0</u>		0 0	_ <u>&</u>	0 0		0	0	0	10	0
Rate from Halifax to Galway	12 0 0 12 0	0 12	0	-6	0 9	0	ಬ	0	90	0	90		0 0	<i>හ</i>	0	0	10	<u>0</u>		0 0	_ <u>8</u>	0 0		0	0	0	10	0
Rate between Hali- faxand Boston and New York	0 0 0		0		0 10	0	0			10	0	0	0	0 10			ro			0 0	- 0	10 (0	70	0	0	<i>હા</i>	9
Rate from Galway to New York or Boston direct or via Halifax	15 0 012 10	<u> </u>	10		9	0	ಬ	9 8	67	10	07	10	0	3 15	<i>7</i> 0		17	<u>83</u>	2 10		<u>6</u>	10 0	H	rů	0	်ဝ	0 13	9
Rate from New York or Boston to Galway	12 0 0 12 0	012	0	0	0 9	0	ಣ	0	90	0	90	0	0	စ	0		10	0	2 10		<u> </u>	10 (70	0	0	<u>@</u>	9
		-		-		_			_		-		. ∥			-		-		·	_	K	_		-			

Memorandum.—Children under three years of age to be carried free, and male servants to be charged one-half, and female servants two-thirds of the rates charged for their employers.

APPENDIX, No. 21.

CORRESPONDENCE AND DOCUMENTS ON THE SUBJECT OF DIRECT STEAM.

Letter from the Agent of the Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company to the Acting Colonial Secretary, proposing a temporary suspension of the Company's Steamers running during the Winter Months.

St. John's, October 20th, 1859.

SIR,—

The Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company beg to submit the following to the Government.

The Company have four first-class Paddle Steamers on the stocks, which Vessels will be ready for service in June next, and will ply semi-monthly between Galway and New York, calling at St. John's, meanwhile the Company have no boats but those at present on the Line, which, though good enough for summer work, are not sufficient for the winter, and the Company feel they damage the character and reputation of the Line by employing boats, which, in the ordinary course of winter weather, will make long and unsatisfactory voyages.

They therefore respectfully request that they be permitted to suspend the performance of the service during the coming winter months, the subsidy lapsing for those months in which no service is performed.

In order that no inconvenience to the public shall result from the arrangement, if agreed to, the Company undertake that a ship shall leave this for Galway for St. John's late in March, or early in April. The intermediate time during which the suspension would operate being one in which little or no business is done, it appears to the Company that no substantial public interest would be prejudiced. On the other hand the Colony is concerned in sustaining the credit of the Line, an object which alone induces the Company to make this proposition.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed) A. SHEA,

To the Hon. E. D. Shea,

Agent.

Acting Colonial Secretary, &c., &c., &c.

Memorandum No. 1, from the Governor to the Executive Council relative to the Galway Company's Contract for Direct Steam, 10th November, 1859.

On my arrival here the other day, Mr. O'Brien, the Administrator during my absence, informed me that the Council had received a letter from the Agent of the Galway Steam Company, and Mr. Crowdy yesterday sent me that document and a resolution of the Commercial Society on the same subject.

I have carefully perused these documents. It appears by the letter of the Agent, Mr. Shea, that the Company has contracted for four first-class paddle steamers, which will be ready for service in June next, and Mr. Ambrose Shea, the Agent, jurther states:—

"Meanwhile, the Company have no boats but those already on the Line, which, though good enough for summer work, are not efficient for the winter; and, the Company feel they damage the character and reputation of the line by employing boats, which, in the ordinary course of winter weather, will make long and unsatisfactory voyages, &c., &c."

From this statement it is evident to me, that Mr. Shea considers the existing Contracts, which terminates on the 31st December, is to be continued after that period by the Government of Newfoundland, but, on what grounds he arrives at that conclusion I am not aware.

I have carefully looked over the Minutes of the House of Assembly, and, on the 7th March last, I find seven resolutions were carried by a majority of 13 to 11. The first states, that "if the services have been faithfully performed, the Government of the Colony shall be at liberty to continue the Contract for four years." The second and third resolutions, that the steamer sought not be subject to the provisions of the Passengers' Act, the entorcing thereof, would have the effect of depriving the Colony of the advantages of Direct Steam, this Colony being unable to pay the increased subsidy which, under such circumstances, would be required. The fourth that an Address be presented to Her Majesty the Queen, in both Houses of Parliament soliciting the continuance of the subsidy granted by the Imperial Government, and the extension to the Atlantic Company, of Privileges similar to those enjoyed by the Cunard, and other Trans-Atlantic Companies carrying Mails. Having quoted the resolutions passed by the House of Assembly, which, in my opinion, contain all the authority that this Government possess to deal with the question, I must call the attention of the Council in the first place to the fourth resolution-for, I am

not aware of, nor have ever heard that the Imperial Government has agreed to continue the subsidy paid by them under the present Contract, longer than, for the period of its existence, namely, the 31st December next; and, without knowing that H. M. Government will continue to pay this subsidy, I am of opinion that it would be most inadvisable on the part of the Newfoundland Government to enter into any arrangement which might probably involve them in the payment of the whole subsidy granted under the present Contract.

In regard to the Passengers' Act, in the month of June last the Galway Company entered into a Bond with H. M. Government that their ships should be liable to the Passengers' Act; and, on this subject I repeat, as I have always stated, that it was a matter for the Galway Company to settle with the Queen's Government, and, when in New York lately, I understood that the Newfoundland Government had got the reverse of thanks for their interference about the Passengers' Act.

I now call the attention of the Council to the first resolution, which states that "the Government of the Colony shall be at liberty to continue the Contract for four years, if faithfully and efficiently performed."

I am not aware of what determination the Council have come to in my absence, but, in so far as I am concerned, and, looking to the Agent's letter, which says, "the Company have no boats but those at present on the line, which, though good enough for summer work, are not efficient for winter;" I cannot under such circumstances, take any share in the responsibility of continuing the Contract longer than the 31st December, unless such a continuance shall be sanctioned by the Imperial Government.

In regard to the resolution of the Commercial Society whose opinion seems to have been asked, it appears that these gentlemen "trust, that the Contract, as entered upon, may be fully carried out, as regards the Galway line of Steamers;" but, from their allusion to the great importance of a winter communication, I apprehend that the Commercial Society are under the impression that some other Contract has been entered into than the present one. The Council are aware, and the public I think may be made aware, that the Galway Company, without any communication with the Newfoundland Government, entered into a Contract with the British Government sometime ago, to place first-class powerful vessels on this line; which are bound to call at Newfoundland on the outward and homeward voyages; but, these vessels cannot, in all probability, be ready for sea before the middle of summer; and, it my interpretation of

the Contract be correct, the whole of the subsidy to be paid for the services to be performed by these vessels, will be from Imperial, and not from Colonial Funds.

As the winter has already commenced, it is very desirable that some determination should be come to about our Postal arrangements.

I observe that the "Prince Albert" is advertised to leave Galway on the 12th November, and the "Circassian" on the 10th December, so that Mr. Shea's letter seems to apply to the winter months which follow December.

(Signed)

A. BANNERMAN,

Governor.

Government House, Newfoundland, 10th November, 1859.

Memorandum No. 2, from the Governor to the Executive Council relative to the Galway Company's Contract for Direct Steam, 12th November, 1859.

Referring to my Memorandum for the consideration of the Council Sated the I0th inst.,—Mr. Crowdy, the Chief Clerk in the Secretary's office, applied to me yesterday afternoon, for the new contract which was entered into between H. M. Government and the Galway Company in June last. I gave it to Mr. Crowdy, and the Council will remember, that, on the receipt of that document, I sent it to the different members of the Council for their perusal.

As far as I know, it was entered into without any consultation with the Newfoundland Government; and as it did not interfere in any way with the existing Contract, I was glad to see that we had the prospect of getting, in June next, most efficient steamships for performing the mail services.

Mr. Crowdy also asked for the Despatch from the Lords of the Admiralty in December, 1858.

It was printed by an order of the House of Assembly, and, in consequence, an address was moved by that body, in which the Legislative Council concurred; that address was printed; I imagine both must be in the Colonial Office, and recorded on the Journals of the House, but I send herewith copies of both.

The Despatch from Mr. Corry, Secretary to the Admiralty, was enclosed in a Despatch from the Colonial Minister, which was shown to the Council, but I send herewith the original (to be returned,) and the Council will observe Sir Edward B. Lytton concludes his despatch in the following words:

"It will, of course, be understood" that "before the question of any extension of the present contract can be entertained, it must be submitted for the approval of Her Majesty's Government."

The Council will therefore see that it is quite impossible for me to sanction any extention of the present contract, until it shall have been submitted for approval to H. M. Government; and I am borne out by the Agent's letter in the opinion which I have always entertained, and expressed, that with the present ships the contract ought not to be continued.

The Agent states, "in order that no inconvenience to the public shall result from the arrangement, if agreed to, the Company undertake that a ship shall leave this for Galway in January." I observe the Circassion is to leave Galway on the 10th December, and therefore I consider it to be only fulfilling the contract that she should call at St. John's on her way home in January.

I send herewith a printed copy of the present contract, for the consideration of the Council, and I beg particularly to call their attention to the 16th article.

In conclusion, the course which I would adopt, under all the circumstances of the case, is, to act in strict accordance with the Colonial Minister's Despatch of the 24 December, 1858; and before entering into any new arrangement, or extension of the contract, to forward and submit, for the consideration of the Secretary of State, Mr. Ambrose Shea's letter of date the 20th October; and as the Jason is expected from New York early next week, I am desirous that the communication to the Duke of Newcastle should be forwarded by that ship, that His Grace may have time in return to answer by the first mail.

With that view, therefore, I have to request that the Council will peruse this second Memorandum, with the documents which accompany it, and I shall be happy to see them at Government House, on Tuesday morning next, at an early hour.

(Signed) A. BANNERMAN,

Government House, 12th November, 1859. Governor.

Minute of the Executive Council, praying H. M. Government to continue the Subsidy of £4,500 to the Galway Steam Company for a further period of four years.

Council Chamber, 15th November, 1859.

Whereas on the 22nd day of October, 1858, the Government of this Colony entered into a Contract for one year with the Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company for the carriage of Her Majesty's Mails between Galway, Ireland, and St. John's, Newfoundland; and Portland, Boston, New York, or either of them, in a sufficient number of suitable, first-class, good, substantial and approved Steam-vessels, for which service the said Company is to receive from the Newfoundland Government the sum of £8,500, and £4,500 from the Imperial Government.

And whereas by the said Contract the Government of this Colony covenanted with the said Company to use its best endeavours after the expiration of one year, to obtain the sanction of the Legislature of this Colony, and of the Imperial Government, to the continuance of the said subsidy for the further period of four years.

And whereas by a resolution passed in the last session of the late House of Assembly, the Government of this Colony is at liberty to continue their portion of the said subsidy, for the further period of four years, and whereas an address was passed by the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of this Colony, to the Secretary of State for the Colonies, praying that the subsidy of £4,500 be continued by Her Majesty's Government for a further period of four years.

And whereas the said address was transmitted by His Excellency Sir Alexander Bannerman on the 6th day of April, 1859, to which no reply had been received—the Council therefore respectfully pray that Her Majesty's Government will be pleased to continue the said subsidy of £4,500 for a further period of four years, in accordance with the prayer of the address before mentioned.

Resolved,—That His Excellency the Governor be requested to furnish the foregoing resolution to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, by the earliest opportunity.

Resolution of the Commercial Society relative to discontinuance of the Galway Steamers during some of the Winter Months.

Commercial Room, 24th October, 1859.

Resolved,—That the Commercial Society consider that the line of Winter Communication is of equal, or even greater importance to the Trade than the Summer Communication, and they therefore trust that the Contract, as entered upon, be fully carried out as regards the Galway line of Steamers.

The foregoing was passed at a meeting of the Commercial Society, held to take into consideration a proposition for the suspension of the Galway Mail Steamers during the Winter Months, made to the Government by A. Shea, Esq., the Company's Agent, and forwarded by his Honor the Administrator of the Government, to the President of the Commercial Society for the opinion of the Society thereon.

Extract from the Records of the Commercial Society.

(Signed) N. STABB,

Secretary.

Reply of Acting Colonial Secretary to the Letter of Ambrose Shea, Esq., (Agent of the Galway Steam Company,) relative to the proposed suspension of the Direct Steam Service, during the Winter Months.

Secretary's Office, 15th November, 1859.

SIR,—

In reply to your letter of the 20th October, I beg leave to inform you, that the Executive have no objection, as far as this Colony is concerned, to the suspension of the Mail Service by the Steamers of the Royal Mail Atlantic Steam Company, from the time when their Steamer shall leave this Port about the middle of January next, to the period of the departure of their Steamer from Galway at the end of March, or beginning of April following.

It is understood that the subsidy payable by the Colony to the Royal Mail Company, shall lapse during those months in which the Service is suspended.

This arrangement is, of course, contingent upon the continuance of the Steam Contract by the British Government beyond the present year, and their assent will also be necessary to the suspension now agreed to by the Colonial Government.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed)

E. D. SHEA.

Ambrose Shea, Esquire, &c., &c., &c.

Governor's Letter relative to Galway Steam Company's Ships running between Galway and St. John's throughout the Winter.

Government House, Newfoundland, 22nd December, 1859.

MY LORD DUKE,-

Referring to my Despatch of 16th ultimo, relative to the Galway Steam Company's Contract, I have now only to acquaint your Grace that the Company's Agent informed me yesterday, that their Ships were to continue during the Winter, to cross the Atlantic and to call at St. John's, Newfoundland, as usual, although three weeks ago it was intimated that their Ships could not perform the service,—to which the Executive Council acceded, and petitioned Her Majesty's Government to continue the Imperial Subsidy.

2. I think your Grace will not be surprised when, considering the correspondence that has already taken place, if I ask to be absolved from interfering in any way with the arrangements which may have been made in regard to this question, but, that I shall be ready to attend to, and to carry into effect any instructions that I may receive from your Grace; at the same time I may add, that the two Ships which I see are advertised to-day, namely, the "Circassian" and "Prince Albert," are good ships,—the latter has now, I understand, undergone a thorough repair.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed)

A. BANNERMAN,

Governor.

His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, &c., &c., &c.

Duke of Newcastle's Despatch relative to the Galway Steam Company's Contract.

Downing Street, 31st December, 1859.

SIR,—

In answer to your Despatch of 16th November last, I wish to say that I am in communication with the Lords Commissioners of the Treasury on the subject of the arrangements to be made in consequence of the termination of the Galway Steam Contract, and hope soon to inform you of the result.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed)

NEWCASTLE.

Governor Sir A. Bannerman, &c., &c., &c.

Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, together with Letter from Vallance and Vallance to S. Laing, Esq., on subject of Contracts with the Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company.

Downing Street, 24th January, 1860.

SIR,—

With reference to my Despatch of 31st December last, and to the one since received from you dated 22nd December, I enclose for your information, a copy of a letter to the Treasury from the Solicitors of the Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Packet Company, from which you will perceive the value of the arrangements made for avoiding an interruption of the Mail Service in Newfoundland.

I may take the present opportunity of informing you, that I have not lost sight of the Address of the Legislature contained in your Despatch of the 6th of April, proposing the renewal of the Contract with the present Company.— Shortly after the adoption of that Address, arrangements had been made in England for a more comprehensive Contract with the Company, which was expected to give Newfoundland the same benefit at a reduced expense. Under these circumstances, which could not be known to the Legislature when they voted their Address, it would of course have been inconsistent with the public interest, to renew for a term of years without alteration, the agreement already

existing. This had been the cause of the delay in coming to any definite conclusion on the subject of the recommendation offered by the Assembly, subject to the examination which it is expected to undergo in a Committee of the House of Commons, the larger Contract contemplated with the Atlantic Company is designed to come into or eration next summer, and you will perceive that until this question be settled it would be premature and unadvisable to conclude permanently, any separate agreement for Newfoundland.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed)

NEWCASTLE.

Messrs. Vallance & Vallance to S. Laing, Esq.

20, Essex Street, Strand, London, 6th January, 1860.

SIR,-

We have the honor to acknowledge your letter of the 5th instant, referring to a communication made to Her Majesty's Government from the Colony of Newfoundland in reference to the expected discontinuance of the Mail Service to that Colony during the winter months.

In explanation, we have to state that some months ago the General Manager of the Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company requested the Agent at Newfoundland to make enquiry of the Government at Newfoundland and learn their views upon the question of the discontinuance of the Mail Service during one or two of the winter months, if the Company should ultimately, for any reason, consider such a step desirable.

It appears that the Agent did communicate with the Newfoundland Government, and that sanction was given to the discontinuance if the Company should desire it. Concurrently with this, however, we had the honor of communicating with the Treasury on the subject, and when an answer to our enquiry as to whether Her Majesty's Government would prefer that the line should be continued or discontinued, we ascertained that your wish was that it should not be discontinued, the directors of the Company abandoned all idea of discontinuance and resolved on continuing the Line as heretofore until some new arrangements can be made for the amalgamation of the two services when the American contract comes into operation.

We therefore trust you will be good enough to take the earliest opportunity of removing the impression in the Colony that the Line will be discontinued, as no change or cessation has been made in the ordinary course of the proceedings of the Company.

We regret much that the enquiries made in Newfoundland should have created any erroneous impression and given you unnecessary trouble.

Immediately upon receipt of your letter of the 5th, we communicated with the General Manager of the Company, and he informs us that the "Circassian' Steam Ship is on the berth to take H. M. Mail on board to-morrow for the voyage from Galway to St. John's, and that the "Prince Albert" Steam-Ship is advertised for the next voyage in February.

We have, &c.,

(Signed) VALLANCE & VALLANCE.

S. Laing, Esq., Treasury.

APPENDIX, No. 22.

LETTER

From Acting Colonial Secretary in reply to Monsieur Pierre's Communication to the Administrator of the Government, in reference to an arrangement for the conveyance of French Mails via Galway.

Secretary's Office, Newfoundland, 9th November, 1859.

SIR,—

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your communication, of the 29th ult., to his Honor the Administrator, setting forth the bases of a proposition for the conveyance to and from Saint Peter's, fortnightly, of the French Mails to be transmitted to St. John's by the Galway line of Steamers, and re-

questing information from this Government as to the amount of Subsidy which would be required for such service it agreed to be entered upon.

I am to inform you, in reply, that the Government of Newfoundland fully appreciates the advantages likely to accrue from the arrangements proposed, but as the communication with this country by the Galway line of Steamers is now only monthly, the Executive regret that they are unable to treat for a fortnightly transmission of the French Mails to St. Peter's. If, however, as is anticipated, the new Contract of the Galway Steam Company with the British Government should afford to Newfoundland the advantages of semi-monthly instead of monthly visits of their Steamers, the Government of this Colony will be glad to avail of the first favourable moment for negotiating with the Representative of the French Government for effecting the fortnightly transmission of your Mails, as indicated in your recent communication.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed) E. D. SHEA,

Actg. Col. Secretary.

Monsieur O'Guibert Pierre, French Commissary, St. Peter's.

P. S.—The greatest difficulty that exists at this moment in the way of even a conditional arrangement is, that the Government of Newfoundland are yet without an offer or proposition from any quarter for the laying on a Steamer on the South West Coast, the portion of the Island nearest to St. Peter's.

APPENDIX, No. 23.

CORRESPONDENCE

Relative to the case of the Four Female Lunatics brought to this Island, in the "Argo" Steamer from New York.

Letter of Governor Bannerman to E. M. Archibald, Esq., British Consul at New York.

Government House, Newfoundland, 19th August, 1859.

SIR,-

I have the honor to enclose three documents, their perusal by you I am sure will plead my excuse for troubling you.

You have no doubt heard of the wreck of the steamship Argo, from New York, bound to St. John's and Galway. This ship had on board upwards of 200 passengers, whose lives were providentially saved in consequence of the weather being very moderate. Among the passengers were four female maniacs, two of them were brought to St. John's and lodged in the Asylum here, a third wandered along the shore for eight or ten days, living on fish, bait, and wild berries; she was luckily seen by a boat's crew who rescued her, and she, also, is in the Asylum. The tourth has never been heard of, and, I much fear the poor unfortunate creature must have perished.

I can scarcely believe that these females could have been put on board surreptitiously at New York, without some one on board knowing who they were, particularly as it appears that their passage money was paid. I send you, however, all the information I have obtained, and I trust that you will be so good as to make enquiries on the subject, the result of which I shall be happy to receive with the view of making some communication to the British Government in order that the Emigration Commissioners may investigate the circumstances, and that the Agent at Galway may be ordered to find out to whom these four lunatics were to be consigned. I have seen them, and from their actions and speech they are evidently Irish. The amiable and philanthropic Miss Dix is now here, she has seen them, and I believe she is of opinion that they have been inmates of some similar Asylum to that where they are now lodged.

It is probable they have been sent to New York in some Emigrant Ship, to be thrown on the benevolence and charities of that city, or some other one, and, I think it would be very desirable if this could be found out, in order that we may, if possible, put a stop to such enormities in future, which, I think if continued, would be considered a disgrace on this as well as the other side of the Atlantic.

You will observe that these three women are thrown on this Colony at an expense of about £100 a-year, and placed in an Asylum, which, I regret to say, was already too full of our own unfortunates afflicted with insanity, and if we can get a clue to the parties engaged in such a transaction, I trust we shall be able to make them responsible for the maintenance and support of the three poor women.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed)

A. BANNERMAN.

Governor.

Despatch of Sir A. Bannerman to Secretary of State for the Colonies.

(No. 52)

Government House, Newfoundland, 24th August, 1859.

My LORD DUKE,-

I take the liberty of forwarding two documents relative to four female lunatics who where passengers in the Galway steamer Argo, wrecked near Cape Race on the 28th June, and I also enclose the copy of a letter which I have written to the British Consul at New York, and when I hear from him I shall communicate the result of his enquiries.

- 2—In the meantime, perhaps your Grace will think proper to submit my letter, with its enclosures, to the Emigration Commissioners, and they may consider it necessary to direct some investigation to be made at Galway about a transaction which I consider to be a very disgraceful one, and which only confirms my former opinion that these Galway ships, carrying so many emigrants, ought not to be exempted from the Passengers' Act.
- 3—I shall feel obliged if the Commissioners will inform me whether the Colony can have recourse on the Galway Company for the maintenance and

support of these three unfortunate female who are now lodged in the Lunatic Asylum here; the fourth one, poor creature, has never been heard of, and must have perished among the rocks.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed)

A. BANNERMAN,

Governor.

Reply of Secretary of State for the Colonies to Sir A. Bannerman, transmitting Opinion of Commissioners of Emigration on the case.

(No. 25.)

Downing Street, 1st October, 1859.

SIR,—

I have to acknowledge the receipt of your Despatch, No. 52, of the 24th August, relative to the case of three pauper lunatics who were saved from the wreck of the Galway Company's Steamer Argo.

I have referred your Despatch to the Emigration Commissioners, and I transmit for your information a copy of the Report which I have received from them on the subject. I have to instruct you to take the steps pointed out by the Commissioners, for sending these lunatics to Galway, and, at the same time to request that you will endeavour, if possible, to ascertain from what part of Ireland they were brought.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed)

NEWCASTLE.

Governor Sir A. Bannerman, &c., &c., &c.

Mr. Murdoch to Mr. Merivale.

Emigration Office, 16th September, 1859.

SIR,—

I have to acknowledge your letter of the 10th instant, enclosing a Despatch from the Governor of Newfoundland on the subject of certain insane women landed in that Colony from the wreck of the Galway Steamship Argo.

- 2—It appears from Sir A. Bannerman's Despatch, and its enclosures, that when the Argo was on the point of sailing from New York, four women were put on board and their passages paid for by some person unknown; that these women were found to be insane and entirely incapable of taking care of themselves; that three who are now in the Lunatic Asylum of St. John's are evidently Irishwomen, and appear from their clothes to have been for some time inmates of some Asylum, and that there is reason to fear that the fourth, who has not been seen since the wreck, has perished.
- Sir A. Bannerman desires to be informed whether the Colony can have recourse on the Galway Company for the maintenance of the three women now in the Asylum, and he has written to the Consul at New York to enquire into the circumstances under which they were put on board.
- 3—I do not see in what way the colony of Newfoundland could establish any claim against the Galway Company for the maintenance of these women, nor is it clear that any blame attaches to the officers of the Company for receiving them on board the Argo. The conduct of those who put them on board at New York, and probably of those who originally sent them from Ireland to America (for the insanity of one is said to be congenital and of the others to be of long standing) was most culpable and cruel; but as far as the master and officers of the Argo are concerned, it is alleged and is inherently probable, that they were ignorant of the state of these women until after the vessel had sailed. They were no doubt to blame for not having looked after them when the wreck occurred, but that neglect could not be made the ground of any legal proceedings. Whether the persons engaged in the transaction in New York can be made legally responsible in any way, will no doubt be ascertained by the Consul, but under all the circumstances of the case, it does not seem likely that any such liability should be established.
- 4—The expense of maintaining these three women in Newfoundland is stated by the Governor at £100 a year, and he adds that the Local Asylum is already too full of their own patients.

It can hardly be right, under these circumstances, that their maintenance should be thrown on the Colony, and the only other way of providing for it would be by bringing the women home and placing them in some Lunatic Asylum in Ireland. I would suggest that Sir A. Bannerman should be instructed to avail himself of an opportunity of sending them home, placing them of course in charge of some persons competent to take care of them. On

their arrival in Ireland they should, I presume, be handed over to the Poor Law Authorities of the Port at which they may land.

5-The expense of bringing them to this country would probably be paid without demur, by the Galway Company. If not, it might legally be enforced against them under the Passengers' Act 1855. But it would be desirable, if possible, to avoid recourse to that measure, because though in strict law the Company were subject to the Passengers' Act at the time of this transaction, they might be considered to have been in equity exempt from its provisions.— By the agreement between the Government of Newtoundland and the Company, dated in October, 1858, it was stipulated among other things (clause 10) that the vessels of the Company should be exempted from the operation of the Passengers' Act, and this contract was approved by the Lords of the Treasury on the 1st December last. Subsequently an objection was made by the Postmaster General to the above exemption, and his certificate, which is necessary to give it formal validity, was accordingly suspended until the Company had entered into a Bond to secure the proper management of their emigration.-That bond was completed on the 22nd June last, subsequent to the wreck of the Argo, and strictly speaking therefore, the Argo was subject to the provisions of the Passengers' Act. But it would be advisable to avoid bringing that point into discussion with the Company if, as can scarcely be doubted, the object may be attained without doing so.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed)

W. C. MURDOCK.

Reply of British Consul at New York, to Sir A. Bannerman's Letter of 19th.

August.

British Consulate, New York, 17th October, 1859.

SIR,—

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your Excellency's Despatch of the 19th August, concerning four female maniacs, who were passengers on board the steamer Argo, and requesting that I would make enquiries on the subject and transmit the result, in order that your Excellency may communicate the circumstances to the Home Government, so that the Emigration Com-

missioners may investigate them, and that the Agent at Galway may be ordered to find out to whom these four lunatics were to be consigned.

Upon the receipt of your Excellency's Despatch, I transmitted its enclosures to the Mayor of this place, with the request that he would cause such enquiries to be made as might be useful in leading to the discovery of the parties who had so inhumanly shipped off these unfortunate females; and for the purpose also of fixing the liability for the cost of their maintenance upon those who are properly accountable for it; and in reply, received a communication from the Superintendent of Out Door Poor, stating that he had made all enquiries respecting the lunatics in question, and could not find any trace of them either in the Alms House or in the institutions under the care of the Commissioners of Emigration; and that it was supposed by the Secretary at the Emigration Office, that they were sent from Boston, or some other place East.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed) E. M. ARCHIBALD.

APPENDIX, No. 24.

RETURN

Of Postage Stamps issued from the Office of the Colonial Secretary.

Letter appointing Commissioners.

Secretary's Office, 6th December, 1856.

GENTLEMEN,—

A large amount of Postage Stamps having been received, and it being determined by the Governor in Council, that for safe keeping they should be placed in the custody of the Colonial Secretary, Receiver General, and Financial Secretary; I hereby notify you thereof, and on an early day, when your convenience permit it, I will appoint a time for calculating the amount and placing them in a Public Vault for greater security.

I am, &c.

(Signed) JOHN KENT.

Receiver General and Financial Secretary.

298 APPENDIX, No. 24.

	e Stamps oorted.	Postage Stam Postmaster		Postage Stamps remaining on hand
70,000	1d sterling	9,600	1d	60,400 1d
3,000	2d "	3,000	2d	Nil
16,000	3d local cur.	9,600	3d	6,400 3d
5,000	4d sterling	5,000	4d	Nil
11,000	5d "	5,600	5d	5,400 5d
5,000	6d "	5,000	6d	Nil
2,000	6½d "	920	$6\frac{1}{2}d$	$1,080 6\frac{1}{2}d$
8,000	8d "	1,200	8d	6,800 Sd
2,000	Is local cur.	1,500	1s	500 ls
122,000		41,420	7	80,580

I certify that the foregoing statement is correct, and that I have caused to be counted the number of Stamps in my possession, and find that the several quantities given as remaining are just and true.

J. KENT.

DETAILED STATEMENT

Of Expenditure under Executive responsibility for the year ended 31st

December, 1859.			
1859.			
January 17-To paid Rev. H. Carfagnini for Passages of			
two Italian Seamen to New York	£10	2	0
May 17—To paid for Provisions, sent from Halifax to St.			
George's Bay, per the Commercial Bank	387	11	1
August 17—To paid Union Bank for Bill remitted to			
Robert Maxwell Witham, Executor of the late			
William Witham	205	10	9
October 22-To paid Chairman of Board of Works on			

Account of New Block House 19 19 1

December 8—To paid Patrick O'Sullivan on Account of
New Block House 15 9 8

"S—To paid Chairman of Board of Works on Ac-

count of New Lock-up 128 13 6

RICHARD HOWLEY,

Acting Financial Secretary.

£767

6

APPENDIX, No. 26.

DETAILED STATEMENT

Of Expenditure under Emigration Encouragement Vote, for the year ended 31st December, 1859.

1859.

August 22—To Amount of Expenses incurred by Michael Allen to and from Galway, &c.

£60 13 4

RICHARD HOWLEY,

Acting Financial Secretary.

STATEMENT

Of Expenditure for Coroner's Inquests in the District of St. John's for the year ended 31st December, 1859.

January 8—To paid Joseph Shea, 8 Inquests	£31	14	6
May 7—To paid Joseph Shea, 13 Inquests	40		
August 8—To paid Joseph Shea, 12 Inquests	53	13	4
October 18—To paid Joseph Shea, 10 Inquests	39	6	0
		15	10

As per Certificate of the Police Magistrates, St. John's, including Juries, Medical Evidence, travelling Expenses, &c.

RICHARD HOWLEY,

Acting Financial Secretary.

APPENDIX, No. 28.

DETAILED STATEMENT

Of Expenditure under Addresses of the House of Assembly, 1858, for the year ending 31st December, 1859.

1859.			
January 5—To paid Robert Dicks for Binding Records	£16	7	7
5— " paidE.D. Shea for 100 copies Census Returns	93	0	0
17— " paid Robert Dicks, Binding Records, Se-			
cretary's Office	15	18	11
May 20— " paid Valentine Born, account Sec'y's Office	15	. 0	0
December 1— " Paid Bowring Brothers for Alarm Bells	5 6	18	6
30- " Paid Robt. Dicks for Binding London Gazette	3	7	7
	£200	12	7

RICHARD HOWLEY,

St. John's, April 23rd, 1860. Actg. Financial Secretary.

APPENDIX, No. 29.

DETAILED STATEMENT

Of all Monies paid by the Executive Government on Addresses from the House of Assembly, 1859, for the year ended 31st December, 1859.

Date	Names.	For what Service.	Amo	unt.	
1859.			£	s	-d
Mayll	Robert Carter	Loss of Office as Sub-Collec-			
		tor at Ferryland	60	0	0
" 13	William Earle	For Eye Water	10	0	0
" 1 <u>8</u>	John H. Warren	Compensation, improving Public Cove	125	0	0
" 18	•	Travelling Expenses inspecting R. C. Schools	50	0	0
" 23	John Haddon	Travelling Expenses inspecting Protestant Schools	50	0	0
June 1	Ambrose Shea	Expenses of Delegation to Wash- ington concerning Free Trade	286	13	4
			£581	13	4

RICHARD HOWLEY,

Acting Financial Secretary.

31st December, 1859.

RETURN

APPENDIX, No. 30.

Shewing Executive Minutes for Expenditure of £581 13s. 4d. passed in Addresses of House of Assembly, 1859, and of expenditure (same year) on Executive authority of £767 6s. 1d.

Date.	Name.	Amount of Expenditure.	Executive Minute.
1859.			Council Chamber, 13th May, 1859.
IIMay	Robert Carter	0 0 093	Address (No. 29) recommending that compensation be made to Mr. Robert Carter of Ferryland, for loss of office as Sub-Collector at that place—Council recommend £60 be given for that purpose.
13 "	William Earle	0 0 01	Address (No. 33) on subject of claim of Wm. Earle for grant for supplying Eye Water, &c., gratis, to the poor—Council recommend a grant of £10 to meet the application.
. 18	John H. Warren	125 0 0	Address (No. 21) enclosing a report of Select Committee of the Assembly recommending that £125 be given as compensation to John H. Warren, Esq., for land taken for a Fire Break in 1846—agreed to.
; ; %	Michael J. Kelly John Haddon	50 0 0 0 5	Council Chamber, 3rd May, 1859. On Address of Assembly (No. 35) £50 each granted for travel- ling expenses of Inspectors of Schools.

Date.	Name.	Amount of Expenditure.	Executive Minute.	
1859. I June	Ambrose Shea	£286 13 4	Council Chamber, 12th May, 1859. With reference to address (No. 39) of the House of Assembly in	1 - 0
			its last session on the subject of the claim of Ambrose Shea, Esq., for compensation for his services as delegate to Washington in the year 1853, and to be placed on a like footing with those who have done a similar duty we, the subscribing members of the Executive Council, fully recognise the justice of Mr. Shea's claim in this instance, and we are aware that it received the unanimous assent of the late Assembly. The sum paid to each of the other delegates referred to by Mr. Shea was £330 while Mr. Shea received £43 6s. 8d. The balance of £286 13s. 4d. being the amount which would place Mr. Shea on a like footing with the other delegates, we consider to be due to him, and would respectfully recommend that His Excellency the Governor do issue his Warrant for this balance in Mr. Shea's favor.	
	Paid on Addresses		(Signed) GEO. JAS. HOGSETT	, K
		£581 13 4	THO. GLEN EDMUND HANRAHAN JAMES J. ROGERSON	
*		,	E. D. SHEA J. KENT.	

	Authority.
	\sim
	٠.
•	~~
	ě
	•
1	0
L	~
7	-
•	-
	~
_	₹.
ς	21
	ъ.
	Š
•	Executive

Date.	Name.	Amount of Expenditure.	of Ire.	Executive Minute.	
1859. 17 Jan.	. Rev. H. Carfagnini	£10 2	0	Governor's responsibility (passages of 2 Italian seamen.)	
May	May Provisions sent from Halifax to St. George's Bay.	387 11	peed	Minutes of Council of 5th November 1858 and 18th February 1859 relates to distress as existing at St. George's Bay and the absolute necessity of sending food for its relief, and as the season was too far advanced to send it from St. John's it was procured from Wm. Pryor & Sons, Halifax, and sent from thence to St. George's	
5 Aug.	5 Aug. Bill remitted Robert M.Witham, Executorof late William Witham.	205 10	o	Letter laid before the Council Chamber, 5th August, 1859. London, enclosing memorial of Robert M. Witham Esq., of Kirk-connell House, Scotland, Executor of late William Witham, praying payment of the claim of the latter as Solicitor to the Delegates from the House of Assembly in 1839 and 1841, amounting to £197 12s. 8d. stg. The Colonial Secretary having satisfactorily shewn the	
220ct. 8 Dec.	Chairman of Board of Works (on account of new Block House. PatrickSullivan(do.) Chairman Board of	19 19 15 9 128 13	89	Governor's responsibility.	
	new Lock-up.) Paid on Exec. authority	£767 6	part	I certify the foregoing statement from Minute Book of Executive Council, to be correct.	

APPENDIX, No. 31.

ACCOUNT

Of Expenditure on Executive Authority between the 31 December, 1859, and 14th April, 1860.

Expenditure-Supplies sent to Green Eay.

P. Tarahin, I	Molasses	• • • •	£25	9	7
M. Nowlan, I	Flour		185	18	0
P. Rogerson,	Insurance, &c., Shipping Charges,	• • • •	9	11	7
Henry Knight	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	••••	£220 17	19 6	2 8
			£238	5	10

£238 5 10 stg., to be provided for in Supply Bill.

Minute, &c.

Council Chamber, 19th March, 1860.

130 Barrels of Flour and 3 puncheons Molasses ordered to be sent to Green Bay for Poor Relief. £20 currency to be paid Mr. Knight for freight and distribution of same.

Instructions to Mr. Henry Knight.

Secretary's Office, 29th March, 1860.

SIR,-

The Members for the District of Twillingate and Fogo, and Mr. Edwin Duder, having made very strong representations to the Government, as to the destitute condition of many families resident in different settlements at the head of Green Bay, and furnished a list at the same time of those families and the names of the localities (where resident) signed by yourself, I am directed by the Governer to acquaint you that His Excellency in Council, with a view to their relief and that of others similarly situated, has been pleased to purchase one hundred and thirty barrels of flour, to be conveyed under your charge in the to Green Bay, there to be distributed by you among the destitute families resident thereat, in such quantities as may be sufficient for their subsist-

ence until the opening of the season may render such support no longer indispensable.

It is His Excellency's particular desire that no portion of this flour be given to any able-bodied man without either his paying or giving a note of hand (on sufficient security) to pay for the same, say at the rate of 35s.per barrel for such quantity as he may receive, or at all events, if where you may deem poverty may prevent his paying in cash, giving some equivalent either in the shape of lumber or by labour on roads at the close of the fishing season, in proportion to the quantity of food he may receive from you.

His Excellency relies on your faithful discharge of the important duties entrusted to your charge, and he wishes you to make a return shewing the names and number of families relieved, number in each family relieved, quantity of food given, nature of return required, and any other particulars you may deem necessary for his information.

His Excellency will, on the completion of the foregoing service, pay you the sum of £20 currency.

I have, &c., &c.,

(Signed) JOHN KENT.

P. S.—There are likewise three puncheons of Molasses to be distributed with the flour. I enclose a letter from Mr. Stabb, upon the subject of which you will communicate with Mr. Patrick Power, therein referred to.

I certify the foregoing return to be correct.

J. KENT.

APPENDIX, No. 32.

STATEMENT

Of Expenses (for Salaries) of the Colonial Secretary's Office, for the year ended 31st December, 1859.

Names.	Time.	Amou	ınt.	:20 3
		£	s	ď
John Kent, Colonial Secretary	12 Months Salary	500	0.	0
Joseph Crowdy, First Clerk	ditto	20 0	0	0
M. A. Kent, Second do.	ditto	100	0	0
Valentine Born, Office Keeper	ditto	60	0	0
John Houstan, Messenger	ditto	60	0	0
E. D. Shea	Half Salary as Acting Colonial Secretary from 18th March to 31st December.	197	4	5
		£1117	4	5

RICHARD HOWLEY,

Acting Financial Secretary.

St. John's, April 20th, 1860.

N.B.—The expenses for Stationery, Fuel, Light, &c., were not kept separate, but included in the General Accounts for Printing and Stationery, &c., &c.

R. H.

12th August, 1859.

A Minute of Council was passed (12th August, 1859) recommending that the precedents of Messrs. Crowdy, Spearman, Kent, and Little, who received their full Salaries, when acting as Delegates, be followed as respects the Colonial Fishery Commissioner, the Honorable John Kent.

JOHN KENT.

APPENDIX, Nos. 33 and 34.

APPENDIX, No. 33.

RETURN

Of Salaries now paid to officers of the Savings' Bank.

		Cur	renc	cy.
Cashier £425 sterling per annum	 • • • •	£490		
The Directors	 	150	0	0
The Messenger · · · ·	 • • • •	30	0	0
St. John's, April 16, 1860.	E. MORRIS	S, Cash	ier.	

APPENDIX, No. 34.

EVIDENCE

Taken before Select Committee on Bill to provide for the Culling of Fish.

Committee Room, 15th March, 1860.

Mr. Macgregor.

Engaged in the trade upwards of thirty-five years. Does not see anything wrong in the present system of culling. Does not think there would be any advantage to have all Cullers sworn and examined; at the same time, it, in its operation, it does not clog trade, does not see any objection to it. Thinks an alteration in the present system of dividing Fish ought not to be made, as it might tend to lower the standard of the quality; if any change take place however, would prefer only two qualities—Merchantable and Cullage—as he thinks it would simplify the matter. Thinks Id. per qtl. for Culling Fish on the board a fair compensation, one half of which would be sufficient to pay for Fish out of Store. Would not limit the age of Cullers, but thinks they ought not to be employed until they attain at least from thirty to forty years. Would not approve of Inspectors, but sees no objection to the appointment of Examiners. Thinks it ought to be optional to employ other than sworn Cullers. Thinks the present system of culling and the present qualities meet the wishes of the trade. Ships large quantities of Fish every year.

J. MACGREGOR.

Committee Room, 15th March, 1860.

Mr. GILLESPIE.

Engaged in the trade nineteen years; ought to be some improvement in the system of culling; would be an advantage to have all Cullers sworn and examined. Thinks three or five Inspectors or Examiners would be sufficient. Would not make any alteration in the present qualities Fish are divided into.—Thinks that 1½d. per qtl. as fair compensation for Fish Culled on the board; half the usual culling sufficient to be paid for Culling Fish taken out of Store. Would not limit the age of Cullers. Thinks the Inspectors ought to be empowered to suspend Cullers, or pronounce forfeiture of culling for the day.—Would not permit other than sworn Cullers to be employed. Thinks no man ought to be appointed as Inspector who has not long previous practical experience, either in making or superintending shipping of Fish. Would denominate all bad weather and broken Fish as inferior; but does not recommend any change in the present system. Fish is not culled with the same strictness as was done ten years ago. Not so much pains in making Fish as formerly.

THOMAS GILLESPIE.

Committee Room, 15th March, 1860.

Mr. Stephen French.

Is a Culler; has been a fish-maker; has been culling upwards of twenty years, and been a fish-maker before. Thinks it would be desirable to have all Cullers sworn and examined. Thinks many persons now employed may have a knowledge of Fish, but who know nothing about culling. Thinks two Inspectors or Examiners would be sufficient. Would not make any alteration in the different qualities; but thinks the culling ought to be more strictly attended to. Thinks 11d per qtl. a fair compensation for Culling Fish on the board; onehalf out of store would be sufficient. Thinks Inspectors ought to visit the wharves daily to see that Cullers do their duty. Thinks the Inspector ought not to have power to suspend, but ought to be empowered to enforce the forfeiture of a day's culling. Would not recommend any other than sworn Cullers employed. Would denominate slimy and broken Fish, as inferior; but would not recommend any change in the present system of dividing Fish.— Does not think Fish is culled now with the same strictness it was twenty years ago, nor is there so much care taken in making as formerly.

Committee Room, 19th March, 1860.

Mr. H. K. DICKINSON.

Engaged in the trade upwards of twenty-three years. Does not think it would be any advantage in having Cullers sworn; but should be examined as to competency, and provided with a certificate. Thinks three or five Examiners would be sufficient. Would not recommend any alteration in the present system of dividing fish into four qualities. Thinks Id per qtl. a fair compensation for culling fish on the board; and one half of that would be sufficient out of store. Would not limit the age of Cullers. Thinks, in case it is comsidered advisable to have Cullers examined, that none should be employed but those so certified. Does not think fish has been culled with the same strictness as it was formerly; neither is it made so well. Thinks the present system of screwing fish so early in the season is detrimental to its character, and has been aftected abroad in consequence, owing also to the laxity in fish-making and culling, arising from the anxiety on the part of the purchasers to procure early fish. Does not approve of Inspectors being appointed, but merely Examiners or a Board to pass the Cullers.

HENRY K. DICKINSON.

Committee Room, 19th March, 1860.

F. C. K. HEPBURN.

Engaged in the trade upwards of forty years. Thinks it would be advisable to have Cullers examined and sworn. Thinks two Examiners would be sufficient. Does not think it would be advisable to alter the present system of dividing Fish into four qualities. Thinks Id per quintal for Fish Culled on the board for all the qualities, but would not recommend any rate fixed for Fish Culled out of store. Would not limit the age of Cullers. Thinks it would be useless to have Inspectors to visit the wharves, and does not think it would work well. Thinks other than sworn Cullers should be employed. Thinks Fish is not so properly culled now as formerly; nor is Fish so well made, the cure generally having fallen off, not so much care being taken as fifteen or twenty years ago; considers it owing to carelessness on the part of Planters. Thinks the practice of urging people to bring in their Fish too early has led to a great deal of imperfectly cured Fish being brought into the Market and forced off with that better cured. Thinks at present that no legislation would tend to

improve the cure of Fish, and the benefit of a measure like the present considers questionable. Would denominate bad weather and broken Fish, as Inferior. Thinks every sworn Culler ought to be provided with a certificate.

F. C. K. HEPBURN.

Committee Room, 19th March, 1860.

Mr. Stephen Rendell.

Has been upwards of twenty years engaged in the Trade. Thinks it is desirable that all Cullers should be sworn. Thinks two Inspectors or Examiners would be sufficient. Thinks the present system ought not to be altered. Thinks 1½d per quintal a fair compensation for Culling Fish on the board, and one half that amount for culling out of store. Would not limit the age of Cullers. Inspectors ought to be empowered to suspend Culler. Thinks none but sworn Cullers should be employed. Thinks every Culler ought to be provided with a certificate from the Inspector. Thinks no man ought to be Inspector who has not had at least twenty years practical experience. Thinks a Bill to regulate the Culling of Fish is necessary, and would be an advantage to the Trade. Thinks the Culling of Fish has not changed within his experience; nor does he think fish-making generally has fallen off. Would denominate all bad weather and broken fish as inferior; but does not recommend any change. Thinks the practice of screwing fish so early in the season has been detrimental to its character.

S. RENDELL.

Committee Room, 19th March, 1860.

Mr. John Bond.

Engaged in the Trade upwards of thirty years. Does think every Culler should be examined and sworn. Thinks two Inspectors or Examiners would be sufficient. Does not recommend any alteration in the present system of dividing fish into four qualities. Thinks 1½d per quintal would be fair compensation for culling fish on the board, and 1d per quintal for culling out of store. Would not limit the age of Cullers. Thinks the Inspectors ought to be empowered to suspend Cullers. Thinks none but sworn Cullers should be employed. Thinks fish is culled much the same as it was formerly, but is not

made anything like so well as it was twenty years ago, in fact it has not the same appearance. Thinks every Culler ought to be provided with a certificate from the Inspector. Thinks Inspectors ought to have at least fifteen years practical experience. Thinks a Bill to regulate the Culling of Fish would be an advantage. Thinks numbers of men now employed Culling Fish are not competent. Would denominate all bad weather and broken Fish as Inferior. Thinks the practice of screwing Fish so early in the season has been detrimental to its character. Thinks the screwers of Fish have been instrumental in damaging its character abroad.

JOHN BOND.

Committee Room, 19th March, 1860.

Mr. CHARLES RANKIN.

Engaged in the trade nearly thirty years. Thinks there ought to be some change in the present system. Thinks Cullers ought to be examined and appointed by a Board. Thinks two Inspectors would be sufficient; would recommend one being appointed for the Western District, and one for the Eastern, of St. John's. Thinks the present system of dividing Fish into so many qualities ought to be altered, and would suggest three, viz., Merchantable, Madeira, and Inferior. Is of opinion that 12d per quintal as fair compensation for culling on the board, and 1d per quintal sufficient to be paid for Fish delivered out of store. Would not limit the age of Cullers. Would invest the Inspectors with the power of suspension; but does not approve of making Thinks Inspectors ought to visit the wharf daily throughtheir decision final. Would denominate bad weather and broken Fish as Inferior: out the season. and would recommend a change in the present system of dividing Fish. Fish is culled with the same strictness as it was thirty years ago. Does not see much difference in making Fish now to what it was twenty years ago; but thinks Fish is shipped off earlier than formerly, and is prejudicial to the quality. Thinks they ought to be sworn Cullers. Thinks no man ought to be employed who has not had long practical experience.

CHARLES RANKIN.

APPENDIX. No. 35.

APPENDIX, No. 35.

REPORT

Upon the Inspection of Protestant Schools in Newfoundland, for the year 1859.

SIR,-

I have the honor to submit, for the intermation of His Excellency the Governor, the following Report:

CONDITION OF SCHOOLS.

The system of public instruction for the Protestant population of this Island, comprises, 1st, Elementary or Common Board Schools, and 2nd, Commercial Board Schools, established and organised under the provisions of the Education Act, and subject to Government control; 3rd, the Newfoundland School Society's Schools, aided by a Grant from the Colonial Legislature; and 4th, Denominational Schools, also aided by Government Grants. result of the operations of these several agencies for the year ending 30th June, 1858, were shewn in my former Report to have been 131 Schools in operation, attended by 6521 pupils, of whom 2934 could read in the Holy Scriptures; the cost of education £1 4s. cy.; and the average of salaries paid to Teachers belonging to the Elementary Boards, was £36 10s. cy. The results for this year are 136 schools in operation, attended by 7912 pupils, of whom 3025 can read in the Holy Scriptures, 2122 write on paper; the cost of education £1 1s. cy.; and the average amount of a Teacher's salary under the Board is £37 19s. cy. The great difference between the number of pupils for the years '58 and '59, is striking; a small part of it is, I think, owing to the fact that some school returns for the former year were made out by the Teachers as quarterly, rather than as annual returns, and that the total was rather below the truth. may, too, be a slight exaggeration in some of the returns of this year; but I believe that so tar as the Government Schools are concerned they are about Much pains have been bestowed to have them so. Printed blank forms were supplied to all the Boards with directions to have them filled out by the Teacher, and certified by the Chairman; and accordingly all the returns received this year have been so filled out and certified. The per centage of pupils reading freely last year was 45, and this year 38. This is not discouraging, for there has been no retrogression, the number reading in the Holy Scriptures this year is 91 over that of last year: the lower per centage only shews that the Schools have lately received an unusual addition in the junior classes. When the age of the pupils is considered who attend the Schools (a large proportion of them only fit for an Infant School,) I am of opinion that about 40 per cent. is a fair average of Scripture readers, and that the habits and condition of the people must be favourably changed before the Elementary Schools will present the material for producing over 50 per cent. of readers. The ages of the children in the Board Schools are thus returned: 1,431 or 33 per cent. under 7 years, 2,311 or 53 per cent. between 7 and 12, and 591 or 14 per cent. over 12 years. Nor is the time here shewn fully devoted to school. After the age of 9, the attendance of children is frequently interrupted by calls to assist in the occupations of their parents in the busiest parts of the season, which ir effect reduces the ages here given.

SCHOOL ROOMS.

Improvement has been made in the erection and repairs of school rooms during the close of last season and at the commencement of the present, before the Circulars were received ordering the stoppage of further outlay on that account.

At Tizzard's Harbor, a school-room was in a forward state in June however it happened to be an ill shaped building, and suggests the necessity of the Boards being required to submit to the Government or some competent and authorised person a plan of every proposed school building for approval before a commencement is made with the work; it being a great pity to see time and material procured with difficulty for such a purpose wrought into a needlessly ugly or unsuitable form.

At Herring Neck a commencement has been made with a School-room, the sills were laid and the materials provided.

The Fogo Board has, since my former visit, completed three very suitable and good looking School-rooms, viz., at Change Islands, Baird Harbor and Seldom-Come-By, worth about £60 each.

The Greenspond Board has completed a very fine building at Cat Harbor, comprising a spacious and handsome school-room, and Teacher's apartments, at a cost of about £200. This Board has the most valuable school property north of St. John's.

At Catalina a fine school-room was more than half finished, and unfortunately it was blown down during the autumn gales, involving a loss of about £50; it was worth about £80.

At Trinity a new building has been fitted up, providing small rooms for the Teacher, as well as the School-room. I do not altogether approve of the plan, but it seems to answer the present requirements rather well, except that the stove should be changed for a Canadian.

At Ireland's Eye, in the same district, a very pretty little School-room has been built, reflecting much credit upon the inhabitants, who, by uniting heartily, completed it with only a trifling assistance from the Board, about £10.

The District of Trinity West has taken up a new station at Chance Cove, and, with considerable assistance from the inhabitants, has there erected a suitable building in a pleasant locality, which is far advanced towards completion.

A brick flue has been added to the New Perlican School-room.

In Trinity South, improvements have been made in the Scilly Cove School-room, which is now a well finished room.

The Wesleyan School-house at Old Perlican has been lengthened 12 feet, and raised 14 inches, (too little by 2 feet), also a new floor has been laid, but it is to be regretted that it was laid with unplaned hemlock, and that suitable desks and stools were not included in the plan of improvement.

The Brigus Board has taken up a new station at Clark's Beach, and a School-house is covered in and progressing.

The St. John's Board has also taken up a new station near Lazy Bank, where a School was much needed; the School-room is, however, far too small to meet the requirements, and cost double its value; a more suitable School-room could have been erected for £100.

Something has been done in School improvements at Woody Island and Spencer's Cove, Placentia Bay, but the grant is too small to admit of much expenditure for that purpose.

The Burin Board has completed a beautiful and commodious School-room at Spoon Cove, worth £100, and made considerable improvements on the Great Burin School-house.

At Burnt Islands, beyond LaPoile, a new station has been taken up, and a suitable School-room erected.

There are 92 Schools in operation under the Elementary Boards, requiring of course as many School-rooms. I have ascertained that there are 68 Schoolrooms in good, or fair condition, three unsuitable, eight in course of erection, and besides these 13 wanted. The want of suitable School-rooms has long retarded the cause of Education, and the building of them has been a sore difficulty to the Boards, a large portion of the annual Grant is or has been applied to this purpose, which has reduced the Salaries of Teachers to the lowest possible amount, and stinted the allowance for school supplies. increased Grant for Education has given an impetus to the erection and completion of School-rooms, so that there is a prospect of the difficulty being in a short time entirely overcome, and that the means reverting from this channel will be appropriated to increasing the Teachers' Salaries and supplying the Schools with suitable Books and apparatus, which they have never yet had, and so greatly need. Should, however, the Subdivision of the Education Grant be enacted, so many new School-rooms will be required that the prospect will become much more distant, and the old difficulty of building Schoolrooms will in many places be renewed.

FINANCIAL RETURNS.

In the 12th Section of the Education Act, which relates to the holding of annual meetings of the Board and the transmission of School Returns to the Governor, it is ordered that the Return shall be accompanied by a detailed account of the expenditure of the Board for the past year; and any Board neglecting to transmit such returns, according to the forms to be furnished from the office of the Colonial Secretary, on or before the last day of October following the annual meeting, shall not receive further payment until such defaults shall be remedied. Notwithstanding the penalty attached to the requirement, it was last year only partially attended to. The Boards of St. John's, Trinity Bay South, and Trinity Bay North, sent to the Colonial Office full and satistory accounts, in detail; also, a few other Boards sent in balance sheets, but the majority altogether neglected the duty; in consequence of which, no conclusion could be arrived at respecting the appropriations of the Boards, excepting the amount paid to Teachers in salaries; and it was not in my power to introduce any Financial Statements in my Report. In no case was the penalty enforced; but in order to secure the desired information for the succeeding year, by the direction of the Acting Colonial Secretary blank forms of return were prepared, with columns headed by the different items under which school expenses usually occur, and were sent out early in June to the several Chairmen, with a request to have them filled up for the Inspector to receive when making his visit. In only a few cases were they then prepared, but a promise was given to send them to my address early in the fall. On my return to Saint John's at the completion of my inspection tour, early in December, a number of Returns were at hand, but several were missing. I then wrote to the Chairman of the Boards who had neglected to transmit the necessary Returns, requesting that they would at once supply the omission, and some others were since received, but I regret to say not all. No Financial Returns have been received from Moreton's Harbor, King's Cove, (no doubt on account of the death of the Chairman), Bay-de-Verds, Carbonear, Ferryland, Burin, Lamaline, Grand Bank, Burgeo, LaPoile. However, those Returns which have been received, may be taken as a fair estimate for the whole, and from them some interesting deductions may be made (see Table B). It appears that about £300 more than the amount of the ordinary grant have been expended during the past year, the excess being derived from balances from the former year; that about £1000 have been spent upon school buildings, and £200 upon school requisites. From the total of these Returns, which are given in Table B., it will be seen that Fifteen Boards, receiving £3,349 Ss. (being the amount of their ordinary grant) have expended £3,658 in the following proportions, viv. 68-7 per cent. in teachers' salaries, 21-3 on school houses, 1-8 in school rents, 4-1 in school requisites, 0-6 in tuel, 2-1 in remuneration to Secretaries, and 1-4 in incidental items; but the true proportion of Teachers' Salaries to the whole of the elementary grant is 75 per cent. These returns will, I think, be considered satisfactory as far as they go; and I trust that as this year an improvement has been made upon the former, so the succeeding year will be upon the present, in the matter of financial returns of monies received for education. The expenditure of the several agencies engaged in education amongst Protestants will be found in Table A. Altogether it amounts to £8,309 2s. 7d. Cv.

OBSERVATIONS UPON THE INSPECTION OF THE SCHOOLS.

The examinations of the Schools were conducted upon precisely the same plan as adopted by me last year; and as my notes shew a great similarity of results, I have thought it unnecessary to again enter into a particular account and description of each School, but present such observations of a general application

as have occurred to me on my inspection tour. I have added, however, concise remarks upon each School to the General Table D, of School Returns.

Although there can be no doubt that Education is being continuously extended and improved in character, yet the progress is slow on account of the numerous obstacles to its advancement that present themselves in every district; and I must confess that, on the whole, I do not observe any marked improvement in the general standard of instruction since the former year, whilst I have become more sensible to the defects of our School Institutions, and more fully aware of the obstacles which retard reformation and improvement. The obstacles to be overcome are the following:—

1st—The excessive number of Schools to be maintained to meet the requirements of a scattered population, and the insufficiency of the means at the disposal of the Boards to employ the most competent class of Teachers.

2nd—The want of suitable School-rooms, and School Furniture, together with an ample supply of Books, Cards, Pictures, Maps, &c., and of an uniform kind.

3rd—The irregular attendance of the children, and the early age at which they are removed from School.

4th—The indifference of Members of the Boards in general, who neglect to visit the Schools, and leave not a few of them friendless.

But the main obstacle to the progress of Education, and that which underlies all the others, is to be found, I fear, in the indifference of the people themselves. Nor is this indifference surprising, when the nature of the occupation of the majority of the inhabitants is taken into consideration, as well as how little they feel indebted to letters for all they have obtained or enjoy.—Three-fourths at least of the pupils who attend the Board Schools, are the children of fishermen, and will be engaged in their fathers' occupation. In other countries where one class depends so much upon another for support, Education is found of the utmost advantage in the competition for patronage, and parents are prompted by self-interest, or compelled by necessity to secure its aid for their children in order to get them out in the world, and give them a fair start in life; but with fishermen no such powerful incentive exists,—they can draw their supplies direct from nature, independent of favor or patronage, and she opens or seems to open her stores as freely to the illiterate as to the

educated, whilst their sons can be taken out to draw supplies from the same bounteous source without any previous intellectual training-just as soon as their physical powers and the common instincts of nature are sufficiently developed. Nevertheless in those countries where the benefits of Education are more apparent, Government aid is found necessary for its encouragement, and therefore in the present state of feeling in this country, until the masses are fully alive to its importance, Government provision must be mainly depended on for its support. To remove this indifference should engage the earnest endeavours of all who hold positions of influence in society, and it is highly desirable that to this end the several Clergymen who hold the first place and the most effectual means of raising public interest in the subject, would make it a point to bring frequently before their congregations the duty of providing for the Education of the young, enforced by the sanctions of religion. teachings are always acting beneficially upon the cause of Education, producing a desire for the attainment of knowledge as well for its ennobling and eternal consequences, as for its present practical advantages; so that there is a prospect of the evil which retards the progress of Education becoming constantly lessened.

The early age at which children are taken from School, is the great dis couragement to the friends of Education. No other obstacle appears to them so difficult to surmount as this. True it is that the children remain longer in good Schools than in bad ones, the parents thereby shewing that they are willing to make some sacrifice that their children may have the benefit of what they consider to be a good Education, but they seldom make a sufficient sacrifice. The expensiveness of a fisherman's family requires that the children should contribute to the cost of their food and clothing from the earliest period when they are able to do so, and this happens too soon for the success of Education. Where the shore fishery is carried on, boys are taken to the fishing grounds by their father as young as 8, often at 9, and most commonly from 12 years of age and upwards. The earnings of these young fishermen are from £6 to £12, which when set against its equivalent in some common necessary of life, as bread or flour, appears such an important item in the family income as to justify the sacrifice of Education to obtain it. Where the Labrador fishery is prosecuted the effect is no less injurious, as whole families remove from home for 4 or 5 months in every year. The children taken thus early from their Schools to engage in the fishery, generally return during the winter

months, until they are about 13 years of age, but they seldom re-enter the School-room with the same docility and degree of intelligence they formerly possessed, and henceforth their progress is slow and the attainments reached on leaving School are of a low order. But whilst this obstacle cannot be removed by any direct action of the Boards or of the Government, it is not so with the others which relate to School-rooms, Teachers, School organization, Books and other apparatus,—these may be at once reduced or removed whenever the necessary means are raised and rightly devoted to this purpose; and it is more than likely that by overcoming these movable impediments, something will be effected towards reducing that of a more permanent nature. The questions arise,—Is the object of sufficient worthiness or importance to justify the expenditure? Can, or will, the people raise the necessary sum? Will the Legislature provide it?

The School organization and discipline are, with a few exceptions, very imperfect, and urgently require means to be adopted to improve them. only qualification required by the teacher was once thought to be an acquaintance with the elements of knowledge, or simply a familiarity with the branches required to be taught; but the tailure too often realized of such meagre qualifications to effect the desired results, has demonstrated clearly the necessity of some discipline and instruction designed especially to afford a knowledge of how to teach, and how to control, as well as what to teach. In my former report I suggested that a model practising school be established in the capital, to which outport teachers should come to learn the art of school management and a good mode of teaching, by which not only an approved, but uniform system would be extended throughout the districts. Another plan might be adopted to attain this end-to engage two competent organizing masters who should go through all the schools at least once in two years, spending a week, or more, at a time in each school. But at present the apparatus is not provided, nor are the school requisites to be purchased in the colony which they would require. Organizing Masters would cost not less than £200 each per annum; but in my opinion the improvements they would effect would be worth the cost, and indeed if we are to have any improvements, they cannot be effected without some considerable outlay.

The method of teaching is also defective. In examinations I frequently find that although the children have been taught to read with some degree of freedom, they neither know the meaning of the words, nor understand the sub-

ject they have been reading. , Indeed, I believe of many Teachers, that they labor with praiseworthy industry to instruct mechanically in the art of reading, and never feel conscious of having left undone the greater part of their duty, by neglecting to develope and discipline the powers of the young minds daily coming before them. The defective nature of this method is as obvious as it is injurious, for the first great object to be sought in education is the cultivating and disciplining the powers of the mind. These powers can be developed and strengthened only by exercise or discipline, and therefore no reading lesson should be passed over until it is understood by the pupils and its moral impressed upon the conscience. Some teachers, who are well aware that catechising upon the subject read has the effect of expanding and strengthening the mind, excuse themselves from adopting the practice by thinking that the art of putting extemporaneous questions is a natural talent not always or easily to be obtained. The truth is, that it is an art which, when the principles upon which it proceeds are known, may, with a little pains, be successfully practised by any one; the whole art consists in the simple principle of making every material circumstance or principal word in a passage, the answer to a question; the Teacher of course forming his question in such a manner as to force the child, if he answers correctly, to give that word or circumstance as the answer. But then no Teacher can depend upon successfully imparting all the instruction the lesson may, or should convey, without having prepared himself at home by a study of the subject-a professional obligation which such as would be known as faithful Teachers will cheerfully and conscientiously comply with. For the information of Teachers, with regard to the many improvements in the science of teaching which have been adopted in public Schools in England and America, I would respectfully recommend to the several Boards that they subscribe to some of the many educational journals which distinguish the age, for circulation amongst their agents, for Teachers would be benefitted by the reading of educational periodicals as much as members of any profession by the works devoted to their special interests.

A few instances came before me this year, as well as last year, of Teachers being at home attending to their private business during the specified School hours, and taking holidays, without leave, over and above the long vacation.— I suppose that it is on account of the low salary given that the Boards are not very exacting in some cases as regards punctuality and regularity on the part of the Teacher, but this evil must be checked with a firm hand, as it destroys confidence in the School. The hours and duty for which a Teacher engages

himself through the Boards to the public should be faithfully fulfilled, whether the compensation be little or much, and if he cannot, by doing his duty to the public satisfy his conscience with regard to domestic claims, he should resign his charge.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOLS.

The separate grants for "Commercial and other Schools" are thus disposed of. In general where the sum is large enough to establish a School a Board of Commissioners is appointed, who undertake the proper disposal of the grant, but where it is too small to maintain a School, the grant is given to some existing school and there is no Board. In the latter case I am of opinion that a condition might be imposed that the School receiving such aid should be improved in character, and that one or more directors should be appointed to see that the condition be fulfilled. Six distinct Schools maintained by these grants have been in operation during the past year, viz., at Muddy Hole, Bonavista, Trinity, Brigus, Burin (Wesleyan), and Harbor Briton, of which only Trinity and Brigus Schools can be considered Commercial in character. the others being no better than Elementary. The total amount they receive is £317 6s. cy., collections about £41, and the number of pupils in attendance is They have all been inspected and a full return will be found in the annexed Table E. Four other grants are given to Denominational Schools, viz : the grant to Heart's Content £23 Is. 6d. cy., is given in aid of the Newfoundland School Society's School established there. The grant to Old Perlican £23 Is. 6d. is given in aid of the Wesleyan School established there. grant to Cupids £23 1s. 6d. is given in aid of the Wesleyan School established there, and the grant £46 3s. to Presbyterian Commercial School, St. John's, is appropriated to this purpose. There are yet five other grants, amounting to£219 4s 6d, cy., viz: Grant to Twillingate £57 13s 10d, to Seldom-Come-By £23 16s. to Broad Cove £57 13s. 10d. to Burin (Episcopalian) £23 1s 6d., and Burgeo £57 13s. 10d. With these no School has as yet been established, and I presume the grants are accumulating in favour of the several Boards. I robably it is the intention of the Commissioners to expend the amount of the back grants, when become sufficiently large, in building School-rooms, but at present nothing in that shape has become visible, and I am not aware of any Commercial Board that possesses or is building a School-room.

From the above remarks it will be seen that the Commercial Schools, so called, do not in general fulfil the purposes for which they were established; I consider it highly necessary that Commercial Schools should be established

and maintained in efficiency, as such, in the chief towns in the Island, that is to say, at Twillingate, Greenspond, Bonavista, Trinity, North Shore Conception Bay, Bay Roberts, Burin, and Burgeo. That they should be under the direction of Lay Commissioners, and not disturbed by any sub-division of the Common Education Grant. That suitable School-rooms should be built by a Grant from the Legislature according to plans approved of by the Government, and that the Colonial Grant for their support should be £70 per annum for each School, total £560.

ALTERATIONS OF EDUCATIONAL DISTRICTS.

As the Educational Districts are not divided according to any arbitrary rule, but so that all parts of each may be conveniently accessible to its respective Board, or at least more accessible than to any other Board, should the present Education Act be disturbed, I would respectfully suggest that the District of Greenspond be extended to Deadman's Bay, as the School-house at Cat Harbor has been built by the Greenspond Board, and can be more easily supervised by its Rev. Chairman (being within his mission), than by the Fogo Board, also that a new District, styled the District of Hermitage Bay, be formed of a part of the present Educational Districts of Fortune Bay and Burgeo. extending from the West side of Cannaigre Bay to Cape-la-hune, inclusive; this extent of coast corresponding with the mission of the clergyman stationed in Hermitage Bay. The members of the Burgeo Board cannot conveniently visit Schools on this side Cape-la-Hune, nor the members of the Harbor Briton Board visit settlements west of Cannaigre Bay. Besides, a complaint has been made that the Clergyman of Hermitage Bay, being appointed a member of both these Boards, that there are two Clergymen of the same denomination on the one Board and three on the other Board; which would be obviated without creating any grounds of offence. This new District would embrace 880 Episcopalians of the Electoral District of Fortune Bay, and 353 of the Electoral District of Burgeo, total 1233 Protestant Episcopalians.

DIVISION OF GRANT.

With regard to the contemplated sub-division of the Protestant Education Grant, I would beg to observe that I have not been convinced, by anything that I have heard or seen, of the necessity or expediency of its being enacted; but as the subject will be discussed by the Legislature it would perhaps be unbecoming and presumptuous in me to state the arguments by which my own opinion has been decided against it.

SCHOOL REPORTS.

Of the Report for last year 100 copies were printed by order of the Legislative Council, and 100 copies by order of the House of Assembly, which were almost immediately afterwards distributed (except some copies reserved for the Council) without any preference being given to the Boards or Teachers; in consequence of which it has happened that not one member of some Boards has received a School Report, and that very tew of the Teachers have had the opportunity of reading one. It is to be presumed that only persons who were interested in Education obtained a copy of the Report, and as it is most desirable that such should always have an opportunity afforded of gratifying their desire, as well as that those immediately concerned in its advancement should be regularly supplied with copies, I would respectfully suggest that a larger number be ordered to be printed in the future, and that a sufficient quantity be reserved for distribution amongst the several Boards.

With much pleasure I again acknowledge the cordial co-operation of the several Education Boards, and the kindness of numerous friends all over the Island, who much assisted me in my journeys. I have, however, to regret that time did not permit me to pay my respects to every member of the different Boards, which would have been as much a pleasure as a duty to have done, and I hope they will allow the excuse.

I feel most grateful to His Excellency and to the Members of His Excellency's Government for their favourable reception of my former Report, notwithstanding its numerous imperfections; trusting that the present Report may be a satisfactory fulfilment of my Instructions, containing a truthful statement of the condition of the Schools organized or sustained by the Government, and that it will be viewed with the same lenity as the former,

I have, &c.,

(Signed) JOHN HADDON,

Protestant Inspector of Schools.

To the Hon. John Kent, Colonial Secretary. St. John's, 12th February, 1860,

TABLE A.

Summary of Education for 1858-1859.

Expended by Government		£ 359 3,491	30.	<i>i</i> a 40 0.	3. d. cy. £ s. d. cy. 3. 4.	ં	d. cy	.•
Elementary Boards	Balance of Education Grant, spent chiefly on School Buildings	1,161 17		9	5,012 10 10	10	10	
By Government Commercial (A	Amount of School Fees	41	4	2				
Boards	Grants given as Salaries	317	9	0	358 10 7	10	7	
By Colonial Church and Alschool Society	Amount raised and spent in the Colony, including grant of £500 Stg.	, 855 5 1,154 19	19	80	2,010 4		က	
By Wesleyan School So-	(Fees and Contributions	365 0 0	0	0			I	
ciety	Government Grants	378 13 11	13	year)	743 13 11	13		
By Church of England	Fees £8. Grant of St. John's Board to Pouch Cove £30	0 88		0	38 0	0	0	
By Presbyterian Church	Amount of Grant to Presbyterians	46 3 100 0	80	00	146	es	F 0	Total expended £8,309 2 7Cy.

TABLE A.—(Continued.)
RESULTS.

Through Agency of	Number of Schools.	Number of Number Pupils in who can attendance readinHoly past year.		Number who were writing on paper.	Remarks.
Government Elementary Boards	<u>66</u>	4340	1569	1040	Proportion of Protestant popu-
Government Commercial Boards	9	172	84	87	12-3 per cent, or 1 in 8 indi-
Colonial Church and School Society	25	2468	970	269	viduals.
Wesleyan School Society	Yeard Yeard	793	317	214	Cost of Education per head, £1 Is currency
Church of England	proof.	64	32	13	Per centage reading Holy
Presbyterian Church	yéss)	75	53	63	Scriptures, 38. Per centage writing on paper, <i>27</i>
,	136	2,912	3,025	2,122	

TABLE B.

Financial Return of Elementary School Boards for the year ending 30th June, 1859.

	The same and an included in the last the same and the sam												-
No.	Educational District.	Ordinary appropria- tion for the District.	Special Grant.	Balance from past year.	Paid in Teachers' Salaries.	Expended in building or repairing School Houses.	School Rents.	Expended in School requisites.	Fuel.	Paid to Secretary of Incidental. Board.	Incidental.	Deficit.	Balance on hand.
64	Twillingste	Cy. 6. d. 178 11 2	£ 8. d.	£ 8. d. 28 16 2	£ cy. 150 0 0	£ Cy.	Cy.	£ s. d.	Cy.	£ cy. Nil.	\mathcal{E}^{\cdot} s. d.	£ cy.	Cy. £ 8. d. 14 3 11
က	Fogo	200 0 10	34 12 3	51 6 9	167 6 1	91 0 5		43 10 10		Nil.		4 19 3	
4	Bonavista, North	221 8 4		184 12 11	115 0 0	185 9 1		2 2 0		7 0 0	23 2 3		73 7 11
9	Bonavista, South	151 9 4			120 0 0	15 0 0	15 0 0	5 5 6		5 0 0			
ŗ.	Trinity Bay, East	8 9 66			85 0 0			9 8 0		5 0 0	2 10 0		6 1 9
· ∞	Trinity Bay, North	195 6 3	11 12 4		156 19 8	35 15 6	10 3 4	7 0 8		8 13 1		11 13 8	
	Trinity Bay, West	161 11 2		43 17 9	75 0 0	48 16 8		0 0 9		10 0 0	1 4 0		
92	Trinity Bay, South	192 10 4			144 0 0	10 18 6		12 18 5		2 0 0			19 13 6
.25	Harbor Grace	347 1 0	23 1 6	53 19 11	303 10 0	29 8 7	0 0 6	11 7 9		15 0 0			55 16 1
4	Bay Roberts	247 13 4		1 2 9	159 9 8	4 18 1	2 0 0	5 15 8		Nil.			76 12 8
55	Brigus	208 6 8			111 0 0	87 12 6	0 0 9	4 16 10		5 0 0			43 17 4
16	Saint John's	716 12 3	110 9 10	176 15 11	556 11 8	317 18 9	24 0 0	36 19 8	24 0 0	15 0 0	24 4 2	4 2 9	
18	Placentia Bay	102 10 0		23 18 0	117 1 8			2 16 10		Nil.			9 6 9
75	Fortune Bay	246 5 9		22 18 2	189 0 9			7 7 3		Nil.			72 15 11
25	Port-au-Basque	80 15 4		35 1 0	61 3 0	2 10 0		4 10 0		Nil.			47 13 4
		3349 8 0	0 179 15 11	622 9 4	4 2511 2 6	779 8 1	66 3 4	11 61 091	24 0 0	75 13 1	51 0 6	20 15 8	416 17 10

TABLE B.-(Continued.)

Returns Received since Report was Completed.

No.	No. Educational District, appropriation for the District.	Ordinary appropria- tion for the District.	Special Grant.	Balance from past year.	Paid in Teachers' Salaries.	Paid in in building Teachers' or repair-Salaries. ing School Houses.	School Rents.	Expended in School requisites.	Fuel.	Paid to Secretary of Board.	Incidental.	Deficit.	Paid to Secretary Incidental. Deficit. Balance on of Board.
		$\begin{array}{c c} \hline Cy. & Cy. \\ \hline \end{array}$	f. Cy.	Cy.	Cy.	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Cy.	Cy.	Cy.	Cy.	Cy. £ s. d.	Cy.	£ Cy.
\$3	Bonavista, West	130 15 0	; ;	145 8 9	114 10			4 18 11	1	5 0 0	1		151 14 10
12	Carbonear	250 10 0 23	23 1 3		227 0 0	227 0 0 23 1 3 13 0 0	13 0 0			11 10 0		1 0 0	
Ξ	11 Bay-de-Verds	264 0 0 11 10	11 10 0	1	225 0 6	225 0 0 30 5 0 8 0 0 11 15	0 0 8	11 15 0		Nil.			

INSPECTOR'S REMARKS.

2.-By these figures £43 3s. 5d. are not accounted for.

3.—The £34 12s. 3d. is the Commercial Grant to Muddy Hole. By this statement the deficit should be £18 8s. 4d.

6.—No balance given. If return were correct there is a balance against the Board of £8 16s. 2d. Return is not accurate, and brought up to a wrong date. 7.—Correct. Board only formed July 1858. This balance was voted to one of the Teachers in lieu of his holidays. 8.—Correct. The debt was incurred in building School room, North side.

9.-No balance given, but £64 8s. 3d. remain unaccounted for. The £10 paid to Secretary is for many years' service.

10.-The most satisfactory return, accompanied by account, in detail.

13.--Correct. Amount paid to Secretary is for two years.

14.—Correct. 15.—Correct.

16.-An error somewhere, By the figures given there should be a balance on hand of £5 3s. 9d. 18.—Correct.

22.-This return includes the Commercial School Grant.

N. B.—No return received from the Districts omitted. 25.—Correct. 5—Correct. 12—Correct.

TABLE C.

District Returns of Elementary Schools for the year ending 30th June, 1859.

a commence of the		·													
8	Baibliu8.	-	 1			٠.		-		,		24			
School-rooms.	Wanted.	H	·			•	ಣ	-=	23	-		- 104			
-loot	Unsuitable.	-										•••			
Sel		\ -		ಣ	ಣ	ಣ			<u>4</u>	ಲಾ	. 4	ත	10		
	Good or fair.		6		17									- ;- -	
	Grammar,												<u> x</u>		
ļ	Geography.	-						G)	-1-	6 0	· 	- 27			
ng.	Rule of Three.		9	13	C1	41	-	,			12		18	=======================================	13
Cyphering.	Compound Rules.	9	13	21	19	œ	9	=======================================	22	13	34	30	31	56	16
Cyl	First four Rules.	17	26	34	34	16	22	20	355	25	26	42	43	47	33
ng.	On Paper.	4.	22	61	46	17	13	37	52	30	7.9	29	16	77	78
Writing.	On Slates.	20	\$	41	40	20	16	54	200	46	71	63	7.1	99	20
	Holy Scriptures.	87		64	[-	52	33	55	64	45	110	90	170	141	125
Read ng.	Erey lessons.	22	45	67	33	23	36	48	89	36	87	134	27	78	2
Reg	syllables.	25	32	37	54	3	22	20	52	70	97	133	176	114	93
	Tetters and mone-	52	06	19	83	72	90	06	125	100	179	224 1	232 1	217 1	182
ll	Average daily attend	1 69	12	38	£3	12	15	31	22_1	24 1	24 1	28	62 2	55 2	3
Pupils.	Over 12 years.	37	<u> </u>		67	22	83	88		64					
، و	Between 7 and 12.	1	38	-8		36			1 101		3 135	220	225	186	179
Age	Under 7 years.				1 54		54	34	6	63	126	109	130	92	82
ъноо	No. of Pupils on B	76	111	168	164	100	152	153	184	151	285	357	417	333	292
	patoal	8. 0 0	14 6	0	10 0	0	0 9	9 1	6 5			0	0	0	ಣ
, -10:	Amount of Fees c	# es	9 1.	20	6 1	7 11	63	8 17	0.	7 11		9	9 11	10	
l		-0 G	0	-3-	6			- <u>~</u> -			-22	7/26	- 6	1.22	9,33
**	Average amount	* O	•	∞	0	. •	0	9	6	9	.0	x	0	13	6
	tarrome average A	7 33	020	42	35	53	030	0.28	031	0.38	36	031	23	047	65 0
	Osterico.	. O	0	ريا -	· • .	•	•	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	es G
pers,	Amount paid in Teac	30.	150	127	105	87	120	82	188	115	144	220	210	286	156
:18	No. of Schools in ope during the past ye	ł	<u></u>	က	ಣ	ಣ	4	6	_ [_	**	4	-	- 2	6	
noitere	District.	- <u>8</u>	8	53	-27	=	=	#	12	150	9				
lo no	Protestant population	2382	3348	2545	3092	1511	2351	1484	3057	2267	2556	3718	3367	4873	3951
	Educational Districta.	Moreton's Harbor	Twillingate	Fogo	Bonavista North	Bonavista West	Ponavista South	Trinity Bay East	Trinity Bay North	Thirity Bay West	Trinity Bay South	Bay-de-Verds	Carbonear	Harbor Grace	Bay Boberts
1	40M	-	es.	3	4	4	9	-	60	63	0	-	er.	63	44

_	
-(Continued.	
•	
=	١
	į
.=	
-	•
=	;
-	١
73	١
_	
`-	
- 1	
•	
\mathbf{c}	١
ت	
=	
_	
_	
~	١
-	
_	
TABLE	
	ĺ
•	

									· 			=====	
g g	Building.	-	•										∞
School-rooms.	Wanted,		-		-	-							13
chool	.eldstiusnU												
	Good or fair.	69	œ		ಣ	es		C/I	ਚਾ	က	C3	Ē,	3
	Grammar.		19		က			10	14	30	31		82
	Geography.		20		က			-	`∞ _	œ	2		
1g.	Rule of Three.	લ	15		7-	64		60	99	~ ∞`~	•••		
Cyphering.	Compound Rules.	4	41		15	ಣ		8	0	16			
	First four Rules.	5	88		21	9		35	27	8	2	-α	5
Writing.	on Paper.	21	157		33	15		40	22	48	2	24	875 10±0
Wri	On Slates.		- 9		78	ົ ດີ		41	41	37	~ ~ ~	=	875
80	Holy Scriptures.	89	170		41	22		09.	90	64	10	88	598 2859 1549 1222 1569
Reading.	Езьу језеопа.	25.	136		35	35		48	35	69	6	22	1222
H	Le'ters and mono- syllables.	. \$	188		37	33		38	55	2	1-	83	1549
.aoui	Average daily attenda	78	332		75	69		120	111	130	19	88	2859
pils	Over 12 years.	6	79		18	11		26	11	27	es -	02	
of Pupils	Beimeen 7 and 12.	52	255		56	20		73	19	102	18	57	2311
Age	Under 7 years.	46	160		33	31		47	-89	2	9	19	4 4340 1431
's¥o	No of Pupils on B.	107	491		113	92		146	140	193	26	88	4340
	lected.	6. 0.2.	4 4		10 0	0		0 0	0 9		0	9 9	8
	Amount of Fees col-	್ಷಿಣ	13		8	2		2	16		=	စ္က	
 		ಕಂ	0		-	®		•	0	®	0	<u> </u>	0359
	Arerage amount of	20	20		0	9		0	10	9	•	-	19
		d.£-	-6-		-8	-23		035	2 20	- 2	5	8	-82
	esizelad	<u>"</u> o	0	urn	0	•		0	0	0	Ö	စ	7
rets,	Amount paid in Teacl	£ 135	575	Return	90	2		2	165	130	11	8	3491
r.g	No. of Schools in operion during the past y	8	20	No	4	ಣ		61	9	69	64	63	85
	Protestant population	3094	9615	135	1041	1923	451	938	2846	1463		1993	64001
	Educational Districts.	Brigus	Saint John's	Ferryland	Placentia Bay	Burin	Lamaline	21 Grand Bank	Fortune Bay	Burgeo	LaPoile	Port-au-Basque	Totals
1	No.	2	16	17	188	6	20	21	22	8	24	23	

TABLE D.

Return of Protestant Elementary Board Schools in operation during the year ending 30th June, 1859.

TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Inspector's Remarks.

1.-In the same state as last year, rather backward.

2.-No improvement since last inspection.

3.-Visited in June; not at all satisfactory; no School in operation for more than 8 months, and Teacher's salary going on.

4.-Has improved a little since former inspection; not visited by one member of the Board, except Rev. T. Boone, during past 12 months.

5.-In a satisfactory state.

6.-Children making fair progress; School well conducted.

7.-Master faithful and zealous, and the scholars making good progress.

8.-Still kept in successful operation, and well supplied with requisites; a change of Teachers has taken place; attainments scarcely so high as last year.

9.--As last year. Just occupied the new School-room.

Maps lately supplied.
 Maps lately supplied.
 Well supplied and progressive; also lately supplied with Maps.

12.-The School has been lately re-opened. Fees not yet due.

13.-As last year.

14.-Ditto.

APPENDIX, No. 35

Return of Protestant Elementary Board Schools in operation during the year ending 30th June, 1859. TABLE D.—(Continued.)

								-		Ze	o. o	No. on Ages Books. Pupil	Ages of Pupils.	ot ls.			Reading.	ing:			Arith- metic.	t; ;			2 %	School Rooms.	· ·
Educational Districts.	.oN	Locality of Schools.	When Established	Teachers' Names.	Amount of Teachers' Salaries.		Amount of Fees Collected		Weeks of Summer Vacation.		Female [Fato]	Total Total	Between 7 and 12.	Over 12 years.	Average attendance. No. of days in which	School was in operatio	eyllables.	Holy Scriptures.			First four Rules.	Rule of Three.	Geography	Grammar	Good or fair	Wanted	- Buiblina -
Bonavista West	15	15 King's Cove	1853	1853 John Coffin	£ 3.	3. E	.s. 13	 0	9	22 14	143	36		<u>c4</u>	25		6	918	~	9	<u></u>	<u>හ</u>					
		ve	1848	Joseph Tilly	30 0	0	1 0	0	9	19 13	13.3	32 11	112	6	17 2	220	12	8 17	7 10								
		ille)	1858	Elizabeth Robins	25 0	0			9	4	21	35 17	17 16	C1	30	249	131	(i)	رة.								
	18		1854	George Mifflen	40 0	6	1 6	0	9	22	,	27 11	11 12	₩.	18	211	4	6 17	9	_∞	111	9					
	119	19 Bonavista (B. Cove)	re) 1858	Abraham Abbott	25 0	-			9	35	23.5	35 23 58 15 43	43	27	25		53	2									
Bay East	20		1853	William Minty	25 0	-	2 6	6	9	14.15	15.2	29 11	Ξ	7 22	20 2	220	12	7 10	9								
	21	21 Little Catalina	1855	John Way	25 0	0	10.	0	9	22	- - - -	22 20 42 12 30	30	က	30 2,	277	14]	14 15 13	310	4	-G	61					
	22	22 Great Catalina	1843	Rev. W. Netten	35 0	-	0 9	6		53	53	82 11	47	244	40 1	178	24.5	24 26 32	38		45	6					
3ay North	123	Side	1848	Mrs. Holden .	34 12	0	12	=======================================	9	308	24 5	54 17	<u> </u>	635		112	22 13	3 19	18	16.1	-61	ت 3	~				
	24		1843	John W. Gover	34 12	-	1 17	8	9	4	11 2	25 6	11	2 21		166	6 10	6 0	6	4	-						
	25	25 Old Bonaventure 1	1855	James Pitcher	30 0	-	10	9	9	==	17 2	28 17 11	7	15		166	6 17	7 5	1-	7	1-						
•	56	26 New Bonaventure	1857	Jacob Morris	34 12	~~	2, 18	6	9	41	12.2	9 92	20	22		166	61	10 10	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	6	7	4			-		
	27	27 British Harbor	1854			-0	6	0	9	14		23 6	6 10	7 14		566	9	7 10	7-	6	- ಣ	- oo			-		
- 51	28	28 Ireland's Eve	1854	William Watton	25 0 (-0	18	0	9	17.1	11 2	28	9,12	7 18		263	61	6 11 11	C)	1	্ন	<u></u>	ಣ				

TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Inspector's Remarks.

15-As last year.

16-Quite unsatisfactory.

17-Unsatisfactory; neglected by Board; no register kept; bare of requisites.

18-Has proved a failure, and waste of money, in a populous locality and with a good School-room.

19-No register kept, children untidy, room unswept, short of requisites, altogether discreditable.

20-In numbers and degree of attainment far below what may be reasonably expected.

21-Disgraceful, should be closed until it can be re-opened under more favourable circumstances.

22-Well conducted, and in a satisfactory state.

23-Making satisfactory progress.

24-A humble but useful School (as last year.)

25—Ditto. ditto

26-Was closed in February last; Teacher felt compelled to resign on account of the low amount of the salaxy.

27.-No change since last year, except that the School-room is somewhat improved, and a good stove provided.

28-A neat School-room lately built, chiefly by the inhabitants. School well conducted and flourishing.

Return of Protestant Elementary Board Schools in operation during the year ending 30th June, 1859. TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Educational Districts.	Trinity Bay West 2	_ 63	<u> </u>	Trinity Bay South 3	63.	5.		Bay-de-Verds 3	<u>es</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	**	4	7
,oN	8	30	31	32	33	34	33	36	37	38	39	40	41	42
Locality of Schools.	New Harbor	Hearts Delight	New Perlican	Soilly Cove	Hants Harbor	Seal Cove	Grates Cove	Bay-de-Verds	Island Cove	Northern Bay	Ochre Pit Cove	Western Bay	Adams Cove	42 Mully's Cove
When Established.	<u> </u>					1853	1847	, market and 100 and 1						
Teachers' Names.	Moses Parsons	Ananias Case	W. Swansborough	John Walker	John Husson	Robert Ralbin	Thomas Cooper	Elias Piccott	S. B. Parsons	William Loder	John Curtis	James P King	John Martin	Mrs. Howell
Amou of Teache Salarie	£ 40 0	35 0	40 0	36 0	36 0	36 0	36 0	35 0	35 0	25 0	35 0	35 0	35 0	0 0;
	<i>d.</i> € 0	0	0	8	0	0	-5	0	0	0	- 8	4	0	0
moun of Fees allecte	»	11	0	77	ဗ	11	15	0	0	0	10	0	10	0
Weeks of Summer	<i>d.</i>	<u></u>	4.	4		9	<u> </u>	-	0	-	9	9	9	0
vacation. Male				46				31		15		41		17
Female	183	204	377	58	418	194	21 5	285	214	183	204	398	174	31 48
Total Under 7 years	611	5 14	88 0.	63	3 28	2 17	6 13	9 24	=	3 12	7 15	34	∞	
Between 7 and 12.	13.1	45	27	36	_	19			25	19		-85	37	5 42
Average attendance	230	730	540	5 78	544	630	827	239	5 25	2 20	630	8 45	4 35	1 30
No. of days in whic	44	252	220	219	215	216	215	230	230	230	230	230	230	230
syllables.	22 1	141	34 1	263	40 1	171	142	14 2	13 2	9.1	17	303	28 1	22 1
Holy Scriptures	1 3	313	2 24	147	231	114	4 18	718		212	515	070		22 14 12
Satel nO	===	131	22	34.2	152	44	181	121	12	9	10	151	61	9
	4		412	-89	412		510	2	8	9		5	81	9
Compound Rules		00	10	15	∞	9	10	9	10	41	10	010	<u>`</u>	9
		-		80	_	₹1	2			63				
Grammar														
	-		=	 1	-	-		-				-	-	
Wanted bestranged														
	When Established. Namer Schools of Manage attendance Teachers of Summer Vacation. Weeks of Summer Teachers of Summer Vacation. Weeks of Summer Total Woeks of Summer Total Woeks of Summer Total Weeks of Summer Total Weeks of Summer School ways in whice School was in operat Dover 12 years Woeks of days in whice School was in operat Descens and mono-syllables. Holy Scriptures School was in operat Don Slates On Paper First four Rules On Paper Geography Geography Geography Geography Geography Geography Geography Geography	Now Harbor Moses Parsons (20	Locality of Amount Amou	Locality of Schools. Schools. Names. Schools. Schools. Names. Schools. Schools. Schools. Schools. Schools. Salaries. Salaries. Salaries. Salaries. Solaries. Sol	Locality of Names. Salaries. Collected Salaries. Compound Salaries. Collected Salaries. Collected Salaries. Collected Salaries. Collected Salaries. Collected Salaries. Collected Salaries. Compound Salaries. Compound Salaries. Compound Salaries. Compound Salaries. Compound Salaries. Collected	Teachers	Teachers	Teachers	Notes Parchers Amount Amount	Vest Schools Schools Names N	Compily of Schools. Compily of Schools. Compiled Schools.	1 New Harbor Schools, Schools, Names, Office teachers Office teachers	1 Names Names	Tacchers

TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Inspector's Remarks.

29-Re-opened last April, has suffered from frequent suspensions, Scholars backward; at inspection three only could read in Testament, and write.

30-At inspection 18 read well, spelling perfect, writing moderate; catechism perfect.

31-Some of the pupils well advanced in Arithmetic; writing slovenly, ill shaped, and full of mistakes, indicating neglect.

32—Highly satisfactory; School-room improved; salary of Teacher remarkably low for services rendered.

Going on very well; Teacher also underpaid.

As last year, satisfactory.

34 35

Teacher absent.

Making fair progress; School well supplied with books; room requires some repairs. 36

Requires improvement. 37 Pupils improving quite as well as can be expected; Teacher has many difficulties to contend with—a cold and unfurnished school-room and a small salary are the greatest.

40-Some improvement visible; School-room not well furnished, and stools made to accommodate the public for Divine service rather than the scholars. 39-Attendance fluctuating; degree of attainments, low; a want of copy and reading books; School-room too small and in a shabby condition.

41-Requires improvement; School-room comfortable, needs finishing.

42-School kept in an unsuitable room, but the Teacher is orderly, and the pupils are making fair progress.

TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Return of Protestant Elementary Board Schools in operation during the year ending 30th June, 1859.

										Zĕ	No. on Books.		Ages of Pupils.	s of	1	uo	Reading	ing	Writ ing.		Arith- metic.	년·향			E S	School Rooms.	- si
Educational Districts.	oN I	Locality of Schools,	When Established.	Teachers' Names.	Amount of Teachers' Salaries.	int ers'	Am Fr Colli	Amount of Fees Collected	Weeks of Summer Vacation.	9laM	Female	Total Stasy 7 years	Between 7 and 12.	Over 12 years	Average attendance	No. of days in which School was in operati	Letters and mono- syllables.	Holy Scriptures	On Slates	On Paper First four Rules	Compound Rules	Rule of Three	Geography	Grammar Good or feir	Good or fair Bad	Wanted	Baibling
Carbonear	£3.	43 Perry's Cove		John Swain	£ s. 35 0	0.6	એ જ	G.	9		18 16 34 12 19	<u> </u>	2 15		- 27		16	8 10	9					<u>!</u>			τ
	44	44 Otterbury		Joseph Jetson	35 0	0			• ——		15 16 31 10 15		015		623		14	7 10	9	ಣ	4						
	45	45 Freshwater		Joseph Parsons	20 0	0	63	10 0		36	36 44 80 27 40	30	740	13	13 60		201	248	112	20 12 48 12 16 12 12	212	9					
	46	46 Carbonear West	1853	Thomas Roberts	40 0	0	~	1 0		82	95	182 2	105		29 65	213	961	4 72	35	96 14 72 35 62 15	6.9	12	8	00			
	47	47 Carbonear South		George Apsey	50 0	0				48	48 42 90 30 49	<u>-8</u>	045	11 60	09		30-2	-2	12	30 20 40 12 10 12	2 10						
Harbor Grace	48	48 Mosquito	1843	William Simmonds	20 0	0	eq.	7 6	m-	17	20 37 11	-17	1 17	_ G	32	230	101	10 11 16		8 15 11	1 2	~					
	49	49 Bears Cove	1843	Miss Comer	36 0	0		4	es -	20	15 35 11	35	119	10	25	230	7	11 17	00	6	8	~					
	20	50 HarborGraceN.Side	e 1843	Henry Trapnell	50 0	0.	% :	18 6	ю -		30 18 48 16 27	-81	627	3	35	223	21 1	15 12	9	9							
,	51	51 HarborGrace S.Side	1843	e 1843 John Martin	50 0	0	4	0 0	<u>ස</u>		31 19 50 20 21	-8	9	6	35	230	26 1		10	26 10 14 10 10 10	0	<u>س</u>					
	52	52 Bryants Cove	1843	Thos. Stevenson	90 09	0	67	0	<u>ი</u>		32 29 61 14	-	443		5 30	230	28	627	4	=	1 4	41			-		
	53	53 Upper Island Cove	1856	Wm. Martin	50 0	0	10	0 0	8	54	84	<u> 201</u>	50 60	22 60		230	22 25 55 10 22	555	10	22 13	3 12	67					
Bay Roberts	54	54 Bay Roberts	1853	J. Beasant	40 0		011	0 0	C4	5.0	12. 101	101	174		899	231	282	647	12	28 26 47 12 36 12	9	9					
	55	55 Coley's Point	1843	G. W. R. Hierlihy	46 0	_	0 18 1	13 4	61	72	50	१८१ इ	3 70		975	228	50 23 49 15 34	349	12	34 10	0 7	1-					
	99	66 Hibbs Hole	1855	1855 Miss Killegrew	30 0	0		0 0	61		15 14 29		415	4 15 10 15		221	41	8 17	17	4	<u></u>						
		_				-						-							•		-					-	

TABLE D.-(Continued.)

Inspector's Remarks.

43.-- A humble School, 7 read fair, no writing in copy books, no tables taught, the School-room comfortable.

44.--Ditto, School-room comfortable but encumbered with stools used for Divine Service, and not kept in order.

45.--School not open when I was there, stove funnelling being put up, I have no doubt it is in a satisfactory state.

46.—The School-room and premises in a most creditable condition; the School largely attended, well supplied, and efficiently managed. 47.--Inspected at an unfavorable time, when the attendance was small, I have no doubt it is a useful School.

48.-As last year.

49 .- Room for improvement, School-room not very suitable.

50.-Disorderly, the backwardness of the children indicates neglect on the part of the Teacher,

51.-Spelling imperfect, want of copy books, attendance irregular. Improvement required.

52 .-- No change since last year, doing rather well.

53.—Organization and discipline admirable, making rapid progress, well supplied.

54.--Children neat and orderly, reading and spelling good, writing and cyphering looks highly creditable, a successful School. 55.-Making fair improvement, room requires enlargement: Parents pay their fees well, and otherwise assist their Teacher.

56.—Fair, considering the tender age of the children.

TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Return of Protestant Elementary Board Schools in operation during the year ending 30th June, 1859.

!	Building														
School Rooms.	Wanted							-							
Roch Roch	Bad														
	aid at pect						 -		_		_				
	Grammar						1-				6		4		33012
	Geography			CI -			1-				-				
후.양	Rule of Three.	61				<u>61</u>	<u>.</u>		<u> 10</u>	4-	.	<u>61</u>	ಣ	F-	
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules,	``		-01	~	<u> </u>	13		<u> </u>	<u>.</u>	-2-	13			
	First four Rules.	4	_ _	-1	<u>~</u>					-2-	6	- 5	101	16 24 18	50 18
Writ ing.	On Slates.		12	4	9	4	217	10	5 13	4	ه	9 14 16	7	- 23 -	<u></u>
	Holy Scriptures.		201		ق	r-		œ		9	4	-6	14	3	65
Reading.	Easy Lessons.	15 13 12	132	<u></u>	1-	-6	26 15	œ	121	7 16	15 14		7		37 13 53
ad	syllables.		12.	13	24	17	252		10 11	4		511	10	61 29	-
2	Letters and mono-	_			C/1		C1		-		-		7	9	က
·uo	School was in operation	227	82	220	222	155	226	225	223	193	231	-89	224	178	89
1	No. of days in which														
	Average attendance.	6 24	40	20	4 18	39	45	30	27	821	20	20	217	93 20 35 38 46	9 15 67
of ils	Over 12 years.		27	က		က	7				,	10		88	15
No. on Ages of Books. Pupils.	Between 7 and 12.	22 18 40 14 20	330	25,10,12	1918372310	18 25 43 16 24	23		21 42 14 27	3.16	24	5 15	821	_33	_6 0
1	Under 7 years.		45 13			==	3432 6636	10 14 24 13	-2		21 19 40 16			_ <u> </u>	
No. on Books.	IstoT		4	8	<u> </u>	4	_8	_ <u>č;</u> _	4	2 27	<u>4</u>	3 25	13 31	_ 6_	103
No.	Female	- 2	421		- 6	-8-	- 8 -	-10	-27	5 12	=	12 13	181	66 27	56 47
	Male		24	17					27	15					
	Weeks of Summer Vacation.	63	9	9	9	9	8	~	က	4			<u>.</u>	က	က
	Amount of Fees Collected	d.	0	63	0	1-	0	0	9	9		6	7	9	6
	Amount of Fees Collected	°; ∞	0	C	0	œ	15	0	12	17		13	16	12	œ
	At Col	ુ જ	က	41	တ		C3	C/3	27						`
	Amount of Feachers' Salaries.	40	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	Amount of Teachers' Salaries.	.,0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	An Fea Sal	£ 04	45	45	45	45	55	45	S	45	55	40	50	9	80
		1												60	
			ick		g			era		rd			hre	Ĭ,	æ
	rs,		err	Smith	ude	tes	•.	п	_	kfc	ell	2	g	- S	od
	Names.	c _Q	i S	S	Yol	20	iten	Sal	ller	Bic	ä	Ite	Hu	Ä	ĕ
	Teachers' Names.	D. C. Lacy	Alexander Serrick	William	Thomas Youden	86	R. Parmiter	Charles Saunders	James Allen	Edward Bickford	W. H. Bursell	Mrs. Walters	Edward Humphrey	Mr. and Mrs. Ewing 110	Sea
	E	ರ	exa	ij	OE	ark	Pa	arl	nes	Wa	H	y,	WB	E	щo
		Ö.		≥		S.	곡			Ed	×		Ed	XI.	Th
-	DOLLOW OF STORY	1853	1859	13		850 Charles Coates	1850	1851	1844	1841	1842	1858	1850	#3	1859 Thomas Woods
	When Established	187	118	1843	1843	18	8	. 28	136	18	18	18	18	1843	18
1														×6	
	44													69 St. John's, Mag. Cov	es t
	Locality of Schools.		ch	면		ey	ht				a)	ey.		fag	=
	alit oh	بيہ	ည္ထ	ea	ve	=	Big	ouc		e)	0.4	Ial	Ξ	, S.	, s
1	္မွဳ ထိ	ď	S		ဍ	r G	به	<u>a</u>	a:	E	0	~	~	h,	pho
1	H	57 The Dock	58 Clark's Beach	59 Burnt Head	60 Bulls Cove	61 Upper Gulley	62 Middle Bight	63 Long Pond	64 Topsail	65 Belle Isle	66 Broad Cove	67 Balley Haley	68 Quidi Vidi	Jo.	70 St. John's, West
ll .	•		ຽ	Ã	ā	5	Z	ĭ	Ĕ	ğ	Ã	Ã	Í	ž	S
	No.	57	58	59	-09	61	62	63	35	65	99	. 5	68	69	-15
		1													
1	Educational Districts.							٠,							
1	tion	Bay Roberts				_		-							
1	uca)ist	ge g				St. John's									
11	τρς: T	r r	Brigus			Job									
11						_									
	H	3ay	Ä			ببر									

TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Inspector's Remarks.

57.-Improvement made since last inspection.

58.—A new School opened first time Jan. 25th, 1859, improvement in scholars noticeable, well supplied with books, a School-house in course of erection.

As at former inspection.

60.—Teacher competent, but order, discipline, and becoming neatness, too much overlooked.

61.-A useful School, equal to the demand of this small settlement, room comfortable and rather well supplied.

62.-Method good, degree of proficiency attained by first class very creditable, well supplied.

63.—Teacher absent when Inspector called.

64.-Making fair progress, well supplied, salary should be equal to that given at Broad Cove.

65.—Not yet inspected.

66.—Rather better than last year.

67.—Useful.

68.-Quite equal to the demand, and well supplied.

69. -- Attendance has fallen off since last year, Teachers attentive, School well supplied.

70.-The room overcrowded with pupils, requires enlarging, or the number limited to about 60. Teacher has not at present a fair chance of advancing

his pupils.

TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Return of Protestant Elementary Board Schools in operation during the year ending 30th June, 1859.

()	<u>, </u>								 :	·					
	Zaibling l	•												-	
School Rooms.	Warted bosted				-		_								
Sch	Bad														
327	Tish to bood		-	41		-		-		1	-	+-1			
∦	Grammar				က						2	41	က		7
	Geography				က						1-	8			
4.9	Rule of Three	41			က	63				က	- 2				8
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules			.21	4					12		23			-23
11 , 1	First four Rules		8	5	6 4	8	4-	ಣ		20 31 30 25 20 20	15	-5-	<u> </u>		-9
Writ ing.	Taga T nO	818	- 9	- 9	9	₩	<u>ස</u>	- 24		<u> 8</u>	520		41		
S1	On Slates				_					8	30 16	1214			7 12
80	Holy Scriptures	18 12 10	912	810		8 12	6	<u>~</u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	8	41	90	6 17
Reading	Easy Lessons			-1	41	7 18		16		<u> </u>	18 17	4	13	10	4
8	Letters and mono- syllables,	-						-		C 1	1	-	-		
11	School was in operati	5	-			0							213		240
l t	loidw ai sysb loodog	215	237			230		_							_
	Average attendance	30	13	18	14	56	13	20		70	20	23	17	15	24
of B.	Over 12 years	က	1-	9	C1	∞	က			48 33 81 27 43 11 70			-	9	က
8.5	Between 7 and 12.	25	Ĥ	10	10	24	Ξ	15		43	30	10	00	4	12
Ages of Pupils.	Under 7 years	21 19 40 12 25	19 10 29 11 11	ဝ	7	47 15 24		12 30 15 15		27	28 65 20 30 15	14	17	ō	12
No. on Books.	Isto'I	- 64	29	25	8 19	47	15	30		81	65	7 24 14	16 10 26 17	15	8 19 27 12
0 0	Female	19	<u> </u>	10		26 21	6			33	58		9	9	<u> </u>
Zm	9[8]VI		<u>6</u>	15	11		9	18		48	37	17	19	6	
	Weeks of Summer Vacation.	4	တ္			က						က	\$.		
		0.6				0				0	0	0	0		9
	Amount of Fees Collected	10:				0				0	0	0	0		9
	∯°åë	. એ. કું				0				10	u5	ro.	တ		4.
	7 0 1	- 1 0	-	-	0	010	0	0		035	035	0	-	0	0
	Amount of Teachers' Salaries.	. •	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0
II .	mot of aach lari	°°°													
	S H S	ુ નાજી	15	25	30	40	=	50		35	35	49	15	15	40
•	Teachers' Names.	1853 James Burton	1845 James Slade	Thomas Stevens	Nelson Baley	1844 John Churchill	Jane Hodder	Amelia Goddard	Return	Alexander McKay	John Prior	Hénry Camp	John G. Lucas	Elizabeth Skinner	George Snelgrove
	Managrapher nan M	62	5	1848	1850	4	1859	1859	°Z,			1845	1857	1858	1849
	When Established.	. 22	- 52	18	18	18	18	18				18		18	18
	Locality of Schools.	71 Harbor Buffett	72 Spencer's Cove	73 Woody Island	74 Odc.n	75 Great Burin	76 Mortier Bay	77 Burin Bay	78 Lamaline	79 Fortune	80 Grand Bank	81 Garnish	22 English Harbor	83 Sagona	84 Brunet
	,oN	12	23	73	77	15	92	12	18	73	80	81	<u>21</u>	83	
	Educational Districts.	Placentia Bay								Grand Bank		Fortune Bay		_ &	<u> </u>
	Ed.	Placer				Burin			Lamaline	Grand		Fortu	•		

TABLE D.-(Continued.)

Inspector's Remarks.

72.-Of a humble description. 71.-In successful operation.

73.—Ditto.

74. -- Attendance fluctuating, pupils carefully instructed, a School-room much needed.

75.--School-house was undergoing extensive alterations when Inspector called; and the pupils could not be assembled. 76.-A humble School.

77.-- A beautiful School-room has just been completed at a cost of about £100, towards which the inhabitants contributed one-half; School not long

78.-When in the neighbourhood I was informed that there was no School in operation, so did not go there. commenced and scarcely organized.

79.—Quite satisfactory; a good School-room and well supplied.

80. - Ditto.

81.-Was closed last September, on the resignation of the Teacher. It is to be regretted, as. Mr. Camp is a successful Teacher. 82.--Room for improvement; it is not adequate to the requirements of the place.

83.-Of the very humblest description. Now closed.

84.—Efficiently conducted, and in a creditable state.

TABLE D.-(Continued.)

Return of Protestant Elementary Board Schools in operation during the year ending 30th June, 1859.

Arith- School metic. Rooms.	First four Rules. Compound Rules. Rule of Three. Geography Good or fair Bad Wanted		515 1	18 9 6 8 1	2 2	2 10 6 2 1	5 6 1 1	2 1 1 1 1	1	7 5 3
Reading. ing.	Letters and mono-syllables. Easy Lessons. On Slates. On Paper.	15 5 7 7	12 4 5 4	38 34 40 22 28 18	1212 8 6 8	20 13 16 9 12 1	2 2 6 2 5	5 7 4 4 2	5 10 13 4 11 2	23 12 24 22
No. on Ages of Books. Pupils.	Temale Temale Total Under 7 years. Between 7 and 12. Over 12 years. Average attendance. No. of days in which School was in operation	15 12 27 12 14 1 17 221	8 13 21 8 13 15 270	68 44 7 37 60 15 75	19 13 32 11 17 4 22	1930 49 16 25 8 33	7 3 10 2 8 7 105	6 16 3 10 3 12 105	5 12 27 9 16 2 23 195	35 24 59 10 41 8 45 220
	Amount Amount of of Of Salaries. Collected Salaries.	s. d.£ s. d. 0 0 3 10 0	0 0	9 0 0	0 0	0 0	908	8 0 0 10	0 0 4 5 6	0 035 0 0
	Teachers, An Names, Tea	1856 Henry Shepherd 40	1857 Martha Francis 15	Rev. J. Cunningham 40	1 Thomas Porter 30	1848 John Prior 60		A. G. McDonald 71	1858 Fred. Tweedell 30	1855 Tohn Tordon
	Locality of Schools. When Established	85 Grole 1856	86 Hermitage Cove 1857	87 Burgeo 1844	88 Burgeo(Hunt'sIsl'd) 1851	89 Upper Burgeo 1848	90 La Poile	91 Rose Blanche	92 Burnt Islands 1858	93 Channel 1855
	Educational of Districts.	Fortune Bay 85	86	Burgeo 87	38)	38	La Poile 90	91	Port au Basque	63

TABLE D.—(Continued.)

Inspector's Remarks.

85.-As well as may be hoped; children very young.

86.-An infant school in character.

87. -Order and method good; satisfactory progress made; well supplied.

88.—Teacher faithful according to ability; the school of a humble order.

89.-Vacant. Teacher resigned. It is a great pity that so fine a school should be again closed.

90.- (The number of pupils not being satisfactory at LaPoile, the school has been removed to Plant, about 2 miles distant, where a larger attendance may be obtained; and for want of funds to engage two masters, one master has been made to serve this and the Rose Blanche school by 91.—(

turns, teaching in each 6 months at a time.

.

92.-It is a new school, and I have not inspected it.

'93-Was not able to get to Channel in consequence of long prevailing foul winds. I have reason to believe it is an excellent school.

TABLE E.

Return of Commercial Board Schools for the year ending 30th June, 1859.

···									
4	Buibling								1
School Rooms.	Wanted								1 4
नु ह	Bad								
22 14	Tist to bood		-						-
	Grammar			9	3	10 11 10		4	25
	Geography			9	5	H		4	45 43 84 34 87 58 24 29 26 25
ان غ	Rule of Three.			9	13	2			8
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.		4	6	∞	~	6/1		1 %
,	First four Rules.		4 11	6	12	-	13	3 10 14 12 12	<u> 8 </u>
Writ ing.	On Paper.			20	330	12	6 9	- = -	- - 🗟
	On Slates.		17 10 11 11			- 63		<u></u>	1 5
ė	Books gen.information		=	4 10 20	4 10 19	12	16 10 12	픞_	1 8 -
ğ	Easy Lessons.		=		_≕		-	4	1 24
Reading.	syllables.		·	٧.	٧.		=	٧.	4
l	School was in operati		0	- 5-		20			
u u	No. of days in which		260	230		215			
	Average attendance.		21	20	- 20	드	32	15.	1 -
<u> </u>			-6	_	-	1-		-	-
is of	Over 12 years.		-27	20 11	797	10	19	_ 	-124-
Ages of Pupils.	Between 7 and 12.				<u>~</u>				117 55 172 25 106 41 117
PA	Under 7 years.		61	ന			38 13	7	55
	LatoT		38	34	33	12	ဆ္တ	17	172
No. on Books.	Female		13	H	r _O		8	9	1 18
ZM	9[sM		25	23	28	12	18 20	11	12
	Vacation.								
	Weeks of Summer		9	က		4			
			1-	0		0	0	0	1
	moun of Fees blects	အိ	14	0		10	0	0	4
	Amount Amount of of of Trant in Fees Currency Collecter		2	က		7	9	63	-
	<u> </u>	<i>d.</i> €	က	10	10	927	9	10	 14
	Amount of Grant in Currency	.0							į.
1	of of cant irre	ø	12	13	13	10	-	13	7.6
	<u>₹ 55</u>	્ય	34	57	57	98	23	57	£317 6
						0	δn		ુલ
			202	Ę	ell	gal	lin	Ħ	•
	es.		Ë	WS	φ	tin	arc	g	
	am am		Ħ	280	Jam	igh	77	No.	
	Teachers' Names,		les	lel	8	Z	am	Ħ	
			Charles Harris	Samuel Rowsell	ä	John Nightingale	William Harding	J. J. Blackburn	
			5	Š	'n	J.	≥	1 -5	
	When Established		851	857	852 James Campbell				
	hodesidatest nearth (<u> </u>	18	==				
							~		
	وين						yaı	ď	
	29 0		e				sle	Ę	
1	alit cho		Ħ	g			₩	Br	
	Locality of Schools.		đу	Vis	A	8	٦	or or	
-	H .		ng	Bonavista	ij.	Brigus	Œ.	art	
			Muddy Hole	Ã	3 Trinity	20	5 Burin (Wesleyan)	Harbor Briton	
	.oN , i		7	61	က	4	10	9	
				•		_			
	Edvestional Districts.				rinity Bay, N.		•		
	iris			Ω2	ay,			Зау	
	O is			onavista, S.	Œ.			ortune Bay	
Į,	E I		<u>o</u>	lavi	ıity.	3rigus	Burin	tur	
			ogo	Ö	:	ŗį.	Ħ	9	

TABLE E.-(Continued.)

Inspector's Remarks.

- 1.—Elementary in character, Children making ordinary progress.
- 2.-Requires a larger School-room to make the School as extensively useful as it might be, also that more attention should be given to Geography, Grammar and Book-keeping, to qualify it to rank as a Commercial School.
- 3.-Was suspended when Inspector was at Trinity, owing to the resignation of the Master; another Teacher has been since engaged, and it is now in operation.
- 4.-Performed exercises in Grammar, Geography, Arithmetic, &c. with much ability and readiness; Pupils are doing well. It is in character a Grammar School. The rent of the School-house is a serious drawback upon the establishment, and it is greatly to be desired that a Government School-house should be erected.
- 6.-Was commenced last year after I had been there, and closed before this year's visit, so that I had not an opportunity of seeing it in operation. It 5.—An Elementary School of small pretensions. School kept in a most unhealthy room, from which I seriously fear many children will sustain an injury. could not have effected much good in so short a time. This School has been closed many years excepting the short time indicated.

TABLE F.

Return of the Colonial Church and School Society's Schools for the year 1859.

			No. on Books.	n Bo	ks.	F	Reading	مه	A	Writing		Arithmetic	Ę.		, 	.alie		
,oX	Locality of Schools.	Teachers' Names.	Male	Lemale	Total	Holy Scriptures	Easy Marrative	Letters	In Copy Books	On Slates	Rule of Three	Compound Rules	Simple Rules	Grammar	Geography	Average Age of Pup	Average attendance	Inspector's Remarks.
	1 Twillingate	Mr. and Miss Wills	90	91	101	29	20	19	<u>ස</u>	21 35		∞	33	- 1-		* 6	75	
<u>01</u>	2 Fogo	Miss Winter .	10	15	25	12	5	41	4							637	20	
ಣ	3 Greenspond	Mr. and Miss Wills	140	136	276	81	23	43 9	8	30 35	-10	6	17			2	150	
4	4 Swain's Island	Mr. Bishop		~													-	No Retura.
10	6 Salvage	Mr. Thurman	23	37	09	18	22	12	<u>~</u>	18 22	4	10	4		18	11	30	
<u>ت</u>	6 Bonavista	Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence	102	126	228	67	40,	72 4	47 6	66 42	12	24	28	10	10	634	130	
1-	7 English Harbor	,	59	19	41	-20	10	9	1	10 12	61	က	4		~ 	6	25	
		Mr. Moore	18	15	33	17	0 0	co.	<u></u>	15 8	80	9	9			6	- 56	
- 6	9 Trinity	Mr. Collis, Miss Lockyer	47	55	102	29	13	10 1	12 4	49 46	3 11	8	œ	61	N	10	20	
0	10 Hearts' Content	Mr. Thompson	49	855	134	45	43	33_1	16 4	42 15	œ	16	16			6	63	
=	11 Harbor Grace	Mr. and Mrs. Gardner	06	115	205	6	48	33	34 5	55 165	9	29	38	37	74	6	145	
===	12 Bishop's Cove	Mr. Dobie	33	34	29	30	12	13_1	12 1	12 26		~	T			œ	51	
- 63	13 Spaniards Bay	Mr. and Mrs. Earle	94	50	173	89	25	60	4	41 42		14	53			6	81	
4	14 Bareneed	Mr. Payne	62	36	86	54	-01	56	<u> </u>	27 16	12	10	9			80	70	
-									. `									

Return of the Colonial Church and School Society's Schools for the year 1859. TABLE F.-(Continued.)

			No.	No. on Books.	oks.	-	Reading.	60	=1	Writing		Arithmetic.	etic.	ļ		sliqu	96	
Ko.	Locality of Schools.	Teachers' Names.	Male.	Female.	Total.	Holy Scriptures.	Easy Namative.	Monosyllables	Letters. In Copy Books.	On Slates.	Rule of Three.	Compound Rules.	Simple Rules.	Grammar	Geography	T to 93A 938197A	Average Attendance	Inspector's Remarks.
	15 Port de Grave	Mr. and Mrs. Maddock	106	75	181	87	39		17		Ŧ.	- 9	- oc	13	15	17.	135	The greater number of these
391	16 Salmon Cove	Mr. Kelligrew	40	33	7.0	61	£1	10	- 18	15	~; ~;	10		5		-57 17	50	Schools were visited by me du-
17.	17 Brigus	Mr. and Mrs. Mills	7.0	87	166	20	39	30	40	27	99	8) 16			8	98	ring the past season; they are
18	18 Portugal Cove	Mr. Ward	98	39	75	16	6	18	32	61	202	9		6 3	41	-	40	all in operation, and I noticed an
19	19 Torbay	Mr. Webber	16	12	85	9	æ	10	41	9	9	۸,	জ			∞	24	improvement in the schools situ-
, 8		(Mr. Major	62		79	48	13	12		98	43		7	14	98 •	2	09	ated in Conception Bay.
2	21 St. John's, Central			67	67	33	14	14	•	47	61		S	12		10	20	
çi Çi			26	20	106	20	21	53	36		- 20					53	88	I HADDON
- 63	23 St. John's, SouthSide	Mr. and Mrs. Crosby	20	12	32	19	8	1	4	21	16	<u>~</u>	<u>~</u>	3 10	9	2	35	Insmerto
24	24 Petty Harbor	Mr. and Mrs. Bishop	34	35	99	29	13	15	6	21	25	2 16	.6			∞	48	
25	25 Belloram	Mr. and Mrs. Marshall	20	56	46	32	-	9	-	22	1-	4	σc			-	42	
			1226	1226 1242 2468		970	536	506	456 69	8 269	831 7	78 221	276	124	500	1	8½ 1606	
_			-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	_	$\ $	_			

Return of Wesleyan Methodist Society's Schools in operation during Educational year 1858-'9.

TABLE G.

																36.7 M
	Inspector's Remarks.	1. Needs improvement.	2. A good School; but Pupils less proficient than at	rormer inspection; want of neatness, ofter and discipline.	3. First class acquitted themselves well in reading, spelling, writing, and calculations; rather a want	of order; School-room needs repairs, I think the return is over stated.	4. Efficiently conducted.	5. Ditto; attendance not so great as at former in-	spection. 6. Was not in operation when I was there; has been since resumed under a superior master.	7. Needs improvement.	8. In successful operation.	9. Doing much good; teachers devoted to their work.	 Was closed since the removal of Mr. Lucas; has been lately re-opened. 	11. Not inspected; heard nothing about this School when I was at Burin.		
,	of ire.	1				-										<u> </u>
	Amount of Expenditure.															£709 12
				0		9		9	60	9		> >				
	ò.					288		23	17	23		77				£743 13 11
	ırren			368 £					ound		ouch					£3
	ë E			nd F		Socie			to S	lican	to P					
	come			ions		eyan		pids	Boar	l Per	Board					
	of In			tribut		Wesl		S Cu	entia	o S	hn's					
	Amount of Income in Currency.			Voluntary Contributions and Fees £365		Govt. Grant to Wesleyan Society		Special Grant to Cupids	86 Voted by Placentia Board to Sound, Island	Special Grant to Old Perlican	70 Voted by St. John's Board to Pouch	e 4e				
	An			untar		ıt. Gra		oial G	ed by Isl	oial G	ed by	Cose				
						ဗိ		Spe	\$ 0 2		Vot					
	Total.	35	98		119		50 160	85		45		57		20		793
	Female.	15	34		49	•		35	စ္တ	15	20	24		23		295
	Nale.	20	52		20		110	50	56	8	50	33		53		498
	атез.	ole	istían				etere	ngale	ä	82 80	đ	8u.s				
	Teachers' Names.	Benjamin Cole	William Christian		John Curtis		Mr. & Miss Peters	lighti	Alfred Turner	Joseph Baggs	Joseph Bacon	1 Doy	<u> </u>	rady		
	eache	enjan	Villia		ohn ([r. &]	liss N	Ifred	черр	ngeph	harles	(Vacant)	Miss Brady	,	
.		<u>m</u>					2	we M	<u> </u>			ط <u>ه</u> (ر		Ξ		
	School Stations.	80	erlica		Head		lear	e-Gra		Cove	ohn's	Islan	lands	Вау		
	Stat	Catalina	Old Perlican		3 Black Head		Carbonear	Port-de-Grave Miss Nightingale	Cupids	Pouch Cove	Saint John's	Sound Islands Charles Downs	10 Fist Islands	11 Burin Bay		
	No.		- 87		8		4	¥3	9	<u>~</u>	φ 20	6	10 F	<u>#</u>	-	
						-								• •		

TABLE H.

Return of Episcopalian and Presbyterian Schools for the year ending 30th June, 1859.

	Educational Districts.	Saint John's	Saint John's
	.o.V	1 -	61
And the second s	Locality of Schools.	PouchCove (Episo	2 St. John's (Presby-1
	When Established	1	y- y-184
	Teachers' Names.	Mr. Vile	1847 James N. Neilson
	Amount of Grant.	£ s. d.	46 3 0
	Amount of Fess Collected Summer Weeks of Summer	Cy. 8 0 0	0 100 0 0
P No	Vacation. Malale	35 29	51 24
No. on Books.	Female Total	29 64 23	24 75 17
Ages of Pupils.	Under 7 years. Between 7 and 12.	23 32	17 48 10
	Over 12 years. Average attendance. No. of days in which	9 59 2	63
g Reading.	School was in operati syllables. Easy Lessons.	230 1616	220 11 11 53
Writ ing.	Holy Scriptures. On Slates.	32 32 3	
Writ Arith- ing. metic.	On Paper. First four Rules. Compound Rules.	21 10 8	63 34 21
	Киде оf Тигее. Сеодтарћу Стаппат	9	6 50 30
School Rooms.	Good or fair Bad Wanted		=
_ ;	Baiblina		

Inspector's Remarks.

1.-The sum voted by the St. John's Board to Pouch Cove is £57 cy. which would be only a fair salary together with the collections, for one Teacher; and certainly one Protestant School is quite sufficient for the population of Pouch Cove; but it is sub-divided; and £27 is given to the Wesleyan School and £30 to the Episcopalian School; hence Mr. Vile is inadequately paid. His School is largely attended, efficiently

2.—This School is in the same satisfactory state as at my former inspection.

managed, and the children are making fair progress.

TIME TABLE.

Time,	1st Class.	2nd Class.	3rd Class.	4th Class.
A. M.			AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPER	THE PARTY WAS ARRESTED AND THE PARTY AND THE
1 6 6	* Prayers and Singing; observe	marks of cleanliness; - give out	Slates, &c.	
64 67	* Reading the Scriptures.			
£6 £6	Take Registers of attendance and	absence,		
94 104	Writing, S.	Writing, S.	Writing on Slates.	Alphabet, &c., P.
101 103	Reading and Spelling.	* Reading and Spelling.	Reading and Spelling.	Do.
103 11	Interim-all run into play-ground-	Interim-all run into play-ground- if wet only those who wish to go out.		
11 113	* Arithmetic, P.	Arithmetic, P.	Arithmetic, P.	Prayers and Hymns.
114 12	Tables, Weights, &c.	Tables.	Tables.	* Reading and Spelling, P.
At 12	Collect Slates, Pencils, &c. say or	sing Grace: Dismiss.		
P. M.		And the second s		
At 15	* Say or Sing Grace, give out	Slates, &c.		
13	Dictation, S.	Dictation, S.	* Reading (secular), P.	Reading and Spelling.
2 23	* Geography or Grammar (both	classes)	Arithmetic, P.	Do.
21 3	Reading (Secular), P.	* Arithmetic, P.	Spelling.	Prayers and Hymns.
3 33	Mental Calculations.	Reading, (secular) P.	Writing, S.	* Spelling.
3£ 3£	* Reading Chapter of Scriptures by Master.	Master.		
33 4	Collect Slates, &c. Prayers and	and Singing: Dismiss		

NOTE. Lessons marked * to be taught by Master or Mistress; S means sit; P sit part of time.

APPENDIX, No. 36.

SECOND YEAR'S REPORT

Upon the Inspection of Catholic Schools in Newfoundland, 1859.

On the 30th of May I started from Placentia for Fortune Bay, for the purpose of commencing my tour of Inspection. I expected, by starting thus early, I could, with certainty and with more ease to myself, visit all the Schools I was bound to visit in the course of the Summer, and thus escape the unpleasantness of visiting Schools during the latter months of the year, particularly when such visitation would necessitate my crossing any of the Bays of the Island. I regret to state, however, that notwithstanding the early period of the season that I commenced this year, as compared with last, my visitation extended fully as late into the Fall this year as it did into the former. This has been caused chiefly by the difficulty I experienced this year in procuring passages, particularly from the Westward and from the District of Fogo.

DISTRICT OF FORTUNE BAY.

HARBOR BRITON SCHOOL.

I visited this School on the 10th June. It was the only Catholic School in operation in this District at the time of my visit. It is conducted by a Miss Hearne, who has had charge of it four years at a salary of £20 currency.—There are no fees paid. Miss Hearne appears to be a very competent person to conduct a school of this description.

The School is held at present in a room of the Teacher's house, but there is a school-house built of 18 teet by 14, which will be ready for the reception of pupils by the fall or-the ensuing spring. This school-house was built by the inhabitants without any aid from the Board.

There were 16 children present at examination, all of whom were very young, yet their spelling and reading were very good, and their writing remarkably so. Arithmetic is taught as far as the elementary rules. Catechism taught each day, and the Teacher also assembles the pupils on Sundays, when some children, who are unable to go to School, attend with the others. As I happened to be in Harbor Briton on a Sunday, I visited the School-house where they were assembled, and from the creditable manner in which they

acquitted themselves on both occasions that I examined them, I am justified in stating that I have never met with children, so young, so thoroughly conversant with their Catechism.

The Rev. Father Fripps informed me that there is a School-house in course of erection at Gaultois, of 27 feet by 16, a portion of which will be fitted up for the residence of a Teacher. It will be finished this Fall, when the Rev. gentleman will endeavour to procure the services of a Teacher. This School-house has also been built by the inhabitants without any aid from the Board.

DISTRICT OF BURIN.

LAMALINE SCHOOL.

This School is conducted by a Mrs. Healy, who has had charge of it two years at a salary of £20 currency. Fees about £3 10s.

The School is held in a room of the Teacher's house. There were 19 pupils present at examination. The reading of the first class was pretty fair, but the spelling was very indifferent. Only two present learning Arithmetic, one of whom was only in Simple Addition, Catechism taught twice each day, and twice on Sundays—knowledge of it fair. Of the maximum attendance of 25 pupils, 14 are Protestants.

ST. LAWRENCE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 11th of June. The School was closed on my arrival, as the Teacher was then taking his vacation, which is one month. He, however, assembled the children for my inspection. There were 76 present at examination, 30 of whom were in the Alphabet; reading and spelling indifferent; none learning Arithmetic. Catechism taught once each day as well as Sundays—knowledge of it very poor. There were 18 Protestant pupils of the 76 present.

The Teacher of this School, Mr. Poynter, has had charge of it only one month at a salary of £42 10s. When I visited this District last year, Mr. Poynter had charge of the Beau Bois School. I believe him to be a competent and attentive Teacher.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOL, BURIN.

Mr. Harney continues to conduct this School at former salary; fees about £4. There were 31 pupils present at examination, and they acquitted themselves in the same creditable manner as last year. Mr. Harney is a very competent Teacher, but labors under the disadvantage of not having a suitable supply of Books, Maps, &c., for a School of this description. I trust, however, that this impediment to the efficient working of the School has been removed, at least to some extent, long ere this, as the Chairman, the Rev. John Cullen, commissioned me to purchase Books for the use of the Schools in the District, to the amount of £12. This order I executed on my arrival in St. John's. These Books are to be supplied to the Schools in accordance with the plan I suggested in my former Report. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it fair.

FOX COVE SCHOOL.

I did not visit this School last year. It is 22 feet by 14, but it is not finished inside, when completed it will afford accommodation for a Teacher.—Mrs. O'Mara continues to have charge of it at former salary of £20. No fees paid; there is no Register kept. On the day of my visit there were only 10 pupils present, all of whom were very young. A few copies of indifferent writing exhibited. Catechism taught once each day.

BEAU BOIS SCHOOL.

This School is at present conducted by a Miss Sparrow at a salary of £20; no fees paid. The Sacristy of the Chapel, where the School is held, is about 15 feet square, and makes a comfortable School-room. It is provided with two small desks and a few forms. There were 21 pupils present at examination, and their Spelling, Reading, and Writing, were very good. Knowledge of Arithmetic and Catechism fair; the latter taught once each day.

As the present Teacher had charge of the School only one month previous to my visit, the merit of the creditable state of the School must be fairly attributed to the attention bestowed upon it by the former Teacher, Mr. Poynter. I have no doubt, however, of Miss Sparrow's competency to conduct this School.

ODERIN SCHOOL.

Mr. Bradshaw continues to conduct this School at former salary—no fees paid. It is held at present in a miserable house quite unsuited for the purpose, and deficient in almost every article of School furniture. The inhabitants, I understand, intend building one this Winter. There is no Register kept.—There were 25 pupils present at examination. The Spelling, Reading, and Writing, were very indifferent; the latter done in a very careless and slovenly manner. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it indifferent.

I have been furnished with the following School Returns for this District, and for the District of Fortune Bay.

I have also received the following Return of the School Monies for the Districts of Burin, Fortune Bay, and LaPoile, from the Chairman, the Rev. John Cullen. This Return is only for six months, as he has been Chairman for only that period: The Chairman states that there was no balance of School Money on hands when he was appointed to the office; but that he had to pay out of the amount received for the six months, arrears due to some of the Teachers.

This accounts for the amount stated as paid to Teachers, being £147 6s., which otherwise would not be more than £118 for the half year.

FORM OF RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; to be signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of the Schools.

	Balance on hand.		£15 6 3
	Whole amount expended in currency.		3 £159 6 0
AY AND I.A PC	Whole amount received in currency.		£174 12 3
UNE B	Amount paid to Secre- tary of Board.		Nii.
ORT	Fuel.		Nii
S OF BURIN, F	Expended in School requisites.		£12 0 0
rrici	School rents.		Ë
E DIST	Expended in repairing or building school-houses.		Nii.
UCATION FOR THE DISTRICTS OF BURIN, FORTUNE BAY AND LA POILE.	ni bisq vanomA Teachers' Salaries.		£147 6 0 currency.
	Balance from past year.		Ē
BOARD OF EDI	Special Grant.	For same period.	£30 0 0 currency.
	Ordinary appropriation for the District.	For 6 months ending 31st March, 1859.	£121 7 4 sterling.

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

through the Inspector of Schools.

n		•
	Books used.	Spelling Books and Primers, &c.
50	Navigation.	
No. learning	Grammar.	
ea P	Geography.	
4	Rule of Three, &c.)
Arith- metic.		
P e	Compound Rules.	67
36 1	First four Rules.	10
Writ	On Paper.	40
₹.=	On Slates.	
امة	Reading with fluency, &c.	
Reading.	Reading with ease.	es
eac	Essy Lessons.	6
PA	Letters and Monosyllables	01
-ira	was in operation last y	
toous	No. of days in which day	
1	Present at examination.	91
1	Average attendance.	191
J	Over 12 years.	, hel
Ages of Pupils.]
ag dr	Between 7 and 12.	9 12
4 PJ	Under 7 years.	
g g	Total	822
No on Books.	Female.	
BZ	Male,	14
	• Buidsi A	Nii.
TOT 19	No of weeks allowed teach	Z
set year.	Amount of fees collected p	Nii,
·A.	Amount of Teachers' Salar	£ s. d. Curency 20 0 0
	Teachers' Name.	ool 1853 Miss Hearne
	When Established,	1853
-	Character of School.	Board School
	Locality of School.	647 HarborBriton Board Sch
	Catholic population of Ec	647
	Of to notice more allocated	
	Educational District,	Fortune Bay

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

SCHOOL RETURN.

through the Inspector of Schools.

ing Books and Primers. Christian Brothers' Class Arithmetical Books, &c.		
SO WOUNDELINE CO	ot the	wsł A
moitsgivaN co		1 60
October 1		i s
Geography.		9
		1 6
First four Kules. Compound Rules. Rule of Three, &c.	3 4	20 42 15 20 12 10 10
First four Rules.	4	-12-
	9	+ ==
F. Con Slates. Con Slates. Col. 20 4 4 6 70 12.	4	-[8.
		- 1-3-
Reading with flency, &c. 1. Creers and Monosynables Reserved Reserved Reading with flency, &c. 1. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2.	- m	1 60
E S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S		1 55
Here and Monosyllables Here and Monosyllables Here and Monosyllables Here and Monosyllables Here Here and Monosyllables Here and Monosyll	4	1651
4. 64	2	911
was in operation past year.		
No. of days in which day-school		
S	25	1 86I
A 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	35	558
Over 12 years.	6 6	1 5
	- 63	148
Pour Craham Under 7 years.	2032	
10000 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	<u>-8-</u>	115
7 Total. Total.	<u></u>	324
No oon Books. B	30 30 60	152
	<u> </u>	021
Z Z Z Z No. of weeks allowed Teacher for Fishing.	i ::	
Z Z Z No. of weeks allowed Teacher		
. ! _		1 0
Amount of Pees collected past	Nii.	2
tang besteeld Fees collected past		£7 10
	4	41
1 5		1
Amount of Teachers' Salary.	12	61
8 8 8 2 Cur	3 4	17
		£217
, g	W.	
aly aly far far	shi	
HE BE ST	ra pa	
o e 1 44 0 5 7 7	្គឡ	
Na Na Ha Ha	ii.	
Teachers' Name. Name. frs. Healy fr. Pointer fr. Harney		
Teachers' Name. Name. Mrs. Healy Mrs. Healy Mr. Pointes Mr. Harney	5	
New Heatsblished New Established New Heatsblished New Heatsbli	857	
Teachers' Name. When Mrs. Healy 1838 Mr. Pointer 1863 Mr. Harney	1857 Mr. Bradshaw	
	1857	
	1857	
seter ool. School		
Character of School. Board School do Com. School		
Character of School. Board School do Com. School	o o	
Character of School. Board School Com. School	d do	
Character of School. Board School do Com. School Board School	d do	
Character of School. Board School do Com. School	d do	
Character of School. Board School Com. School	o o	
Locality Character of School. School. School. St. Lamaline Board School St. Lawrence do Burin Com. School	d do	
Edution of Edution of Catholic Population of Catholic School. Catholic Board School. St. Lawrence do Burin Com. School	d do	
Edution of Edution of Catholic Population of Catholic School. Catholic Board School. St. Lawrence do Burin Com. School	d do	
Edution of Edution of Catholic Population of Catholic School. Catholic Board School. St. Lawrence do Burin Com. School	d do	
trict. Catholic Cath	d do	
trict. Of Edu- trict. Catholic Population Catholic School. Catholic Population Catholic Population School. St. Lawrence do Burin Com. School	d do	
Locality Character of School. School. School. Lamaline Board School St. Lawrence do Burin Com. School	d do	

DISTRICT OF FOGO.

Fogo School.

This School was closed when I visited this District, as the Teacher was taking the vacation allowed him to fish. He promised on my calling on him to collect the pupils on the tollowing day for my examination; only 8 pupils attended. Their spelling and reading were tolerable. Catechism taught once each day—knowledge of it fair; 3 copy books of indifferent writing were exhibited. The school house is a comfortable one of 20 feet by 12, thoroughly ceiled and provided with a stove, but wanting in other school furniture. The Teacher, Mr. Shea, has had charge of the school about 15 years; salary £20 sterling—fees about £3.

The school at Tilton Harbor has not been in operation since last fall.

Joe Batt's Arm School was also closed, as the Teacher gets the entire summer to fish; so that, for a great part of the summer season, there has not been one Catholic School in operation.

I had not the pleasure of meeting the Chairman, the Rev. P. Ward, as he was on the French Shore, but I left a few lines for him, calling his attention to the present state of education in his District, and suggesting some alterations which I am sure he will carry out when he finds it practicable to do so.

I understand that the Chairman has purchased the frame of a school house for Tilton Harber, which will be put up this fall, and I trust will be so far advanced towards completion by the spring as to permit the re-establishment of the school there.

I have not received any statement of the expenditure of school money for this District.

DISTRICT OF BAY-DE-VERDS AND CARBONEAR.

BROAD COVE SCHOOL.

This School was closed on my visiting this District. The Board have erected a school house here, to which, when completed, and fitted for the reception of pupils, they will appoint a Teacher.

NORTHERN BAY SCHOOL.

Visited this school on the 23rd of August. Mr. Tobin continues to conduct it at former salary; fees £1; no register kept. There were 20 pupils present at examination; spelling and reading of pupils were not so good as on my former visit, and I have the same complaint to make with respect to those learning arithmetic, as I had on that occasion, namely, the total absence of anything like a knowledge of the Rules they were said to be learning. There were no copy-books to be exhibited, nor were the Bye-Rules of the Board hung up in the school-room as required. Catechism taught each day—knowledge of it tolerable.

WESTERN BAY SCHOOL.

This School-house, which was closed on my former visit to this District, has been lately repaired, but is still without School furniture. Mr. Hanrahan, who appears to be a competent Teacher, has had charge of it 17 years; salary £25; Fees £3 6s. 8d. He keeps a register, and has the Bye-laws of the Board exhibited in the school-room. These Rules permit only 2 weeks vacation, which was the term he had taken.

There were 18 pupils present at examination, all of whom were young, and one half of whom were without books. There were only 2 copy books to exhibit, the writing in which was very poor. There were none of the pupils present able to read, and only 4 able to spell words of two syllables correctly. I am not at all surprised at the deficiency of the pupils in this school, from the manner in which the Teacher absented himself as commented upon in my former Report.

I have reason to believe that such neglect will not be tolerated for the future.

Job's Cove School.

This School was closed on my visiting it, and had been so since May. Mr. Doutney, the late Teacher, having left in consequence of the smallness of the salary. He has furnished me with the necessary statistics of the school.

LOW POINT SCHOOL.

This school, which was closed on my former visit to this District, is conducted by a Mr. Lynch, who has had charge of it for 6 years. He appears to

be a competent Teacher, and professes to teach English Grammar and Book-keeping. He was permitted to take two months for fishing on account of the smallness of his salary. He keeps a register and had the Bye-laws of the Board exhibited in the School-room, but had no copy books or cyphering books to show.

There were only nine children present at examination—as the day was an inclement one—all of whom were very young. Catechism taught once each day. The School-house is 32 feet by 16; it is not clapboarded on one side, and requires to be ceiled. The School-room is not provided with any School turniture, and is occupied by the Teacher as a kitchen, which is very objectionable.

BAY-DE-VERDS SCHOOL.

When I visited this School it was closed, as the School-house was undergoing a thorough repair, preparatory to the establishment of a Commercial School here. The Board have procured the services of a young man to fill the situation of a Teacher to this School, and from my knowledge of the gentleman selected, I feel quite confident that he will give satisfaction. He has been attending Mr. O'Donovan's School for some time past, to fit himself thoroughly for the situation.

CARBONEAR SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 2nd of September. Mr. Mackey continues to conduct it at a salary of £70 sterling; fees £8.

The character of this School is the same as that given in former Report. The more advanced pupils were absent, as on the former occasion. The Spelling, Reading, Writing, and knowledge of Catechism were fair, considering the ages of the pupils, but in Arithmetic, neither the pupils present, nor those absent, were as far advanced as I would expect in a School of this description.

A supply of Maps is much needed for the purpose of teaching Geography. I believe those Maps will shortly be provided. A register is kept of the attendance of the pupils, and the Bye-laws of the Board are exhibited in the School-room.

CROCKER'S COVE SCHOOL.

This School-house has been repaired, and the entrance to the School-room made in a more suitable part of the building. The desks have also been repaired, and some forms have been added since my former visit.

Miss Bransfield continues to conduct this School at former salary. There are no fees paid. The day I visited the School there were but a few children present, but by the register, which is very regularly and very neatly kept, it appears that all the winter, and up to the month of May, the average attendance daily was 60.

Miss Bransfield stated that in a month or two the attendance would again increase to the above amount, and continue so for the winter. The Writing of the absent pupils was very good.

36.

APPENDIX,

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

	š.	
	Schools	
7		
•	ó	
•	Inspector	
	spe	
	the	
-	ななり	
	through	
•	7	

	Books used.	al safe	opot cyoo	S ese Siw 1	dr r bailq	o evi	are fioo	here ery p	A L	
No. learning	Navigation.									
No.	Grammar.		_					6.		10
lea .	Geography.							-		10
10 h	Rule of Three, &c.		60	ಣ		3	2	do 1843 Mr. Mackey 20 0 0 18 6 6 301646 830 83054 1333 8 4 1 2 do 1843 Mr. Mackey 80 15 4 3 9.Nil. 25 89 175554 397616 2915 410 7 do 1848 Miss Brans-field 25 0 Nil. Nil. 53 45 85 50 140 8 9 5 3 2	24	
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.		က				-			34 12
	First four Rules.	(~	63	က	4	4		70	84
Writ ing.	On Paper.		4	9	9	4	œ	29	0	99
≥.5	On Slates.		က		4	က			œ	18
a.s	Reading with fluency, &c.									
Reading.	Reading with ease.		7	9	C1			16	10	41
ea	Easy Lessons.		23	22	28	28	33	-91	09	1 04
*	Letters and Monosyllables		10	14	10	12	13	39	28	97
year.	das in operation past									
cpool	a-ysb doinw ni eysb to .oV									
	Present at examination.		_2-	30 18		10	54	54	14	11
	Average Attendance.	<u> </u>	30	_8_	20	25		55	9	30
Ages of Pupils.	Over 12 years.			12	17 50 15 13 12 20	20 40 10 18 12 25		17	14	1 6
ges	Between 7 and 12.		21		13	18	30	8	59	68
A PH	Under 7 years.		_9_	9	_12_	-10		25	25	66
K 8.	Total.		_4.	6	<u>_8</u>	- 4-	_46	131	_8_	78
No on Books.	Female.		21 19 40 10 21	1542	17		16		34	32
Z	Male.	l	_2	27	23	20	30	131	53	90
	for Fishing.	N 4 01 01 60 60 15		;; ;	Ħ					
her	No. of weeks allowed Teac		-	00			- 60	<u>z</u>	Z	
year.		g.								=
asaq	Amount of Fees collected	*	0	9	E.	Nii.		တ	E	co.
7554	E A THE THE ST ATTENDED	વર	-	က	First	Pi-4	0	4	15 4 4 3 9 Nil. 22 0 0 Nil. Nil. 53	63
		g.	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	41
		si si	0	0	0	0	0	13	0	12
•¥1	Amount of Teachers' Salar	မွ	25	25	25	25			25	£225
	Teachers' Name.		r. Tobin	1842 Mr. Hanrahan	1843 Mr. Doutney	1843 Mr. Lynch	r. Morrissey	r. Mackey		
			<u>×</u>	<u>~</u>	_ <u>×</u>	<u>=</u>	<u>×</u>	<u>_</u>	<u> </u>	
	When Established		1845	1842	1845	1843	1843	1843	1848	
	Character of School,		Board School	op	qo	qo		op	_	
	Locality of School.		Northern Bay Board School 1843 Mr. Tobin	4165 Western Bay	Job's Cove	Low Point	Bay de Verds	Carbonear	Crocker's Cove	•
-np		! !		416					····	
-	Educational District.		Carbonear	and	Bay de Verds					

DISTRICT OF HARBOR GRACE.

Mosquitto School.

Visited this School on the 3rd September. A Mr. Meany has had charge of it for the present, but he will be retained only until a competent Teacher can be procured. He keeps no register. There were 9 children present at examination, all of whom were very deficient. There were 5 copy books shown, the writing in which was written in so careless and slovenly a manner as to lead any one to suppose that no supervision could have possibly been exercised by the Teacher.

HARBOR GRACE-ST. PATRICK'S SCHOOL.

This School-house has been removed from its tormer site to a more suitable one. It has also been put in a thorough state of repair; and painted both inside and out. The height of the School-room has also been increased. It is well lighted, and provided with 8 good desks and forms. The Teacher is also provided with a desk.

The Teacher of this School, Mr. Walsh, has been regularly trained for the profession by the Christian Brothers; and he conducts the present school agreeably to their system of teaching, which is strictly of a competitive character, and this competition is made to operate on all the details of the working of the School. The pupils attending the School are divided into two equal portions, each of which is designated by some name for distinction sake, and these two parties are pitted against each other in everything done in the School;—competition being the sole means used to induce application on the part of the pupils. And it has succeeded wonderfully, as is best proved by the constant attendance of the children. Every pupil feels not only a desire to succeed in his own class, but must also feel a deep interest in the success of the party to which he belongs; and as a Register is kept of the relative merits of each party daily, which is carried on to a weekly, monthly, and yearly account—such as the punctual attendance of pupils, their conduct in School, and relative excellence in their several classes-each pupil seeing that his absence from School, even for a single day, would so far tell againt the party to which he belongs, that a degree of punctuality in the attendance of the pupils is secured-by the spirit of emulation thus created-which could not otherwise be hoped for.

Every thing taught in the School is taught in class, that permits of being so taught, and the children are always subjected to a series of questions to test

their knowledge of whatever branch they may be learning at the time. Altogether the system is an admirable one, and the Teacher appears a very competent person to carry it out. The children had the advantage of it but for a short time previous to my visit, yet their orderly conduct in the School, the readiness and quickness with which every order of the Teacher was executed, as well as the creditable manner in which they acquitted themselves in their several classes, shows what may be expected from it when a sufficient time in operation.

Fees collected for four month £42s. 6d. Estimated amount for the 12 months, £12.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOL, RIVER HEAD.

Visited this School on the 4th September. Mr. Scully continues to conduct it at former salary. Fees £10. The School-house has been put in a complete state of repair, and my remarks with respect to the want of sufficient light, in my former Report, have been attended to; and the School-room is now well lighted, painted and papered, provided with desks, forms, and a stove. It is also supplied with 9 large Maps, 3 Charts, and a time-piece, together with a case of Mathematical Instruments.

The improvement in the pupils is fully as satisfactory as that in the School house. At my former visitation, this School was in operation only one fortnight; and the children, even the elder ones, were as backward as any I had met with on my tour. The change effected in one year is highly creditable to the Teacher. The Spelling and Reading were very good. Knowledge of Catechism, Arithmetic, English Grammar, and Geography, very creditable.—The Writing showed a progressive improvement. A register is regularly kept. There were 98 pupils present at examination.

FEMALE SCHOOL, RIVER HEAD.

Miss Kelly continues to conduct this School at a salary of £12 currency. Fees £4 15s. There were 27 pupils present on the day I visited the School.—The copy-books exhibited showed not only a large increase in the number Writing, but also a very creditable improvement since my former visit. In every thing else the character of the School is the same as that given in my former Report.

There was no School in operation either at Bryant's Cove or Shoal Point at the time of my visitation of this District.

SPANIARD'S BAY SCHOOL.

Mr. Kenny continues to conduct this School. His salary has been increased to £25. Fees £3. A register is carefully kept, and the Bye-laws of the Board are exhibited in the School-room. There were 26 pupils present at examination.

The Writing of the children, as well as the entering of their sums, sustained the good character given of them in former Report. There was an improvement in the Spelling and Reading. Catechism taught once each day—knowledge of it very good. Indeed the neatness and regularity observable in the manner of conducting this School, on this, as on my former visit, were very satisfactory.

A stove and funnel is about being supplied to this School.

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

through the Inspector of Schools.

n							
	Books used.						
	*						
- 50	Navigation.					_	-
No. learning	Grammar.						
lea	Geography.			-		_	i
占이	Rule of Three, &c.		63	-			63
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.		41				41
1	First four Rules.	 	4	- C			6
Writ ing.	On Paper.		9	911			13 17
	On Slates.	 	4				<u> </u>
Reading.	Reading with fluency, &cc.						
별 _	Reading with ease.			8			0
å _	Easy Lessons.		23	14			l
	was in operation last Letters and Monosyllable		20 22	201			4036
100008	No. of days in which day			C.4			4.
	Present at examination		6	26			35
	Average attendance.		31	627			38
of s	Over 12 years.		531				35 49 84 24 49 11 58 35
Ages of Pupils.	Between 7 and 12.		26	23			49
Pu	Under 7 years.		11	13			22
g 3	Total.		25 42 11	45			84
No on Books.	Female.	 		18 24 42 13 23			49
ZM!	Male.		17	-=-			_35
ner ior	No of weeks allowed teac Fishing.			C3			63
		-G		6			0
past year.	Amount of fees collected	z z		0			0
		ςγ		က			£30
		ਚ	0	0			0
·Are	Amount of Teachers' Sala	zi.	0	0			0
		æ	20	25			£45
		1					48
	rs,		ney	ny			
	ohe sm:		ſea	ren			
	Teachers' Name.		<u>.</u>)## -			
	F		Σ	M			
	When Established.		359	1848 Mr. Kenny			
			Board School 1859 Mr. Meaney	<u> </u>	rns		
	ter ol.	,)ho		ur.	furnished	
	Characte of School.		ŭ	0	Ret	10:0	
	Character of School.		ırd	ф	No Retur		Ħ
			Bo				
	•			lay	Harbor Grace	_	do
	Locality of School.		to	18 F	Ş	ಕ	ad
	of of chc	}	luit	iar	ä	r]e	Ħ
	j o		080	SpaniardsBay	arb	Female do	RiverHead do
			<u>X</u>	S	_=	편_	<u>æ</u>
-np	Catholic population of E cational District.	İ	Harbor Grace 3390 Mosquitto				
			<u>e 3</u>				
	na]		irac				
	tion		ñ				
	Educational District.		rbo				
	Edd		Ha				

DISTRICT OF TRINITY BAY-SOUTH AND WEST.

TURK'S COVE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 1st September. Mr. Brown continues to conduct it at former salary. Fees £1 10s. I was unable to see this School in operation on my former visit to this district.

There is no Register kept. There were 12 pupils present at examination, only four of whom could spell, and these very indifferently, words of one or two syllables. One boy of 12 years of age, and attending school for 5 years, could not read a single word intelligibly. Four copy-books exhibited—the writing in two of them tolerable Catechism taught once each day—knowledge of it fair.

GRATE'S COVE SCHOOL.

When I visited this School it was closed, in consequence of the Teacher having gone to St. John's a few days previous to my visit.

STATEMENT

Of Receipts and Expenditure of the Roman Catholic Board of Education for the Districts of Harbor Grace, Carbonear, Bay de Verds, Trinity South and West, from the 30th day of June, 1858, to the 1st day of July, 1859.

1859		~ .		_	
-		Salary · · · ·	£39	3	4,
"	James Walsh	do ····	67	16	0
66	Patrick Meaney	do	10	0	0
66	Ann Kelly, balance and		18	0	0
66	Edward Kenny, do	do	29	10	0
66	Laurence Mackey	qo ····	70	0	0
46	Julia Bransfield	do	25	0	0
6.6	Pierce Hanrahan	do ····	12	10	0
6.6	James Tobin	do ····		15	0
6 6	Patrick Doutney	do ····	6	5	0
"	John Lynch	do ····	12	10	0
	James Janes	do ····	10	0	0
66	John Morissy	do ····	5	0	0
66	Richard Brown	do ····	10	0	0
4 6	John Keefe	do	6	0	0
6 6	Richard O'Dwyer, B.	ill of Parcels	10	16	7
56	C. F. Bennett & Co. Mil	ll do ····	71	10	9
66	Steamer Victoria	do · · ·	0	18	0
66	Job, Brothers & Co.	do ····	4	_	6
66	Thomas Kitchen	do ····	$ar{f 3}$	3	Ō
66	Mullowney & Brien	do ····	12	ŏ	9
	Repairs Turks Cove So			15	ŏ
	Do Spaniard's Bay	, do		19	ő
66	Do Mosquitto	do	No.	10	ő
46	Do River Head	do		17	6
66				12	6
66		do ····		15	0
. 6 6	Do Bay de Verds				
66	Removal, repairs, and enlar	gingstratrick section	-nouse 210	3 6	11
66	Building and Materials Bro	ad Cove School Flous	e 80		0
66	Do do Upp	er Island Cove School			0
. "	Building Materials Shoal P	oint S. S. School		10	0
6.6	Purchase of Books for Scho	ools		10	0
66	Freight and Cartage		2		6
66	Secretary and Superintenda	nt's half-year's salary	30	0	0
,			£1251	9	7
2020					
1859	D. Coont Hawhan Grace T	District	207	17	Λ
	By Grant, Harbor Grace I do Carbonear and I	Roy do Words	207 277		0
66					0
66	- ~ 1 1 1 1	25 12, Trinity, West			0
66		Upper Island Cove	50		0
6 6	do River Head, Ha	ruor Grace	50 50		0
" "	do Bay de Verds		50		0
6 6	do Repairs of Rive	r mead Schools ····	100	0	0
			Stg. £780	17	0
		0.00	Cur. £900		
	(Signed) J. J. DALT	UN,	Bal. 350	10	0
	Bishop of Hr. Grace	e, Chairman.	£1251	9	7
	manage of same at see			•	•

TRINITY NORTH.

RAGGED HARBOR SCHOOL.

Mr. Sainsbury continues to conduct this School. His salary, I am happy to state, has been increased from £20 to £34 a year. Fees £2 10s. There were but 9 pupils present on the day of my visit. The teacher stated that the attendance during the summer is very small. There are 16 attending a night school, who pay the teacher in wood. There has been nothing done to the school-house since my former visit.

There were 22 copy-books exhibited, the writing in which was very fair. There were only three writing at my former visit—and there are 18 learning Arithmetic now—as contrasted with only 5 last year. Catechism taught once each day—knowledge of it fair.

DISTRICT OF BONAVISTA—SOUTH AND WEST.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOL, KING'S COVE.

Visited this School on the 29th August. Mr. Hamilton continues to conduct it at a salary of £85 sterling. Fees £10 5s.

There were 74 pupils present at examination, and the pupils acquitted themselves in the same creditable manner they did on my former visit to this school.

There has been nothing done to the school-house since my former visit; but the Chairman, the Rev. Mr. Scanlan, informed me that he intended having it thoroughly repaired and painted this fall.

He also informed me that he is building a school-house at Red Cliff Island, which would be completed by November, and a teacher appointed for it. He is likewise building a school-house at Night's Cove in Black Head Bay.

SANCROIX SCHOOL.

Mr. Larkin continues to conduct this school. He keeps a Register of the attendance of his pupils carefully.

There were 28 pupils present on the day I visited the school. The child-

ren acquitted themselves tolerably well in their spelling, reading, arithmetic, and Catechism. The Catechism taught once each day. Writing fair.

The school-room very deficient in school furniture. The school is held in the same house as last year, but the Chairman intends getting the frame of a school-house cut, and brought out of the woods this winter.

There are no fees paid, and the teacher stated he had made no application for them.

I have not received from either of the teachers of the ragged Harbour or Sancroix schools the School Return which I left with them for the purpose of being filled up and signed by the Chairman, nor have I received any statement of the expenditure of the school money for the Districts of Trinity North and Bonavista.

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

through the Inspector of Schools.

	Books used.					
3.5	Navigation.					T
No. learning	Grammar.		4			İ
N ear	Geography.		01			i –
	Rule of Three, &c.	·	10			i
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.		2			Ť
A E	First four Rules.		15			- <u> </u>
100 =:	On Paper.		5 23			i
Writ ing.	On Slates.		-10			i –
	Reading with fluency, &cc.		1-			i -
ng l	Reading with ease,		-01			 -
ad	Easy Lessons.		- 2			
Reading.	Letters and Monosyllables		40,20,10			- <u>'</u>
, ,	y jasi noitsisqo ni saw		-4-			
chool	a Vas of days in which day s					
	Present at examination.	···	74			i
	Average attendance.		40 37 77 32 35 10 69 74			i
44 .5	Over 12 years.		<u> </u>			
No on Ages of Books, Pupils.	Between 7 and 12.		35	·		
Pu	Under 7 years.		-22			
7 16	Total.		-13-			i -
sk o	Female.		37			亡一
ž g	Male.		-0	~~~~		i
	Fishing.					-i
ror re	No of weeks allowed teache					İ
	-	Ġ	0			
reay 32	Amount of fees collected pa	ŝ	10			Į
	· •	ધ્ય	0			1
			-010			
	_	٦				-
-4	Amount of Teachers' Salary	ŵ	0			
		ςμ	92			1
		<u> </u>				<u> </u>
[ີ ຫ		ţ	ģ		
	ner ne.		mii	Return furnished		
	Na Nach	İ	Ha	tetu Irni		
1;	Teachers' Name.			No Return furnishe		
II			_₹_	Ž		
	When Established.		1857 Mr. Hamilton			
			<u> </u>	-		
!!	Character of School.	1	Com. School	Board School		
	oo oo		cþc	သိ		
ļļ.	Sch		82	ాలై		
li	5 °		a	oa.		
		1		<u> </u>		
1	≯. _3	1		₹e		
11	alit 1000		7	ಶ _{.⊭}		
il	Locality of School.	1		g's ïroi		
11	H			King's (Sancroix		
	Cathonal District.		!	<u> </u>		
-	Catholic population of Edu cational District.			1675 King's Cove Sancroix		
-						
	Educational District.	1	1	South & West		
	rici rici		sta	*		
	ical Jist		Bonavista-	th		
1	P.		ou (ņ		
a.i	las t	1	jul.	0.7		

DISTRICT OF BRIGUS.

BAY ROBERTS SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 6th September. Mr. Russell continues to conduct it at former salary; fees £2; no register kept. There were 20 pupils present on the day I visited the School. No improvement in this School from former Report, except I might state that the Reading was a shade better on the present occasion. Catechism taught on Saturday only; pupils' knowledge of it indifferent. There has been nothing done to the School-house as the Board intend building one shortly.

NORTHERN GUT SCHOOL.

The School-house which was building here on my former visit is now completed, but School has not yet been opened in it. Mr. Phelan continues to conduct this School at former salary. There are no fees paid; no register kept. There were 8 pupils present at examination. Spelling, Reading, and Writing, of the worst description. Catechism taught once each day; poor knowledge of it by pupils.

CUPIDS SCHOOL.

There has been a very fine School-house built here since my former visit, of 38 feet by 18. A portion of it is fitted up for the residence of the Teacher. The School-room is 28 feet by 18, and 10 feet high. It is thoroughly ceiled, but not sufficiently lighted, as there are no windows to the back, but this can be easily remedied.

Mr. Prendergast continues to conduct this School at a salary of £25; fees £1 10s. He keeps a register. There were present at examination 27 pupils. The reading and spelling very poor; writing tolerable; only one boy learning arithmetic. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it fair. The children had no reading books and read out of their spelling books.

BRIGUS SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 7th September. A Mr. Power has had charge of this School since the 16th May. Mr. Power was under instruction at the Normal School for some time, and is a very intelligent person, and I have no doubt will make an excellent Teacher. A register of the attendance of

pupils carefully kept. There were 38 pupils present at examination. The spelling and reading of the pupils were very creditable. Writing and knowledge of Catechism equally good. The Chairman, the Rev. E. O'Keefe, informed me that he intended removing the School-house from its present site to a more central one.

TURK'S GUT SCHOOL.

Mr. Symmonds continues to have charge of this School at a salary of £12. The fees, he states, are paid to him in wood, and amounts to about 10s. a-year. The children had just gone home previous to my arrival. The Teacher stated there were 16 attending School that day. There is no register kept, nor were there any copy-books to exhibit. The Teacher is an old man, and only retained until the new School-house is completed and fitted for the reception of pupils, when the services of a more competent Teacher will be secured.

The School-house was in a forward state at the time of my visit, and it was expected, would be finished this fall. It is like the other School-house recently built in this District—a very creditable building.

COLLIER'S SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 8th September. Mr. Shea continues to conduct it. He keeps an imperfect register. There were 13 pupils present on the day I visited the School, only 3 of whom were reading. The spelling of pupils tolerable; 12 copy-books of very indifferent writing exhibited, although the Teacher writes a very fine hand.

There has been a splendid School-house built here since my former visit, of 40 feet by 26, and 12 teet high, thoroughly finished in every way. It is fitted up interiorly so as to serve as a Chapel whenever the Clergyman, the Rev. E. O'Keefe, visits this portion of his parish. The School was not held in this building up to the time of my visit.

There have been four very fine School-houses built in this District within the last two years, and I teel quite confident that the Chairman, the Rev. E. O'Keese, will take the earliest opportunity that is offered him, to have these School-houses supplied with the necessary amount of School furniture.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

SCHOOL RETURN.

through the Inspector of Schools.

	Books used.	sı VI:	ugir5 toog s	the I	poor	S es	թկյ լ	ott d la loo boile	дод
No. learning	Navigation.								1
6.5						12			12
No.	Grammar.	-							
	Geography.								
Arith- metic.	Rule of Three, &c.		41		1	7.0			5 10
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.		03		-	2			5
48	First four Rules.		က	C7	Η.	13		-	8
# .	On Paper.	1	6	4	10	26_1		12	
Writ ing.				က	41	$-\frac{6}{2}$			16 61
11	On Slates,								_!_=
Reading.	Reading with fluency, &cc.								
i.ij	Reading with ease.		41	က		15		5	1 27
l ë	Easy Lessons.		17	9 18	12 39	10 28	91	35	153
P4	Letters and Monosyllables		4	6	6/1	0	12 16	16	1 2
, rask	tased noitsrago ni saw	·			_=				<u> </u>
10000	No. of days in which day-so								1
10040						~~			
	Present at examination.		_22			ജ	==	F-4	122
	Average Attendance.	1	628	424	089	23 30 53 11 30 12 35 38	8 16 16	36 12 30 13	163
Ages of Pupils.	Over 12 years.	1		4	9	12	_ <u>∞</u>	2	48
lp. es	Between 7 and 12.		12,17	18	Ξ	2	12	99	154
P. Ser	Under 7 years.		-24	-2	441	-69	-8	- 8	
1									21
No on Books.	T'otal.		19 16 35	—స్టై	26 51		20 28	56	253
၂၉၉	Female.		_=	=	_%	್ಲ		29	1 781
2 8	Male.		13	14 16 30	25	23	œ	27	911
H	No. of weeke allowed Teacher for Fishing.		23	63	က	-		က	
рет						Nii	o Nii.	••	10
		. rj	0		0		0		10
	λeur.	1	0		0			:	
) isag	Amount of Fees collected past			Ë,	1 10	N.	0 10	N	1
1	•	3	C3	. ,	7		0	,,	. 2
		Ġ	0	0	0	0	0	0	- 1 0
			0	0	0	0	0	0	1 0
.Y.	Amount of Teachers' Salar	, vi				_	_	_	1
		c ₄ 2	25	25	25	35	12	30	52
		t '6					• •	••	£152
	_				7.	30	ds		
	Teachers' Name.		ell	an	Mr. Prender-		on		
	in in the		388	jej	en	Ě	ä	ಣ	
11	Na Sa		Æ	\geq	Pr	ĕ	y i	ğ	
1	ĔŰ.			:		,:	δ.	32	
			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	Z	\geq	\mathbf{z}	X	•
	When Established		1836 Mr. Russell	1858 Mr. Whelan		1840 Mr. Power	844 MrSymmonds	1839 Mr. Shea	
	Ladaildata H mad W		18	18		_S	18	18	
	• .								
1 .	Character of School.		ą						
]]	00 m		$\tilde{\mathbf{x}}$	_					
ll l	Jharacte of School.		걸	ф	do	qo	do	qo	
	. 5 W		Sa.				-	-	
			2148 Bay Roberts Board Schoo						
1	1		o,	ut					
li	i. t		ert	5			÷		
	Locality of School.	•	ą	II.			$\bar{\mathfrak{S}}$	70	
	5, o		ρĞ	ji.	ф	ä	Š	er.	
1	H "		5	Northern Gut	Cupids	Brigus	Turk's Gut	Colliers	
			m	Z	ರ	<u> </u>	<u>=</u>	<u> </u>	
	cational District.		48						
-np	Catholic Population of E		21						
									·
	Educational District.								
-	itic								
	ica Jis		Brigus						
	řž.		rig.						
II	Η .		Ä						

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of the Schools.

BRIGUS.
CF
DISTRICT
THE
FOR
OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT
OF
BOARD

Balance on hand.	0 £84 3 2
Vhole amount expended	2 £147 6 0
Whole amount received	5 6 1837
Amount paid to Secre- tary of Board.	£10
Fuel.	
Expended in School requisites.	
School rents.	£1
Expended in repairing or building school-houses.	
ni bisq dunom A Sələrics, 'sıədəsə T	£136 6 0
Balance from past year.	
Special Grant.	
Ordinary appropriation for the District.	6 6 1863

(Signed)

EDWARD O'KEEFE,

Chairman.

RICHARD MANDEVILLE,
Secretary.

DISTRICT OF HARBOR MAINE.

CAT'S COVE SCHOOL.

This School was closed at the time of my visiting this District. A School-house was in the course of erection, and the Teacher, Mr. Conway, had gone to St. John's to the Normal School—until such time as the new School-house would be fitted to receive pupils—for the purpose of improving himself.

On my former visit, Mr. Conway expressed a desire to spend some time at the Normal School, and I am happy to find that he has had an opportunity of doing so, as I believe him to be a person desirous of filling the situation of Teacher creditably to himself.

I did not visit Bacon Cove School, but I understand that the Board have purchased materials to build a School-house there.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOL-HARBOR MAINE.

This School has been altered from a Board School to a Commercial one, but the alteration is only in name, as the same Teacher is retained, at the same salary he formerly received.

Now, although I believe Mr. Kennedy, who has charge of the School, to be a competent Teacher, and probably capable of teaching those higher branches that are expected to be taught in a Commercial School; yet, I think, when a change of this description is made in the character of a School, some material change should take place in the School itself, in keeping with the character it had assumed; at least, Maps, Charts, and Mathematical Books and Instruments might be supplied, so that the change in the character of the School, from an elementary to a superior one, would not be solely and entirely one in name.

There were but ten pupils present on the day I visited the School, three of whom were reading. They were stated to belong to the second class, and read tolerably well, but the spelling was very bad. The writing was fair, but the majority were only commencing.

A very comfortable Dwelling-house for the Teacher has been added to the School-house since my former visit. It is two stories high, and about 36 feet by 18. The cost of erecting it, the Chairman, the Rev. Kyran Walsh, states to be £50. Amount of fees collected £5.

CHAPEL'S COVE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 9th September. The School is kept in the same miserable house, is conducted by the same Teacher, and deserves the same character I gave of it in my former Report.

A School-house is in course of erection here, which will be finished this fall, and will be a very fine School-house, of about 38 feet by 18. Fees stated to be £1 10s.

HOLYROOD SCHOOL.

Some short time after I inspected this School last year, the Teacher left, and the School was closed for the winter, the Chairman being unable to procure the services of a Teacher.

A Miss Walsh was appointed Teacher this summer. At the time I visited the District, Miss Walsh had charge of the School for too short a period to expect any change in the character of the School from former Report.

I believe Miss Walsh to be a competent Teacher, and one who, I am sure, will endeavour to give satisfaction.

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

through the Inspector of Schools.

	Books used.		qJy	re ba	s alo	oda2 diw b	All the provide		
No. learning	Navigation.	·							
No.	Grammar.				63				00
ea D	Geography.				S				οi
1 61	Rule of Three, &c.		· 44				21111		· Q
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.				61				~
Arith- metic.	First four Rules,		41		Ξ.				
	On Paper,		6	က	-1-	- CP			13,22,15
Writ ing.	On Slates.					<u> </u>			Š.
	Reading with fluency, &co.				=				Ξ_
Reading.			6		ಣ	<u>t-</u>			
ag:	Reading with ease.		1 19	_					8
8	Easy Lessons.		28 21	20 20	88	48		2	15
	Letters and Monosyllables		8	্র	14	23			<u>6</u>
10000	No. of days in which day-se y as in operation past							1	
10040			0	_	_				
	Present at examination.		50 10	30 30	35 30	526			96
	Average Attendance.	<u> </u>	<u></u>	<u> </u>	_ಕ್ಷ	35			19
Ages of Pupils.	Over 12 years.		 -	20 20 40 10 19 11	28 22 50 14 22 14	1684144525			<u>.</u>
ag d	Between 7 and 12.		68 19 48	<u> </u>	87	45			13
A PI	Under 7 years.		≘	9	7	4			57
No on Books.			8	6	20	84		_ 2	54
000	Female.			್ಷ	22	16		7	8
Za	Male.		89	2	28	89		1 7	18
	.gaidai Tol		က	က		က		1	6.
19t	No. of weeks allowed Teach								
		ਰ	0			0			0
	year.	wi	0			10)	2
188¢	Amount of Fees collected I	43	10			=		- 1	9
		ਚ	0	-	0	0			o £6 10
	x		_	_					
	Amount of Teachers' Salar	6 5	Ö	Ö	9	O		1	0
		ન્ધ્ર	50	83	25	3			£125
			edy	g	lsh _	ess	•	·	-29
	amin of the contract of the co		eni	Ħ	8	T.M.			
	Teachers' Name.		M	Ğ	7 0	Ä			
	T		Ĭ.	Mr.	N.	Ë			
·			- 5	-6	-6	-6			_
	When Established		183	183	1839 Miss Walsh	1839 Mr. Lawless			
	Character of School.		Com. School	Board School 1839 Mr. Griffin	අ	op			
	Locality of School.		Harbor Maine 3604 Harbor Maine Com. School 1839 Mr. Kennedy	Bacon Cove Board Sc	Holyrood	Chapel's Cove	·		
-n	Catholic Population of Ed		3604					·	
	Educational District.	-	Harbor Maine						

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of Schools.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT OF HARBOR MAINE.

Balance on hand.	£20 2 0}
Whole amount expended	
Whole amount received	
Amount paid to Secre- tary of Board.	
Fuel.	
	. 6
Expended in School	£9 11
School rents.	3
Expended in repairing or building school-houses.	I 9 918F
ni bisq vmount Teachers' salaries.	£121 9 0
Balance from past year.	iol 41 4013
Special Grant.	£50 0 0 FromRt,Rev. Dr. Mullock
Ordinary appropriation for the District.	£302 18 0

(Signed)

KYRAN WALSH,

Chairman.

WILLIAM HOLDEN,

Secretary.

DISTRICT OF BAY BULLS.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOL-BAY BULLS.

Visited this School on the 29th September. Mr. Morrissey continues to conduct this School at former salary of £40; fees £3 14s. A register is kept agreeable to the plan I suggested. There were 52 pupils present at examination, and they acquitted themselves in the same creditable manner, in their several classes, as they did on my former visit to this School. There were 13 copy-books exhibited, the writing in which was very good. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it creditable.

The remarks I have made with respect to the Harbor Maine School, apply with equal force to this one.

The same teacher, at the same salary, and teaching the same branches as were taught when the School was an elementary one.

WITLESS BAY SCHOOL.

Mr. Fogarty continued to have charge of this School at the time of my visit, but he was about leaving, and the Chairman, the Very Rev. P. Cleary, had secured the services of Mr. Boyle, late teacher of the Black Head School, in the district of St. John's, to conduct it.

An imperfect register was kept; there were 48 pupils present at examination, their reading and spelling were fair; Catechism taught twice a week; knowledge of it very poor; only 3 copy-books exhibited; the writting in which was very indifferent. Fees stated to be 9s.

MOBILE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 21st September. Miss Hanlon continues to conduct it. Her salary has been increased to £20 a year; fees 13s. No register kept. There were 26 pupils present at examination, and I regret to state that the pupils did not acquit themselves on examination in the same creditable manner that they did on my former visit; there were only 3 copy-books to exhibit. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it indifferent.

CAPLIN COVE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 22nd September. Mr. Driscoll continues to conduct it; his salary has been increased to £20 a year; fees £1. The school-

house has been painted since my tormer visit. There is no register kept. There were only 7 pupils present on the day of my visit, 5 of whom were spelling; and their spelling was of the same wretched description as on my former visit. Catechism taught once each day.

TOADS' COVE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 22nd September. Mr. Hanlon continues to conduct it at former salary; fees £1.

There is no register kept; only 4 copy-books exhibited; the writing in which was fair. The spelling and reading of pupils, fair. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it very poor.

There were 24 pupils present at examination.

The Convent which I mentioned in my last Report as being in the course of erection at Witless Bay, is now completed, and is certainly a very fine building; and the interior of it is also finished in a very superior style.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

SCHOOL RETURN.

through the Inspector of Schools.

	Books used,	£	*81 6 A61	re alc alcod	ochoo with	g ese Peil	di io qqua	Your Lbadly	
No. learning	Grammar. Navigation.								<u> </u>
L Ba	Geography.						*******		i
	Rule of Three, &c.		716	က		-			8
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.		1-		က				1 9
A a	First four Rules.		1~	5			3		10 53 17 10
# .:	On Paper.		20	9	6	10	œ		1 8
Writ ing.	On Slates.		- 60	4					
	Reading with fluency, &cc.								
Reading.	Reading with ease.		9	15	20	က			i ജ
ad	Easy Lessons.		85 10		22	CV			1 61-2
12	Letters and Monosyllables		128	16 69	-6	5 42	431		1 99
	tang noitanego ni saw								1 3
сроот	No. of days in which day-s								
	Present at examination.		52	8	9	24	7-		LGI
	Average Attendance.		206	-25-	26 26	15	20		84T
ا م ينه	Over 12 years.	<u> </u>	- 67		===	-8 -	112		1 25
Ages of Pupils.	Between 7 and 12.		10 85 12	20 50 30 55	21 15 36 12 13 11	30 30 60 10 30 20 27	=		
Pag	Under 7 years.		8	- 8	2	-8-	3 21		1661
	Total.		<u> </u>	OUT	<u>-6</u>	-2-			338
2 kg	Female		41	001	- 23	—్రా	- 8-		,—
No on Books.	Male.		53 54	60 40 100	=	- 8-	19 16 35		1991
	.Buidsi Tol								183
uer.	No. of weeks allowed Teach		E.	ф	ಳಿ	20	o'Nil.		5
		d.	0	0	0	0	-6-		10
	Aest.	*2	14	0	13	0	0		-
12.8q	Amount of Fees collected past		3	9	0 1				2
			-	-	-	-	-		0£13
		d.							"
.۷٠	Amount of Teachers' Salar		0	0	0	0	0		
		မွ	40	49	20	25	8		£145
II		·							<u> </u>
	s.		88e)	7	lon	g	=	æ	
	Teachers' Name.		Ë	E.	an	쉽	တ္ထ		
	Nac		Ã	Ę,	H	Ha	Ë		
li	Ĕ		Ŀ	3	[]38	3	Ξ		
			_	_	<u> </u>	_ <u>₹</u> _	<u> </u>		
	When Established		1859 Mr. Morrissey	ol 1844 Mr.Fogarty	1844 Miss Hanlon	1844 Mr. Hanlon	1844 Mr. Driscoll		
				-등					
	Character of School.		00						
1	rac 100		Set	ŭ	_	_	_		
1) {{	Sol		ď	rd	ф	do	ф		
	8	1	Com. School	Board Sch					
		· 							
	As a			ay		A G	Ve		
	Locality of School.		ä	Ω,		ည်	පි		
	o sep		Ã	lesi	ile	S	Ħ.		
	H 94		ay o	Witless Bay	Mobile	Toad's Cove	Caplin Cove		
	CONTOUR TAIRLICLE		2322 Bay Bulls	5	2		೨		
-nı	Catholic Population of Ed cational District.		32						
<u></u>			<u>64</u>						
	Educational District.		_						
	trio		ä						
	ucs Dis		Ã						
			Bay Bulls						
••	'		-						

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of Schools.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT OF BAY BULLS.

£227 7 0 cy £181 4s cy £46 3 cy Special grant Balance on hand. Whole amountexpended Whole amount received Nil. tary of Board. Amount paid to Secre-£ Fuel. Inkstands Stoves and Books. £14 16 requisites. Expended in School Nil. School rents. building school-houses. 8 073 0 rogairisqər ai bəbaəqxA 0 cy Nil. £145 0 0 cy Teachers' Salaries. Amount paid in Balance from past year. Special Grant. က $\mathcal{E}46$ £181 4 0 cy for the District. Ordinary appropriation

(Signed)

P. CLEARY,

Chairman.

DISTRICT OF FERRYLAND.

BRIGUS SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 28th September. Miss Doyle continues to have charge of it. Her salary has been increased to £15 a year; fees £3. The house in which the School is held has been purchased by the Board since my former visit.

There is no register kept. There were 45 pupils present at examination, and they acquitted themselves in the same creditable manner they did on my former visit. There was an improvement in the writing, some of the female pupils writing a very neat hand. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it remarkably good.

I would respectfully call the attention of the Board of Education of Ferryland, to the creditable manner in which Miss Doyle conducts this School, and to suggest that she be put on a par, as to salary, with the female teacher at Renews, who receives 18 pounds a year.

In fact, Miss Doyle is entitled to receive more, as she teaches both the boys and girls of the place, and in consequence must have a larger amount of labor to encounter.

CAPE BROYLE SCHOOL.

Miss Kelly continues to conduct this School at a salary of £10 a year; fees £15s. No register kept. There were 16 pupils present at examination. Their spelling and reading were something better than at my former visit; only 3 copy-books exhibited; the writing in which was very indifferent. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it very poor.

FERMEUSE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 26th September. Mr. O'Neil continues to conduct it at former salary; fees £3 11s. 4d. Keeps a register. There were 31 pupils present at examination, the majority of whom were very young. There was an improvement since my former visit, in the manner of entering the sums; one of the boys present was in Interest, and another in Practice; the spelling, reading, and knowledge of catechism, indifferent. This School-house requires some repairs.

RENEWS FEMALE SCHOOL.

Miss Power continues to conduct this School; her salary has been increased to £18 a year; fees £2; no register kept. There were 64 pupils present at examination, 15 of whom were boys, in consequence of there being no male School in operation at the time of my visit.

The Chairman, the Rev. James Murphy, has since that time secured the services of a teacher, and the School is now in operation.

The character of this School is the same as that given of it in my former Report. Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it fair.

RENEWS FEMALE SCHOOL—(SOUTH SIDE.)

Visited this School on the 26th September. Mrs. Lawler continues to conduct it at a salary of £12 a year; fees 10s.; no register kept. There were 16 pupils present at examination; four of whom were writing, and their writing was very fair; spelling and reading indifferent; Catechism taught once each day; knowledge of it poor.

AQUAFORT SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 27th September. Mrs. Oliphant continues to conduct it; her salary has been raised to £15 a year; fees £1 10s.

I regret to state that I did not see this School in operation, as it was closed when I arrived, the children having just left.

The Chairman, the Rev. James Murphy, informed me that a house has been purchased by the Board for £15, in Caplin Bay, for the purpose of establishing a School there during the winter. The place where the School was formerly held not being considered so central as the present one.

KINGS MAN'S COVE SCHOOL.

This school was in operation only a few days previous to my visit. A Miss Coady, who has been educated at the Convent at Fermeuse, has taken charge of it at a salary of £12 a-year. Miss Coady writes a good hand, and teaches Arithmetic as far as the Rule of Three, and I have no doubt will make a creditable teacher.

Through the kindness of the Chairman, the Rev. James Murphy, I had the pleasure of visiting the two Convent Schools, in this District; but as I have already alluded to these two Schools in my general remarks on these Institutions, as well as in my description of the Convent School at St. Mary's, I would merely have to repeat what I have already stated, where I to enter into any description of them.

In my former Report there appears a balance on hand of £117 of the School money in this District.

I have received from the Rev. Chairman the following statement of the expenditure of a portion of that balance:—

Cape Broyle, Wi	£16	0	0			
Admiral Cove,	do	do		8	0	0
Caplin Bay	do	\mathbf{do}	• • • •	12	0	0
Aquafort,	do	do	• • • •	12	0	0
Purchase of Brig	us School H	Iouse		15	0	0
Books and Statio	nery	• • • •		14	0	0
Lumber, Bricks,	• • • •	20	0	0		
*						

£97 0 0

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of Schools.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT OF FERRYLAND.

Balance on hand.	0 £113 15s					
Whole amount expended	£174 5 0					
	0					
Whole amount received	0 88%					
tary of Board.	Vil.					
Amount paid to Secre-	Nil.					
Fuel.	Z					
Expended in School requisites.	Nil.					
School rents.	£3					
Expended in repairing or building school-houses.	0 01 6F					
Amount paid in Teachers' Salaries.	£161 0 0					
Balance from past year.	0750					
Special Grant.	£57 0 0					
Ordinary appropriation Ordination	0 0 1123					

(Signed)

JAS. MURPHY,

Chairman.

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

through the Inspector of Schools.

====										
	Books used,	l vi	Door	(er)	are <i>l</i> ks.	sloo ood	dos diw	these bailed	Idns IIV	
No. learning	Navigation.	-								
No.	Grammar.									<u> </u>
N Ja	Geography.	·								<u> </u>
	Rule of Three, &c.			<u></u>						14
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.	·	41	8	· · · · ·					7114
B A	First four Rules.		N	6	- <u>-</u> 9	4			20	160
	On Paper.	`	10	00	∞	-9	4			126
Writ ing.		101	0	41	- 🛁	4	₹		10	16
	Reading with fluency, &cc.									129
Reading.	og vogerit dig veribes H	- 00	10	20	- 20		- 60			!
.g	Reading with ease.	1					4	4		8
æ	Easy Lessons.	7 35	139	20	<u> </u>	21			17	191
	Letters and Monosyllables		11	20	34	9	_	20	က	80I
Vear.	No. of days in which day-so yas in operation past									
Toods			60		-		 _			<u> </u>
	Present at examination.	40 45	<u> </u>	_ <u>~</u> .	_ & _`	12 16	<u>~</u>	22	<u></u>	210
	Average Attendance.	<u> </u>	41516	23031	15 55 70 30 25 15 50 64	-22	41214	1624	18 18	193
gië.	Over 12 years.	9			-5	က			-28	25
Ages of Pupils.	Between 7 and 12.	36	29	18 25	25	19	10	10 14 24 12 12	00	₹91
₹₽1	Under 7 years.	80	63		ಜ	10	က	12		78
No on Books.	.lstoT	20 30 50	35	54	2	27	17	24	93	₹67
000	Female,	_&_	2		55	17	5 12	4	15	79T
Zm	Male.	8	14 21	45	15	10 17 27	10	10	11	130
	for Fishing.	Nii.	qo	8	ONIL.	ද	දි	op.	e # !	
191	No. of weeks allowed Teach				Z			77	S E	8
		40	0	41	0	0	0			4
	year.	.0	10	11	0	10	10			1-
3880	Amount of Pees collected	भ क	-	8	63	0	7			£13
	Amount of Teachers' Salary.		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	<u>। स्</u> र
										-
٠٨:			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10
ameled teneders T de Ameen A		£ 2	10	20	18	12	10	122	12	8
						- 1		•		£109
Teachers' Name.					24	4	int	_		
		1 2	E A	eï	₩e	W.	qd	åd.	90	•
	۱Ã	K	Ž	Po	Ľ	7	වී	E-		
	Z Z			0	88	100	9	100	×	
	•	855 Miss Doyle	Ä	Ä	Ħ	¥	M	M.	Ä	
			.842 Miss Kelly	843 Mr. O'Neil	852 Miss Power	840 Mrs. Lawler	852 Mrs. Oliphant	859 Miss Coady	845 Mr. Kehoe	
When Established		1.8	18	18	8	8	Ø	18	18	
	100									
Character of School.		l 43								
		02	ę	වූ	ဝှ	ф	ф	٥	0	
	1 2	'	T	7	Ö	Ö	ģ	do		
J		Board School						•		
		1					·····			
i.		1	yle.	,	E C	do.	į	8	رج ۾	
	ocality of School.		O.	use		# 7 0	2 ±	Tan C	B	
90° -			e EE	E E	eW	ق	, 1	880	ä	
	PH ***	ir.	Cape Broyle	Fermeuse	Renews, Fe-	Α,	Aquaforte	Ħ.	Caplin Bay	
	"DIMETAL TRANSCO	2771 Brigus	<u> </u>	24	<u> </u>		⋖	<u> </u>	<u>ن</u>	<u></u>
-np	Catholic Population of E cational District.	11								
		-27								
	is is									
	ric Fric	ng								
	ist)ist	yla								
	Educational District.	Ferryland								
		l E								

DISTRICT OF ST. JOHN'S.

FRESH WATER SCHOOL.

Mr. Roach continues to conduct the School at former salary. Fees £6.

There were 35 pupils present at examination, the majority of whom were very young.

The children were well supplied with books; they acquitted themselves fairly on examination. Catechism taught once each day, knowledge of it tolerable.

BLACK HEAD SCHOOL.

This School was closed at the time of my visiting this District; the Teacher, Mr. Boyle, having left.

MIDDLE LONG POND SCHOOL.

I did not visit this School until the 10th January, and when I did so, I found it closed in consequence of the severe illness of the father of the Teacher, Mrs. Dyer. The School had been closed, at the time of my visit, for three weeks.

OUTER COVE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 13th September. Mr. Hand continues to conduct it at former salary, £35. Fees £3. There had been nothing done to the School-house, in the way of repairs, since my former visit. There were 24 pupils present at examination; their reading, spelling, and Catechism, were fair. Writing, and knowledge of arithmetic, very good.

LOGY BAY SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 13th September. Miss Roach continues to conduct it at former salary of £25. Fees £5. This School-house has been repaired, and an addition made to the portion occupied by the Teacher, since my former visit. There were 21 pupils present at examination.

This School is conducted in the most creditable manner by Miss Roach, who is not only a competent Teacher, but one who evidently bestows no small amount of care and attention in the tuition of her pupils, as was fully

shown by the manner in which they acquitted themselves in spelling, reading, arithmetic, catechism, and English grammar. The writing was remarkably good.

WINDSOR TAKE SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 15th September. Miss Roach continues to conduct it at former salary of £25. No fees collected.

This School-house has been repaired, and an addition made to the portion occupied by the Teacher. There is a great falling off in the attendance of children to this School, as the register shows the maximum attendance to be only fourteen. There were nine pupils present at examination, all of whom were very young. Only one copy-book exhibited.

COADY'S WELL SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 15th September. A chimney has been built, and the house ceiled since my former visit. Mr. Kehoe continues to conduct this School at former salary, £30. There are no fees paid. The Teacher stated he had made no application for them. No register kept. There were 11 pupils present at examination. Their spelling and knowledge of catechism were fair. Writing very good, and sums entered very neatly.

PORTUGAL COVE SCHOOL.

Mr. Cuddihy continues to conduct this School at former salary of £40.— There are no fees paid; and the Teacher states he was refused on his making application for them. There were 25 pupils present at examination; catechism taught once each day. The spelling, reading and knowledge of catechism, tolerable; writing fair; copy-books neat and clean.

A School-house is in course of erection here, which will be finished this fall. I was unable to visit Belle Isle School.

TORBAY SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 16th September. Mr. Coady continues to conduct it at former salary of £30. Fees £2. No register kept.

There were 34 pupils present at examination, only one of whom was able to read, and 7 to spell, which they did very badly. There was also but one copy-book to exhibit.

FLAT ROCK SCHOOL.

Mr. Maher continues to conduct this School at former salary of £35. No fees collected, and no application made for them by the Teacher. No register kept. There were 13 pupils present at examination, 4 of whom read tolerably well. Spelling and catechism very fair. A few copy-books shewn, writing very inferior.

Pouch Cove School.

Mrs. Bassitt continues to conduct this School at former salary of £30. No fees collected. No register kept. The same miserable accommodation of School-room as stated in my former Report. There were but five pupils present at examination, all of whom were very young.

ORPHAN ASYLUM SCHOOL.

When I visited this School last year it was held in two apartments, one being considered an elementary one, in which the children were prepared for their admission to the other. At present both Schools are blended into one, and held in the one room, which I consider a change for the better, as it does not necessitate the elder pupils who act as monitors to leave their own school, which was the case before; besides, the entire of the pupils will have the advantage of the presence and supervision of all the teachers conducting the School.

There has been another alteration made in the management of the School which I consider a salutary one; namely the payment of fees by the pupils attending the school. I find that although the maximum attendance of pupils was greater before this change was made, the average attendance is the same as it was before, which is a great advantage to the School, as the teachers will thus have the same pupils, or nearly so, every day under their charge, and be enabled to make that progressive improvement in their tuition which can only be effected by their regular attendance.

A monthly return is made by Brother Francis Grace, for the information of his Lordship Dr. Mullock, of the number and names of the pupils attending the School, the names of their parents, their places of residence, the number of days they attended during the month, and the cause of their absence when they absented themselves for any length of time.

There were 137 pupils present at examination. I perceived a greater amount of discipline exercised in the management of the School than on my former visit. The pupils acquitted themselves on examination in the same creditable manner they did last year.

RIVER HEAD SCHOOL.

Mr. Hewit continues to conduct this School. There were 50 pupils present at examination. The pupils are divided into seven classes, and a register kept of the daily attendance of the children in each class. There were none of the children belonging to the first class present. The reading of the 2nd and 3rd classes was rather indifferent, but the Teacher labors under the disadvantage of not having any reading books, the children being compelled to read out of their spelling-books. The spelling and knowledge of catechism tolerable.—There were about 30 copy-books exhibited. The writing of those pupils who were at all regular in their attendance was very well.

The Teacher does not, in my opinion, enforce a sufficient amount of discipline in this School, although I am bound to add that he has to encounter no ordinary amount of difficulty in effecting it. I believe Mr. Hewit to be not only a competent Teacher, but one who feels a laudable desire to improve his pupils.

Springfield School.

The Teacher of this School, Mr. Hacket, had charge of the Petty Harbor School when I visited this District last year. His present salary is £35 a-year. Fees about £12 a-year. There were 66 pupils present at examination. Their reading was indifferent. Spelling and knowledge of catechism fair. Catechism taught twice each week. 25 copy-books exhibited, the writing, in the majority of which, was very good.

Quidi Vidi School.

I made three visits to this School before I could see it in operation.—When I succeeded, I found eight children assembled. Mr. O'Neil continues to have charge of it at former salary of £40. Fees 12s. a year. No register kept. The spelling of the children was of the most wretched character; not one of the boys—whose ages ranged from 8 or 9 years to 12 or 13—could spell correctly, on an average, one question out of twelve in words of one and two syllables.

Three copy-books of indifferent writing shewn. Catechism taught each day—knowledge of it poor.

BLOCK MAKER'S HALL SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 20th September. Mrs. Connelly continues to have charge of it at former salary of £21. Fces £3. No register kept.—There were 25 pupils present at examination, only 3 of whom were reading. The spelling and reading of the pupils were very indifferent. Catechism taught once each day—knowledge of it very poor. The writing, as well as cyphering books, were very creditable.

GOOLDS BRIDGE SCHOOL.

Mrs. Ryan continues to have charge of this School, at former salary of £15. There are no fees paid, and no application made for them by the Teacher. No register kept.

There were eight pupils present at examination, only one of whom could read; spelling very bad; catechism taught once each day—only one pupil present could answer a single question in the first and second chapters.

PETTY HARBOR MALE SCHOOL.

I did not visit this School until the 12th January. Mr. Barron, who conducted the School at Springfield last year, has charge of it at a salary of £50. Fees £3 5s. There were 62 pupils present at examination.

Notwithstanding the short time Mr. Barron has had charge of this School, I must say I found a very great improvement in it since my former visit. The spelling, reading, and knowledge of arithmetic and catechism, were very fair. The improvement in the writing of the pupils was certainly very creditable. I was glad to perceive some young men attending the School for the purpose of learning Navigation, and of otherwise improving themselves.

PETTY HARBOR FEMALE SCHOOL.

This School, which has been established since my former visit to this place, is conducted by Miss Walsh at a salary of £25. Fees she expects to be about £7. Miss Walsh writes a beautiful hand, and will, as a Teacher, be of the most essential benefit to the young females of this locality.

There were 33 pupils present at examination. The reading and spelling of the majority of the pupils were very good. Catechism taught twice a day—knowledge of it good. The writing in some of the copy-books exhibited was remarkably good for the time. Keeps no register.

TOPSAIL SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 2nd November; Mr. Noonan continues to conduct it at tormer salary of £25. Fees £2 5s.

The School-house has been put in a good state of repair, and the School-room provided with desks and forms, and also with cards of easy reading lessons. There were fourteen pupils present at examination. Spelling, reading, and knowledge of catechism fair. Catechism taught every second day; a few copy-books shewn containing tolerable large hand.

KELLIGREWS SCHOOL.

Mr. Styles continues to have charge of this School at a salary of £25.—Fees £2 5s.

The School-house has been painted since my former visit, but no School-furniture has as yet been provided. No register kept.

There were nine pupils present at examination, one of whom was reading. Spelling and knowledge of catechism tolerable. Two copy-books shewn; writing fair.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

SCHOOL RETURN.

through the Inspector of Schools.

				سد												
	Воокз пзед.	'83 !8-	ooj D	eidt d-Sa	o s Illəq	100. S	րթպր Մեկ	the	Boo gke	Boc	ith oth	M.	bəi n	pp)	ith ti ly su lot h imer	ds irt
50	Navigation.					·		-				c	1			100
No. learning	Grammar.	ಣ		10				Ξ	1-0	17.						188
G E	Geography.	ಣ						Ξ	7	.T						133
1 2	Rule of Three, &c.	1-		9	හ 4	4	21 44	151	0	200	5.	4 0	ာ က		~	114
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.	4		က တ	က			101	483		(C)					1 22
Ar	First four Rules.	4		0 4	44		4 9	54-1	4	20	-		6		ಣ	1831
#	On Paper.	13	- 6	فعو	ထ ထ	0	တ တ	- 📆	1818				<u> </u>	4	4	898
Writ ing.	On Slates.			# 드		-	-9	2	346	1 4 2 4		<u> </u>			00	128
-	Reading with fluency, &c.			9				7	٠ - دی	-		7.0	11			122
ng	Reading with ease.	17		- 6	4 €	က	<u> </u>	-19	901	<u>_</u>	∞ ·	4 0	9		-9	
adi	Easy Lessons.	5.1	;	35 15	- i	16	22 T	154	301	7 7				03		253
Reading.	Letters and Monosyllables	24 15		6.0	6 10	171	30 10 10 10	751	40 65	1627	000	S 6	1231	믕	1642	222
	targ noiterago ni erw	- 63		=			<u>~</u>	1-	411	<u>0 –</u>	ೞ			က		1117
10011	No. of days in which day-so															1
1004	Present at examination.	10		22	6 H	00	44	137	0	ဥ ထ	و قار	00	1 00	9	23	₹69
 	Average Attendance.	93035		00	15 15	30 2	<u> </u>	OCT	000	50	8	<u>ء</u> و	38	10	342	7
- C	Over 12 years.	. 8		$\frac{7}{12}$	200	8	1040 524	-8-	8	2 2	8	9 2	34	=	<u></u>	1881
Ages of Pupils.		.		5 5		10	4 4	711	6	N 0	8	23	4 4	67	47	223
ag in	Between 7 and 12.	26 30 56 24 23		$\frac{13.27}{10.15}$	50	3	<u>9 8</u>	451	8 2	28 52	40	2 6	122	=		989
	Under 7 years.	-8	;	= = =	7 60	6	4H 00		40	N 60		No			4 17	843
No on Books.	.fato'I	-3		28 61 1 22 36 1	200	ကြေ	0.00	891	12:	1.4.	9	4 0	200	4	964	1816
300	Female.	- 60	-	<u>8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 </u>		<u> </u>	<u>ج ج</u>	<u> </u>		36	30	<u> </u>	<u>ر. 'ب</u>	310	529	859
<u> </u>	Male.		_	<u>⇔</u>	10		2 7 7		[2]	3 - 5	<u> </u>	ة ت	<u>ĕ</u>	ñ	35	7 5 8
10	No. of weeks allowed Teach for Fishing.	15		ZË	ခုန	유 당	ဥ္မ ဗ		C3	C.	S)				9	1
100	deel herrolle adoer to off	d.) ON:11.		5			_	0	-0	-	0		0		9	19
	Lear.	1					_									19
1886	Amount of Fees collected I	. 4 4	,	20	=======================================		0	0	က	12	0	4	0		1-	61
į i		A 41	•	ಬ 4	0		C3	32	C3	С	3	c	٦.		4	993
		90		00	00	0	00	00	0	00	0		0	0	00	10
	·	. o		00	00	0	00	0	0	00	0	-	0	0	00	0
·^	Amount of Teachers' Salar			10 10	10 0	0	O 10	00	. 0	n C	· :	.a	- 10	0	O 10	9
		€ €		တိတိ	લાં હ	4	ಹ ಪ	Si à	ā ō	<u> 4</u>	C 7	—	ي ان و	ట	25	£776
ļ		ī		~							->-				-	1 48
	· .	9	H	e	e e	ij	<u>_</u>	nd.	٠	ett 1	Mrs. Connolly	ا بـ	i d	Mrs. Bassett	MessrsDoyle and Noonan	
	ne me	ch	3	200	200	Cuddihy	g g	ر بري	Ŋ.	3.5	<u> </u>	yar	7a /	288	rrsDoyle Noonan	
	Teachers Name.	8	o reture	Mr. Hand Miss Roche	Miss Roche	3	Mr. Coady Mr. Maher	M'Grath and	Hewit	Mr. Hacketi Mr. O'Neil	50	Mrs. Kyan	Mr. Darron Miss Walsh	8	Srs	
	Ē	ن ا	Z	ڲۜڹڬ	Miss	K.	Mr.	5	Ä.	Mr.	Ĕ,	Ĕ.	i.s	13	Mess	
ļ		1853 Mr. Roche			2 2	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	2	_≥	<u> </u>	2		2 2	<u>×</u>		
i	When Established	85		1842 1843	843	48	843	826		843	846	850	1859	843	854	
		1 =						_==			1 7-4	-				
}	Character of School.	hod														
-	too o	Sc														
.]	haracte of School	멸	දි	ಕಿಕಿ	ಕ್ಕಿ	g ç	ಕ್ಕಿಕಿ	පි	ф	육운	ရှ ရ	용수	ရှင်	දි	ф	
	5 °4	Oa		,												
<u> </u>		Fresh Water Board School	-		<u>(1)</u>	d					_	<u></u>				
	5. •	ter	ü	ø	2 kg	8		sy-	7		Įaj	န်	ဗ္ဗဏ္ဌ	9	એ એ	
	lit	Na.	<u>.</u>	્રે ફે	H.	: 2	성	⋖,	Iea	<u>ان و</u>	8	, T	arb aal	5	₩.	
	Cocality of School.	P] []	Ja M	dso v,'s	ga	క్రాజ్ఞ	han /	1	<u> </u>	er	8	E E	٩	a:e	
	J &	res	MiddleLPon	Outer Cove Logy Bay	WindsorLak Condy's Wel	PortugalCove	Torbay Flat Rock	Orphan Asy	River Head		nal	GooldsBridge	retty narbor Do. FemaleSl	Pouch Cove	Kelligrews & Topsail	
		<u>E</u>	\mathbf{z}	<u>ŌŬ</u>	ے≲	<u> </u>	ĔE	Ö	~	Springfield Onid: Vidi	3	ع ک	30	<u>~</u>	NE.	
	Catholic Population of Ed estional District.	00	61	7.							Bloc kmaker's Hal					
-n	Catholic Population of Ed										m					
	t al															
	lucations District.	1,8														
	cat	l de														
4 <u>[</u> []	Educationa) District.	St. John's														
4	H	: 33														

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of Schools.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT OF ST. JOHN'S.

Balance on hand.	£267 2 1
Whole amount expended	£956 7 7
Whole amount received	£1223 9 8
Amount paid to Secre- tary of Board.	£30
Fuel.	0 91 9F
Expended in School requisites.	8 7 823
School rents.	1.3
Expended in repairing or building school-houses.	0 \$ 80EF
Amount paid in Amount Salaries. Teachers.	£576 0 0
Balance from past year.	£ 121
Special Grant.	•
Ordinary appropriation for the District.	2 6 60113

† JOHN T. MULLOCK, (Signed)

Chairman. JOHN ROCHE,

Secretary.

exertions of His Lordship in the establishment of educational institutions in the country, but also the large pecu-The following interesting Returns, furnished by the Right Rev. Dr. Mullock, exhibit not only the successful niary sacrifices he has made to effect this desirable object.

receive that superior education in their own country, which previous to its establishment, they were compelled to The Return from the College of St. Bonaventure, shows that the Catholic youth of Newfoundland can now seek in the Seminaries of Europe and America.

ACADEMY, ST. JOHN'S, (ROMAN CATHOLIC BRANCH) FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st DECEMBER, 1859.

			Am't. Contributions	ributions		
Names of Masters	No. of Scholars	s Mode of Instruction	Govern- V	oluntary	Govern- Voluntary Expense of School	Remarks.
Rev. Henry Carfagnini		Simultaneous and monthly	£600 Stg. £	675 Cy.	Salaries £622 9 4	Simultancous and monthly £600 Stg. £675 Cy. Salaries £622 9 4 I may mention that the Library now in
Rev. Wm. Forristall		examinations.	•		Expenses 1071 17 2	Expenses 1071 17 2 course of erection will be a room of 70 feet
E. C. Maclaurin, M.A.	-	Besides the Theological and		`	Total £1694 6 6	£1694 6 6 will be of stained glass and it will be partially a Library for the use of the public, as well as
Mr. Fenlon, assisted Boarders		Philosophical Studies for the 28 higher classes intended for the			The expenses of the Suilding now amount	The expenses of the of the College. I have a collection of over Building now amount 2500 volumes as the nucleus of a public li-
by Monitors from	DayScholars 70	Church, a perfect commercial	***************************************		onearly £6000. From	to nearly £6000. From brary, and many of these books are rare and £1500 to £2000 will valuable. We have small scientific apparatus,
the Training School	1 36	the Training School 98 fined for commercial pursuits,	>	~	be required to complete t. Except the Govern-	be required to complete which will be enlarged in time. I may also it. Except the Govern-remark that as there were previously no
Mr. Comerford, Span-		or any of the learned profes- sions. Greek and Latin are		<u>s = </u>	nent Grant of £3000, nd Subscriptions	ment Grant of £3000, means of obtaining a high Education, we had and Subscriptions to commence with the classes altogether, and
ish Master		taught in the clerical depart- ment. French, Spanish, and		<u> </u>	bout £500, I have ontributed the rest	about £500, I have the great benefit of the Institution will not contributed the rest be apparent for several years, when the gene-
5 Professors		Italian, besides Music, can be learned by all.		<u> </u>	myself.	ration now obtaining a high Education will become active members of society. Since
			•			the first establishment of the College in the
						old Palace, a few years ago, I have spent, out of my own means, about £3,500 in its
_	_					establishment and maintenance.

(Signed)

† JOHN T. MULLOCK,

Chairman R. C. Academy.

_ 720
JOHN'
ST.
E OF ST.
DIOCES
R. 1859.—
3 31sr DECEMBER.
3181
EAR ENDING
YEAR
THE
FOR
NT SCHOOLS FOR THE YEAR ENDING
IN CONVENT
PRESENTATION (

	Remarks,	The very great advantages of the Conventual Schools are—1st A perfect religious education. 2nd. This is imparted by Mistresses—the Nuns—who are all trained to one system; and	having no motive but a highly religious one, to comply with the spirit of their Institute—the instruction of female children—pay	more attention to that object than could be expected from persons who have only pecuniary interests. 3rd. The entire ex-	penses of the Schools are borne by the private property of the Nuns, assisted by the Government grant. The fortunes and	property of the Nuns form a common fund, and the educational expenses are always paid out of it. The establishment of the	River Head Convent School—for example—cost the Nuns over £400 out of their own private means, and more than that sum	to me. The colony, therefore, obtains for the temale children frequenting these Schools, a superior education, at a trifling rate	in comparison with what it would cost to engage other teachers, with less qualification for the office of Mistresses. 4th. The	ည္အခ	provided with first-class female teachers trained there. Ine Nuns pay particular attention to this department, and have always a number of young persons, training as teachers, whom they recommend to the different Boards. I believe it would be a very great improvement if the incompetent Masters, who only receive a small salary in the small Outports, were replaced by	these trained Mistresses.	† JOHN T. MULLOCK, Chairman Roman Catholic Board of Education, St. John's.
11	of each School.	e entirely	re 'uu	colur	ф	the c	ni b	eilds aplis	Est Est	ooj' sa	of each Scho by the Conve	Тhе екрепsе: эстэф	
Am't. Contributions	Volun- tary	expenses	all the	atud ibbs	eloo. ni e	t Sch	the	he Co rty of	in ti	eived	ny sort are rec tid by the priv lent Grants.	are ps	(pəu
Am't. Co	Govern- ment	£200	100	75	90	20	22	20	20	20	50		(Signed)
Mode of	Instruction.	ery, His-	garagos biord <i>i</i>	r, En	mma Mork	Gra edle	dailga eMe	.ae. .gaia	metic TaM	Arith ,gaiv	cem: The bra. ng, Writing, and plain Ser ork, Bead Wo partment: W	ibs9 H ; Y103	
	No. of Scholars Instruction.	700 in summer 300 in winter	220 in summer 130 in winter	120 to 130		80	50	92				is built there £1000. Four the Spring.	
	Teachers	14 Nuns	4 Nuns	9 Nuns		3 Nuns	3 Nuns	3 Nuns	Building of Stone	Collection made	The collection made was £850. Up to the present, Fcb. 6, it is nearly £900.	itless Bay.—A fine Convent is built at an expense of nearly £1000. Nuns will be sent there in the Sprin	`.
Sobools where	situate.	St. John's	Do. River Head	Harbor Maine	Witless Bay*	Ferryland	Fermeuse	St. Mary's	Placentia Bui	Burin Collect	Brigus The collecti was £850. T present, Feb nearly £900.	* Witless Bay.—A fine Convent is built at an expense of nearly £1000. Nuns will be sent there in the Sprin	

DISTRICT OF GREAT PLACENTIA.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOL-GREAT PLACENTIA.

Visited this School on the 25th October. Mr. Riely continues to conduct it at former salary, £70. There are no fees collected.

There has been nothing done in the way of repairs to this School-house since my former visit. The Porch, which is a very pretty one, is in a very bad state of repair. At a meeting of the Education Board last year—as seen by my Report—four pounds was voted for the purpose of repairing it.

There were 55 pupils present at examination. There was an improvement in the writing of the pupils; but rather a falling off in the other branches since my former visit. Since I visited this school I understand that the Teacher has gone to the Normal School of St. John's for the purpose of improving himself; and the Board have put the school during his absence in the charge of a young woman, the sister of the Teacher.

DISTRESS SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 21st October. Mr. Cummins continues to have charge of it at former salary of £25. There are no fees collected. No Register kept.

There were 22 pupils present at examination. Reading of pupils wretched; spelling something better; Catechism taught once each day—knowledge of it fair. Not one reading book in the School; children learning to read from the spelling books and Catechism.

There has been nothing done to this School-house in the way of repairs since my former visit.

NORTH EAST ARM SCHOOL.

This School has been established since my former visit to this District. A Mr. Hanlon has been appointed Teacher at a salary of £18 currency, with permission to fish during the caplin season. I believe him to be a competent person to conduct a school of this description.

On the day of my visit there was no School, as the Teacher was assisting and superintending the completion of a School-house which the inhabitants have erected with only the aid of nine pounds from the Board. It is 22 feet by 16, and well lighted.

The inhabitants were assisting to clapboard, and erect a chimney in the school-house on the day I visited it. There were two things that pleased me on my visit to this school;—one, to see the inhabitants cheerfully assisting in the erection of their school-house—and the other, the statement of the Teacher that he expected to collect, in fees, in this small locality, the sum of £5, forty shillings of which he had already received. I was unable to visit the school in Branch.

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

through the Inspector of Schools.

	Books used,					e of t badi	
<u> </u>	Navigation.						1
No. learning	Grammar.		_5_				12
ea N	Geography.		151				8 14 15 15
	Rule of Three, &c.		C 3		8		14
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.						15-
Arith- metic.	First four Rules.		6				12
اهم ني	On Paper.		40 29		4		94430
Writ ing.	On Slates.		4	6			+2-
Reading.	Reading with ease. Reading with fluency, &c.		0			<u> </u>	12
adj.	Easy Lessons.		-6	15	4		611
e -			40 70 10	8	6 34		12
	Letters and Monosyllables		4				1 2
	No. of days in which day traction last set						
	Present at examination.		55	61			11
	Average attendance.		755	12 22	9		103
44	Over 12 years.		3	8	916		18
No on Ages of Books. Pupils.			68	~			811
age -	Between 7 and 12.		358	00	9 22		123
-2 H	Under 7 years.						
e sk	Total.		121	1323	1840		1061
١٥٥١	Female.		750	101	-5-		1 20
AH:	Male.		77		22		301
101 191	No of weeks allowed teach		N	4	œ		12
		d.			0		10
ast year	Amount of fees collected p	sé.	≓	ф	0		0
		વર	E	ರ	10		jo.
			-	- o	-	-	1 23 O
		٦	_				- 1
•¥1	Amount of Teachers' Salar	s,	0	0	0	0	0
	,	F	20	25	18	25	£138
	Teachers' Name.		ely	1845 Mr. Cummins	1859 Mr. Hanlon		
	Na		2	ರ	H		
	E		Ţ.	Ĺr.	Ţ.		
				5	6		
	When Established.		1845 Mr. Riely	184	185		
	Character of School.		Com. School	Board School	ego	No Return	
	Locality of School.		Great Placentia	Distress	North E. Arm	Branch	
	Catholic population of Ed cational District.		1298				
n	ba to noitalunon oilontaD						
	ucational District,		Great Placentia				

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of Schools.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT OF GREAT PLACENTIA.

Balance on hand.	Nil.
Whole amountexpended	£148 0 0 Cy.
Whole amount received	£146 0 0 Cy.
Amount paid to Secre- tary of Board.	N ii
Fuel.	Nil. Nil
Expended in School requisites.	Nil.
School rents.	Z.
Expended in repairing or building school-houses.	K10 11 6 cy
ni bisq tnuomA Teschers' Salaries.	£138 0 0 Stg.
Balance from past year.	0 Nil.
Special Grant.	£40 0 0
Ordinary appropriation for the District.	£86 10 8 Stg.

(Signed)

E. CONDON,

Chairman.

DISTRICT OF ST. MARY'S.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOL ST. MARY'S.

I regret to state that when I visited this School, on the 15th October, I found it closed in consequence of the Teacher being in St. John's. A similar result followed my visit last year.

A branch of the Presentation Convent at St. John's has been established here since my former visit. The Rev. John Ryan having purchased a house for the reception of the nuns, to which he has added a nice school-house, the ladies were enabled to take possession this summer. A few months previous to my visit I had the pleasure of seeing their school in operation, and of witnessing, for the third time during my tour, the immense benefits conferred on the young females of a locality blessed with the presence of these Ladies.

Several of the young girls were employed in working be atiful specimens of needle-work; and the humbler but equally necessary accomplishments of spinning and knitting, were also cared for. The improvement in the writing of the pupils was certainly beyond anything I had seen accomplished in so short a time.

I was unable to visit the other schools in this District, and I have not received the School Returns from the Teachers which I sent them to have filled up.

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

through the Inspector of Schools.

On Party & Catholic population of Education and Party & Catholic population of Education and District of Catholic population of Education and Marty & Catholic population of Education and Monosyllabies & Cathors & Cathors & Catho			
Component of Three, Sc. Serion of Three Component Nielse. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Component of Series. Compound Males. Compound Males. Compound Males. Component of Series. Compo	Вооке леед.		
Compound Hules. Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic populatiot. Catholic populatiot. Catholic populatiot. Catholic particle. Catholic particle. Catholic particle. Catholic particle. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees collected part year. Catholic particle. Catholic part of fees part year. Catholic particle. Catholi	100		
Compound Rules. Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic particle. Catho	Navigation.		
Compound Rules. Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic particle. Catho	Grammar.		
Complete Service Services of Education of Education of Educations District. New York of Education Education of Education	Geography.	'	
Compound Raises. Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic o	Rule of Three, &c.)	
Complete to the control of the contr	Compound Rules.		
Comparison of Teachers and Monosylables Catholic population of Edu- Comparison of Ed	First four Rules.	41	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Cat	On Paper. og 🚉	41	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Cat	On Siates.	-	
Com. Schools population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Tedu- Catholic population of Tedu- Catholic population of Tedu- Catholic population of Tedu- Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic pack and Monosylables Catholic pack			
Com. School of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Malc. Short of Malc. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for the walsh	'Saka III'k Alibeat	8	
Com. School of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Malc. Short of Malc. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for the walsh	Total Trespond	<u>-</u>	
Com. School of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Malc. Short of Malc. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Teamle. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for Walsh. Short of Weeks allowed teacher for the walsh	Salabu (south and south	\ :	
Com. Name of Extending population of Education 1 soldelimentall bas suction			
Com. Walsh Walsh Walsh Walsh Walsh Walsh Walsh Wash Sand 12. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com.	TOO TO A SET TO THE TIEST TO SOFT		
Catholic population of Edu- School. Name of Catholic population of Edu- School. Name of Catholic population of Edu- School. Name of Catholic population of Edu- School. Name of Catholic population. Name of Ca	Mo of derra in which den about		
Catholic population of Edu- School. When Established. Tangle of Weeks allowed teacher for Hear. When Established. When Established. When Established. Tangle of Weeks allowed teacher for Hisbing. So of Hear. When the Male. So of Hear. When the School. When Established. Tangle of Weeks allowed teacher for the fear of the school of the school. When the Male. So of the School. When the Male. Total. So of the School.	100		
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Chool of Catholic population. Chool of Mary's Com. School 1851 Mr. Walsh Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com.		<u> </u>	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Chool of Catholic population. Chool of Mary's Com. School 1851 Mr. Walsh Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com.	Over 12 vears.	1	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Chool of Catholic population. Chool of Mary's Com. School 1851 Mr. Walsh Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com.	Between 7 and 12.	36	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Chool of Catholic population. Chool of Mary's Com. School 1851 Mr. Walsh Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com. Com.	Under 7 years. ☐ ☐	91	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic part Catholic population Catholic population Catholic part Catholic population Catholic part Catholic population Catholic part Cath	Z & .fatoT	288	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic population Catholic part Catholic population Catholic population Catholic part Catholic population Catholic part Catholic population Catholic part Cath	Female.	.	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Catholic population Chool Ch		288	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- School. School. Name. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. Om. School 1851 Wr. Walsh School 1851 Mr. Walsh School 20 6. 6.	Fieding.		
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- School. Nome. Nome. Nome. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. On O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O	No of weeks allowed teacher for	l	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Chool. School. School. School. Name. When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established When Established On On School School School When Established When Established On On School Scho		. O . G	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- School. School. School. Name. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. On. School 1851 Mt. Walsh	Amount of fees collected past rear.) · 0	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Catholic population. School. School. Name. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. Out On. School 1851 Mr. Walsh 56 0 0		1	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Catholic population. Chool. School. School. Name. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. When Established. Of Name. When Established.			
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Catholic Population Catholic Population School. School. School. School. When Establish With Walsh 66	 	P ()	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Catholic Population Catholic Population School. School. School. School. When Establish Wr. Walsh 66	Amount of Teachers' Salary.	1 20	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic population. School. School. School. When Establish Mr. Walsh We Walsh		ا ب	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic Population Catholic population Catholic population Of Of School. School 1851 When Established.		(4) no	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic Population Catholic population Catholic population Of Of School. School 1851 When Established.		1	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic Population Catholic population Catholic population Of Of School. School 1851 When Established.	is a	ų,	
Catholic population of Edu- cational District. Catholic population of Catholic School. School. When Established.	ğ ğ	Va)	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic Population Catholic population Catholic population Of Of School. School 1851 When Established.	Ka_	, ·	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Catholic population School. School. School. School. School. School. School.	H F	₹	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Catholic population School. School. School. School. School. School. School.			
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population Catholic population School. School. School. School. School. School. School.	When Established.	29	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic School Scho			
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic Solution of Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic population.	18 -i	00	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic School Scho). 100	5	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic School Scho	Sch	e e	
Catholic population of Edu- Catholic population of Catholic Solution of Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic population. Catholic population.	ರ ∞	oo,	
		ett	
	lits,	ž.	
	နှင့် မြင့်	M _B	
	й «Ž	- i	
		$\sigma_{\!$	
	cational District.	8	
	Catholic population of Edu-	391	
Educational District.			
Educatio Distric	ਫ਼ਿਜ਼ਾਂ	, xo	
Educa Dist	ric	ıry	
St. 1	ist	Wa	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	j ga		
	· • • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	SQ.	

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the

Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of Schools.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT OF ST. MARY'S.

Balance on hand.	0£10 15 3
Whole amount expended	3 £140 17 0
Whole amount received	£ 197 18 3
Amount paid to Secre- tary of Board.	Nil. Nil.
Fuel.	Nil.
Expended in School requisites.	0 & 83
School rents.	N:I:
Expended in repairing or building school-houses.	0 0 013
ni bisq tanomA Teachers' Salaties.	£122 14 0
Balance from past year.	9 81 77F
Special Grant.	£46 3 0
	10

Ordinary appropriation for the District.

£126 16

JOHN RYAN, (Signed)

Chairman.

JAMES MURPHY, Secretary.

I would make the Balance from the above statement to be £57 instead of £10. (Signed) M. J. KI (Signed)

DISTRICT OF LITTLE PLACENTIA.

LITTLE PLACENTIA SCHOOL.

There has been no School held here this summer. The School-house, which was in a wretched state at the time of my former visit, has been put in a thorough state of repair. In fact nothing is left of the old building but the frame. It is ceiled throughout, well lighted, and in every way a well finished School-house. The Chairman intends to supply it with desks and forms in keeping with the School-house itself.

A Mr. Boyle has been engaged by the Board to conduct this School at a salary of £60 a year. He had not taken charge of it at the time of my visit, but was expected to do so in a few weeks.

RED ISLAND SCHOOL.

I visited this School on my way to St. Kyran's on the Western Shore of Placentia Bay. It was closed at the time of my visit in consequence of the Teacher being at St. John's. There is no School-house here; but I understand that one will be in course of erection shortly. There is also a School in Fox Harbor which I was unable to visit. The Teacher of Red Island School forwarded to me, on his return from St. John's, the School Return for his School; and I have compiled from Returns furnished last year, but too late to be inserted in my Report, the statistics of the other two Schools.

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of Schools.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT OF LITTLE PLACENTIA.

1			ç3			9
Balance on hand.			15			0 18
			£40			64
			හ			3
Whole amount expended			15	•		L -
(0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			\mathfrak{t} 20			95
			œ			=
			10			70
Whole amount received			$\mathfrak{t}93$			136
tary of Board.			Ë			=
Amount paid to Secre-			<u>z</u>			<u> </u>
Fuel.			Nil. Nil.			Nil. Nil.
Expended in School requisites.			Nil.			Nil.
School rents.			Nii.			Nii.
Expended in repairing or building school-houses.			Nil. Nil	6	0	79F
			ဇာ			Ø
Teachers' Salaries.			15			-
ni bisq 1auomA			£50 15			43
Balance from past year.			Nii.	ε	91	77 3
Special Grant.			Nil.			Nil.
Ordinary appropriation for the District.	For the year	1859	£93 10 8	For the year	1860	£93 10 8

(Signed)

THOMAS FREEMAN,

SCHOOL RETURN.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary

through the Inspector of Schools.

	Books used.	-0	s: nubr	are Rook	chools with	ese bebiv	Ч) П
- B	Navigation.						
No. arnir	Grammar.						+
No. learning	Geography.	1-			······		+
. 1	Rule of Three, &c.	1	67	61	က		1
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.	-		ಣ	00		宣
ı	First four Rules.		4	CI	9		1211
Writ ing.	On Paper.	-	6	- 2	24		8
∀ .≅	On Slates.			ಣ	-1		10 38
sio	Reading with fluency, &c.						i -
Reading.	Reading with ease.		10	10	17		27
eac	Easy Lessons.		17	20	51		72 88
#	Letters and Monosyllables		18	22	32		12
ear.	was in operation last						<u> </u>
scrool	No. of days in which day			_			
	Present at examination.						
	Average attendance.	(32	30	50		112
Ages of Pupils.	Over 12 years.	1	18 22 40 12 15 13 32	-	35		49
ges	Between 7 and 12.		15	22,24	51		18
401	Under 7 years.		12	22	14 51		184 190
No on Books.	Total.		40	47	00T		181
00	Female.		22	26 21	64 36		139
ZA	Male.		18	26	64		108
	. Bridsi'A .		9	9			
यती प्रभा	No of weeks allowed teach	l					<u> </u>
irə£ 18r	Amount of fees collected p	d.	0				0
4001 400	a beteefied seet to truoma	, vi	0				0
		4	-				13
		d.	0	-0	0		13
ry.	Amount of Teachers' Sala	, s	0	0	0		0
		1	25	25	0		0
·		ધ	C.3	ঝ	99		£110 0
	Teachers' Name.		852 Mr. O'Keefe	848 Mr. Clooney	836 Mr. Boyle		
			<u>~</u>	<u>~</u>			
	When Established.		1852	1848	1836		
	Character of School.		Board School	Do.	Do.		
	Locality of School.	_	Red Island Board School	Fox Harbor	Little Pla- centia		
-np	Catholic population of E cational District.		1329	<i>-</i>			
	Educational District.	Tittle	Placentia. 1				-

DISTRICT OF PLACENTIA WEST.

St. KYRAN'S SCHOOL.

Visited this School on the 16th November. Mr. Hagarty continues to conduct it at former salary of £48. Fees 12s. 6d. There has been nothing done to the School-house in the way of repairs since my former visit; but the Chairman, the Rev. James Walsh, informs me that the necessary repairs would be made this winter. The character of this School is the same as that given of it in my former Report.

MERASHEEN SCHOOL.

There is a very fine School-house here, but it requires much repairs, as well as school furniture. The School was closed for some time previous to my visit, as it is only in operation during the summer months. In fact all the Schools in this District, with the exception of the one at St. Kyran's, are similarly circumstanced, and this arises from the fact of the Education Board being compelled to establish no less than seven Schools in the District, so that several little settlements into which the District is divided, and whose claims as to population are pretty equal, might fairly participate in the Education Grant.

In my former Report I showed a balance of £71 remaining on hands in this District. I have been furnished the details of an expenditure of £50 in the erection of the School-house at St. Kyran's, which leaves the balance £21.

Filled by the Teacher and certified by the Chairman of the Board, for transmission to the Colonial Secretary SCHOOL RETURN.

Schools.
fo
Inspector
the
through

Books used.			All these Schools are poorly sup- plied with books.							
50	.noitegiveN									
No. arnir	Grammar.					61				63
No. learning	Geography.					ঝ				67
	Rule of Three, &c.									-
Arith- metic.	Compound Rules.									
A B	First four Rules.					10				(c)
# ::	On Paper.					00				8
Writ ing.	On Slates.									
	Reading with fluency, &cc.	-								
Reading.	Reading with ease.		67	6	ಣ	10		4		28
Pag	Easy Lessons.		9	31	13	13	က	41	8	125
Ř	Letters and Monosyllables		8 10	-6	65	-	37	4	12	92
year.	No. of days in which day-so was in operation past						<u> </u>			
	Present at examination.					19				19
	Average Attendance.		215	336	23	20 25 19	25	30	12	041
\$ °	Over 12 years.			က	G.	20	10 25	Ç4	က	8
Ages of Pupils.	Between 7 and 12.		6 12	26	12	3	18	42	62	121
Peg	Under 7 years.			1626	4	20	23 40 12 18	10	20	53
- m	Total.		9 20	45	25	20	9	49	20	559
0 k	Femsle.		0	1945	6	2030	-83	2649	8	114
No on Books.	Male.		11	56	16	9	17	- 53	12	112
	No. of weeke allowed Teacher for Fishing.									
		Ġ.				9		,		9
	year.	vi				12				12
Jast	Amount of Fees collected l	ςp				0 1				0
		d.	-	-	-	-	0	-	0	0370
1			0	0	0	0		0	0	1
Amount of Teachers' Salary.		ø,					10			1
				15	<u>∞</u>	48	12	15	· · ·	£114 10
	•			80	H	ty	g	ہی	Ħ	
	lers		863	nii.	We	gar	ma	ugl	ora	
	ach fan		ű	Can	\mathbf{P}_0	Haş	P:t	10.0	ž	
	Teachers' Name.		18.	rs.	18	r. 1	Mrs. Pitman	r. 1	rg.	
	. .		Z	_\\ \	2	Z	Ž.	7	<u> </u>	
When Established			356	1848 Mrs. Canning	859 Mrs. Power	1852 Mr. Hagarty		1859 Mr. Kough	1859 Mrs. Moran	
l	hodelidets H and W		Board School 1856 Mrs. Casey	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	=		_ <u>=</u>	<u> </u>	
	Character of School.		001							
ł			Seb							
ara of cho			7	qo	ę	qo	qo	qo	qo	
1	පු ශූ		oar	-	•	_	•	_	_	
		1	<u> </u>							
		`			4e	20		ä	nd	
	Locality of School.		m		Ś	an'	en	'ale	Isle	
	of of		lise	lue	,	Ĭ,	she	ين حر	ä	
Lo Se		-	rac	Presque	Anne's Cove	St. Kyran's	Merasheen	Isle of Valen	Barron Island	
			1899 Paradise	<u>4</u>	_ <u>A</u> _	St	<u> </u>	2	<u> </u>	
Catholic Population of Edu- cational District.		1	399					. •		
			=======================================							
]	Tal .:	}	럱							
	lucational District.		Flacentra West							
			age ≰ge							
Dig		1 7	Ī							

RETURN

Of Monies received from the Government and expended by the several Boards of Education; signed by the Chairman and Secretary, and transmitted to the Colonial Secretary through the Inspector of Schools.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE DISTRICT OF PLACENTIA' WEST.

Balance on hand.	0 £22 10 0
Mhole amount expended	0 £144 10 0
Vhole amount received	£167 0 0
Amount paid to Secre- tary of Board.	
Fuel.	
Expended in School requisites,	
School rents.	
Expended in repairing or building school-houses.	£30 0 0cx
ni birg panomA Toachers' Salaries.	£114 10 cy.
Balance from past year.	200
Special Grant.	<u> </u>
Ordinary appropriation Ordination	£146 0 0 cy.

(Signed)

Chairman. JAMES WALSH,

GENERAL OBSERVATIONS.

In submitting my second Report on the Inspection of the Catholic Schools of the Island, I beg leave to state, that, although I cannot point to any great change in the general character of these Schools, evidence of improvement is not wanting. It was not, however, to be expected, that in the short space of twelve months, an improvement in these Schools, of a marked or general character, could be accomplished.

In my former Report I endeavoured to show, that, to make the Schools already established, efficient ones, it was necessary to have suitable Schoolhouses built, provided with the necessary amount of School-furniture, and supplied with Books and Stationery agreeably to the mode I pointed out; and finally, that a superior class of Teachers should be provided to supercede a very large number of those then teaching.

With respect to the first of these requirements, viz., suitable

SCHOOL HOUSES.

I am happy to be able to state that a great amount of improvement has taken place in this respect. I found, in almost every District that I visited, not only a laudable desire on the part of the Board to make the necessary improvement, but also steps were being taken to carry it into execution, while in a few districts an amount of work has been accomplished in this way that is highly creditable. I found, since my former visit, eight new School-houses built, and a similar number were in the course of erection, which are probably completed by this time.

The majority of these School-houses are very superior ones. There has also been about a dozen School-houses repaired, enlarged, or otherwise improved. Only a limited number of these Schools have been provided with School furniture, that were deficient in that respect at my former visit, and the great majority are yet wanting in a proper supply of

BOOKS AND STATIONERY.

I am aware, however, that a few of the Education Boards have already made arrangements to procure a supply of Books for their Schools; and from conversations I have had on this subject with the Chairmen of those Boards that have not as yet done so, I am led to believe that those of them that have funds

at their disposal after the payment of their Teachers, are fully prepared to make a similar appropriation as soon as these funds are available for doing so. I sincerely trust that no unnecessary time will be permitted to elapse until this very desirable object is carried into effect, for I am, if possible, more strongly impressed, since my second visitation of these Schools, of the utter hopelessness of expecting anything like that amount of benefit from those Schools, which we might fairly look for from them, until they are supplied with a suitable description of Books.

TEACHERS.

Very little alterations have taken place in the character of, or efficiency of the Teachers since my former Report. An improvement in this respect, however, must necessarily be a slow one, not only from the difficulty of procuring competent Teachers, but also from the fact that until those other improvements are effected, which at present, and will for some time, absorb all the available funds of the Boards, after the payment of their Teachers, they cannot raise the salaries to such a figure as would be likely to ensure the services of more competent Teachers.

There have been, however, some alterations made as to Teachers, and these very much for the better.

In those Districts where the Boards are unable to raise the salaries they at present pay their Teachers, I was glad to learn from the Chairmen, that they were quite of my opinion as to the desirability of substituting trained Female Teachers, when practicable to do so, in the room of the Male Teachers at present employed, many of whom are very unsuitable persons.

REGISTERS.

I regret very much to be compelled to state that I found the same neglect, as to the keeping of a Register of the attendance of the Pupils, to almost the same extent as I did in my former visit to these Schools.

In consequence of this neglect I was unable to collect a very desirable item of Statistics relative to the Schools—namely, the number of days each School was in operation for the past year; for in the absence of this reliable evidence, I was not prepared to trust to the memory or veracity of the Teacher to supply it.

I brought this subject under the notice of the Boards in my former Report, and, I must say, that I am surprised how very little has been done by way of correcting this evil. Now, whatever excuse may be fairly given for the non-performance of those other improvements to which I have already alluded, there can certainly be no excuse whatever for the neglecting to have this improvement, and an essential one it is, carried into immediate operation.

And the Teacher who neglects to keep a Register, after he has been requested to do so, gives very good ground to suspect that he is equally negligent in other matters connected with his School. Indeed it is not only discreditable to any Teacher not to have a single record of the attendance of his pupils from year's end to year's end, but I am also bound to add, equally so to the Board that permits it.

Increased Education Grant.

His Excellency the Governor, in the instructions which I had the honor to receive from him, states that "he would be glad that you would, in the Report of your ensuing inspection, furnish me, for His Excellency's intormation, with the results of the increased grant for Education under the last Act, in promoting its efficiency in the several Educational Districts."

There has certainly been a large increase made to the Education Grant by the recent Act, but it must be recollected, that out of the aggregate amount there are several deductions to be made for sums voted for special purposes, and which, of course, so far, lessens the amount for Elementary Schools. In those Districts, however, where the Catholic population is large, the increase for Elementary schools is considerable, and has enabled the Boards in those Districts to make improvements in the erecting and repairing of School houses, to which I have already alluded, and which increase will, of course, continue to be available for further improvements when these are completed. In those Districts where the Catholic population is small, the increase made to their Education Grant is not sufficient to expect very great alterations from their former arrangements; yet, even in some of those Districts, it will be seen by my Report, that they are establishing some new Schools from the small increase that has accrued to them.

One of the special votes to which I have alluded, is the sum of £350 for the purpose of training Teachers for the Elementary Schools.

Although the opportunity thus afforded to persons to qualify themselves for Teachers has not been availed of as yet to any great extent, I have not the least doubt that when the salaries of the Teachers are raised—which they can be in several of the Districts, as I have already explained in my former Report—there will be no lack of Candidates to qualify themselves for these situations.

There is another special vote, and for a purpose the most beneficial to the Catholic population of the country—namely, the establishment in the extern Districts of

CONVENT SCHOOLS.

Although these Schools do not fairly come within the scope of my labours, not having been included in my instructions, yet, as I had the pleasure of visiting three of these Institutions during my tour last summer, I am desirous of expressing the deep conviction I entertain, not alone upon the immense benefits they are conferring upon the female children in every locality in which they are established, but also the beneficial effect they will exercise upon the Catholic Elementary Education of the country in future.

To any person compelled, as I have been latterly, to witness the apathy and indifference but too often exhibited by Teachers, it was pleasurable to me to see, on each occasion that I visited these Convent Schools, the untiring exertions of the Ladies to instruct and educate the children under their charge. This instruction embracing, besides the usual Branches of an English Education imparted to semales, the acquirement of those varied styles of needle-work of which we have had such beautiful specimens, annually, at the Exhibition held at the Parent Establishment at St. John's.

I had the pleasure of visiting the Exhibition this year, and was certainly astonished at the number, variety, and beauty of the specimens of needle-work exhibited. Those Scripture Pieces that were hung round the room might, from the beautiful manner they were executed, be readily taken for oil paintings. The specimens of the Writing and Drawing of the pupils were equally deserving of praise.

With respect to the future beneficial effect—the training received by the females in these Institutions—may have upon the Catholic Elementary Schools

of the Island, it will be admitted by every one, that one of the great obstacles to the successful working of the Elementary Schools, is the culpable apathy of the parents themselves, to which we may fairly attribute the present very irregular attendance of the pupils; and as this indifference to Education, on the part of parents, would, of itself, be a sufficient bar to the efficient working of these schools, even when every other obstacle was removed, I look with confidence to the substitution of a healthier feeling in this respect, from the religious training the future mothers of the operative Catholic population of the country are at present receiving in these Institutions.

For I say that this training must necessarily imbue their minds with that feeling of the obligation imposed upon them of educating their children when opportunities are afforded them of doing so, to which persons not blessed with this early religious training would be strangers to.

SCHOOL RETURNS AND AMOUNT OF FEES PAID.

Before starting on my tour of inspection, my colleague, Mr. Haddon and myself, adopted a form of School Return for the purpose of giving more statistical information relative to the character of the Schools, than could be supplied by the one of last year. I think it right, however to state, that in consequence of the absence of a number of the pupils from School at the time of inspection, and these generally the more advanced ones, the correctness of these Returns depends, to a great extent, upon the veracity of the Teacher. And I found in a great many instances that the Teacher was disposed to represent those pupils who were absent as being more advanced in the several Branches taught in the School, than I was always disposed to give credence to. I was, therefore, compelled to make the Teacher prune down his Return to what I considered a fair character of the School, being guided in doing so by the proficiency of the pupils present, as well as my opinion of the acquirements of the Teacher himself.

I thought to have arranged the statistics of all the Schools in one grand summary, but from the neglect of several of the Teachers in not sending their School Returns, I found it would be so defective that I was compelled to give it up.

I am happy in being able to state that I have received from all the Boards, with the exception of two, a Statement of the Disbursements of the School money received in their several Districts.

In conclusion, I have merely to state, that the gross amount of fees paid by the pupils this year, have increased fifty per cent. on that of last year. In a great number of Schools, however, no fees are paid as yet, nor indeed can I reasonably hope for any great improvement in this respect, as long as those Teachers are retained who are so very unqualified for their situation.

With these remarks I beg leave to submit my Report.

(Signed,)

MICHAEL JOHN KELLY.

APPENDIX, No. 37. PETITION.

To the Honorable the Legislative Council in Legislative Session convened:—

The Petition of the undersigned Ministers and Members of the Wesleyan Church and Congregation, at Twillingate, humbly sheweth:—

That whereas a piece of ground at Twillingate has been used as a Burying-place, by the Public generally, for Eighty years past, in which are interred many connected with the Wesleyan Church, besides Episcopalians and others.

Your Petitioners would call the attention of your Honorable House to the fact, that Wesleyan Ministers, in common with the Episcopalian Ministers, have interred there without an objection being raised until of late, when the Episcopalians of this place, by adding more fence to some erected by the Wesleyans, have entirely enclosed the ground, put a lock upon the gate, and prevent any from being interred there but those who are buried by the Episcopal Minister, who professes to have the sole and exclusive right to bury in the grave yard; and that the Wesleyan Minister, by acceding to the dying wish of a person to bury him in the aforesaid yard, beside his father, commits a trespass.

Your Petitioners would moreover call the attention of your Honorable House to the fact, that two Summers since, when his Lordship the Bishop of Newfoundland was upon the ground and about to consecrate it, was prevented by the representation being made of the equal claim which the Wesleyans have with the Episcopalians to interment there; also, to the fact that some of the members of the Wesleyan Church, and their ancestors, were among the first who began to fence the ground, and have relatives buried there.

Your Petitioners consider that they have an equal right to the use of the above named burying place as the Episcopalians, and therefore humbly pray your Honorable House to express its opinion on the matter, that hereafter there may be a mutual understanding.

And your Petitioners, as in duty bound, will ever pray.

Thomas Harris, Wesleyan Minister. Charles Duder
John C. Duder, Joseph Minty
Peter Samuelus

Peter Samways, John Young, Sr.

Thomas Haines, J.B. Blandford, Church Warden, St. Peter's

J. J. Pearce, J. P.,

John Young, Sr.,

John Young, Jr.,

George Minty

John Minty

James Travers

John Wills, John Gillard

Henry Loveridge, John Earl Robert Grant, Robert Hines

Henry Blackmore, Josiah Borden Reuben Blackmore, Henry Blake

Elias Roberts, William Brown

Thomas Moores, George Barnes

Richard Young, Henry Grinham
John Skinner James Gillard

John Skinner, James Gillard
Alexander Stuckless, Stephen Roberts

John Moores, Joseph Roberts

Robert Moores, Thomas Roberts

Abraham Young, Thomas Jacobs

John Roberts Edward Moores

George Cook Isaac Moores George Wyatt John Roberts

And 68 others.

APPENDIX, No. 38.

PETITION.

To the Honorable the Legislative Council of Newfoundland.

The Petition of the Wesleyans, and other Inhabitants of Burin,

HUMBLY SHEWETH,-

That your Petitioners approach your honorable House, and humbly pray that you will take into your consideration and increase the Grant now given by your honorable House for the support of the Wesleyan (Branch) Commercial School to Sixty Pounds per annum, to enable them to secure the services of a Teacher capable of instructing their children in those branches of education which they wish them to learn, they having no other means of securing a superior education for their children; tor your honorable house must know that the sum now granted was not sufficient to accomplish this desirable object.

Your Petitioners would humbly beg to remind your honorable House, that they consider Burin the most important settlement on this side of the Island, and ought to have the same advantages of Education as they have in Conception Bay and elsewhere.

Your Petitioners would humbly beg to say, that a Commercial School established in Collins Cove would be a most central one, and many children of other Denominations would have the benefit of the School; for there is now a new road from Burin Bay to Collins Cove, which brings the places in such close approximation that it will greatly facilitate the attendance of children from that locality, and your Petitioners feel persuaded that if once a good School is established in this place that a very large attendance of children will be the result.

Your Petitioners would also remind your honorable House, that they have every confidence in your desire to promote Education, and therefore feel persuaded that the Petition of your Petitioners will receive that consideration by your honorable House which its importance demands.

And as in duty bound, will ever pray,

John S. Phinney, Wesleyan Minister. Francis Moran, M.D., Thomas Birkett, H.M.C., William Hooper, J.P.,

George Goddard, Edward Collins. Richard Bonnel. George Inkpen, Philip Hollett, Edward Brewer. John Collins. John Adams. John Bartlett. Joseph Kirby, James Inkpen, J. Moore, Thomas Hollett, Samuel Newport, Joseph Emberly, Richard Moulton,

And 48 others.

John Bugden Joseph Kirby, Jr. Richard Moulton George Strawbridge William Collins P. G. Churchwill Joseph Bartlett William Abbott Henry Hollett Thomas Goddard George Britt George Moulton Donald Whiten Benjamin Inkpen John Dunford John Hodden

APPENDIX, No. 39.

PETITION.

To the Honorable the Legislative Council in Session convened:—

The Petition of the Corresponding Committee on behalf of the Colonial Church and School Society,

HUMBLY SHEWETH,-

That the Newfoundland School Society, now in connection with the Colonial Church and School Society of London, came into operation in this Colony in the year 1823, and has ever since been continued: whereby the children of the poor have received an education from competent Masters and Mistresses sent from England, or selected here, which has enabled them to fill with res-

pectability, various offices of trust and confidence in life; a boon which thousands have received since its foundation; the general character of the teachers, system, and branches taught being well known and appreciated by the Colonists.

That for the support of their Schools, erection and repairs of Schoolhouses, &c., reliance has been heretofore placed, and not in vain, on the liberality of your Honorable House, the Society's aid, as well as by subscriptions from the well disposed towards the institution; which have enabled the Society, through the Corresponding Committee of this Island, to open up Schools, and work them with great advantage to the public,—care being taken at home, as well as here, to employ no teachers except those of experience, character, and moral deportment; the result of whose example and instruction has always been felt and shewn in the improvement made by the children.

That the Society has now in successful operation in Newfoundland, the following establishments open, viz.:—

Schools			24
Having-Teachers,	Male	• • •	22
•	Female		15
Scholars,	Boys	••••	1226
	Girls	•••	1242
		*	
Total			2468

That the Home Society for the year 1859 having increased the stipends of their ill-paid Teachers, with great liberality voted the sum of £1200 sterling, and the Legislature £650 sterling, in support of their Schools; which sum has been with care and anxiety expended in the working of the Schools, and in the erecting or repairing School-houses, the teachers' dwellings, and in the supply of stoves, fuel and necessaries.

That several of these School-houses, erected of wood many years since, are in constant want of repairs; whilst the School-house at Heart's Content was blown down some time since before completion, the materials saved being much shattered and injured, which have been renewed; whilst School-houses are required to be built at Fogo and Twillingate.

That a new School-house was erected at Bishop's Cove, assisted by the Society, the inhabitants promising to build a Master's dwelling this season; this Committee having promised to expend £50 thereon to complete it the present year.

Your Petitioners humbly pray, therefore, that your Honorable House will be pleased to vote such a sum of money, during the present Session, as to your Honorable House shall seem meet, to enable them to carry on the good work of Education as aforesaid in the "Newfoundland Schools" throughout the Colony.

And as in duty bound, your Petitioners will ever pray, &c.,

CHARLES SIMMS,

Chairman.

JAMES BAYLY,

Secretary.

St. John's, Newfoundland, 9th February, 1860.

TO THE

JOURNAL

OF THE

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.

ADDRESSES,

- In Reply to His Excellency's Speech on opening the Session, 23.
- Requesting His Excellency to appoint another Officer as Clerk or Master in Chancery, 27.
- Requesting copy of Instructions given to Captain Coady and Mr. James Finlay, on the Fishery Question, 30.
- Requesting copy of Minute of Council for opening new Street from Monkstown Road to Barnes's Lane, &c., 45.
- Recommending the family of Valentine Borne to the favourable consideration of the Governor, 51.
- On the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch with regard to increase of Troops, 66.
- Requesting the appointment of two Members of Council to assist in the direction and superintendence of repairs of Government House, &c., in accordance with clause 21, 9 Vic., Crown Lands' Act, 71.

ADDRESSES—(Continued.)

- Requesting to be informed whether any Member of Council had applied for a permanent office, within the last year, on specified conditions, 72.
- Requesting to have laid before the House a Return of all Correspondence between His Grace the Duke of Newcastle and the Government, on subject of Galway line of Steamers, 72.
- Requesting a Return of any Correspondence with the Imperial Government and Government of the United States of America, on subject of Lunatics landed in this Colony from the "Argo," 76.
- Requesting Minute of Council authorising the expenditure of £581 13 4, on Address from House of Assembly last Session; and also £767 6 0, paid on Executive authority, 87.
- Requesting copy of Governor's Despatch of date 16th November, 1859, to His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, on the subject of Galway Steam Contract, and any further Despatch received from His Grace subsequent to the one of 24th January last, 93.
- On subject of contemplated visit of His Royal Highness, 97.
- To His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, on the Fishery Question, 98, 165.
- Requesting a communication of the particular circumstance which induced a recommendation in His Excellency's Speech, at the opening of the Session, that Board of Works Act should be amended, 109.
- Thanking His Excellency for the desire evinced by His Excellency to save the Colony the unnecessary contribution to the Galway Steam Subsidy for the next four years, 111.
- Requesting the appointment of a Sanitary Commission for the purpose of considering the site and plan for the erection of the proposed new Poor Houses, &c., 112.
- Requesting to be furnished with the particulars of the expenses of Colonial Secretary's Office for the year 1859, &c., 113.

ADDRESSES—(Continued.)

- Requesting a Return to be made of the date of imprisonment of Mrs. Donovan in Penitentiary, &c., 130.
- Recommending His Excellency to appropriate a Sum of Money from the Treasury to defray the expenses of the reception of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, 130.
- Requesting His Excellency to furnish what information he may have received from Her Majesty's Government, affirming the suspension of Mr. R. Reader, 134.
- Requesting information on the subject of a Registered Money Letter, addressed to Miss Lucy Tyrrell, 138.
- Drawing the attention of His Excellency to violation of 4th Section Saving's Bank Amendment Act, 18th and 19th Vic., 139.
- Requesting to be informed whether British subjects are allowed to fish, as heretofore, in St. George's Bay, &c., 141.
- Requesting to be informed it any correspondence has been received from Imperial Government on Fishery question since opening of Session, 142.
- Drawing the attention of His Excellency to the want of proper regulations in the Penitentiary, &c., 143.
- To His Royal Highness Albert Edward, Prince of Wales, 160.
- From House of Assembly, requesting His Excellency to sanction payment of One Hundred Guineas to representatives of Captain Jones, of the Steamer "Hungarian," 163.
- On subject of Hon. James Tobin's claim of £100, 168.
- To His Grace the Duke of Newcastle, on the Fishery question, 98, 165.

ANNOUNCEMENT

Of the closing of the Legislature, 158.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES,

Of the Colony on the 31st December, 1859-Appendix, No. 3.

BILLS,-

- Bill to abolish Crown Rents, read 1st time, 30.
- Bill for the Protection of Sheep against Dogs, read 1st time, 43. 2nd time, 50. Committed, 53, 55. Read 3rd time and passed, 58.—Amendments, 1st and 2nd, 156, 159.
- Bill to provide for the Inspection of Flour and Meal, read 1st time, 43. 2nd time, 50. Committed, 58.
- Culling of Fish Bill, read 1st time, 51. 2nd time, 58. Committed, 91, 101. Read 3rd time and passed, 103.
- Insolvency Law Consolidation and Amendment Bill, read 1st time, 58. 2nd time, 68. Committed, 74, S1, 83, 84, 86, 88. Read 3rd time and passed, 97.
- Ungranted and Unoccupied Crown Lands Bill, brought up and read 1st time, 60. 2nd time, 71. Committed, 75, 86, 89. Read 3rd time and passed, 91.
- Revenue Bill, brought up and read 1st time, 88. 2nd time, 92. Committed, 92. Read 3rd time and passed, 92.
- Terra Nova Mining Company Incorporation Bill, read 1st time, 89. 2nd time, 92. Committed, 100. Read 3rd time and passed, 101.
- Wrecked Property Protection Bill, brought up and read 1st time, 101. 2nd time, 104. Committed, 111, 114, 117, 129. Read 3rd time and passed, 132.
- Controverted Elections Bill, brought up and read 1st time, 129. 2nd time, 132. Committed, 133. Read 3rd time and passed, 136.
- Firing of Woods and Forests Bill, brought up and read 1st time, 133. 2nd time, 136. Committed, 140. Read 3rd time and passed, 145.
- Supply Bill, brought up and read 1st time, 137. 2nd time, 142. Committed, 151. Read 3rd time and passed, 153.
- General Water Company Incorporation Act Amendment Bill, brought up and read first time, 137. 2nd time, 142. Committed, 155. Read 3rd time and passed, 155.

BILLS,—(Continued.)

- Poor Asylum Erection Bill, &c., brought up and read 1st time, 137. 2nd time, 142. Committed, 156. Read 3rd time and passed, 156.
- Prevention of Nuisances Bill, brought up and read first time, 137. 2nd time, 142. Committed, 146, 154, 157. Read 3rd time and passed, 158.
- Protection of Salmon Fisheries Bill, brought up and read 1st time, 137. 2nd time, 142. Committed, 155. Read 3rd time and passed, 155.
- Road Bill, read 1st and 2nd time, 156. Committed, 158. Read 3rd time and passed, 162.
- Outport Steam Communication Bill, read 1st and 2nd time, 156. Committed, 159. Read 3rd time and passed, 159.

CONTINGENCIES—

Notice to ask for the Report of the Select Committee on Contingencies, &c., 14.

Notice to fill vacancy in Printing Contingency Committee, 18.

Report of Committee on Printing Contingencies, 28.

Notice to move for appointment of Contingency Committee, 35.

Motion for Contingency Committee, 48.

Notice for a Select Committee on Contingencies, 51.

Motion for appointment of Contingency Committee, 86.

Notice to ask why the Legislative Contingencies of 1859, &c., do not appear in the Bill of Indemnity, 144.

Honorable Mr. Pinsent appointed a Member of Contingency Committee, 145.

Report of Select Committee on Contingencies, 166.

CORRESPONDENCE AND DOCUMENTS,—

On the subject of Direct Steam-Appendix, No. 21.

DOCUMENTS,—

- Despatches relative to the formation of Volunteer Rifle Corps—Appendix, No. 5.
- Report of Cashier of Savings' Bank, ending the 31st December, 1859

 -Appendix, No. 6.
- General Statement of Affairs of the Union Bank of Newtoundland, for the Year ending 31st May, 1859—Appendix, No. 8.
- General Statement of Affairs of the Commercial Bank of Newfoundland, to the 30th July, 1859—Appendix, No. 9.
- Report made to the Government by Directors of the General Water Company, with Enclosures, 27th January, 1860—Appendix, No. 13.
- Statement of the Affairs of St. John's Marine Insurance Company, for the Year ending 10th January, 1860—Appendix, No. 10.
- General Abstract of the Affairs of the Newfoundland Fire Insurance Company, 31st December, 1859—Appendix, No. 11.
- General Abstract of the Affairs of the Newfoundland Marine Assurance Company, for the Year ending 31st December, 1859—Appendix, No. 12.
- Letter and Enclosures from Mr. G. Makinson, on the subject of the establishment of a suitable Steam Communication between Conception Bay and St. John's—Appendix, No. 19.
- Number of Paupers and amount of expenses for Government Sheds per month, from 1st January to 31st December, 1859. Names, ages and previous occupation of Paupers in Government Sheds, from 1st to 23rd February, 1860—Appendix, No. 18.
- A Return shewing the Number, Tonnage, and Crews of Foreign Ships cleared outwards for the Year ending 31st December, 1859—Appendix, No. 17.
- Copy of Rules and Regulations of Newfoundland Savings' Bank—Appendix, No. 7.

DOCUMENTS,—(Continued)

- Copies of original Correspondence brought to Newfoundland by Lord Bury, and Draft of proposed Contract by Her Majesty's Government with the Galway Company upon Steam Communication—Appendix, No. 267.
- Report upon the Inspection of Protestant Schools in Newfoundland, for the year 1859—Appendix, No. 35.
- Second Year's Report upon the Inspection of Catholic Schools in Newfoundland, 1859—Appendix, No. 36.
- Report of the Inspector of Light Houses-Appendix, No. 14.
- Report of James L. Prendergast, on the protection of Fisheries in the Straits of Belle Isle—Appendix, No. 15.
- Report of Mr. Henry Knight on the protection of Fisheries at Cape John—Appendix, No. 16.
- Copy of Letter from A. Shea, Esq., Agent of the Atlantic Royal Mail Steam Navigation Company, to the Acting Colonial Secretary—Appendix, No. 21.
- Copy of Reply to Mr. Shea's Letter, 20th October, proposing discontinuance running Galway Boats during Winter months—Ibid.
- Copy of Governor's Letter 22nd December, 1859, relative to Galway Steam Company's Ships running between Galway and St. John's throughout the Winter—Ibid.
- Copy of Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, No. 52, 31st December, 1859, relative to the Galway Steam Company's Contract—Ibid.
- Copy of Duke of Newcastle's Despatch 24th January, 1860, together with a Letter from Messrs. Vallance and Vallance, 6th January, 1860, to S. Laing, Esq., M.P., on the subject of Contracts with the Royal Mail Steam Packet Company—Ibid.
- Letter from Acting Colonial Secretary, in reply to Monsieur Pierre's Communication to the Administrator of the Government, in reference to an arrangement for the Conveyance of the French Mails via Galway—Appendix, No. 22.

DOCUMENTS,—(Continued.)

- Documents with reference to four female Lunatics, who were wrecked on the Steamer Argo, on the Coast of Newfoundland last year—Nos. 1 to 4—Appendix, No. 23.
- Detailed Statement of Expenditure under Executive Responsibility, for the year 1859—Appendix, No. 25.
- Detailed Statement of Expenditure under Emigration Encouragement Vote, year 1859—Appendix, No. 26.
- Statement of Expenditure for Coroner's Inquests, District of St. John's, for the year 1859—Appendix, No. 27.
- Return shewing Executive Minutes for Expenditure of £581 13 4, passed on Addresses from the House of Assembly of 1859; and of Expenditure, same year, on Executive authority, of £767 6 1, called for by Address of Council—Appendix, No. 30.
- Return of Expenditure on Executive authority, between 31st December, 1859, and 14th April, 1860—Appendix, No. 31.
- Return of the Amount paid in Salaries to the Officers of the Savings' Bank in detail, namely, to the Cashier, Bank Directors, &c.—Appendix, No. 33.
- Statement of the Expenses of Colonial Secretary's Office, for the year ended 31st December, 1859—Appendix, No. 32.
- Return of Postage Stamps issued from the Office of Colonial Secretary
 —Appendix, No. 24.
- Detailed Statement of Expenditure under Addresses of the House of Assembly, 1858, for the year 1859—Appendix, No. 28.
- Detailed Statement of all Monies paid by the Executive Government on Addresses from the House of Assembly, 1859—Appendix, No. 29.

EDUCATION,—

- Petition from Corresponding Committee of Colonial Church and School Society, laid on the table, 58. Read, 69—Appendix, No. 39.
- Petition from the Wesleyans, and other inhabitants of Burin, for increase of Grant to Wesleyan (Branch) Commercial School, laid on the table, 84. Read, 85—Appendix, No. 38.
- Report upon the Inspection of Protestant Schools in Newfoundland, for the year 1859—Appendix, No. 35.
- Second Year's Report upon the Inspection of Catholic Schools in Newfoundland, 1859—Appendix, No. 36.

ESTIMATE,—

For paying part of the Public Expenditure of Newfoundland for the year 1860—Appendix, No. 2.

EVIDENCE,—

Taken before Select Committee on Bill to provide for the Culling of Fish, with Report, laid on the table, 82—Appendix, No. 34.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT,—

Of the Affairs of the Colony of Newfoundland, for the year 1860—Appendix, No. 1.

FISHERIES,—

Report of James L. Prendergast, Superintendent in the Straits of Belle Isle, and along the Coast of Labrador—Appendix, No. 15.

Report of Mr. Henry Knight, on the Protection of,—Appendix, No.16.

GOVERNOR,-

Arrives at Council Chamber, 7.

Speech of—on opening the Session, 8.

Address of Council in answer to, 23. Reply of, 33.

Arrives at Council Chamber and assents to Revenue Bill, 105. Assents to sundry Bills, 173.

Speech of—on proroguing the General Assembly, 174.

GENERAL ASSEMBLY,—

Prorogued, 179.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE,—

Granted to Hon. Mr. Hogsett, 131. Hon. Mr. Carson, 145. Hon. Mr. Tobin, 171.

LIGHT HOUSES,—

Report of the Inspector for the year ending 31st December, 1859—Appendix, No. 14.

MESSAGES,—

- Message from Governor, transmitting wo Despatches relative to the formation of Volunteer Corps, 15.
- Reply of His Excellency the Governor to Address of Legislative Council of 16th inst., on subject of Post Office Regulations, 38.
- Reply to Address of Legislative Council of 16th inst., on subject of employment of Messrs. Finlay and Coady, on services connected with the Fishery Commission, 40.
- Message of His Excellency in reply to Address of 1st of March, 50.
- Message from Governor relative to four female Lunatics, landed from the wreck of the Argo, 79.
- Message from Governor in reply to Council's Address of 19th inst., 80.
- Messages from Governor relative to visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, 94, 95, 96.
- Message of Governor in reply to Address of 30th March, 103.
- Message and Document with reference to Contingency Bill of last Session, 119.
- Reply of His Excellency to Council's Address of 4th of May, drawing attention to the want of proper regulations and system in the Institution called the Penitentiary of St. John's, 147.
- Reply of His Excellency to Address of Council of 26th of April, relative to the imprisonment in the Penitentiary of Mrs. Donovan, with Letter from Mr. R. Brace and John V. Nugent, Esq., Sheriff, on same subject, 148.

I N D E X.

Message from His Excellency the Governor, in reply to Address of Legislative Council, relative to Hon. James Tobin's claim for expenses incurred by him in prosecuting his appeal to the Imperial Government upon the question of his suspension as a Member of the Legislative Council, and in defending the inviolability of Her Majesty's Commission, 172.

NOTICES OF MOTION,—

Notice of an Address for an Order of Council, authorizing a charge on a Letter posted and delivered in town, 14.

Notice of a Resolution for the abolition of the entire reading of Bills, 14.

Notice to ask for the Report of the Select Committee on Contingencies, 14.

Notice for the appointment of Officers to the House, 14.

Notice for the appointment of Printers to the House, 18.

Notice to fill vacancy in Printing Contingency Committee, 18.

Notice of arrangement for receiving News by Telegraph, 19.

Notice of Bill to abolish Crown or Quit Rents, 21.

Notice of Address for copy of Instructions to Captain Coady and Mr. James Finlay, &c., 21.

Notice to move the House into Committee on the increase of Troops in the Colony, 21.

Notice for leave to bring in a Bill to prevent the ravages of Dogs on Sheep, &c., 28.

Notice to ask the Organ of Government, whose duty it is to attend to Public Coves, 31.

Notice of sundry Bills, 31.

Notice of Address for Minute of Council, Despatch, &c., on Newfoundland Fisheries, 31.

Notice of Select Committee to audit Accounts of Savings' Bank, 31.

NOTICES OF MOTION,—(Continued.)

Notice to ask why the Chief Clerk of the Post Office has been dismissed, &c., 31.

Notice of Address for Minute of Council for opening Street from Monkstown road, &c., 31.

Notice for Rules, &c., for management of Savings' Bank, 32.

Notice to move for Contingency Committee, 35.

Notice to ask for a Committee to regulate the building of Wharves, 37.

Notice to ask the Organ of Government for return of Foreign Vessels, &c., 37.

Notice for appointment of Governor of Savings' Bank, 43.

Notice to ask the Organ of the Government for information respecting the Galway Company Contract, 43.

Notice to ask the Organ of the Government for information respecting the future conduct of the Attorney General, 44.

Notice of Committee of Privilege, on pay to Members, 48.

Notice of Law of Insolvency Amendment Bill, 48.

Notice of Address respecting late Messenger, 48.

Notice to ask for papers relative to the French Mail Service, 49.

Notice to ask for return of Light House Expenditure, 49.

Notice for a Select Committee on Contingencies, 51.

Notice for an enlarged Committee for Library, 51.

Notice for a return of l'ilots' Reserved Fund, 52.

Notice of Address relative to Lunatics landed from Argo, 52.

Notice for Committee of the whole on Report of Select Committee on Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, 57.

Notice of Returns of persons receiving pay from Public Chest, 57.

NOTICES OF MOTION,—(Continued.)

- Notice that Committee on Report of Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, be first on order of the day, 59.
- Notice for reading of Petition from Colonial Church and School Society, 59.
- Notice to ask for Return of Post Office Stamps, 59.
- Notice to ask to have laid on the table revised list of Magistrates, &c., 59.
- Notice to ask if certain Offices are held by political tenure, 59.
- Notice to move an Address to His Excellency for appointment of Chaplain, 59.
- Notice for Select Committee to audit Accounts, &c., of Savings' Bank, 65.
- Notice of Address on direction of repairs of Government House, &c., 65.
- Notice of Address to the Governor to inform the House if a proposal had been made for an office on specified conditions, 69.
- Notice for Return of Monies paid on Addresses from the House of Assembly, 69.
- Notice of Address for certain Correspondence on the subject of the Galway Line, 69.
- Notice to ask whether the Executive have extended the period of the Galway Steam Contract, 73.
- Notice of Address for Correspondence on subject of Lunatics landed from Argo, 73.
- Notice to ask if it is intended to bring in any Bill to amend the Board of Works Act, 73.
- Notice to go into Committee on Galway Steam Company's Contract papers, 76.
- Notice of Address requesting that no Money be paid without being voted by the Legislature, 77.

NOTICES OF MOTION,—(Continued.)

- Notice of Address for detailed account of Coroner of the District, &c., &c., 77.
- Notice that reply to Address of 19th inst, be not inserted in the Journal, 83.
- Notice of Address for Minute of Council authorizing certain Expenditure, 84.
- Notice to ask for Statement of £500 6 4, on account of Shipwrecked Crews, 85.
- Notice of Address to Secretary of State for the Colonies, on the subject of the Fisheries, 87.
- Notice of Bill to Incorporate Terra Nova Mining Company, 87.
- Notice of Address for Despatch on subject of the Galway Steam Contract, 90.
- Notice to ask if the Grounds in front of the Colonial Building are to be improved, 90.
- Notice of Address respecting the rumoured visit of the Prince of Wales, 90.
- Notice to suspend 35th Rule of the House, 90.
- Notice for appointment of Committee to act with Committee from House of Assembly, for making arrangements to receive His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, 93.
- Notice to ask if Assistant Collector receives £50 in addition to his Salary, &c., 93.
- Notice for suspension of 35th Rule of the House, 99.
- Notice of Committee of the House on Governor's Message respecting the rumoured visit of His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales, 99.
- Notice for Returns of sundry items of Expenditure, 101.
- Notice of Address to be informed why His Excellency recommended the Board of Works Act to be amended, 104.

NOTICES OF MOTION,—(Continued.)

Notice of Address respecting the Codification of the Laws of the Colony, 104.

Notice of Address for Return of amount paid to Officers of Savings' Bank, 104.

Notice for Address on Steam, 107.

Notice of Address for the appointment of Sanitary Commission, &c., 109.

Notice of Address for the Expenses of the Secretary's Office, 109.

Notice of Address for information respecting the imprisonment of Mrs. Donovan, 113.

Notice to move for return of Expenditure of various sums of Money, 114.

Notice for Address on Salaries of Colonial Secretary and Acting Colonial Secretary, 118.

Notice of Address relative to the Suspension of Mr. Reader, 131.

Notice for Select Committee to prepare Address on arrival of H. R. H. the Prince of Wales, 132.

Notice of Address on subject of Registered Money Letter addressed to Miss Lucy Tyrrell, 134.

Notice of Address on the subject of the Savings' Bank Salaries, &c., 135.

Notice of Address on subject of Fishery in St. George's Bay, 135.

Notice of Address to ask for information on the Fishery Question, 135.

Notice of Address relative to the St. John's Penitentiary, 139.

Notice to move for suspension of 35th Rule, 143.

Notice to move the House into Committee of Privilege, 144.

Notice to ask why the Legislative Contingencies of 1859, &c., do not appear in the Bill of Indemnity, 144.

Notice to ask the Organ of the Government for information respecting Steam Communication to the Outports and St. Pierre, 157.

PROTESTS,-

- Of Honorable N. Stabb, against the decision of the House on the appointment of a second Officer, 32.
- Of Honorable James Tobin, against the Council's decision of the 19th March, 77, 78.
- Of Honorable James Tobin, against vote of Council, bearing date 9th May, 1860, 161.

PROROGATION OF THE LEGISLATURE.

Letter from Colonial Secretary specifying time for, 158.

Legislature prorogued, 179.

PETITIONS,—

- From the Minister and Members of the Wesleyan Church and Congregation at Twillingate, on the subject of the Burial Ground, presented, 114. Read and laid on table, 115—Appendix, No. 37.
- From the Wesleyans and other inhabitants of Burin, for increase of Grant to Wesleyan Commercial School, presented, 84. Read and laid on the table, 85.—Appendix, No. 38.
- From Corresponding Committee of Colonial Church and School Society, presented 58. Read and laid on the table, 69.—Appendix, No. 39.
- From Walter Dalton, for appointment of Assistant Door-keeper, presented, 105. Read and laid on the table, 108.
- From Thomas Dwyer, for appointment of Doorkeeper, presented, 107. Read and laid on the table, 108.
- From Ambrose Ronayne, Patrick Larkin, and Thomas Coady, for appointment of Assistant doorkeeper, presented, 111. Read and laid on the table, 116.
- From Patrick Grey, for appointment of Doorkeeper, presented, 118.— Read and laid on the table, 129.
- From Maurice Kearney, for appointment of Doorkeeper, presented, 134. Read and laid on the table, 136.

PETITIONS,—(Continued.)

From the Pilots of St. John's, laid upon the table, 55.

REPORTS.—

- Of Committee on Printing Contingencies, &c., 28.
- Of Cashier of Savings' Bank, laid upon the table, 46-Appendix, No. 6.
- Of Directors of General Water Company, 27th January, 1860, laid upon the table, 46—Appendix, No. 13.
- Of Joint Committee on the Duke of Newcastle's Despatch, 52.
- Of the Inspectors of Schools, 55.
- Of the Inspector of Light Houses, 55-Appendix, No. 14.
- Of James L. Prendergast, Esq., on the Protection of Fisheries in the Straits of Belle Isle, 55—Appendix, No. 15.
- Of Mr. Henry Knight, on the Protection of Fisheries, at Cape John, 55—Appendix, No. 16.
- Of Select Committee to take Evidence on Culling of Fish-Bill, 82
- Ot Joint Committee on contemplated Visit of H. R. H. the Prince of Wales, 118.
- Of Select Committee on Contingencies, 166.

RETURN,-

- Of Postage Stamps, issued from the Office of the Colonial Secretary, with Letter from him with reference to the same, 76—Appendix, No. 24.
- Of Expenditure under Executive authority, between 31st December, 1859, and 14th April, 1860, 108—Appendix, No. 31.

RETURN,—(Continued.)

Of Salaries paid to the Officers of the Savings' Bank, asked for and laid upon the table, 109—Appendix, No. 33.

Of various items of Expenditure, asked for, 115.

Of £200 12 7 and of £300 asked for, 117.

RULES OF THE HOUSE,—

35th Suspended, 20, 92, 100, 152.

SPEECH OF THE GOVERNOR,—

At opening of the Session, 8.

On proroging General Assembly, 174.

SELECT COMMITTEES,—

To draft Address in reply to Governor's Speech, 14.

On the Colonial Minister's Despatch with regard to the increase of Troops in the Colony, 42. Report, 52.

On Building of Wharves, &c., 50.

To take Evidence on Culling of Fish Bill, 59. Report, S2.

On Contingencies, S6. Report of, 166.

To prepare Address in answer to Messages from the Governor respecting contemplated visit of the Prince of Wales, 97. Report of, 97.

To prepare Address to H. R. H. the Prince of Wales, should be visit Newfoundland, 134. Report of, 160.

Honorable Mr. Pinsent appointed on Contingencies, instead of Honorable Mr. Carson, granted leave of absence, 145.

SAVINGS' BANK,—

Motion for Select Committee to audit the Accounts of, 43.

Motion for Address to His Excellency, for the appointment of three Governors of, from the Legislative Council, according to Law, 47.

Rules and Regulations of, laid upon the table, 48.

JOSEPH WOODS, PRINTER, ST. JOHN'S, NEWFOUNDLAND.